
 

City of Capitola Agenda 
   
  

 

Mayor: Stephanie Harlan 
Vice Mayor: Sam Storey 
Council Members: Ed Bottorff 
 Dennis Norton 
 Michael Termini 
Treasurer: Kym DeWitt 
  

 

REVISED 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY, JUNE 27, 2013  
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 
An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of any final 
decisions in City Council Chambers during the City Council's Open Session Meeting. 

 
 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54957.6) 
  Negotiator: Lisa Murphy, Administrative Services Director 

Employee Organizations:  
Capitola Police Officers Association and the Capitola Police Captains 

 
 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Govt. Code §54957) 
  City Council’s Performance Evaluation of the City Manager 
 

 LIABILITY CLAIMS (Govt. Code §54956.95) 
  Claimant:  David Curry 

Agency claimed against:  City of Capitola 
 

1 ,----------1 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - June 27, 2013 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Dennis Norton, Sam Storey, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini and Mayor 
Stephanie Harlan 

 
2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 

3. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are 
requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may 
be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time. 

 
5. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 
6. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 
 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed 
for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived. 

 
 A. Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the May 30, 2013, and the June 6, 2013, 

Special Budget Sessions. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Minutes. 

 
 B. Approval of City Check Register Reports dated May 17, 2013; May 24, 2013; May 31, 

2013; June 7, 2013; and June 14, 2013. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the City Check Register Reports. 

 
 C. Consider approving a consultant services agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc., in 

an amount not to exceed $142,295 to prepare an Environmental Impact Report for the 
proposed Monarch Cove Hotel Project funded through a developer deposit. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Agreement. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - June 27, 2013 
 
 D. Consider denying liability claim of David Curry in the amount of $49.52 and forward to 

the City’s liability insurance carrier. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Deny Liability Claim. 

 
 E. Consider approving an Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 

establishing the Santa Cruz County Library Financing Authority. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Amendment. 

 
 F. Consider an Ordinance adding Chapter 10.38 of the Capitola Municipal Code specifying 

parking meter rates and zones [2nd Reading]. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Adopt Ordinance. 

 
 G. Consider an agreement with New World Software Systems for Payroll/Human 

Resources software. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Agreement. 

 
8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision. 

 
 A. Consider a Resolution to Levy the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement 

Area (CVWBIA) Assessments for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Adopt Resolution. 

 
 B. Appeal of the Planning Commission denial of a Planned Development Rezoning, 

Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for a three-story, 23-unit residential senior 
housing project located at 1575 38th Avenue. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
(1) Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration and approve the proposed project; (2) 
Pass the first reading of the proposed Ordinance amending the City's Zoning Map; and 
(3) Adopt Resolution. 

 
 C. Report on opportunities for experimental closing the Esplanade. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive report and provide direction. 

 
 D. Presentation providing an update on the new City of Capitola website. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive presentation. 

 
9. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Additional information submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet. 
 
 A. 7.C. 

DETAILS: 
Communication from the Public. 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - June 27, 2013 
 
 B. 7.E. 

DETAILS: 
Communication from the Public. 

 
 C. 8.B. 

DETAILS: 
Revised draft Resolution and Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

 
 D. 8.B. 

DETAILS: 
Communications from the Public. 

 
 E. 8.C. 

DETAILS: 
Communication from the Public. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council on Thursday, July 11, 2013, at 7:00 PM, 

in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 
Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6.  Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.”  Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing.  Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council:  The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The City Council Agenda and the complete agenda packet are available 
on the Internet at the City’s website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office 
located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda Document Review:  The complete agenda packet is available at City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more information?   
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300.  In an effort to 
accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - June 27, 2013 
Televised Meetings:  City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s 
website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us by clicking on the Home Page link “View Capitola Meeting Live On-Line.”  
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



-1-

Item #: 7.A. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF THE MAY 30, 2013, 
AND JUNE 6, 2013, SPECIAL BUDGET SESSIONS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the subject minutes as submitted. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes to the subject 
meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. May 30, 2013, Special Budget Session 
2. June 6, 2013, Special Budget Session 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and Fo~~d 
By City Manager:~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda StaffReports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\7.A. CC Minutes staffreport.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-2-



-3-

Item #: 7.A. Attach 1.pdf

1. 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL JOINT MEETING 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
TOTHEFORMERREDEVELOPMENTAGENCY 

JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 
THURSDAY, MAY 30, 2013 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

12406 

Council Members, Dennis Norton, Michael Termiqi(.Sam Storey, and Mayor 
Stephanie Harlan. Council Member Ed BottorpWas aosent. 

City Treasurer Kym DeWitt was present. 

2. COUNCIL/CITY TREASURER/STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS 

3. 

Mayor Harlan stated that adc:litional material was receivedJ .. from the 
Capitola/Sequel Chamber of Commerce requestiog a renewal o{ithe contract 
between the City and the Chamber. In addition, a'"'letter was received from a 
Sequel High School student about too much trash on the beach. 

'i''. 
City Treasurer DeWitt state'id that at the May 28, 2013, Financial Advisory 
Committee (FAC) meeting there .was a discussion r13garding allocating the 
$1.145 million from the settlementfynqs (March 201:, pipe failure claim). As 
Treasurer she recommended using the funds to pay off the Santa Cruz County 
Bank loan. /. · ' .. / · v 

' 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS t 
A. CootinU$d, Budget Study Sessiori/.O~ the proposed 2013/2014 Fiscal Year 

Budget for'th.e City of Capitola General Fund, the Capitola Successor Agency, 
and the Capital lmprovem·erit i=>,rqgram. [330-05/780-30) 

';;-_}=-;-_,·~,;i\~ 

Nathar:i Crpss, FAC Vice Chair, provided the following FAC recommendations 
regarding allocating the.$1.145 million in settlement funds: 30.4% for the 
City's Capit~j.lmprov~ment Projects, 26.1 % towards the City's reserve, and 
43.5% towar~.~ the Santa Cruz County Bank loan. 

Co.uncil Memper Storey announced that he will retire from Community Bridges 
in four months, and stated that he enjoyed working with the Human Care 
Alliance 1]1erilbers and organizations. He stated that due to a conflict of 
interest be will recuse himself from participating in the community grant 
portioif of the meeting because he is Community Bridges CEO, and voting on 
this item would be a conflict of interest. He left the dias. 

Finance Director Hannah invited the Community Based Health and Human 
Service providers to comment on the proposed funding provided to their 
organizations. 

Will O'Sullivan, Human Care Alliance representative, requested the 
restoration of the City's previous funding level for the Human Care Alliance. 
He requested web links to the various non-profit agencies be added to the 
City's website. 



-4-

Item #: 7.A. Attach 1.pdf

12407 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MAY 30, 2013, JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 

The following Community Based Health and Human Service providers 
presented their non-profit financial requests: 

Shauna Mora, Conflict Resolution Center of Santa Cruz Executive 
Director 

Rachel Goodman, Dientes Community Dental Care 

Sarah Brother, Cultural Council of Santa Cruz County 

Sharon Papo, Executive Director of the Diversity Center/GLBT (Gay, 
Lesbian, Bisexual, & Transgender) 

Jane Schwickerath, GLBT 60+ Seniors ~(Ogram Volunteer 
Coordinator 

Clay Kempf, Executive Director of the Seniors Council of Santa Cruz 
and San Benito Counties 

David Denik and Karen Eddy, Meals"'onSWheels volunteer drivers 
--,. ' ' 

Adam Steeley, O'Neill Sea Odyssey representative 

David Bionchi, Director offeFarnily Servid~ Agency of the Central Coast 

Norma Sanchez, Shelter Prbj~ct Renf~I, Assistanceov' Division of 
Community Action Board of Santa Ctu? County Inc. 

<··=·,': .. ··;, 

Tim Brattan, Dire¢,t<Kof Grey Bears 

Amy Bosso, Campy,~Kids'."9onnection 

Brooke Johnson, Second Pl~rvest i=:ood Bapk 

Brad Hunt, Save Our Spores 
,,' -: . . . -~ -- ~ 

Kathleen Johnson, Advocacy, Inc. 

City;€Cil.lticil took a 5 minutes brea~ . 
. . ~ 

Council Mernber,$totey returned t9 the dias. 
-. ·.·:,:.,<.·." . --~ -_--·:.,'.'.\~-·- .· . ·.'}" 

. Finance Directbr'H-:tann~h reviewed the City's debt ratios and benchmarks, 
multi;..year projection§, including debt service and reserve levels. 

. > :I' 
Council Member Terfl!i,n(requested that steps be taken to prepare for any 
financial shortfalls thGlfmay occur so that the City's reserves are fully funded 
Qy 2015 should the City go into a negative balance. 

R~~lic;; Works Director Jesberg provided the draft job description regarding the 
proppsed Environmental Project Manager position. This proposed position 
would be ·Charged with insuring the City's compliance with the state mandated 
Clean:Water Act including renewing the 2013 Waste Discharge Permit, on
going annual program implementation of Zone 5 storm water permitting. In 
addition, this position would be involved in completing the following related 
environmental programs: (1) Soquel Creek Management Plan; (2) Riparian 
Restoration Projects; (3) Beach and Creek Enhancement Projects; and (4) 
Storm water permitting for private projects. 

Council Member Storey suggested language be added to the draft 
Environmental Project Manager job description to include the focus on the 
overall goal of cleaner water and beaches. 



-5-

Item #: 7.A. Attach 1.pdf

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MAY 30, 2013, JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 12408 

Public Works Director Jesberg stated that he will include additional language 
in the job description regarding improving the natural environmental around 
the City to promote cleaner water and beaches. In addition, he provided a 
cost range for the following various unfunded project: (1) Pedestrian crossing 
improvements at Stockton Avenue and Esplanade; (2) Hill Street pedestrian 
improvements from Capitola Avenue to Rosedale Avenue; (3) street frontage 
and landscaping improvements to historic Depot site at Monterey Avenue and 
Park Avenue; and (4) complete conversion of the Rispin property to a park; 
the most urgent need is the Rispin-Peery pathways and ADA accessibility. 

Mayor Termini stated that the conversion of the Rispin property is a low 
priority since the City does not know if they own the propeqy. It is important to 
address the ADA accessibility of the trails. " ''/ · 

Council Member Norton stated that the ped"estfi'an cfossing improvements at 
Stockton and Esplanade are a high priority dl..le,.to safety:9oncerns. 

City Treasurer DeWitt stated concerns fegartling making im.prqvements to the 
Rispin property with the potential of the yalifornia State<J?epartment of 
Finance clawing back the propei:tYirSh~ asked"lf staff will be see~jbg .matching 
funds for various City prqject. (Public Works Director Jesberg st,ated that the 
City is always on the look-out for possible grant funds). Y 

Council Member Norton suggested within the next four month to have a 
community discussion to ~xplore future options for the Rispin property. 

' .,. - >,;, 

City Manager Goldstein stated th~tthg fAC has recorhmended that $350,000 
be put into the unfunded Cf p projects: Jtappears that the Stockton Avenue 
and the Hill ~treet pedestrian<imprevements have a lot of support. He stated 
that maigtaiHlbg the existing Rispin pathways could be addressed in the near 
future. He statedthat it may be'a good time to bring the Rispin project back 
this Jail after the state controller provi9es the results of the City audit. Public 
hearings could be scheduled and theh the City could proceed with obtaining 
the necessary permits, envirggJ:riental review, and an overall park plan. In 
(3dditioq, this would increase tn~ City's ability to apply for grants. · 

Police Chief Escalante presented the Police Department's proposed Fiscal 
Year 2013/2014 budget including police staff levels. He reported on crime 

., data over the past 5-9 years the service calls for Part I crimes. In addition, he 
reviewed costs/benefits associated with one additional Police Officer. 

Council MemWer Storey asked what impacts would occur if the Police 
Departmenttnaintained the grant-funded police officer position. 

' :,'/ 

City Mc:1f)ager Goldstein stated that since the City has contracted with the City 
of Sarita Cruz to perform lifeguard services the City was able to keep an 
additional Community Service Officer on the street during summer months. 
The City's police staffing levels are adequate as compared to the last couple 
of years. He stated that the Police Chief is looking into an annuitant patrol in 
the Village on the busiest eight weekends in the summer. 

Council Member Norton suggested arriving at a formula to determine the 
annual funds granted to the Community Based Health and Human Service 
providers. He suggested that staff set up community service links on the City's 
website. 



-6-

Item #: 7.A. Attach 1.pdf

12409 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MAY 30, 2013, JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 

Council Member Termini requested that staff review discretionary funding to 
the Capitola/Sequel Chamber of Commerce and the Community Based 
Health and Human Service providers at the next special budget study 
session. 

Marge Hanson, local resident, stated that a traffic problem exists at Beverly 
Avenue and Capitola Avenue intersection. 

Peter Pethoe, Santa Cruz Hostel, requested that the City Council continue 
considering a youth hostel at the Rispin property. 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Harlan adjourned the meeting at 8:30 P;m.'Jo the next Special Budget 
Study Session of the City Council on Thursday;}Jurie~6i2013 at 6:00 PM, in the 
City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitol~, California. 

ATTEST: 

----------'CMG 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

?;Stephanie Ha~(ah, Mayor 



-7-

Item #: 7.A. Attach 2.pdf

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL JOINT MEETING 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
TOTHEFORMERREDEVELOPMENTAGENCY 

JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 
THURSDAY, JUNE 6, 2013 - 6:00 Pl\!I 

12410 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members, Dennis Norton, Michael Terminj, $am Storey, and Mayor 
Stephanie Harlan. Council Member Ed Bottorff.Was abs~rit. 

1'; 

City Treasurer Kym DeWitt was absent. 

2. COUNCIL/CITY TREASURER/STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS 
_":-_ ~ -- - "~~"-- '·~-- .'.. ,/) 

Mayor Harlan announced the fo!l0wmg events:(1) Rod & Custo.rn ,Glass Car 
Show on June 81h and gth in Esplanade Park; (2),City's Wedn~§tfay Twilight 
Concerts beginning June 1 ih; Carolyn Swift, City's 'historian, will be speaking 
at the Chamber luncheon on June 11th at the Sh.adowbrook. . 

~:; ; 

3. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS , .. ->·,, 

A. Continued Budget Study S,ession gn the propo~ed 2013/2014 Fiscal Year 
Budget for the City of Capitola General fl.lntj, th~;Capitola Successor Agency, 
and the Capital Improvement Program (CIP), (~30-05/780-30] 

,4 

/ f··.•.;' 

~;" 

Public Works Director Jesberg reviewed City vehicles to be purchased in 
Fisval Year 2013/2.014. Also, he•·staJed that later this year a request for 
proposals will be brp:l;lght to the. City Council to lease/purchase a street 
sweeper. . ..... : . , 

Police Chief Escalante stated that staff is recommending replacing the City's 
two used .H~rley Davison 1)1otorcycles with Honda motorcycles. He stated that 
the prode~ds; from the·'motorcycles sold will cover the costs for new 
motorcycles; thereto.re· this expenditure does not impact ·to General or 
Equipment Funps. 

Fltl~nce Direqtpr Hannah presented the proposed purchase of the New World 
Systems Payroll/Human Resources Software. She stated that this item was 
not inclL1d$18" in the proposed Fiscal Year 2013/2014 budge, but funding was 
available•in the IT Fund. The New World Systems software would replace the 
currertt ADP contract. This purchase would result in long-term savings as 
much as $19,000 per year. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that the funding for the proposed software 
would come out of the Information Technology Fund therefore no new 
appropriation of funds is needed. He reviewed the multi-year milestones 
regarding expiring revenue, debt, and various known changes over the next 
five years. 

Finance Director Hannah reviewed options to create a "stabilization fund" for 
projected operating deficits in Fiscal Years 2015/2016 and 2016/2017. She 
stated that a potential source for such a fund is $500,000 in insurance 



-8-

Item #: 7.A. Attach 2.pdf

12411 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL JUNE 6, 2013, JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 

settlement proceeds currently programmed for debt reduction and/or reducing 
the CIP in the current year. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that creating a stabilization fund for projected 
operating deficits could be one approach. As an alternative staff and Council 
could closely monitor the City's budget, keeping a close eye on 
revenues/expenditures over the coming years. He does not recommend 
cutting the CIP in the current year because in future years the City may need 
to cut the CIP to make it through any the cash flow issues. 

Council Member Termini asked what amount of funding in the City's reserve 
would be needed to have a fully funded reserve in Fiscat.Year 2014/2015. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that to get the City tofa fully funded reserve by 
FY 14/15, two years ahead of schedule, it woulqJake an additional allocation 
of approximately $1 million beyond 't~e ··amounts the current 
budget/projections assume. 

Public Works Director Jesberg reviewed tn~ proposed CIP for Fiscal Year 
2013/2014: (1) Pedestrian crossihg improvements at Stockton and 
Esplanade; (2) Hill Street pedestrian improverpents from Capitola Avenue to 
Rosedale Avenue; (3) completa'*conv~f~ion ofthe Rispin property to a park 
(most urgent need is the Rispin-PeerY pathw,ays*'and ADA accessibility); (4) 
street frontage and landscaping imprdvernents to historic Depot site at 
Monterey Avenues and Park Avenue. The total estimates cost is $3,337,000. 

Council Member Storey suggested not funding tbe Bi~pin since the City does 
not know if they own the property. pte stated that it was his understanding that 
Monterey Park was the placefor af~ture skatebo9rd park however he is open 
to look at different location. ·· 7 

City Manager Goldstein suggested renaming the Rispin Project the 
"Rispin/General Park Improvement Projects" by combining the Rispin and 
Mo!J!ferey.qnd Park Avenues Historic_Qepot Improvement ($130,000) projects. 
This would enable. st~ff to identify:;funds for the Rispin if it becomes City 
property in addition there may be;additional park improvement projects. 

CoupciLMembet;(3ottorff suggested obtaining input from the community on a 
skate ·park location and the Rispin property and increasing the CIP 
contribution this FY frorn;tfle settlement proceeds. 

City Manager GoldsJein stated that the FAC recommended $300,000 be 
earmarked for ,reserves from the settlement. He stated that based on the 
Measure 0 ballot language staff is recommending a three part allocation of 
the settlement proceeds; putting money into the CIP, debt reduction, and the 
reserves. In next year's budget there is programmed $500,000 coming in from 
Measure 0 funds into the CIP. An option would be to establish a "Parks Fund" 
in the amount of $130,000. He suggested those funds could be used on any 
of the three projects if they come to fruition this next year. 

There was City Council consensus to form a "Park Fund" to include a potential 
skate park, Rispin Park, and Monterey and Park Avenues Historic Depot 
improvements. To combine the $130,000 towards a "Parks Fund". 

City Manager Goldstein asked if the City Council would like to see Monterey 
and Park Avenues Historic Depot improvements done this year if we are able 
to bring it forward for consideration. 



-9-

Item #: 7.A. Attach 2.pdf

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL JUNE 6, 2013, JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 12412 

Council Member Storey suggested looking into matching grant park funds as 
a guiding principle. 

Public Works Director Jesberg discussed the Village sidewalk cleaning and 
garbage removal budget; the City is currently working with the Business 
Improvement Area Advisory Committee to develop a new cleaning schedule 
and funding program. The City Manager has proposed a potential plan to 
develop an annual business fee for take-out establishments to augment this 
budget. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that the City received a request from 
Capitola/Sequel Chamber of Commerce to increas.eJheir funding back to 
$30,000 per year. In the proposed Fiscal Year 2pj;3120:1J1. budget they are 
programmed for $23,500. He stated that the Eqµip(,,ent Fund amount could 
be reduced to restore the Chamber's funding l:>ackfo~the historic level. 

' , ~~- ' 

Sandy Erickson, local resident, stated con~ems regarding)he allocation of the 
settlement funds. In addition, she stated tliat tne City sliqµJd cover the entire 
cost of street cleaning and garbage pickup. ·· · · 

Council Member Storey stated that.due to a opnflict of interest he wiJI recuse 
himself from participating on the~portion of thi~, item regarding th13 community 
grants because he is Community Bridges CEQ; and voting on tilts item would 
be a conflict of interest. He left the dias forthe evening. 

Administrative Service~ Director Murphy presented the Community Based 
Health and Human Service Provid,ers Grant process. §he stated that the City 
Council appointed Mayor Harlan .. and Council Member Termini to a 
subcommittee to develop a recom.111¢ndec:Uist for c;illocating the $250,000. The 
subcommittee met on June 4th where. they. reviewed the applications and 
have prepare~ a recommendation for Couricil consideration. She stated that 
all funding amounts remain at the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 level with the 
exception of five providers who arE3 recommended for an increase in funding. 
The subcommittee is not recommepding funding any new applicants this year. 
The recommendation is an overalUlncrease in the budget of $3,270, for a new 
total budget of $253,270:· She :$tated that the following five providers are 
recorprfl~qded for small increases: (1) CASA of Santa Cruz County; (2) 
ConflitFResolution Center; (3) Hospice of Santa Cruz County; (4) Save our 
Shores; and (5) Volunteer Center. 

The following providetl support to fund the GLBT program. 

Kathleeh Johnson, Advocacy Inc. 

Jane ./Schwickerath, GLBT 60+ Seniors Program Volunteer 
· Co~f'dinator 
. $'cott Winslow, Central Coast for Independent Living 

The fbllowing thanked the City Council for the proposed Fiscal Year 
2013/2014 funding: 

Laura Segura , Women's Crisis Support Life Support 

Shauna Mora, Conflict Resolution Center for Santa Cruz County 

Brook Johnson, Second Harvest Food Bank. 

There was City Council consensus to add the Diversity Center/GLBT (Gay, 
Lesbian, Bisexual, & Transgender). 



-10-

Item #: 7.A. Attach 2.pdf
12413 

ACTION 

ACTION 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL JUNE 6, 2013, JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 

Mayor Harlan requested that the five-year CIP list be discussed at a future 
City Council meeting. (Public Works Director Jesberg responded that he plans 
to bring the five-year CIP plan to the August City Council meeting). 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Mayor Harlan, to 
fund The Diversity Center/GLBT (Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, & 
Transgender) from the Equipment Fund in the amount of $1,000 for 
Fiscal Year 2013/2014. The motion was passed unanimously. 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council Member 
Norton, to continue the adoption of a Resplutipn approving the 
proposed 2013/2014 Fiscal Year Budget for th~ City 6f; Capitola General 
Fund, the Capitola Successor Agency, an"d.Jh~ Capital Improvement 
Budgets to the June 13, 2013, Special J_piht Nie~ting. The motion was 
passed unanimously. z;;r · · 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Harlan adjourned the meetiog at 7:45 p.Q1. to the next R;~gular£Meeting of 
the City Council on Thursday, Juri~ '13, 2013 af?:OO PM, in the Cily;Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. ·.· 

. 4, 
6Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____ .,.....,...... ___ ~. , CMC 
Susan Sneddbn;'JCity Cieri? 



-11-

Item #: 7.B. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CITY CHECK REGISTER REPORT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the attached Check Register Reports for May 17, May 24, 
May 31, Jun 7, and Jun 14 

DISCUSSION: Check Registers are attached for: 

Date Starting Check# Ending Check# Total Amount Checks/EFT 

5/17/13 72913 72958 46 $50,751.00 

5/24/13 72959 73042 84 $94,580.00 

5/31/13 73043 73089 47 $78,974.45 

6/7/13 73090 73140 52 $100,830.93 

6/14/13 73141 73222 82 $200,537.67 

The check register of May 10, 2013 ended with check #72912 

Following is a list of checks issued for more than $10,000.00, and a brief description of the 
expenditure: 

Check Issued to: 
72940 RBF Consulting 
72955 Chris Wortman 
72966 Atchison, Barisone, et al 
73031 SCC Auditor Controller 
73058 ICMA Retirement Trust 
73077 Sequel Creek Water Dist 
73080 Toyota of Santa Cruz 
EFT CalPERS Health 
73201 Robert Bothman Inc. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Check Register for May 17, 2013 
2. Check Register for May 24, 2013 
3. Check Register for May 31, 2013 
4. Check Register for Jun 7, 2013 
5. Check Register for Jun 14, 2013 

Report Prepared By: Linda Benko 
AP Clerk 

Dept. 
COD 
PW 
CM 
FIN 
CM 
PW 
PD 
CM 
PW 

Purpose Amount 
Hazard Mitigation Plan Dev $11,817.50 
Pac Cove Demolition $10,000.00 
April Legal Services $17,657.40 
Citation Surcharges, Apr 2013 $10,889.00 
Retire. Contr., employee funded $10,000.00 
Semi-Monthly Irrigation water $13,059.56 
2011 Toyota Camry $20,000.00 
Jun Health Ins Employee funded $53,010.54 
Traffic Calming Project $130,287.76 

Reviewed and Fq4rded 
by City Manage~ 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-12-



-13-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 1.pdf

Checks dated 5/17 /13 numbered 72913 to 72958 for a total of $50, 751.00 have been reviewed and 
authorized for distribution by the City Manager and City Treasurer. 

As of 5/17/13 the unaudited cash balance is $2,825,264 

CASH POSITION - CITY OF CAPITOLA 5/17 /13 

General Fund 
Contingency Reserve Fund 
Worker's Comp. Ins. Fund 
Self Insurance Liability Fund 
Stores Fund 
Information Technology Fund 
Equipment Replacement 
Compensated Absences Fund 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS 
Open Space Fund 
Capital Improvement Projects 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS 

Net Balance 
1,270,443 

671,646 
163,250 
198,703 
(1,484) 
76,886 

133,444 
12,775 

256 
299,345 

2,825,264 

The Emergency Reserve Fund balance is $289,295.54 and is not included above. 

5/17/2013 
L-~ .. ·- Jamie Goldstein, City Manager Date 

Kymberly V. DeWitt, City Treasurer Date 



-14-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 1.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/17 /2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

72913 05/17/2013 Open AKERS & ASSOCIATES, INC. $1,950.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

3916 05/08/2013 Feb-Apr2013 Plan Check Services $1,950.00 

72914 05/17/2013 Open AT&T $3.94 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

624-Apr2013 04/01/2013 Long Distance Service, Apr2013 $3.94 

Fund 2211, IT 

72915 05/17/2013 Open AUTOTEMP INC. $300.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2214 04/30/2013 Pac Cove Closure Services $300.00 

Fund 1420, Pac Cove Bond 

72916 05/17/2013 Open BEYERS, FRED C $330.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000675 05/14/2013 Softball Umpires April 15 to May 10 2013 $330.00 

72917 05/17/2013 Open BUMGARNER, ERIC D $198.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-0000067 4 05/14/2013 Softball Umpires April 15 to May 10 2013 $198.00 

72918 05/17/2013 Open CA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE $32.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

969553 05/13/2013 Fingerprinting $32.00 

72919 05/17/2013 Open CAPITOLA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOC. $1,468.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

POA5-17-13 05/15/2013 POA Dues, Employee Funded $1 ,468.50 

72920 05/17/2013 Open CRYSTAL SPRINGS WATER CO. $145.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

60094-Apr2013 04/30/2013 April2013 Drinking Water $145.50 

72921 05/17/2013 Open DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SVC $336.38 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

17800965 04/20/2013 Copier Lease, City Hall $336.38 

Fund 2210, Stores 

72922 05/17/2013 Open EWING IRRIGATION $88.86 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6223402 04/24/2013 Misc. Landscaping Supplies $88.86 

72923 05/17/2013 Open FASTENAL COMPANY $365.02 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

CASAT19964 04/22/2013 Auto Parts, Fleet $339.20 

CASAT20060 04/26/2013 Auto Parts, PD Vehicles $25.82 

72924 05/17/2013 Open FLYERS ENERGY, LLC $2,445.61 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13-844290 05/06/2013 100 Gal Diesel $368.08 

13-844289 05/06/2013 509 Gal Ethanol $2,077.53 

Pages: 1 of 4 Thursday, May 16, 2013 



-15-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 1.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/17 /2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

72925 05/17/2013 Open ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 $4,309.39 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

ICMA5-17-13 05/15/2013 Retirement Plan Contribution, Employee F $4,309.39 

72926 05/17/2013 Open JAMES P ALLEN & ASSOC $450.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

50913 05/09/2013 Consulting Arborist Services at 1901-A Co $270.00 

42513 04/25/2013 Consulting Arborist Services 4350 Diamon $180.00 

72927 05/17/2013 Open LABORMAX STAFFING $1,885.68 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

26-21556 05/03/2013 Apr 29 Temp Labor, Public Works $1,885.68 

72928 05/17/2013 Open LOOMIS $923.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

11235633 04/30/2013 amored car service $923.60 

72929 05/17/2013 Open LUICH, JAY $220.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000671 05/14/2013 Softball Umpires April 15 to May 10 2013 $220.00 

72930 05/17/2013 Open MICROFLEX CORP #774353 $389.12 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1352505 04/18/2013 Latex Gloves, PD $389.12 

72931 05/17/2013 Open MID-COUNTY AUTO SUPPLY $46.62 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

338790 04/18/2013 Returned Auto Parts ($0.23) 

338724 04/18/2013 Auto parts, PD111 $4.92 

339418 04/25/2013 Auto Parts, 2011 Tahoe $13.31 

339178 04/23/2013 Auto Parts, PD New Tahoe $28.62 

72932 05/17/2013 Open OLIVE SPRINGS QUARRY, INC. $979.94 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

87672 04/22/2013 Asphalt $979.94 

Fund 1310, Gas Tax 

72933 05/17/2013 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $299.28 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6014-5596146 04/26/2013 Paint rollers $21.73 

6012-4 795635 04/29/2013 Misc.-Fund 1311, Wharf Fund $88.03 

6012-4795636 04/29/2013 Benches $43.22 

6014-3596961 04/29/2013 Misc. $6.08 

6008-6007631 04/30/2013 Misc. $15.21 

6012-4796180 05/01/2013 Batteries & bolt cutter $125.01 

72934 05/17/2013 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $258.59 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

210280-1 04/29/2013 name plate $11.96 

211433 04/30/2013 Paper, City Hall $159.97 

213308 05/10/2013 Office Supplies, City Hall $86.66 

Fund 2210, Stores 

Pages: 2 of 4 Thu~day, May16,2013 



-16-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 1.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/17/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

72935 05/17/2013 Open PITNEY BOWES INC. $93.59 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130419 04/19/2013 Postage Invoice, 8000-9000-0171-3654 $93.59 

Fund 2210, Stores 

72936 05/17/2013 Open PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC. $106.82 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

45875138 04/20/2013 Gases, Corp Yd $106.82 

72937 05/17/2013 Open ProBUILD COMPANY LLC $55.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5717003 05/01/2013 Painting supplies $55.80 

72938 05/17/2013 Open PROVANTAGE $1,579.42 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6678279 04/23/2013 Gateway Security Suite $1,579.42 

Fund 2211, IT 

72939 05/17/2013 Open QUARTARARO, ROD V. $264.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000672 05/14/2013 Softball Umpires April 15 to May 10 2013 $264.00 

72940 05/17/2013 Open RBF CONSUL TING $11,817.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

843939 03/26/2013 Develop Local Hazard Mitigation Plan $10,177.50 

847573 05/09/2013 Mar/Apr2013 Prof Services, Haz Mitigatin I $1,640.00 

Fund 1350, CDBG Grants 

72941 05/17/2013 Open REED, DANIEL H. $231 .00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000673 05/14/2013 Softball Umpires April 15 to May 10 2013 $231 .00 

72942 05/17/2013 Open sec HEAL TH SERVICES $390.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Sep-Dec12 05/01/2013 Blood alcohol test Sept-Dec 2012 $390.00 

72943 05/17/2013 Open sec OFFICE OF EDUCATION $30.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13256 05/07/2013 Fingerprinting-Rec $30.00 

72944 05/17/2013 Open SCC Regional Transportation Comm. $494.92 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

194279-13/14 05/10/2013 Lease Audit No.194279, May2013 to Apr 2 $494.92 

72945 05/17/2013 Open SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL UTILITIES $800.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000670 04/23/2013 Mar-Apr WATER BILLS FOR STREET ME $800.60 

72946 05/17/2013 Open SANTA CRUZ PLUMBING $95.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

102921 05/07/2013 City Hall Water Fountain repair $95.00 

72947 05/17/2013 Open SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL $1 ,253.04 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2040516-Apr13 04/30/2013 Advertising $1,253.04 

Pages: 3 of 4 Thursday, May 16, 2013 



-17-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 1.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/17/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

72948 05/17/2013 Open SENTINEL PRINTERS, INC. $430.65 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

294722 04/26/2013 Business Cards $430.65 

72949 05/17/2013 Open SIRCHIE $92.94 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

0119741-in 04/19/2013 Evidence supplies $92.94 

72950 05/17/2013 Open SOUTH BAY REGIONAL TRAINING $590.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6/3/13 05/08/2013 Background class Wilson $150.00 

2013 firearms 05/01/2013 Murray firearms instructor class POST $440.00 

72951 05/17/2013 Open SPORT ABOUT $3,773.38 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5055 05/09/2013 JG T-shirts $3,773.38 

72952 05/17/2013 Open SUMMIT UNIFORM CORP $53.29 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

3557 04/20/2013 Tactical ear piece-PD $53.29 

72953 05/17/2013 Open US Bank Institutional Trust-Western Reg $501.02 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

PARS5-17-13 05/09/2013 Retirement Plan Contribution, Employee F $501.02 

72954 05/17/2013 Open WATKINS, EDWIN $132.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000677 05/14/2013 Watkins Softball April 20 to May 3 2013 $132.00 

72955 05/17/2013 Open WORTMAN, CHRIS $10,000.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5161301 05/16/2013 Progress payment, Pac Cove Demolition $10,000.00 

Fund 1420, Pac Cove Bond 

72956 05/17/2013 Open Alvarez, Salvador $10.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000668 05/07/2013 Refund cite 11139804 $10.00 

72957 05/17/2013 Open Capitola Towers Partnership $500.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000676 05/14/2013 Tree Permit #13-040 deposit refund $500.00 

72958 05/17/2013 Open CSMFO $30.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000669 05/08/2013 Pearson, finance class $30.00 

Type Check Totals: Count 46 Total $50,751.00 

Pages: 4 of 4 Thursday, May 16, 2013 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-18-



-19-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdf

Checks dated 5/24/13 numbered 72959 to 73042 for a total of $94,580.00 have been reviewed and 
authorized for distribution by the City Manager and City Treasurer. 

As of 5/24/13 the unaudited cash balance is $4,255, 175 

CASH POSITION - CITY OF CAPITOLA 5/24/13 

General Fund 
Contingency Reserve Fund 
Worker's Comp. Ins. Fund 
Self Insurance Liability Fund 
Stores Fund 
Information Technology Fund 
Eq'uipment Replacement 
Compensated Absences Fund 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS 
Open Space Fund 
Capital Improvement Projects 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS 

Net Balance 
2,713,212 

671,646 
163,250 
198,703 
(1,718) 
71,861 

133,314 
12,775 

256 
291,875 

4,255,175 

The Emergency Reserve Fund balance is $289,295.54 and is not included above. 

5/24/2013 
Date 

Kymberly V. DeWitt, City Treasurer Date 



-20-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/24/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

72959 05/20/2013 Open DEPT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEV (HC $120.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

ABG2187 05/06/2013 Warehouseman's Lien Sale, Decal#ABG2· $120.00 

Fund 1420, Pac Cove Bond 

72960 05/24/2013 Open A TOOL SHED $200.90 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

899978-5 05/14/2013 Mower $200.90 

72961 05/24/2013 Open ADAMS, BECKY $154.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000678 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $154.70 

72962 05/24/2013 Open ADT SECURITY SERVICES, INC. $256.41 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

97123344 05/11/2013 422 Cap. Ave. Jun 1-Aug 31, 2013 $139.54 

97123351 05/11/2013 1465 38th Ave. Jun 1-Aug 31, 2013 $116.87 

72963 05/24/2013 Open AHA CONSUL TING INC. $1,540.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2009576 05/01/2013 New Website administration $1;540.00 

72964 05/24/2013 Open APTOS LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC. $21.67 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

353183 05/15/2013 Top soil $21.67 

72965 05/24/2013 Open AT&T $11.69 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

67 4-May2013 05/01/2013 Long Distance Service, May2013 $3.81 

624-May2013 05/01/2013 Long Distance Service, May 2013 $7.88 

72966 05/24/2013 Open ATCHISON, BARISONE, & CONDOTTI $17,657.40 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

April2013 05/16/2013 April Legal Services $17,657.40 

72967 05/24/2013 Open B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR $22.10 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

284992 05/09/2013 Pole chainsaw parts $22.10 

72968 05/24/2013 Open BANK OF AMERICA $1,380.42 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Apr-May13 05/06/2013 Apr-May Credit card charges $1,380.42 

Fund 1000, Gen Fund=$812.80 

Fund 2210, Stores=$6.52 

Fund 2211, IT=$561.10 

72969 05/24/2013 Open BARRETT, SHARON $39.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000679 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $39.00 

Pages: 1 of 8 Thursday, May 23, 2013 



-21-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/24/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

72970 05/24/2013 Open BETZ, SHERRI $2,882.30 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000680 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $2,882.30 

72971 05/24/2013 Open BOWMAN & WILLIAMS, INC. $7,470.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

7618 05/06/2013 Apr2013 Pac Cove parking lot services $4,950.00 

7618a 05/06/2013 Pac Cove parking lot $2,520.00 

Fund 1200, CIP 

72972 05/24/2013 Open C&N TRACTORS $191.95 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

24875W 04/25/2013 Parts for PW Kabota Tractor $191.95 

72973 05/24/2013 Open CA DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION $1,413.14 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

SL130766 04/29/2013 Q1 2013 Signals & Lighting Invoice $1,413.14 

Fund 1310, Gas Tax 

72974 05/24/2013 Open CAL TRAFFIC $129.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

17327 05/17/2013 No Fishing signs $129.75 

72975 05/24/2013 Open CALIFORNIA COAST UNIFORM CO $535.10 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1396 04/26/2013 Uniform Exp, Weagle-PD $220.76 

1455 04/30/2013 Uniform Exp, Keane-PD $73.84 

1456 04/30/2013 Uniform Exp, Sloma-PD $99.18 
. 1457 04/30/2013 Uniform Exp, Iniguez-PD $141.32 

72976 05/24/2013 Open CA SOCIETY OF MUNI FINANCE OFF $45.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130516 05/16/2013 CSMFO Registration, Goldstein $45.00 

72977 05/24/2013 Open CHARLEBOIS, FREDERIC $5,170.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000689 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $5,133.10 

2013-00000703. 05/22/2013 Late Spring Instr.Payments 2013 $37.50 

72978 05/24/2013 Open Charter Communications $135.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

May-Jun13 05/11/2013 Internet Access, May-Jun2013 $135.00 

Fund 2211, IT 

72979 05/24/2013 Open CLEAN BUILDING MAINTENANCE $3,934.30 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

11139 04/30/2013 April Cleaning Service $3,934.30 

72980 05/24/2013 Open COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF sec $4,611.07 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1874 03/31/2013 Quarterly PEG fees $4,611.07 

Fund 1320, PEG 

Pages: 2 of 8 Thursday, May 23, 2013 



-22-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/24/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 

Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

72981 05/24/2013 Open COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC $1,676.36 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

62310 05/15/2013 Mailing summer brochure 2013 $1,676.36 

72982 05/24/2013 Open CVS PHARMACY INC. $4.99 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6102 05/17/2013 Windex to clean parking meter equiptment $4.99 

72983 05/24/2013 Open D & G SANITATION $77.94 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

203072 04/30/2013 Fence rental $77.94 

72984 05/24/2013 Open DICKS, CHUCK $98.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000682 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $98.80 

72985 05/24/2013 Open DOGHERRA'S INC. $129.20 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

310913 04/30/2013 Wharf ramp $129.20 

Fund 1311, Wharf 

72986 05/24/2013 Open EDGEWAVE $1,080.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Q-05359-4 05/09/2013 Email Filtering Subscription Renewal $1,080.00 

Fund 2211, IT 

72987 05/24/2013 Open ELITE K-9 INC. $92.90 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

58131 05/10/2013 Dog Collar, Weagle's dog-PD $92.90 

72988 05/24/2013 Open EVANS, PAT $98.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000684 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $98.80 

72989 05/24/2013 Open EWING IRRIGATION $53.98 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6274933 05/02/2013 Irrigation supplies $30.05 

6317352 05/09/2013 Irrigation supplies $23.93 

72990 05/24/2013 Open FAIA, MICHELE $637.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000685 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $637.00 

72991 05/24/2013 Open FARWEST NURSERY $26.92 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

474716 05/08/2013 Plants $26.92 

72992 05/24/2013 Open FASTENAL COMPANY $310.01 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

CASAT20092 04/29/2013 Shop Supplies, Corp Yd $110.78 

CASAT20176 05/06/2013 Fleet Supplies $199.23 

Pages: 3 of 8 Thursday, May 23, 2013 



-23-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/24/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

72993 05/24/2013 Open FIRST ALARM $202.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

631642 05/15/2013 Alarm at Community Center $202.80 

72994 05/24/2013 Open FITZGERALD, AIMEE $339.30 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000686 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $339.30 

72995 05/24/2013 Open FLYERS ENERGY, LLC $2,659.18 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13-846303 05/10/2013 130 Gal Diesel $504.35 

13-846301 05/10/2013 505 Gal Ethanol $2,154.83 

72996 05/24/2013 Open FOJACO, HANYA $414.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000687 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $414.70 

72997 05/24/2013 Open FRANCA, CLAUDIO $169.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000688 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $169.00 

72998 05/24/2013 Open GARRETT-FRIAS, BARBARA $195.40 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130201 05/20/2013 Records Training $195.40 

72999 05/24/2013 Open GEDDES, SESE EGAN $132.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000683 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $132.60 

73000 05/24/2013 Open GRUNOW, RICH $35.60 
Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130515 05/15/2013 Mileage Reimb, Monterey Bay Climate Co1 $35.60 

73001 05/24/2013 Open HARRELL, ADRIENNE $585.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000690 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $585.00 

73002 05/24/2013 Open HO KUK MU SUL CORPORATION $48.10 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000681 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $48.10 

73003 05/24/2013 Open HOSE SHOP $163.31 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

356974 05/03/2013 Auto parts $163.31 

73004 05/24/2013 Open HOWELLS, NANCY $46.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000704 05/22/2013 Late Spring Instr.Payments 2013 $46.80 

Pages: 4 of 8 Thursday, May 23, 2013 



-24-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/24/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73005 05/24/2013 Open HYDROSCIENCE ENGINEERS INC. $2,580.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Apr2013 05/06/2013 Stormwater Ordinance Preparation, Apr20· $2,580.00 

73006 05/24/2013 Open JOHNSTON, DAVID L. $109.20 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000691 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $109.20 

73007 05/24/2013 Open KAPLAN, PHIL $503.10 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000692 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $503.10 

73008 05/24/2013 Open KINNAMON, LORRAINE $380.25 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000693 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $380.25 

73009 05/24/2013 Open KRAFT, MARC $228.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000705 05/22/2013 Late Spring Instr.Payments 2013 $228.80 

73010 05/24/2013 Open LEHR AUTO ELECTRIC $130.18 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

01083279 05/02/2013 New vehicle Electronics $130.18 

Fund 2212, Equip Replacement 

73011 05/24/2013 Open MARCHESE, HELEN $474.43 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

PettyCashMay13 05/16/2013 Petty Cash Replenish, May 2013 $474.43 

73012 05/24/2013 Open MARINE RESCUE PRODUCTS $1,008.20 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Order #28422A 05/03/2013 Rescue equipment JG's $1,008.20 

73013 05/24/2013 Open MARRUJO, SANDY $345.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000694 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $345.80 

73014 05/24/2013 Open MCCUTCHEN, SUELLEN $107.25 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000695 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $107.25 

73015 05/24/2013 Open MEGAPATH COVAD COMM $646.51 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

48460186 04/28/2013 Internet Access $646.51 

Fund 2211, IT 

73016 05/24/2013 Open MID-COUNTY AUTO SUPPLY $136.36 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

339329 04/24/2013 Auto Parts, PD Ford $14.13 

339354 04/25/2013 Auto parts, PD 2011 Tahoe $51.40 

339531 04/26/2013 Auto Parts, PD 2011 Tahoe $16.41 

339813 04/29/2013 Auto Parts, Fleet $32.25 

339903 04/30/2013 Auto Parts, PD 112 $22.17 

Pages: 5 of 8 Thursday, May 23, 2013 



-25-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/24/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73017 05/24/2013 Open MILES, MITCHELL A. $1,066.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000696 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $1,066.00 

73018 05/24/2013 Open Montano Plumbing, Inc. $4,247.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

23435 05/16/2013 New Underground Water Svc at EsplanadE $4,247.00 

73019 05/24/2013 Open MORRISSEY, YOSHIE $123.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000697 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $123.50 

73020 05/24/2013 Open NORTH BAY FORD $247.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

FOCS282423 05/06/2013 Auto Repair, PD082 $130.00 

FOCS2B2454 05/07/2013 Auto Repair, PD082 $117.00 

73021 05/24/2013 Open OPEN DOOR LOCKSMITH INC. $251.20 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

27031 01/08/2013 Pac Cove MHP Lock work $251.20 

Fund 1420, Pac Cove Bond 

73022 05/24/2013 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $308.51 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6012-4 796383 05/02/2013 Plants $49.87 

6012-1026563 05/03/2013 Plumbing parts $14.00 

6009-4388253 05/03/2013 Light bulb HPS $26.09 

6009-5658888 05/06/2013 Plumbing supplies $21.46 

6012-4798168 05/09/2013 Auto Parts, PD DUI Trailer $16.97 

6012-4 799333 05/14/2013 Shop Equipment, Fleet $66.95 

6012-4798198 05/09/2013 Parts, PD DUI Trailer $33.43 

6012-4797425 05/06/2013 GFi $38.04 

6010-2271626 05/06/2013 Plumbing $33.01 

6012-1028513 05/10/2013 Misc. $8.69 

73023 05/24/2013 Open OUTDOOR WORLD $538.92 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

30788 05/08/2013 Waders $538.92 

73024 05/24/2013 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $202.57 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

212536 05/07/2013 Office Supplies, City Hall $23.34 

212869 05/08/2013 Office Supplies, City Hall $179.23 

Fund 2210, Stores 

73025 05/24/2013 Open PAST PERFECT SOFTWARE INC. $352.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-34339 04/30/2013 Annual Support, Museum Software $352.00 

Fund 2211, IT 

73026 05/24/2013 Open PET PALS DISCOUNT PET SUPPLIES $1,071.34 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130505 05/05/2013 K-9 supplies $1,071.34 

Pages: 6 of 8 Thursday, May 23, 2013 



-26-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdf City of Capitola 

city Checks Issued 5/24/2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73027 05/24/2013 Open PHIL ALLEGRI ELECTRIC, INC. $85.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

17790 05/07/2013 Pumps $85.00 

73028 05/24/2013 Open PODS ENTERPRISES INC. $162.04 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

050-335154 05/16/2013 Storage May 31-Jun 30, 2013 $162.04 

73029 05/24/2013 Open POT, TRENISE $1,147.25 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000698 05/16/2013 Late Spring 2013 Instr.Payments $1, 147.25 

73030 05/24/2013 Open PUBLIC ENGINES, INC./CRIME REPOF' $1,188.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

17813 05/01/2013 June 2013 through June 2014 Crime repor $1,188.00 

73031 05/24/2013 Open sec AUDITOR-CONTROLLER $10,889.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Apr2013 05/16/2013 Citation Surcharges, April 2013 $10,889.00 

73032 05/24/2013 Open SANTA CRUZ PLUMBING $125.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

102966 05/17/2013 Plumbing repair $125.00 

73033 05/24/2013 Open SMITH, BRET $1,376.18 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5202013 05/20/2013 Handrail $1,376.18 

73034 05/24/2013 Open SPORT ABOUT $198.10 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5019 04/22/2013 Sports !-shirt awards $198.10 

73035 05/24/2013 Open STAPLES $16.66 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

45664 04/24/2013 Portable Speaker, IT $16.66 

Fund 2211, IT 

73036 05/24/2013 Open TLC ADMINISTRATORS, INC. $1,337.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

May2013 05/16/2013 Replenish Flex Cash $1,337.70 

73037 05/24/2013 Open UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $20.43 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

954791293 05/15/2013 shipping-PD $20.43 

73038 05/24/2013 Open US BANCORP EQUIPMENT FINANCE $375.33 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

227912391 05/04/2013 May2013 Konica C452 Copier, Contract50 $283.75 

228104899 05/04/2013 Copier Lease, Canon IR2525, Contract 501 $91.58 

Pages: 7 of 8 Thursday, May 23, 2013 



-27-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 2.pdf

Check Invoice 
Number Number Status 

73039 05/24/2013 Open 

Invoice 

5675 

73040 05/24/2013 Open 

Invoice 

2013-00000699 

73041 05/24/2013 Open 

Invoice 

2013-00000701 

73042 05/24/2013 Open 

Invoice 

1500079-2013 

Check Totals: 

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/24/2013 

Invoice Date 

Date 

05/17/2013 

Date 

05/16/2013 

Date 

05/20/2013 

Date 

04/23/2013 

Description Payee Name 

WHITLOW CONCRETE, INC. 

Description 

Concrete work - trippers & Esplanade wate 

Killoran, David 

Description 

Tree Permit #12-122 Deposit Refund 

Description 

Bandstand refund 

Lifestyles Escapes 

Amount 

$3,250.00 

Amount 

$500.00 

Amount 

$1,500.00 

IAPMO/INTERNAT'L ASSOC OF PLUMBING & M 

Description 

Annual Membership, Wheeler 8/12 to 8/13 

Count 84 TOTAL 

Amount 

$150.00 

Transaction 
Amount 

$3,250.00 

$500.00 

$1,500.00 

$150;00 

$94,580.00 

Pages: 8 of 8 Thursday, May 23, 2013 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-28-



-29-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 3.pdf

Checks dated 5/31 /13 numbered 73043 to 73089 for a total of $78,97 4.45 have been reviewed and 
authorized for distribution by the City Manager and City Treasurer. 

As of 5/31/13 the unaudited cash balance is $4, 198,446 

CASH POSITION - CITY OF CAPITOLA 5/31/13 

General Fund 
Contingency Reserve Fund 
Worker's Comp. Ins. Fund 
Self Insurance Liability Fund 
Stores Fund 
Information Technology Fund 
Equipment Replacement 
Compensated Absences Fund 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS 
Open Space Fund 
Capital Improvement Projects 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS 

Net Balance 
2,629,203 

671,646 
163,250 
198,703 
(3,725) 
71,684 

113,314 
62,240 

256 
291,875 

4, 198,446 

The Emergency Reserve Fund balance is $289,295.54 and is not included above. 

5/31/2013 
Date 

Kymberly V. DeWitt, City Treasurer Date 



-30-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 3.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/31/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73043 05/31/2013 Open ALLSAFE LOCK COMPANY $14.29 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

44741 05/13/2013 Key, PD Mazda Pickup $14.29 

73044 05/31/2013 Open AUTOMATED TEST ASSOCIATES $25.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

39889 05/22/2013 May2013 Wharf Meter Reading $25.00 

Fund 1311, Wharf Fund 

73045 05/31/2013 Open BAY PHOTO LAB $26.10 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

3048462 04/02/2013 Museum Display Expense $26.10 

73046 05/31/2013 Open CALIFORNIA COAST UNIFORM CO $597.69 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1488 05/07/2013 Uniform Exp, Sloma $141.27 

1486 05/07/2013 Uniform Expense, Iniguez - PD $368.34 

1493 05/07/2013 Uniform Expense, Evans-PD $29.36 

1492 05/07/2013 Uniform Expense, Held - PD $29.36 

1485 05/07/2013 Uniform Expense, Eller -PD $29.36 

73047 05/31/2013 Open CAPITOLA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOC. $1,488.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

POA5-31-13 05/29/2013 POA dues, Employee funded $1,488.75 

73048 05/31/2013 Open CASEY PRINTING $4,477.28 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

23317011 05/10/2013 Summer brochure 2013 $4,477.28 

73049 05/31/2013 Open CHEVROLET OF WATSONVILLE $31.31 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

186846 05/17/2013 Auto Parts, PD-041 $31.31 

73050 05/31/2013 Open CLEAN SOURCE $1,816.36 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1364200 05/03/2013 Cleaning supplies $1,816.36 

73051 05/31/2013 Open CPS $770.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

SOP34627 05/09/2013 Maint Worker Exams $770.00 

73052 05/31/2013 Open EARTHWORKS PAVING CONTRACTOI $1,222.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

568 05/19/2013 Repair Lagoon Outfall Structure $1,222.50 

73053 05/31/2013 Open EWING IRRIGATION $10.01 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6368105 05/17/2013 Irrigation supplies $10.01 

73054 05/31/2013 Open FASTENAL COMPANY $52.67 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

CASAT20263 05/10/2013 Auto Part $52.67 

Pages: 1 of 5 Thursday, May 30, 2013 



-31-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 3.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/31/13 
Check Invoice Tran.saction 

Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73055 05/31/2013 Open FLYERS ENERGY, LLC $2,909.21 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13-848620 05/17/2013 576 Gal Ethanol $2,327.27 

13-848622 05/17/2013 150 Gal Diesel $581.94 

73056 05/31/2013 Open HANNA, CARIN $305.54 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

May2013 05/24/2013 Reimb BIA expenses $305.54 

Fund 1321, BIA 

73057 05/31/2013 Open HUB INTERNATIONAL OF CA $107.40 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

May 2013 05/24/2013 Insurance for CC rentals $107.40 

73058 05/31/2013 Open ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 $10,000.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

ICMA5-31-13 05/29/2013 Vacation Cashout Allocations to Retiremer $10,000.00 

73059 05/31/2013 Open INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM OF S $93.47 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

50233151 05/07/2013 Battery, PD112 $93.47 

73060 05/31/2013 Open INTERSTATE SALES $307.86 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5429 05/06/2013 Traffic paint $307.86 

Fund 1310, Gas Tax 

73061 05/31/2013 Open JIM CLARK BACKFLOW $121.21 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

52113 05/21/2013 Backflow testing $121.21 

73062 05/31/2013 Open KBA Docusys $97.35 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

192007 05/13/2013 Copier Exp, Canon IR2525 $97.35 

Fund 2211, IT 

73063 05/31/2013 Open KING'S PAINT AND PAPER, INC. $22.18 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

A179382 05/09/2013 Titan tip $22.18 

73064 05/31/2013 Open LABORMAX STAFFING $3,787.85 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

26-21897 05/17/2013 Weekly Maint Worker Support, Corp Yd $1,902.17 

26-21715 05/10/2013 Weekly Maint Worker Support, Corp Yd $1,885.68 

73065 05/31/2013 Open LIUNA PENSION FUND $720.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

LIUNA-May2013 05/29/2013 Union Pension Dues, Employee Funded $720.00 

Pages: 2 of 5 Thursday, May 30, 2013 



-32-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 3.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/31/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73066 05/31/2013 Open MID-COUNTY AUTO SUPPLY $195.13 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

340531 05/06/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $21.46 

340530 05/06/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $55.29 

340590 05/06/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $36.36 

340018 05/01/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $4.11 

340182 05/02/2013 Auto Parts-Fleet $77.91 

73067 05/31/2013 Open NEOGOV $1,950.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

07-9167 03/03/2013 Apr13 to Apr14 Pert Eval Software $1,950.00 

Fund 2210, Stores 

73068 05/31/2013 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $474.39 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6012-4 797911 05/08/2013 Misc. Hardware $29.70 

6010-8092083 05/09/2013 Parts, PD DUI Trailer $8.19 

6012-4799179 05/13/2013 Misc. plumbing-Wharf Fund (1311) $76.08 

6005-4762669 05/13/2013 Plastic for lagoon $360.42 

6009-8011781 05/20/2013 Batteries $42.38 

16112 05/22/2013 Return Batteries ($42.38) 

73069 05/31/2013 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $70.27 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

212657 05/07/2013 Paper-PD $93.31 

8904524 05/14/2013 Paper $38.01 

213901 05/15/2013 Certificates, Volunteer Recognitions $19.31 

C990005 05/01/2013 Take credit for Inv paid twice ($80.36) 

Fund 2210, Stores 

73070 05/31/2013 Open PHIL ALLEGRI ELECTRIC, INC. $1,393.89 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

17824 05/22/2013 Downstairs CH bathrooms $940.79 

17825 05/22/2013 Stockton bridge $453.10 

73071 05/31/2013 Open PITNEY BOWES INC. $146.82 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

574414 05/16/2013 Postage machine rental-Rec $146.82 

73072 05/31/2013 Open sec INFORMATION SERVICES $1,654.99 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130513 05/13/2013 03 radio shop Charges $1,654.99 

73073 05/31/2013 Open sec OFFICE OF EDUCATION $30.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13257 05/07/2013 Fingerprinting, New Hire $30.00 

73074 05/31/2013 Open SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC. $698.24 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

400101340 04/29/2013 Apr2013 Signal Main! $698.24 

Fund 1310, Gas Tax 

Pages: 3 of 5 Thursday, May 30, 2013 



-33-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 3.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/31/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 

Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73075 05/31/2013 Open SKI MOUNTAIN SUPPLY $459.67 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

00014683 05/09/2013 Fencing for Jr. Guard program $459.67 

73076 05/31/2013 Open SOQUEL CREEK ANIMAL HOSPITAL $596.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

26468 05/23/2013 Rukus (PD K9) visit to vet $596.60 

73077 05/31/2013 Open SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT $13,059.56 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000700 05/13/2013 Semi-Monthly Water Usage, Irrigation (ear $7,627.39 

2013-00000712 05/16/2013 Semi-monthly water use (late) $5,432.17 

Fund 1000, Gen Fund=$12279.60 

Fund 1311, Wharf Fund=$779.96 

73078 05/31/2013 Open SPRINT $3,395.06 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

974855313-137 05/02/2013 City Cell Phones $3,395.06 

Fund 1000, Gen Fund=$3315.06 

Fund 2211, IT=$80.00 

73079 05/31/2013 Open THE HARTFORD -PRIORITY ACCOUNl $1,827.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6327843-6 05/24/2013 Jun 2013 Life & Long Term Dis Ins $1,827.70 

Fund 1000, Gen Fund=$1794.25 

Fund 1301, SCCACT=$33.45 

73080 05/31/2013 Open TOYOTA OF SANTA CRUZ $20,000.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

26674 05/22/2013 2011 Toyota Camry, PD $20,000.00 

Fund 2212, Equip Replacement 

73081 05/31/2013 Open UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $5.91 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

954791203 05/18/2013 Shipping-PD $5.91 

73082 05/31/2013 Open UNITED WAY OF sec $85.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

May2013 05/29/2013 Employee Contributions, May 2013 $85.00 

73083 05/31/2013 Open US Bank Institutional Trust-Western Reg $383.93 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

PARS-5-31-13 05/29/2013 Retirement Plan Contr, Employee Funded $383.93 

73084 05/31/2013 Open VISION COMMUNICATION $1,906.84 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

160828-in 05/07/2013 Digitac channel receiver $1,906.84 

Fund 1300, SLESF 

73085 05/31/2013 Open ZEP SALES & SERVICE $485.42 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

9000295432 05/17/2013 Cleaning supplies $485.42 

Pages: 4 of 5 Thursday, May 30, 2013 



-34-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 3.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 5/31/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73086 05/31/2013 Open Finkel, Daniel $500.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000708 05/23/2013 Tree Permit #13-021 refund deposit $500.00 

73087 05/31/2013 Open Goudreau, Gail $61.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000702 05/24/2013 Class refund $61.00 

73088 05/31/2013 Open LA County Sheriffs Department $90.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000706 05/23/2013 Moreno Sexual Assault class $90.00 

73089 05/31/2013 Open Villas of Capitola $500.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000707 05/23/2013 Tree Permit #13-043 refund deposit $500.00 

Check Totals: Count 47 TOTAL $78,974.45 

Pages: 5 of 5 Thursday, May 30, 2013 



-35-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 4.pdf

Checks dated 6/7/13 numbered 73090 to 73140 plus one EFT for a total of $100,830.93 have 
been reviewed and authorized for distribution by the City Manager and City Treasurer. 

As of 6/7/13 the unaudited cash balance is $3,977,202 

CASH POSITION - CITY OF CAPITOLA 6/7/13 

General Fund 
Contingency Reserve Fund 
Worker's Comp. Ins. Fund 
Self Insurance Liability Fund 
Stores Fund 
Information Technology Fund 
Equipment Replacement 
Compensated Absences Fund 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS 
Open Space Fund 
Capital Improvement Projects 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS 

Net Balance 
2,449, 114 

671,646 
163,250 
198,703 
(3,844) 
68,315 

113,314 
28,274 

256 
288,175 

3,977,202 

The Emergency Reserve Fund balance is $289,295.54 and is not included above. 

6/7/2013 
Date 

Kymberly V. DeWitt, City Treasurer Date 



-36-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 4.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/7 /2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73090 06/07/2013 Open 57 DESIGN INC. $150.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

CV-9051913 05/19/2013 BIA Brochure Update $150.00 

Fund 1321, BIA 

73091 06/07/2013 Open AFLAC $700.14 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

May2013 05/29/2013 Suppl Health Ins, May2013, Employee Fur $700.14 

73092 06/07/2013 Open ALEXIS PARTY RENTALS $594.25 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

29594 06/01/2013 Rental Service, Volunteer Dinner $594.25 

73093 06/07/2013 Open AT&T/CALNET 2 $3,258.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

4422037 05/13/2013 Circuit Installation $1,270.87 

4359344 05/13/2013 Telephone Service $1,987.73 

Fund 1000, Gen Fund=$1713.13 

Fund 2211, IT=$1545.47 

73094 06/07/2013 Open BARBARA & COMPANY $3,148.66 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Vol Dinner 06/01/2013 Catering Service, Volunteer Dinner $3,148.66 

73095 06/07/2013 Open BIG CREEK LUMBER $82.34 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

39584 05/16/2013 Wood for flume $82.34 

73096 06/07/2013 Open CALIFORNIA BUILDING OFFICIALS $970.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

EBReg-2013 06/04/2013 Conference Registration, Building Officials $970.00 

73097 06/07/2013 Open CALIFORNIA COAST UNIFORM CO $197.76 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1498 05/08/2013 Uniform Exp, Gonzalez $119.57 

1504 05/10/2013 Uniform Exp, Valdez $78.19 

73098 06/07/2013 Open CALIF. LAW ENFORCEMENT ASSOC. $514.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Jun2013 05/21/2013 Long Term Disability Ins, PD $514.50 

73099 06/07/2013 Open CHEVROLET OF WATSONVILLE $95.45 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

186849 05/20/2013 Auto Parts, PD-112 $95.45 

73100 06/07/2013 Open CLEAN SOURCE $1,121.64 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1369927 05/17/2013 Cleaning supplies $1, 121.64 

73101 06/07/2013 Open CVS PHARMACY INC. $52.04 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

9755 05/24/2013 Office supplies - PD $52.04 

Pages: 1 of 5 Thursday, June 06, 2013 



-37-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 4.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/7 /2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73102 06/07/2013 Open DYNAMIC PRESS $85.81 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

12884 05/16/2013 Personnel Action Forms $85.81 

Fund 2210, Stores 

73103 06/07/2013 Open FEDERAL EXPRESS $136.59 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2-274-93785 05/24/2013 Shipping Expense $136.59 

73104 06/07/2013 Open FERRASCl-HARP, AMY $1,075.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

23 06/04/2013 Advertising Contract Svcs, BIA $1,075.00 

Fund 1321, BIA 

73105 06/07/2013 Open FLYERS ENERGY, LLC $3,869.02 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13-850638 05/23/2013 300 Gal Diesel $1,160.56 

13-851287 05/28/2013 495 Gal Ethanol $1,974.51 

13-851289 05/28/2013 200 Gal Diesel $733.95 

73106 06/07/2013 Open FRANK MAY & ASSOCIATES $3,500.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13-0162 04/25/2013 Appraisal, Corp Yd Property $3,500.00 

Fund 1200, CIP 

73107 06/07/2013 Open GRAHAM-GARCIA, BARBARA $250.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

157 05/23/2013 Ergonomic Eval, Laurent $250.00 

73108 06/07/2013 Open HOSE SHOP $339.98 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

357499 05/21/2013 Parts for Beach Sand Sifter $339.98 

73109 06/07/2013 Open HUBB SYSTEMS, LLC dba DATA 911 $420.59 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

21884 05/16/2013 PD Radio Installation $420.59 

Fund 2211, IT 

73110 06/07/2013 Open KBA Docusys $83.48 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

193530 05/20/2013 Copier Exp $83.48 

Fund 2211, IT 

73111 06/07/2013 Open KING'S CLEANERS $696.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130513 05/13/2013 Uniform cleaning $696.75 

73112 06/07/2013 Open KING'S PAINT AND PAPER, INC. $135.91 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

A179648 05/13/2013 Graffiti paint $135.91 

73113 06/07/2013 Open LABORMAX STAFFING $2,693.87 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

26-22085 05/24/2013 Contract Labor, Corp Yd $2,693.87 

Pages: 2 of 5 Thursday, June 06, 2013 



-38-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 4.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/7 /2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73114 06/07/2013 Open Mainstreet Media dba GOODTIMES $255.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

00082886 05/02/2013 Advertising, Rec $255.00 

73115 06/07/2013 Open MID-COUNTY AUTO SUPPLY $211.07 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

341530 05/14/2013 Auto Parts-Fleet $62.52 

341450 05/13/2013 Auto Parts-PD 2006 Impala $71.82 

341717 05/15/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $25.11 

341018 05/09/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $30.11 

341130 05/10/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $6.38 

340852 05/08/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $12.74 

341439 05/13/2013 Auto Parts $2.39 

73116 06/07/2013 Open MISSION LINEN SUPPLY $928.99 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

May2013 05/31/2013 May2013 Mat and Uniform Cleaning $928.99 

73117 06/07/2013 Open MISSION PRINTERS $319.19 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

46113 05/09/2013 Volunteer Dinner Invitations $319.19 

73118 06/07/2013 Open MORRISON, EDWARD $2,500.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

11 06/03/2013 Contract Services, May 2013 $2,500.00 

73119 06/07/2013 Open NATIVE REVIVAL NURSERY $38.34 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

37066 05/15/2013 Plants, Jade St Park $38.34 

73120 06/07/2013 Open NICHOLS, LIZ $200.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5391 06/01/2013 Reimb Payment for Volunteer Dinner Exp $200.00 

73121 06/07/2013 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $192.53 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6012-4 790934 05/22/2013 Batteries $76.07 

6008-5217903 05/22/2013 Lifeguard towers supplies $25.26 

6011-6064162 05/24/2013 Lifeguard tower supplies $36.67 

6007-3525813 05/24/2013 Paint $7.61 

6008-35277 43 05/21/2013 Misc parts, PD112 $38.24' 

05132013 05/13/2013 Duct tape $8.68 

73122 06/07/2013 Open PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC $6,186.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000710 05/15/2013 Monthly Elec $6,186.60 

Fund 1000, Gen Fund=$4903.14 

Fund 1300, SLESF=$161.42 

Fund 1310, Gas Tax=$-679.07 

Fund 1311, Wharf=$1801.11 

Pages: 3 of 5 Thursday, June 06, 2013 



-39-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 4.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/7 /2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73123 06/07/2013 Open PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC $3.78 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000711 05/15/2013 Pac Cove MHP Elec and Gas $3.78 

73124 06/07/2013 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $295.35 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

214974 05/23/2013 Office supplies $158.93 

214750 05/22/2013 Office Supplies, City Hall $28.51 

215089 05/24/2013 office supplies-PD $84.03 

215222 05/24/2013 Storage Boxes, City Hall $33.54 

C213901 05/22/2013 Return Certificates ($9.66) 

Fund 1000, Gen Fund=$242.96 

Fund 2210, Stores=$52.39 

73125 06/07/2013 Open ProBUILD COMPANY LLC $397.58 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5719045 05/08/2013 Plumbing Supplies $26.26 

30002250 05/17/2013 NutS & washers - Lifeguard towers $168.68 

30003495 05/22/2013 Tree stakes $51.83 

30003502 05/22/2013 Caution tape $35.04 

30003581 05/22/2013 Cut off wheels $115.77 

73126 06/07/2013 Open ROYE, SAMUEL L. $1,000.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130612 06/04/2013 Twilight Concert Band, 6/12/13 $1,000.00 

73127 06/07/2013 Open SANTA CRUZ ELECTRONICS, INC. $12.94 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

544788 05/13/2013 Computer Cable $12.94 

Fund 2211, IT 

73128 06/07/2013 Open SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL UTILITIES $846.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000713 05/22/2013 WATER BILLS FOR STREET MEDIANS $846.50 

73129 06/07/2013 Open SOQUEL NURSERY GROWERS, INC. $64.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

312948 05/08/2013 Plants - City Hall $44.58 

312949 05/08/2013 Potting soil $19.42 

73130 06/07/2013 Open STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOAR! $200.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

438325 06/05/2013 Fee, Pac Cove Pkg Lot Permit $200.00 

Fund 1200, CIP 

73131 06/07/2013 Open SWIFT, STEVE $195.93 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Swift-Jun2013 06/04/2013 Reimb Museum Supplies Purchased $195.93 

73132 06/07/2013 Open TLC ADMINISTRATORS, INC. $5,582.44 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

93030-Jun2013 06/01/2013 Jun2013 Dental & Vision Ins $5,582.44 

Pages: 4 of 5 Thursday, June 06, 2013 



-40-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 4.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/7 /2013 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73133 06/07/2013 Open TSCHANTZ, KIM CARLOS $1,650.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

3 06/03/2013 Professional Services May 2013 $1,650.00 

73134 06/07/2013 Open UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $6.99 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

954791213 05/25/2013 Shipping-PD $6.99 

73135 06/07/2013 Open UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE $974.84 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130606 06/04/2013 Postage, Twilight Concert Postcards $974.84 

73136 06/07/2013 Open UPEC LIUNA LOCAL 792 $1,012.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

May2013 05/31/2013 May Union Dues, Employee Funded $1,012.50 

73137 06/07/2013 Open WHEELER, MARK, S $102.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

300002986 06/04/2013 Reimb IAEI Membership charged to pers c $102.00 

73138 06/07/2013 Open ZAMORA, PEDRO $243.19 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130510 05/10/2013 Travel Exp, PTO School $243.19 

73139 06/07/2013 Open Brown, Sarah $225.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2001676.002 05/31/2013 Jr Guard Refund $225.00 

73140 06/07/2013 Open Senninger Powers LLP $3.25 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000714 06/04/2013 Refund Overpayment for Copies $3.25 

Fund 2210, Stores 

201306 06/07/2013 Open CalPERS Health Insurance $53,010.54 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

June2013 05/16/2013 Jun2013 Employee Health Ins, Employee I $53,010.54 

Check Totals: Count 52 Total $100,830.93 

Pages: 5 of 5 Thursday, June 06, 2013 



-41-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdf

Checks dated 6/14/13 numbered 73141 to 73222 for a total of $200,537.67 have 
been reviewed and authorized for distribution by the City Manager and City Treasurer. 

As of 6/14/13 the unaudited cash balance is $3,664,916 

CASH POSITION - CITY OF CAPITOLA 6/14/13 

Net Balance 
General Fund 
Contingency Reserve Fund 
Worker's Comp. Ins. Fund 
Self Insurance Liability Fund 
Stores Fund 
Information Technology Fund 
Equipment Replacement 
Compensated Absences Fund 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS 
Open Space Fund 
Capital Improvement Projects 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS 

1,987,553 
813,146 
163,250 
198,703 
(4,239) 
68,013 

113,102 
28,274 

256 
296,859 

3,664,916 

The Emergency Resetve Fund balance is $347,795.54 and is not included above. 

~----- 6/14/2013 
~ Jamie Goldstein, City Manager Date 

Kymberly V. DeWitt, City Treasurer Date 



-42-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/14/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73141 6/14/2013 Open KIMBERLY P CHAVEZ $7,500.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

201306.10 06/10/2013 Deposit on Village sculpture $7,500.00 

Fund 1315, Public Art 

73142 06/14/2013 Open A TOOL SHED $390.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

899029-5 05/17/2013 Pump $168.56 

906268-5 06/11/2013 Peery Park benches $222.24 

73143 06/14/2013 Open ADVOCACY INC. $2,000.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130601 05/26/2013 Elder Abuse Investigative Services $2,000.00 

73144 06/14/2013 Open ALLEY, DONALD $6,267.87 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

0513-01 05/31/2013 Soquel Lagoon Monitoring, May 2013 $6,267.87 

73145 06/14/2013 Open APTOS LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC. $20.57 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

354915 06/06/2013 Top soil $20.57 

73146 06/14/2013 Open ARCADIA PUBLISHING COMPANY $4,522.22 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130605 06/05/2013 40 Soquel History Books, Museum $504.65 

20130529 05/29/2013 400 Capitola History Books, Museum $4,017.57 

73147 06/14/2013 Open AT&T $3.81 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

674-Jun2013 06/01/2013 Long Distance Service $3.81 

73148 06/14/2013 Open AUTOTEMP INC. $420.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2244 05/31/2013 May Pac Cove Relocation Services $420.00 

Fund 1420, Pac Cove Bond 

73149 06/14/2013 Open B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR $32.55 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

287030 06/07/2013 Stihl blower repair $32.55 

73150 06/14/2013 Open BEYERS, FRED C $330.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Beyers-Jun6 06/07/2013 Sports Officials, Rec $330.00 

73151 06/14/2013 Open BOWMAN & WILLIAMS, INC. $3,528.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

7673 06/04/2013 May Pac Cove MHP engineering services $3,528.75 

Fund 1200, CIP 

73152 06/14/2013 Open BUMGARNER, ERIC D $165.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Bum-Jun6 06/07/2013 Sports Officials, Rec $165.00 

Pages: 1of8 Thursday, June 13, 2013 



-43-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/14/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73153 06/14/2013 Open CA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE $32.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

972982 06/05/2013 Fingerprints-PD $32.00 

73154 06/14/2013 Open CALIFORNIA COAST UNIFORM CO. $392.31 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1527 05/20/2013 Uniform Expense, Blankenship - PD $5.38 

1520 05/15/2013 Uniform Expense, Valdez - PD $386.93 

73155 06/14/2013 Open CAPITOLA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOC. $1,484.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

POA6-14-13 06/07/2013 POA Dues, Employee Funded $1,484.00 

73156 06/14/2013 Open COASTAL WATERSHED COUNCIL $2,144.97 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1208 05/31/2013 May Stormwater Education Services $2,144.97 

73157 06/14/2013 Open CONOCO-PHILLIPS FLEET SERVICES $142.01 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

33111378 05/31/2013 Fuel for training-PD $142.01 

73158 06/14/2013 Open CRUZIO THE INTERNET STORE INC. $39.95 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

28750-69 06/02/2013 General Plan webhosting 6/23/13-7/22/13 $39.95 

Fund 1313, Gen Plan Update 

73159 06/14/2013 Open CVS PHARMACY INC. $7.26 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6544 06/05/2013 Parking supplies $7.26 

73160 06/14/2013 Open D & G SANITATION $435.57 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

203727 05/31/2013 Security fence - PCHMP $77.94 

203728 05/31/2013 Portable toilets-Fund 1311, Wharf Fund $357.63 

73161 06/14/2013 Open DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SVCS $352.40 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

18105233 05/25/2013 City Hall Copier Lease $352.40 

Fund 2210, Stores 

73162 06/14/2013 Open ENVIRONMENTAL FILTRATIONS, INC. $237.72 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

97720 05/20/2013 Bathroom fan $237.72 

73163 06/14/2013 Open EWING IRRIGATION $154.95 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6403925 05/23/2013 Irrigation supplies $67.65 

6436081 06/01/2013 Soil $18.36 

6455652 06/03/2013 Irrigation supplies $15.17 

6464358 06/04/2013 Misc. landscaping supplies $33.90 

6472311 06/05/2013 Irrigation supplies $19.87 

Pages: 2 of 8 Thursday, June 13, 2013 



-44-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/14/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73164 06/14/2013 Open EXTRA SPACE STORAGE OF SC $303.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

B120-Jun13 05/26/2013 Storage Unit Rent, PD $303.00 

73165 06/14/2013 Open FASTENAL COMPANY $9.31 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

CASAT20394 05/20/2013 Shop Supplies $9.31 

73166 06/14/2013 Open FLYERS ENERGY, LLC $2,809.37 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13-852476 05/30/2013 270 Gal Diesel $1,014.69 

13-853750 05/31/2013 457 Gal Ethanol $1,794.68 

73167 06/14/2013 Open FOLD A GOAL $1,728.05 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

88761A 05/31/2013 Field paint-Rec $1,728.05 

73168 06/14/2013 Open GILBARCO INC. $154.43 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

4546393 05/07/2013 TopKat for Windows, Contract 276983 $154.43 

Fund 2211, IT 

73169 06/14/2013 Open GOLDFARB & LIPMAN, LLP $2,232.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

108371 05/10/2013 Successor Agency Legal Services $2,232.00 

73170 06/14/2013 Open Harvey, Mark D $400.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

SEA2 06/07/2013 Music at the Beach Band SEA2 $400.00 

73171 06/14/2013 Open HOWELLS, NANCY $29.90 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000716 06/07/2013 LATE SPRING LAST PAYMENT 2013 $29.90 

73172 06/14/2013 Open ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 $4,260.64 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

ICMA6-14-13 06/13/2013 Retirement Contribution, Employee Funde1 $4,260.64 

73173 06/14/2013 Open INTERWEST CONSUL TING GROUP IN1 $2,306.39 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

14670 05/20/2013 Apr2013 Building Plan Review Services $2,306.39 

73174 06/14/2013 Open JAQUA OF CALIFORNIA $369.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1462 06/07/2013 Memorial bench $369.75 

73175 06/14/2013 Open Johnson, Roy $467.40 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

100756354 06/07/2013 Kiosk Project, Outdoor Poster Board $467.40 

Fund 1315, Public Art 

Pages: 3 of 8 Thursday, June 13, 2013 



-45-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/14/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73176 06/14/2013 Open KBA Docusys $56.12 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

196378 06/03/2013 Rec Copier Service IR1750, Acct C012 $56.12 

Fund 2211, IT 

73177 06/14/2013 Open KING'S PAINT AND PAPER, INC. $199.92 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

A181109 06/07/2013 Graffiti paint $135.91 

A179269 05/07/2013 Traffic Paint-Fund 1310, Gas Tax $64.01 

73178 06/14/2013 Open LABOR READY SOUTHWEST INC. $1,661.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

17099284 05/24/2013 Contract labor, Corp Yd $1,661.00 

73179 06/14/2013 Open LABORMAX STAFFING $1,935.17 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

26-22291 05/31/2013 Contract Maint Workers $1,935.17 

73180 06/14/2013 Open LEHR AUTO ELECTRIC & EMERGENCY EQUIP. $211.88 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

01-084108 05/31/2013 New vehicle Equip Mounts $211.88 

Fund 2212, Equip Replacement 

73181 06/14/2013 Open LOOMIS $907.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

11250814 05/31/2013 Armored car service $907.80 

73182 06/14/2013 Open LUICH, JAY $88.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Luich-Jun1 06/07/2013 Sports Officials, Rec $88.00 

73183 06/14/2013 Open MID-COUNTY AUTO SUPPLY $90.71 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

342169 05/20/2013 Auto Parts-Fleet $8.37 

341906 05/16/2013 Auto Parts $1.86 

341908 05/16/2013 Auto Parts ($1.86) 

341905 05/16/2013 Auto Parts-PD112 $24.61 

341858 05/16/2013 Auto Parts-Fleet $38.35 

342660 05/23/2013 Auto Parts, PD112 $6.41 

342204 05/20/2013 Auto parts, City vehicles $12.97 

73184 06/14/2013 Open MILLER'S TRANSFER & STORAGE CO $736.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

84418 05/03/2013 May Reds Storage, Apr Reds Handling $408.35 

84517 06/03/2013 Reds Storage, Jun2013; Reds Handling, M $327.65 

73185 06/14/2013 Open NORTH BAY FORD $385.69 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

235269 05/29/2013 Auto parts, PD 081 $385.69 

Pages: 4 of 8 Thursday, June 13, 2013 



-46-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/14/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73186 06/14/2013 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $106.00 

'Invoice Date Description Amount 

6010-6124023 05/23/2013 Shop Equipment $21.73 

6007-3527142 05/31/2013 Misc Supplies, PD112 $23.89 

46263682 05/30/2013 Welding Wire $33.54 

6009-1022308 05/24/2013 Wrenches $26.84 

73187 06/14/2013 Open PACIFIC VETERINARY SPECIALISTS $95.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

266625 05/11/2013 Animal Control Exp, PD $95.60 

73188 06/14/2013 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $249.29 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

215307 05/28/2013 Office Supplies, City Hall $81.98 

215784 05/30/2013 office supplies-PD $112.51 

216411 06/05/2013 office supplies-PD $54.80 

73189 06/14/2013 Open PDM STEEL SERVICE CENTERS INC. $974.26 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

619861-01 05/22/2013 Lifeguard tower supplies $974.26 

73190 06/14/2013 Open PHIL ALLEGRI ELECTRIC, INC. $550.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

17850 06/05/2013 City Hall Fan $550.60 

73191 06/14/2013 Open PITNEY BOWES INC. $207.99 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

MayRefill-Rec 06/04/2013 Postage for meter-Rec $207.99 

73192 06/14/2013 Open PK SAFETY SUPPLY $250.64 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

190371 06/06/2013 Safety supplies $250.64 

73193 06/14/2013 Open PODS ENTERPRISES INC. $116.93 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

50-336073 05/30/2013 Relocate PD Storage Container $116.93 

73194 06/14/2013 Open POT, TRENISE $295.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000715 06/07/2013 LATE SPRING LAST PAYMENT 2013 $295.75 

73195 06/14/2013 Open PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC. $105.55 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

46135830 05/20/2013 Tank Rental, High Pressure Gases, Corp ~ $105.55 

73196 06/14/2013 Open PRINTWORX $1,933.47 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

15385 05/31/2013 Capitola Visitor Brochure, BIA $1,933.47 

Fund 1321, BIA 

Pages: 5 of 8 Thursday, June 13, 2013 



-47-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/14/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73197 06/14/2013 Open ProBUILD COMPANY LLC $91.44 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

30005359 05/29/2013 Tree stakes $51.83 

30005794 05/30/2013 Bolts - lifeguard towers $16.25 

30006501 06/03/2013 Caution tape $23.36 

73198 06/14/2013 Open QUARTARARO, ROD V. $198.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Quart-Jun4 06/07/2013 Sports Officials, Rec $198.00 

73199 06/14/2013 Open RED SHIFT INTERNET SERVICES $115.11 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1576302 06/01/2013 Internet Access, PD $49.94 

1576301 06/01/2013 Internet Access, City Hall $65.17 

73200 06/14/2013 Open REED, DANIEL H. $231.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Reed-Jun? 06/07/2013 Sports Officials, Rec $231.00 

73201 06/14/2013 Open ROBERT A. BOTHMAN INC. $130,287. 76 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

SIX 05/31/2013 Progress payment, Traffic Calming Proj $130,287.76 

Fund 1200, CIP 

73202 06/14/2013 Open sec INFORMATION SERVICES $521.99 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

June 2013 06/04/2013 June 2013 scan open query $521.99 

73203 06/14/2013 Open SANTA CRUZ FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. $191.53 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

94201 06/07/2013 Wharf fuel shed $191.53 

Fund 1311, Wharf Fund 

73204 06/14/2013 Open SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL $170.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

0004851352 05/31/2013 May Advertising-Rec $170.70 

73205 06/14/2013 Open SHERWIN-WILLIAMS $3,915.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

65913 05/07/2013 Titan painter $3,915.00 

73206 06/14/2013 Open SOQUEL CREEK ANIMAL HOSPITAL $296.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

26535 05/30/2013 Rukus vet bill-PD K9 $296.60 

73207 06/14/2013 Open SPORT ABOUT $1,258.41 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5082 05/23/2013 Camp I-shirts $1,258.41 

73208 06/14/2013 Open STAPLES $162.02 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

4016896001 05/30/2013 Toner $162.02 

Fund 2211, IT . 

Pages: 6 of 8 Thursday, June 13, 2013 



-48-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdf City of Capitola 

City Checks IS.sued 6/14/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73209 06/14/2013 Open THE INTERNET CONNECTION INC. $150.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

3917-16188 06/01/2013 Monthly Web Hosting, City Web Site $150,00 

73210 06/14/2013 Open THILL, WENDY $320.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Thill-Jun1 06/07/2013 Sports Officials, Rec $320.00 

73211 06/14/2013 Open TIMES PUBLISHING GROUP $350.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

45068 05/30/2013 Advertising-Rec $350.00 

73212 06/14/2013 Open TLC ADMINISTRATORS, INC. $175.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

18543 06/04/2013 Cafeteria Plan Administration Fee, Jun201 $175.00 

73213 06/14/2013 Open US BANCORP EQUIPMENT FINANCE $413.38 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

229032651 05/22/2013 Copier, Contract 500-0332356, IR1750 $73.05 

229152335 05/24/2013 Rec Copier Lease, IR2525, Con 500-02961 $80.48 

230042681 06/04/2013 Copier Lease, PD Contract 500-0332346, 1 $259.85 

73214 06/14/2013 Open US Bank Institutional Trust-Western Reg $583.91 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

PARS6-14-13 06/07/2013 Retirement Plan Contr, Employee Funded $583.91 

73215 06/14/2013 Open WATKINS, EDWIN $66.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Watkins-Jun1 06/07/2013 Sports Officials, Rec $66.00 

73216 06/14/2013 Open WOOSTER $1,000.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

061913 06/04/2013 Twilight Concert Band, 6/19/13 $1,000.00 

73217 06/14/2013 Open Davis, Mary $137.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000719 06/11/2013 JG Refund $137.50 

73218 06/14/2013 Open Padilla, Noel $10.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

11140736 06/11/2013 Refund parking citation 11140736 $10.00 

73219 06/14/2013 Open Schomer, Todd $39.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

11141517 06/07/2013 refund cite 11141517 $39.00 

73220 06/14/2013 Open Snider, Jennifer $220.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2013-00000720 06/11/2013 Refund $220.00 

Pages: 7 of 8 Thursday, June 13, 2013 



-49-

Item #: 7.B. Attach 5.pdfCity of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 6/14/13 
Check Invoice Transaction 
Number Number Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Amount 

73221 06/14/2013 Open CLASSIFIED SOUND $1,800.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

130612-0703A 06/06/2013 Sound Engineer, Twilight Concerts $1,800.00 

73222 6/14/2013 Open ROYE, SAMUEL L. $1,000.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20130612 06/04/2013 Twilight Concert Band, 6/12/13 $1,000.00 

Check Totals: Count 82 TOTAL $200,537.67 

Pages: 8 of 8 Thursday, June 13, 2013 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-50-



-51-

Item #: 7.C. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: MONARCH COVE HOTEL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT - AWARD 
CONSUL TANT CONTRACT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to execute a standard City contract with 
Rincon Consulting, Inc. for an amount not-to-exceed $142,295 to prepare an Environmental Impact 
Report for the Monarch Cove Hotel Project (Project) funded by the Project applicant. 

BACKGROUND: An application for a Conditional Use Permit, Coastal Development Permit and a 
Design Permit was submitted on April 24, 2013, to allow redevelopment and expansion of the 
existing Monarch Cove Hotel (aka El Saito Resort). The proposed Project would include 
renovations to the existing historic Victorian inn; expansion of the facility from 11 to 41 rooms; 
construction of a two-level, 56-stall, underground parking structure; demolition of two small 
cottages and an outdoor event deck; new landscaping, drainage facilities, and other associated 
site improvements. Nine rooms would be accommodated in the existing Victorian inn and 32 
additional rooms would be added to the facility through approximately 22,600 square-feet of new 
buildings. 

Based on staff's analysis, the Project has the potential to result in a significant environmental 
impact; therefore, preparation of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is required pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

DISCUSSION: On May 6, 2013, staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to five environmental 
planning firms. Three firms attended a mandatory pre-proposal meeting on May 20, 2013. Two 
firms submitted proposals by the May 31, 2013, deadline: Rincon Consultants, Inc. and RBF 
Consulting, Inc. Staff reviewed the proposals for completeness and responsiveness, technical 
knowledge and experience with similar projects, local familiarity, approach, cost, and schedule. 

Both proposals were responsive to the RFP and staff concluded that each firm was qualified to 
perform the work. Based on their low-bid submittal, successful track record preparing comparable 
EIRs, and proposal to complete the work in a shorter timeframe, staff recommends that the 
contract be awarded to Rincon Consultants, Inc. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The contract would not result in any fiscal impact to the City. The contract would 
be paid through the applicant's developer deposit, which includes a 17% administration fee to 
cover staff's overhead costs. 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Rich Grunow 
Community Development Director 

Reviewed and Fo a ded 
By City Manager: +--i<t'T--

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda StaffReports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\9.C. Monarch Consultant Contract Staff Re rt.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-52-



-53-

Item #: 7.D. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: LIABILITY CLAIMS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny liability claim and forward to the City's liability insurance carrier. 

DISCUSSION: 

The following claimant has filed a liability claim against the City of Capitola: 

1. David Curry; $49.52 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Liz Nichols 
Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

Reviewed and F 
by City Manager --1-+---t--

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda StaffReports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\Liability Claims_report.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-54-



-55-

Item #: 7.E. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO THE JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 
ESTABLISHING THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY LIBRARY FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve an Amendment to the Library Joint Exercise Powers Agreement 
(JPA) for the Library Financing Authority (LFA) to allow for the appointment of an alternate member to 
serve in the place of the regular member when the regular member is absent or disqualified from 
participating in a meeting of the Board of Directors and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Agreement. 

BACKGROUND: The Library JPA already provides for alternate members to sit in the place of regular 
members when regular members are not able to attend a JPA Board Meeting. The LFA, which is a 
separate entity that includes Watsonville representation, does not have a similar provision in its bylaws. 

The proposed Amendment to Section 1.3 of the JPA for the LFA is as follows: 

The appointing entity for each regular member it appoints may also appoint an alternate 
member from that entity's governing board, to serve in the place of the regular member 
when the regular member is absent or disqualified from participating in a meeting of the 
Board of Directors. An alternate shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing entity's 
governing board. 

DISCUSSION: The LFA Board has determined it would be advisable and beneficial to have alternate 
board members available to cover for absentee regular members from time to time. The LFA Board is 
therefore requesting the member jurisdictions approve an amendment to the original 1996 JPA providing 
for the appointment of alternate members. Pursuant to that agreement, any amendment to that 
agreement must be unanimously approved by the governing bodies of the member jurisdictions which 
include the County and the four cities within the County. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENT: 

1. Amendment to the Santa Cruz County Library Financing Authority JPA 
2. May 1996 Santa Cruz County Library Financing Authority JPA 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and Fo~d;d 
by City Manager: v 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\7.C. Library Amend staff report.doc 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-56-



-57-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 1.pdf

AN AGREEMENT AMENDING THE JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS 
AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY LIBRARY 

FINANCING AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Library Financing Authority ("the Authority") was 
created in 1996 for the purpose of financing library services and facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority was established pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Law 
of the State of California, constituting Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code 
of the State of California ("the Act"); and 

WHEREAS, an Agreement entitled the "Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Santa Cruz 
County Library Financing Authority" and dated May 1996 ("the Agreement") was entered into 
by each of the parties; and 

WHEREAS, said Section 8.5 of said Agreement authorizes its amendments at any time 
by the unanimous consent of the parties. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Cruz, and the 
City Councils for the Cities of Santa Cruz, Watsonville, Scotts Valley and Capitola agree to 
amend said Agreement as follows : 

1. Section 1.3 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Santa Cruz County 
Library Financing Authority is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Section 1.3 - Board of Directors. The Authority shall be administered by a 
board of directors consisting of five directors, unless and until such number is 
changed by amendment of this Agreement. The Board of Directors shall consist 
of the following: 

(A) One member of the Board of Supervisors, appointed by and serving at the 
pleasure of the Board of Supervisors. 

(B) One member of the Santa Cruz City Council, appointed by and serving at 
the pleasure of the Santa Cruz City Council. 

(C) One member of the Watsonville City Council, appointed by and serving at 
the pleasure of the Watsonville City Council. 

(D) One member of the Capitola City Council, appointed by and serving at the 
pleasure of the Capitola City Council. 

(E) One member of the Scotts Valley City Council, appointed by and serving 
at the pleasure of the Scotts Valley City Council. 

Page 1 of 6 



-58-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 1.pdf

All voting_l)ower of the Authority shall reside in the Board. The appointing 

entity for each regular member it appoints may also appoint an alternate member 

from that entity' s governing board, to serve in the place of the regular member 

hen the regular member is absent or disqualified from participating in a meeting 

of the Board of Directors. An alternate shall serve at the pleasure of the 

appointing entity ' s governing board. 

All other provisions of said Agreement shall remain the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement Amendment to 

be executed and attested by their proper officers thereunto duly authorized on the day and year 

stated below the name of each of the parties. 

This amendment may be signed in counter parts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

Dated: -------·' 2013 
County Administrative Officer 

ATTESTED 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

Approved as to Form: 

County Counsel 

Page 2of6 



-59-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 1.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement Amendment to 

be executed and attested by their proper officers thereunto duly authorized on the day and year 

stated below the name of each of the parties. 

This amendment may be signed in counter parts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original , and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ 

Dated: , 2013 -------
City Manager 

ATTESTED 

City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

Page 3of6 



-60-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 1.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement Amendment to 

be executed a.nd attested by their proper officers thereunto duly authorized on the day and year 

stated below the name of each of the parties. 

This amendment may be signed in counter parts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

Dated: , 2013 -------
City Manager 

ATTESTED 

City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

Page 4of6 



-61-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 1.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement Amendment to 

be executed and attested by their proper officers thereunto duly authorized on the day and year 

stated below the name of each of the parties. 

This amendment may be signed in counter parts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Dated: _______ , 2013 
City Manager 

ATTESTED 

City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

Page 5of6 



-62-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 1.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the paiiies hereto have caused this Agreement Amendment to 

be executed and attested by their proper officers thereunto duly authorized on the day and year 

stated below the name of each of the parties. 

This amendment may be signed in counter parts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

CITY OF SCOTTS VALLEY 

Dated: _______ , 2013 
City Manager 

ATTESTED 

City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

Page 6of6 



-63-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY LIBRARY FINANCING AUTHORITY 

May 1996 . 



-64-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

The Table of Contents 

Recitals ................................................................... I 

Article I - General Provisions ................................................ 2 
Section 1.1 - Purpose ................................................... 2 
Section 1.2 - Creation of Authority ........................................ 2 
Section 1.3 - Board of Directors .......................................... 2 
Section 1.4 -Meetings of the Board ........................................ 2 
Section 1.5 - Minutes ..................... : ............................. 3 
Section 1.6 - Voting .................................................... 3 
Section 1. 8 - Bylaws . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 

Article II - Officers and Employees ........................................... 3 
Section 2.0 - Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary ...................... 3 
Section 2.2 - Controller ............... : ................................. 4 
Section 2.3 - Officers in Charge of Records, Funds and Accounts ................. 4 
Section 2.4 - Legal Advisor .............................................. 4 
Section 2.5 - Other Employees ............................................ 4 
Section 2. 7 - Assistant Officers ........................................... 5 

Article III - Contributions ................................................... 5 
Section 3 .1 - Maintenance of Effort Contributions of the Cities ........... : ....... 5 
Section 3.2 - Maintenance of Effort Contributions of the County .................. 5 
Section 3 .3 - Library Operating Revenues ................................... 6 
Section 3.4 - Contribution of Revenues from New Taxes or Fees .................. 6 

Article IV -AnnualBudget/Disbursement of Funds ............................... 6 
Section 4 .1. General . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 
Section 4.2 -Budget Process ............................................. 6 
Seption 4.3 - Service Area Population ...................................... 7 
Section 4.4 ~ Qualifying Public Library ...................................... 9 
Section 4.5 - Payments to Qualifying Public Libraries .......................... 10 

Article V - Powers and Duties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 
Section 5.1 - Powers .................................................. 10 
Section 5.2 - Restrictions on Exercise of Powers ............................. 11 
Section 5 .3 - Obligations of Authority ..................................... 11 

Article VI - Term and Withdrawal ............................................ 11 
Section 6.1 - Term .................................................... 11 
Section 6.2 - Withdrawal Notice ......................................... 11 



-65-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

Article VII- Disposition of Funds ............................................. 12 
Section 7.1 - Surplus Funds .................... : ........................ 12 

Article VIII - Miscellaneous Provisions ........................................ 12 
Section 8.1 - Notices .................................................. 12 
Section 8.2 - Section Headings ........................................... 12 
Section 8.3 - Consent ............................. , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
Section 8.4 - Law Governing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
Section 8.5 - Amendments .............................................. 13 
Section 8.6 - Enforcement by Authority .................................... 13 
Section 8. 7 - Severability ............................................... 13 
Section 8.8 - Successors ............................................... 13 

SIGNATURE PAGES 

COUNTY OF SANTACRUZ ..................................... -. ..... 14 
CITY OF SANTA CRUZ ......... , .................................... 15 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE ............................................. 16 
CITY OF CAPITOLA .......................... · ....................... 17 
CITY OF SCOTTS VALLEY ........................................... 18 

EXHIBIT 1 - POPULATION ESTIMATES FOR CALIFORNIA CITIES AND COUNTIES 

EXHIBIT 2 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SANTA CRUZ AND 
THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ AND THE CITIES OF SCOTTS VALLEY 
AND CAPITOLA 

EXHIBIT 3 - FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE WATSONVILLE LIBRARY AGREEMENT 



-66-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY LIBRARY FINANCING AUTHORITY 

THIS agreement is dated as of , 199_ by and between 
the County of Santa Cruz ("the County"), the City of Santa Cruz 
("Santa Cruz"), the City of Watsonville ("Watsonville"), the City 
of Capitola ("Capitola") and the City of Scotts Valley ("Scotts 
Valley"), collectively known as the Cities, each duly organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of California. 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the County, Santa Cruz, Watsonville, Capitola and 
Scotts Valley may provide for the financing of library services and 
wish to form a joint powers authority under the Joint Exercise of 
Powers Law of the State of California, constituting Chapter 5 of 
Di vision 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of 
California ("the Act''), for the purpose of establishing a vehicle 
which will: 

1. ensure that library facilities 
continue to be provided to the residents of 
County unincorporated area without regard 
jurisdictional boundaries which now exist or 
future; 

and 
each 
to 
may 

services will 
city and the 
political or 
exist in the 

2. receive General and Special Purpose Funds budgeted 
by the cities and the county for library purposes and any new 
library funds which may become available for library purposes as 
the result of new taxes or fees which are uniformly levied in each 
jurisdiction; 

3. provide for the equitable distribution of funds made 
available to qualified and participating libraries; and 

4. promote the efficient and effective operation of the 
libraries in the County and the maintenance of high quality library 
services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and of 
the mutual promises herein contained, the County and the cities of 
Santa Cruz, Watsonville, Capitola and Scotts Valley do hereby agree 
as follows: 

SCCi,fA. fJN May 6, 1996 

1 



-67-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

Article I - General Provisions 

Section 1.1 - Purpose. This Agreement is made pursuant to the 
Act providing for the joint exercise of powers common to the County 
and the Cities. The purpose of this Agreement is to ensure that 
library services shall remain available to all citizens of this 
County without regard to jurisdictional boundaries; provide for the 
equitable financing of library services in Santa Cruz County; and 
to promote the efficient and effective provision of high quality 
library services throughout the County. 

Section 1. 2 - Creation of Authority. Pursuant to the Act,. 
there is hereby created a public entity to be known as the "Santa 
Cruz County Library Financing Authority." The Authority shall be a 
public entity separate and apart from the County and the cities and 
shall administer this Agreement. 

Section 1. 3 - Board of Directors. The Authority shall be 
administered by a board of directors consisting of five directors, 
unless and until such number is changed by amendment of this 
Agreement. The Board of Directors shall consist of the following: 

(A) one member of the Board of Supervisors, appointed by 
and serving at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors. 

(B) one member of the Santa Cruz City Council, appointed 
by and serving at ·the pleasure of the Santa Cruz City Council. 

(C) 
appointed by 
Council. 

one 
and 

member 
serving 

of 
at 

the 
the 

Watsonville 
pleasure of 

City Council, 
the Watsonville 

(D) one member of the Capitola City Council, appointed 
by and serving at the pleasure of the Capitola City Council. 

(E) one member of the Scotts Valley City Council, 
appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the Scotts Valley City 
Council. 

All voting power of the Authority shall reside in the Board. 

Section 1.4 - Meetings of the Board. 

(A) Regular Meetings. The Board shall provide for its 
regular meetings; provided, however, that at least two regular 
meetings shall be held each year in January and June for the 
purpose of establishing preliminary and final distributions of 

SCCLFA. FIN May 6, 1996 

2 



-68-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

funds for the upcoming fiscal year. The date, hour and place of 
the holding of regular meetings may be fixed by resolution of the 
Board and a copy of such resolution shall be filed with the County 
and the cities. 

(B) Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may 
be called in accordance with the provisions of Section 54956 of the 
Government Code of the State of California. 

(C) Call, Notice and Conduct of Meetings. All meetings 
of the Board, including without limitation, regular, adjourned 
regular and special meetings, shall be called, noticed and 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Browri 
Act (California Government Code Sections 54950 et. seq.) 

Section.1.5 - Minutes. The Secretary shall cause to be kept 
minutes of the meetings of the Board and shall, as soon as possible 
after each meeting, cause a copy of the minutes to be filed in the 
official records of the Authority. 

Section 1.6 - Voting. Each Director shall have one vote. 

Section 1.7 - Ouorum; Required Votes;. Approvals. A majority 
of the total membership of the Board of Directors shall constitute 
a quorum for the transaction of business, except that less than a 
quorum may adjourn from time to time. The affirmative votes of 
three of the Directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is 
present shall be required to take any action by the Board. 

Section 1.8 - Bylaws. The Board may adopt, from time to time, 
such bylaws, rules and regulations for the conduct of its meetings 
as are necessary for the purposes hereof. 

Article II - Officers and Employees 

Section 2. 0 - Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary. 
The Board of Directors shall elect a Chairperson and Vice
Chairperson of the Authority at its annual meeting in January. The 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors shall be its Secretary. The 
officers shall perform the duties normal to said offices. The 
Chairperson shall sign all contracts on behalf of the Authority and 
shall perform such other duties as may be imposed by the Board. 
The Vice-Chairperson shall sign contracts and perform all of the 
Vice-Chairperson's duties in the absence of the Chairperson. The 
Secretary shall countersign all contracts signed by the Chairperson 
or Vice-Chairperson on behalf of the Authority, perform such other 
duties as may be imposed by the Board and cause a notice of this 

SCCLFT\. FIN May 6, 1996 

3 



-69-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

Agreement to be filed with the Secretary of State pursuant to the 
Act. 

Section 2.1 - Treasurer. Pursuant to Section 6505.5 of the 
Act, the County Treasurer is hereby designated as the Treasurer of 
the Authority. The Treasurer shall be the depositary, shall have 
custody of all funds and money of the Authority from whatever 
source and shall have the duties and obligations set forth in 
Sections 6505 and 6505.5 of the Act. 

Section 2.2 - Controller. Pursuant to Section 6505.5 of the 
Act, the County Audi tor-Controller is hereby designated as the 
Controller of the Authority, and shall assure that there shall be 
strict accountability of all funds and reporting of all receipts 
and ·disbursements of the Authority. As provided in Section 6505 
and Section 6505.5 of the Act, the Controller shall make 
arrangements with a certified public accountant or firm of 
certified public accountants for the annual audit of accounts and 
records of the Authority. 

Section 2. 3 Officers in Charge of Records, Funds and 
Accounts. Pursuant to Section 6505.5 of the Act, the Controller 
shall have charge of, handle and have access to all accounts, funds 
and money of the Authority and all records of the Authority 
relating thereto. The Secretary shall have charge of, handle and 
have access to all other records of the Authority. 

Section 2.4 - Legal Advisor. The Board shall have the power 
to appoint the legal advisor of the Authority who shall perform 
such duties as may be prescribed by the Board. 

Until such time as there is a different appointment, the 
County Counsel shall act as legal advisor for the Authority. 

Section 2.5 - Other Employees. The Board shall have ·the power 
by resolution to appoint and employ such other consul tan ts and 
independent contractors as may be necessary for the purposes of 
this Agreement. 

All of the privileges and immunities from liability, exemption 
from laws, ordinances and rules, all pension, relief, disability, 
workers' compensation and other benefits which apply to the 
acti vi tie·s of officers, agents, or employees of a public agency 
when performing its functions shall apply to the officers, agents 
or employees of the A.uthori ty to the same degree and extent while 
engaged in the performance of any of the functions and other duties 
of such officers, agents or employees under this Agreement. 

SCCJ,FA. FIN May G, 1996 

4 



-70-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

None of the officers, agents, or employees directly employed 
by the Board shall be deemed, by reason of their employment by the 
Board to be employed by the County or the cities or, by reason of 
their employment by the Board, to . be subject to any of the 
requirements of the County or the cities. 

Section 2.7 - Assistant Officers. The Board may by resolution 
appoint such assistants to act in the place of the Secretary or 
other officers of the Authority (other than any Director) and may 
by resolution provide for the appointment of additional officers of 
the Authority who may or may not be Directors, as the Board shall 
from time to time deem appropriate. 

Article III - Contributions 

Section 3. 1 - Maintenance of Effort Contributions of the 
Cities. The cities of Santa Cruz, Watsonville, Capitola and Scotts 
Valley shall contribute each year, commencing with the 1997-98 
fiscal year, for the purposes set forth herein a maintenance of 
effort amount equal to the amount shown below: 

City of Santa Cruz ....................... . 
City of Watsonville ..................... . 
City of Capito la ........................ . 
City of Scotts Valley ................... . 

$1,394,751 
541,684 

0 
0 

The maintenance of effort amounts shown for the cities of 
Santa Cruz and Watsonville are equal to each city's 1995-96 net 
General Fund Budget amount for Library Services for its residents. 
The City of Santa Cruz budget amount has been adjusted downward by 
$77,000 to reflect the amount budgeted for debt service for the 
automation system which debt shall be retired before 1997-98. 

Section 3. 2 - Maintenance of Effort Contributions of the 
County. The County of Santa Cruz on behalf of the Unincorporated 
Area and the cities of Capitola and Scotts Valley shall contribute 
each year, commencing with the 1997-98 fiscal year, for the 
purposes set forth herein, a maintenance of effort amount equal to 
the amount of allocated taxes received by the County Library Fund 
through the operation of State Law less the County Library Fund's 
share of the Property Tax Administration Fee and the General County 
Overhead allocated to the County Library Fund. Allocated taxes 
shall include current secured property taxes, current unsecured 
property taxes, supplemental secured property taxes, supplemental 
unsecured property taxes, State Homeowners Property Tax Relief and 
such funds as the County Library Fund may receive as a result of 
Redevelopment Pass Through Agreements. Allocated taxes does not 

SCCLFA. FIN May 6, 1996 

5 



-71-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

include payments which the County may receive from the Scotts 
va11·ey and Capito la Redevelopment Agencies in lieu of the 
construction of branch libraries. The estimated amount of the 
County's Maintenance of Effort Contribution for 1997-98 is 
$2,075,000. 

Section 3.3 - Library Operating Revenues. In addition to the 
maintenance of effort contributions set forth in the preceding 
section, it is agreed that Library Operating Revenues such as 
fines, State grants, donations and bequests shall be retained by 
the cities or the County and shall be made available to the 
libraries to finance library operations. 

Section 3.4 - Contribution of Revenues from New Taxes or Fees. 
The County shall pay to the Authority the net proceeds of any new 
tax or fee uniformly levied in the County and the cities of Santa 
Cruz, Watsonville, Capitola and Scotts Valley for library purposes 
upon receipt. 

Section 3.5 Method of Payment. The City and County 
maintenance of effort contributions provided for in Sections 3.1 
and 3.2 shall be payable in twelve equal monthly installments which 
shall be due to the Authority on the fifteenth day of each month. 
Interest shall be levied on late payments at the rate of 1.5% per 
month. 

Article IV - Annual Budget/Disbursement of Funds 

Section 4.1. General. The Authority shall adopt an annual 
budget which provides for allocating the funds it receives to 
qualifying public libraries. The budget allocations shall be based 
on a per capita amount and service area population as defined 
herein. The authority shall allocate and disburse all of the funds 
it receives each year. 

Section 4.2 - Budget Process. On or before January 15th of 
each year the County Administrative Office, after consulting with 
the Authority's Controller, shall provide Authority's Board with a 
report including an estimate of the funds available to the 
authority for the upcoming fiscal year and the population of the 
cities and county for the preceding January as contained in the 
Official State Estimates of the Population for California Cities 
and Counties (Report E-1 or its successor) a sample of which is 
attached as Exhibit 1 of this agreement. As used herein, the fiscal 
year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. The Report shall 
include: 

SCCLFA. FIN May 6, 1996 

6 



-72-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

(A) 
Section 3.2 
Contributions;) 

the Estimated Amount Available under Section 3.1 and 
of this Agreement (Maintenance of Effort 

(B) the Estimated Amount Available from the proceeds of 
any new taxes or fees received by the Authority pursuant to Section 
3.4; and 

(C) an estimate of any carryover balances which may be 
available from preceding fiscal years. 

Based on the Report on funds available, the Board shall make 
a determination for the upcoming fiscal year of the Proposed Amount 
to be Distributed to qualified public libraries; and the Per Capita 
Amount to be Distributed for the upcoming fiscal year. 

A qualified public library's proposed distribution amount for 
.the upcoming fiscal year shall be equal to the Per Capita Amount to 
be Distributed multiplied times the service area population of the 
library as defined in Section 4.3 below. The per capita amount 
shall be determined by dividing the Amount to be Distributed by the 
County's Total Population for the previous January as estimated by 
the State of California in its Official State Estimates (Report ·E
l). The final distribution amount for th~ upcoming fiscal year 
shall be determined in June following the issuance of updated 
pcpulation numbers by the State. 

Section 4.3 - Service.Area Population. For the purpose of 
determining the distributions provided for in this agreement the 
population service area of each library shall be determined as 
follows: 

(A) Service area population shall be defined as the 
population, as determined by the State of California, of the city 
and the County unincorporated area or combinations of cities and 
the unincorporated area for libraries serving more than one 
jurisdiction such as the Santa Cruz City/County Library System, 
except that for the purposes of the distributions provided for in 
this agreement the City of Watsonville population shall be 
increased by five percent (5%) of the County-wide total population 
and the County Unincorporated Area shall be decreased by five 
percent (5%) of the County-wide total population. The five percent 
(5%) adjustment is intended to reflect the fact that Watsonville's 
service area is larger than the population of Watsonville and 
iLcludes portions of the unincorporated area of the County. The 
Table below illustrates the Service Area Population for the Santa 
Cruz City County Library System and each of its member 

sci:LfA. rIN May 6, 1996 

7 



-73-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

jurisdictions and the Watsonville Library based on the State of 
Califonria's January 1995 E-1 Population Estimate. 

Watsonville Library 33,800 12,133 45,933 18.9% 

Library System 

City of Santa Cruz 52,700 52,700 26.8% 

County Library Fund 

.. Unincorporated Area 135,600 (12, 133) 123,467 62.8% 

.. Scotts Valley 9,750 9,750 5.0% 

.. Capitola 10 800 10 800 5.5% 

Total Library System 208,850 0 196,717 81.1% 100.0% 

Grand Total 242,650 0 242,650 100.0% NA 

(B) The five percent (5%) adjustment to the population 
of Watsonville and the Unincorporated Area provided in Section 4.3 
(A) shall be adjusted when Watsonville annexes portions of the 
Unincorporated Area of the County. The adjustment will decrease the 
amount added to Watsonville's population and the amount subtracted 
from the Unincorporated Area population by the number produced by 
the following computation: the number of households annexed 
multiplied times the average persons per household in the County. 
This adjustment is intended to eliminate a double counting of 
population, which would distort the population-based di$tribution 
provided in this agreement, by an annexation being included in both 
the Official State Population Estimates and the City of 
Watsonville's 5% population adjustment factor. For the purpose of 
the annexation computation, the average number of persons per 
household shall be 2.7 persons, and the number of households shall 
be determined by County Planning, or if either the County or the 
City Watsonville so requests, by a joint count of the City of 
Watsonville and the County. 

Example: The annexation of 50 households would result in the 
following adjustment: 

Number of Households Annexed 50 
Times 2.7 persons per household 2.7 

SCC'LFA. FIN May 6, 1996 

8 



-74-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

Equals an adjustment of 135 

The five percent (5%) adjustment figure shall be computed each 
year in June using the county's total population for the previous 
January as estimated by the State of California in its Official 
State Estimates. The five percent (5%) adjustment shall then be 
decreased for the City of Watsonville and increased for the County 
unincorporated area by all annexations completed between the date 
of this Agreement and the previous December 1. If at any time the 
annexations reduce the five percent (5%) adjustment to zero, then 
no further adjustment shall be made for the duration of this 
Agreement other than the annual adjustments of service area 
populations. 

Section 4.4 - Qualifying Public Library. The authority shall 
distribute funds to any jurisdiction or combination of 
jurisdictions operating a qualifying pubic library as provided 
below: 

(A) The Watsonville Library, operated pursuant to the 
terms of the agreement contained in Exhibit 2 and the Santa Cruz 
City County Library operated pursuant to the contract in Exhibit 3 
shall be deemed qualified upon certification to the authority by 
the administering jurisdiction that the library: 

(1) is duly organized under the laws of the State 
of California; 

(2) will allow free access to it facilities, 
materials and services to all residents of Santa Cruz County 
without regard to jurisdictional boundaries on a nondiscriminatory 
basis; 

( 3) will assign all library operating revenues, 
including but not limited to fines, state grants, donations and 
bequests, to the library for library purposes; 

(4) will use all of the funds received from the 
Authority exclusively for operating and maintaining its library 
including the cost of insurance, a charge for administrative 
support not to exceed an amount equal to 5.5% of the net operating 
costs of the library system and capital improvements, provided, 
however, that funds for capital improvements shall not be used to 
supplant the obligations and plans of the Santa Cruz County, 
Capitola and Scotts Valley Redevelopment Agencies to construct 
branch libraries: and 

SCCLfA. FIN May 6, 1996 

9 



-75-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

(5) the administering agency agrees to: establish 
accounts and accounting procedures acceptable to the Authority's 
Controller which provide an accounting of all funds made available 
by the Authority; provide such reports on the expenditure of the 
funds made available as the Authority or its Controller may 
request; and to be subject to examination and audit for a period of 
five (5) years. 

(B) A New City or Independent Special Distric_t 

( 1) It is the policy of the parties to this 
Agreement that any new city or independent special district with 
authority to provide library services to its residents be 
encouraged to secure library services through the libraries 
operated by Watsonville and the City/County Library System . 

. However, the Authority may determine to make a per capita 
distribution to a new city or independent special district upon: 

(a) the filing of an application with the 
Authority which contains the certifications in Section 4.4(A) (1) 
through (5); an enforceable commitment to make a maintenance of 
effort contribution to the Authority ea~h year equal to the 
property taxes assigned to the new City for library services; and 
a statement explaining the City's library facility, and the reasons 
it believes that a new stand alone City library would contribute to 
the efficient and effective provision of library services in the 
County; and 

(b) a finding by the Authority that the new 
City has a suitable facility, a sound management plan for operating 
a stand alone facility; and that the new library would contribute 
to the efficient and effective provision of Library Services in the 
County. 

Section 4.5 - Payments to Qualifying Public Libraries. On the 
last business day of the month the Authority's Controller shall 
determine the amount available for payment to Qualifying Public 
Libraries as a result of payments made to the Authority pursuant to 
Sections 3.4 and 3.5 of this agreement and calculate the 
proportional amount due to each of the Qualifying Public Libraries. 
Payments shall follow within seven working days. 

Article V - Powers and Duties 

Section 5.1 - Powers. The Authority shall have powers common 
to the parties as set forth in the recitals of this agreement, to 
wit: the power to assist in the financing of library services. 

SCCLrn. fIN May 6, 1996 

10 



-76-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

The Authority is hereby authorized, in its own name, to do all 
acts necessary for the exercise of common powers, including but not 
limited to, any or all of the following: 

(a) to make and enter into contracts; 

(b) to sue and be sued in its own name; 

( c) to incur obligations; and 

(d) to carry out and enforce all the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

Section 5.2 - Restrictions on Exercise of Powers. The powers 
of the Authority shall be exercised in the manner provided in the 
Act and as needed to implement the purposes of this agreement. 

Section 5.3 - Obligations of Authority. Any obligations of 
the Authority shall not be obligations of the County and of the 
Cities. 

Article VI - Term and Withdrawal 

Section 6 .1 - Term. This Agreement shall become effective 
upon the passage of a ballot measure on the November 1996 ballot 
which provides for a uniform tax levy or service charge in the 
County Unincorporated Area and the Cities. The agreement shall 
continue in full force and effect as long as the tax levy or 
service charge continues to exist, provided that on or after the 
end of the first ten years of the agreement any party may withdraw 
upon satisfying the notice provisions of Section 6. 2. Upon 
withdrawal the party shall cease to have representation on the 
Board of Directors and will no longer have a maintenance of effort 
obligation or a right to participate in the distribution of 
Maintenance of Effort Distributions. The withdrawing party shall 
have a continuing right to a per capita distribution of the uniform 
tax levy or service charge authorized on the November 1996 ballot 
provided it makes the certifications required of in Section 4.4 
(A). A withdrawing party shall perform all obligations under this 
Agreement until the effective date of the withdrawal. 

Section 6.2 - Withdrawal Notice. The County or an individual 
city may withdraw from the Authority as provided in Section 6.1 
upon the giving of three years notice no later than July 1 of any 
given year of its intent to withdraw from the Authority effective 
on July 1 three years thereafter. 

SCCl,fA. E'IN May 6, 1996 

11 



-77-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

Article VII - Disposition of Funds 

Section 7.1 - Surplus Funds. Upon any termination of this 
Agreement, any surplus funds on hand shall be distributed to the 
County and the cities in accordance with Sections 4.2 and 4.3 of 
this Agreement. 

Article VIII - Miscellaneous Provisions 

Section 8.1 - Notices. Notices hereunder shall be in writing 
and shall be sufficient if delivered to: 

County Administrative Officer 
County of Santa Cruz 
701 Ocean Street 
Santa Cruz, California 95060 

City Manager 
City of Santa Cruz 
809 Center Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

City Manager 
City of Watsonville 
250 Main Street 
Watsonville, California 95077 

City Manager 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, California 95010 

City Manager 
City of Scotts Valley 
One Civic Center Drive 
Scotts Valley, CA 95066 

Section 8.2 - Section Headings. All section headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience of reference only and are not to be 
construed as modifying or governing the language in the section 
referred to or to define or limit the scope of any provision of 
this Agreement. 

SCCLfA. nN May 6, 1996 

12 



-78-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

Section 8.5 - Consent. 
or approval is required, 
w:_thheld. 

Whenever in this Agreement any consent 
the same shall not be unreasonably 

Section 8.4 - Law Governing. This Agreement is made in the 
State of California under the Constitution and laws of the State of 
California and is to be so construed. 

Section 8.5 - Amendments. This Agreement may be amended at 
any time, or from time to time, only by the unanimous consent of 
the parties to the agreement. 

Section 8.6 - Enforcement by Authority. The Authority is 
hereby authorized to take any or all legal or equitable actions, 
including but not limited to injunction and specific performance, 
necessary or permitted by law to enforce this Agreement. 

Section 8. 7 Severability. Should any part, term or 
provision of this Agreement be decided by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State 
of California, or otherwise be rendered unenforceable or 
ir._effectual, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions 
shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 8.8 - Successors. Except as otherwise provided in 
section 4. 4 (B), this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall 
inure to the benefit of the successors of the County or the Cities, 
respectively. Neither the County nor the Cities may assign any 
right or obligation hereund_er without the written consent of the 
other. 

\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 
\\ 

SC:CJ.E'A- E'IN May 6, 1996 

13 



-79-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Agreement to be executed and attested by their proper officers 
thereunto duly authorized on the day and year stated below the nam~ 
of each of the parties. 

This Agreement may be signed in counter parts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute one 
and the same agreement. 

Officer 

Dated: 

ATTESTED 

Approved as to Form: 

SCCLE'A. FIM May 6, 1996 

14 



-80-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Agreement to be executed and attested by their proper officers 
thereunto duly authorized on the day and year stated below the name 
of each of the parties. 

This Agreement may be signed in counter parts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute one 
and the same agreement. 

CITY O~.R RUUZZ 

~~~ 
Ci~ 

ATTESTED 

SCCLfA.l"IN May 6, 1996 

15 



-81-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Agreement to be executed and attested by their proper officers 
thereunto duly authorized on the day and year stated below the name 
of each of the parties. 

This Agreement may be signed in counter parts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute one 
and the same agreement. 

ATTESTED 

Approved as to Form: 

SCCLfA. E'J.N May 6, 1996 

16 



-82-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Agreement to be executed and attested by their proper officers 
thereunto duly authorized on the day and year stated below the name 
of each of the parties. 

This Agreement may be signed in counter parts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute one 
and the same agreement. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

~~ "JU ,ijfnta,,-.--~ 
/city Manager 

Dated: 

ATTESTED 

SCCLFA. FIN May 6 1 1996 

17 



-83-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Agreement to be executed and attested by their proper officers 
thereunto duly authorized on the day and year stated below the name 
of each of the parties. 

This Agreement may be signed in counter parts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute one 
and the same agreement. 

CITY OF SCOTTS VALLEY 

City Manager 

ATTESTED 

City 

SCCJ,E'A. FIM May 6, 1996 

18 



-84-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

POPULATION ESTIMATES 
FOR CALIFORNIA CITIES AND COUNTIES 

Exhibit 1 



-85-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

... 

. .-,::/:~·\::'./=}.'. 

!.· •• 

.... . 

..... . 

. .. . . 

. ... . ... 
. . . . 

..... :. : ==::::·:;·:: E: .. ::::::::· . ·:: ... ·:·::·:·: ::::::.: :: ::.:·.;::. 

.... . ; 

. . 
. . 

..:~ ... '.:··:.· .... : ·: .. . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . 

. . :· .. ·· •R~:::;;·~~~~ttt~ :iJ;i{~~it\:'··i\;.,··::·.·: :::;::: .. :·:::\-i].-..·i:.::;::::·,;\j!::.:;:;~·-··· .' 

. . ·· .. ··,:':''.". .. ·;·· .. : . . ·,.;·-::·.: :)/;:1:;;·::,', ·:·::·· 

·..._-.;;! .•. L I F 0 \=\ --·57 .. ...- · · 
--,::.:_~~.:::-.:::::::.~::.:-·_... 

--~---~ . 

Demogrnphic Eesearch Unit 
915 L Street 

Sncrnme11toi CA 95814 
(916) 322--4.651 .. 

!\Ln· 1995 

...... · ~- :->. ~- '. . '. 



-86-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

/_ 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: 

ThiS' 'report was prepared by Dan Siiey~· under the geileral directio~ of Linda G~ge, Chief and 
J\.1ary Heim, .Assistant Chief, Demographic Research Unit. Alex Exuzides,_Julie Hoan.g, Eich 
Lovelady, and John Malson provided data collection;revi~w.·and anaJysis of the city data and 
prepa·re_d the' city estin:ates. : · · · · - · 

Elizabeth Hoag prepared the State estimate. Don McNeill prepared the county estimates. 
Cai:·ol .Cor~-oran pro\·ided K-12 eni·ollment data and analysis: Christine Stroiney provided 
technical data processing suppqrt. 'Administrative suppo1t was provided by Dolores LYki~s and 
Nancy Taylor. -

SUGGESTED CITATION 
State of California, Population Estimates for California Cities and Countiei, Janumy 1. 
1995, Reporr 95 E-1. 
Sacramento. California, May 1995 



-87-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

CALIFORNIA CITY AND COUNTY POPULATION ESTIMATES 
JAN.UARY 1, 1994 AND JANUARY 1, 1995 

REPORT 95 E-1 

This report · provid~s provis.ion?J.l. .population 
estimates for California cities and counties and for 
the State as of January 1, .1995 and r~vised · 
estimates for January 1, 1?94. 

The April 1, ,1990. Census C?f Population and · .· 
Housing is the benchmark for the estimates .. City 
and unincorpor'a.t.ed area population estimates are 
calculated . and suinmed for each co"unty and 
adjusted to county _confrol . figur~s. In tum, the. 
county controls are summed and controlled_ to the 
s·tate . population. The controlling process is 
applied·because more accurate populatioi1 estimates 
are produced. usi1ig certain estimating techniques 
an~ data which are only available at the county and 
State le\·el. 

A b1icf de,~;::ription of the methods follows. 

City and Unincorporated Estimates 

The Housing Unit f\·1ethod is used to ~stimate tbt<il 
housing units," occupied housing units, persons per 
household, and group. q·uaners population. Housing 
units are estimated by adding new construction 

. minus demolitions to the census benchmark of 
housing units, adjusting for annexations. Occupied 
housing units are estimated by adding the change in 
reside~tial electric customers to the benchmark of 
households. The independently calculated housing 
units and occupied housing units are then compared 
to obtain a vacancy rate and to evaluate their 

reliability. The persons per household 'is based on 
the census. and adjusted for shifts in the ratio of 
city resident children attending grades 1-8 per 
household. changes in race/ethnic enrollment. <Ind 
updated housing mix. The l 990 census group 

quarters population is updated using . reported 
.change in group quarter facilities population. 

County Estimates 

The cotinty p~pulation estimates ~ere _developed 
by averaging . t\\;O · independent · methods for 
household population then "adding the population 
residing in group qlia~ers._ 

The Household Method · --~pplies the · anriua'i 
percentage change in the ·State. distribution of 
househofds to the prior year's distribution of 
household population. 

The Ratio-Correlation Method uses a multiple 
conelation equation and changes in the 
distribution of three data series to estimate the 
household population. The multiple cor.·elation 
equation is: 

Y = 0.1351 ~ 0.4953(A) + 0.2389(B) + 0.11 l 2(C) 

\' =the population variable 
A= ch?-nges in the ·distribution of drivers' licenses 

· B =changes in the distribution of enrollments 
C = changes in the distribution of.labor force 

NOTE: 
Numbers may not add ciue to independent 
rounding. .These estimates are provisional n ml 
subject to change. 

For additional infonnation concerning estimatin~ 
. procedures contact the Demographic. Rcse~ircil 

Unit. 



-88-

Item
 #: 7.E

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

TOTJ\L POPULATION OF CJ\L!r:DT~NIA CJTJES JJ\NUJ\RY 1994 /\ND 1995 WITH.PERCE.NTAGE CHANGE PAGE G 

TOTJ\L POPULJ\TION -~ 
TOTAL POPULATION 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------
COUNTY PERCENT COUNTY PERCENT 

CHY 1-1-94 1-1-95 CHJ\NGE CITY 1-1-94 1-1-95 CHANGE 

SAN JOAQUIN (CONT·.) SJ\NTA BARBARA (CONT.) 

MANTECA 44,300 ,15.050 1. 7 SOLVANG 5,075 5. 100 0.5 

RIPON 8,600 9,000 4.7 UNINCORPORATED 164,900 167,300 1. 5 

STOCKTON 229. 100 234.000 2. 1 
TRACY 42. 150 4'1.500 5.6 SJ\NTA CLARA 1. 583. 500. 1,607,700 1. 5 

UNINCORPORATED 130. 600 129,400 -0.9 CAMPBELL 37,450 38,250 2. 1 
CUPERTINO 42.350 ·;13. 500. 2.7 

SAN LUIS CGISPO 232. 400 236.000 1. 5 GILROY 33,200 33,550 1. 1 

ARROYO GRANDE 15.200 15,500 2.0 LOS ALTOS 27,200 27,200 0.0 

AT'ASCADERO 2'1.450 25.200 3 .. 1 LOS ALTOS H!LLS 7,750 7,775 0.3 

EL PASO DE ROBLES 21 .050 21. 750 3.3 LOS GJ\TOS 28.650 29,000 1. 2 

GROVER BEACH 12,550 12 .. 450 -0.8 MILPITAS 57,800 59,500 2.9 

MORRO BAY 10,050 9,900 -1. 5 MONTE SERENO 3,350 3,260 -2.7 

PISMO 8E'ACH 8.025 8,300 3. '1' MORGJ\N HILL 26,200 27. 150 3.6 

SAN LUIS OBISPO 43.900 ,12. 950 -2.2 MOUNTAIN VIEW 70.800 71. 500 1.0 

UN INCORPOR,\ TEO 97.200 100.000 2.9 Pi\LD ALTO 57,900 58,600 1 .2 
.SAN .JOSE 833,300 ·846,000 1. 5 

S1\N MATED GOG. 100 G95. 100 I. 3 SANTA CLAR/\ 96,900 98,·200 1. 3 

ATHERTON 7,275 7,350 ·1.0 SARJ\TOGA 28,650 29,600 3.3 

BELMONT 25.450 ?.5. 100 - f. '1 SUNNYVALE 123.900 126,000 1. 7 

BRISBANE 3. 130 3. 150 O.G UNINCORPORATED 108. 100 108,700 0.6 

BUR LI NGJ\ME 28.000 28.350 1. 2 

COLMA 1. 180 f ,2'10 5. 1 SANTA GRUZ 239,400 242,600 1.3. 

DALY CITY 99. 100 99,600 0.5 CAPITOLA 10,500 10,800 2.9 

EAST PALO ALTO 24,GOO 25.050 1. 8 SANTA·CRUZ 51 ,BOO 52,700 1. 7 

FOSTER CITY 29.200 29.500 1.0 SCOTTS VALLEY 9;475 9,750 2.9 

HALF MOON BAY 10,250 10. 550 2.9 WATSONVILLE 33,200 33,800 1 .8 

HILLSBOROUGH 11. 100 11,300 1. 8 UNINCORPORATED 134,400 135,600 0.9' 

MENLO PARI< 29,900 30,450 "1. 8 .. 
MILLBRAE 21 ,200 21 ,450 i. 2 SHASTA 163,400 166. 100 1. 7 

PACIFICA 39. 150 39.200 0.1 ANDERSON B,BOO 8,875 0.9 

PORTOLA VJ\LLEY 4,350 4,430 1 .8 REDDING 77,000 78,500 1.9 

RED\•IOOD CITY 70, 500 71. 700 1. 7 SHASTA LAKE 9,325 9,525 2. 1 

SAN BRUND 40. 400 40.850 1 . 1 UNINCORPORATED 68,200 69.200 1.5 

SAN CARLOS 27.550 28.050 1 .8 

! SAN MATEO 90. 300 92,000 1. 9 SIERRA 3,420 3,460 1.2 

SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 57,200 57,300 0.2· LOYALTON 910 910 0.0 

WOODSIDE 5,250 5 ,400 2.9 UNINCORPORATED 2,500 2,560 2.4 

UNINCORPORATED 61, 100 G3,000 3. 1 
.SISKIYOU 45.700 46,500 1. 8 

ANTA BARBARA 392,000 396. 900 1 .2 DORRIS 900 920 2.2 

BUG:LLTDN 3,490 3,'180 -0.3 DUNSMUIR 2. j80 2. 120 -2.8 

CARPINTERIA 14,450 14,600 1.0 ETNA 850. 810 -4.7 

GUADALUPE 6.075 6. 150 1.2 FORT JONES 650 640 - 1.:; 

LOMPOC 40,900 ,11. 100 0.5 MONTAGUE 1,460 1,430 -2. 1 I 
Std~T /\ Gi\f·~·Gl.R/\. 89,300 90,200 1.0 MOUNT SHf,STA 3,6GO 3,700 i , .. ' I 
SA!~H. t1:,\R l f\ 67,900 GD.900 1. 5 i TULELAKE 1,020 970 -.:: . 9 

s 



-89-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

.-------------. ~~ 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF SANTA CRUZ AND THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

AND THE CITIES OF CAPITOLA AND SCOTTS VALLEY 
RELATING TO LIBRARY SERVICES 

Exhibit 2 
'------'--------------r--t-'11 ~ 

D 



-90-

Item #: 7.E. Attach 2.pdf

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF SANTA CRUZ AND THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

AND THE CITIES OF CAPITOLA AND SCOTTS VALLEY 
RELATING TO LIBRARY SERVICES 

Exhibit 2 



-91-

Item #: 7.F. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 10.38 OF THE CAPITOLA 
MUNICIPAL CODE SPECIFYING PARKING METER RATES AND ZONES [2ND 
READING]. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Ordinance adding Section 10.38 of the 
Capitola Municipal Code pertaining to parking meter rates and zones [2nd Reading]. 

BACKGROUND: The draft Ordinance amending Section 10.38 presented for a second reading. 

DISCUSSION: The City Council approved the first reading of this Ordinance at the Council 
meeting held on June 13, 2013. 

The proposed Ordinance is before the City Council for its se.cond reading and final adoption. If 
adopted, the Ordinance will take effect in thirty (30) days. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Draft Ordinance 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and Frled 
By City Manager:\jU 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.F. Ordinance parking zones stf rept.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-92-



-93-

Item #: 7.F. Attach 1.pdf

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ADDING CHAPTER 10.38 TO THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

SPECIFYING PARKING METER RATES AND ZONES 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Chapter 10.38 is hereby added ~o the Capitola Municipal Code to read as follows: 

"Chapter 10.38 Specification of Parking Meter Z 

Sections: 10.38.0101 Specification of Parking 

A. The following Parking Meter Zon§§}~re 
City of Capitola: 

1. Parking Meter Zan~ 1). The ~rea labeled as 
on the map attached hereto as EX' " faun · n file in the offi 
City Clerk, shall constitute Parking Mete~;?·Q.n~ 

Parking Meter Zone A(1) includes;~§lrking spaces along both 
sides of the following s' ts located rrounding the Capitola 
Village: 

a. 

b. 
Railway; 

Beulah Drive; 

the Union Pacific 

~; Es~l~gade along i 
Mont~t~M~venue; 

d. .~.~~i~~*~I~~~~~e fr··••· apitola Avenue to Esplanade; 
.~t~pktonAllS?!"IY~f~em Capitola Avenue to Cliff Drive; and 

Wtii:ttf . Road from Stockton Avenue to the Capitola 
rf. 

arking\l\lleter Zone A(2). The area labeled as Zone A(2) 
hed hereto as Exhibit "A" found on file in the office of the 
constitute Parking Meter Zone A(2). Parking Meter Zone 
rking spaces along both sides of the following street: Cliff 

kton Avenue to the city limits. 

Parking Meter Zone B. The city-owned parking lots 
adjace~ to, and directly to the north and east of Capitola City Hall, 
comprised of APN 35-141-33 located at 426 Capitola Avenue, which 
encompasses the area known as the Upper and Lower Pacific Cove 
Parking Lots, as depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit "B" 
found on file in the office of the City Clerk, shall constitute Parking Meter 
Zone B. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\ord adding 10 28 re Parking Meter Rates Zones.docx 



-94-

Item #: 7.F. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 

B. The City Public Works Director, acting in the Director's capacity as 
superintendent of streets, is hereby authorized to install parking meters in 
all public parking spaces located in all meter zones and to place 
appropriate signage relative to said metered parking. Parking meters will 
operate in each day of the week from the hours of eight a.m. to eight p.m. 
The City Council, by resolution or minute order, may designate days 
when said parking meters will not operate in any meter zone. 

C. The following parking meter rates are hereby established in the 
city of Capitola: 

Zone A( 1) (Village Area) 
Zone. A(2) (Cliff Drive Area) 
Zone B (Pacific Cove Parking Lot) 

Section 2: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full 
adoption by the City Council. 

This ordinance was introduced on the 13th day 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the4 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

Susan ShE3gdon, City Cle~~ 

Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 

aq,d adopted 
fig vote: 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\ord adding 10 28 re Parking Meter Rates Zones.docx 



-95-

Item #: 7.G. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER AN AGREEMENT WITH NEW WORLD SOFTWARE SYSTEMS TO 
PURCHASE PAYROLL AND HUMAN RESOURCES SOFTWARE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider an agreement with New World Software Systems to 
purchase Payroll and Human Resources (HR) Software in an amount not to exceed $70,500; 
and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement. 

BACKGROUND: At the June 6, 2013 Proposed Budget Study Session, City Council was 
presented with an opportunity proposal to purchase the New World Human Payroll/HR software, 
and related implementations services at a reduced cost. This software would allow the City to 
replace the annual ADP payroll processing contract with annual software maintenance fees. 
City Council approved appropriating $80,000 to purchase the software over a two-year period in 
the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 and Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Adopted Budgets; while staff continued 
the evaluation process. 

DISCUSSION: 

The City currently contracts with ADP Payroll Services which includes software hosting, printing 
checks, and tax reporting. Over the past five years, the City has budgeted $25,000 for annual 
ADP Payroll. The actual cost of ADP payroll services has varied from between $18,400 -
$22,000, with a 2% increase scheduled on September 1, 2013. 

With the ADP contract expiring on September 13, 2013, staff reviewed the option of purchasing 
New World's Payroll/HR software. Currently, the City does not have a HR database and 
employee information is stored on spreadsheets. In addition, payroll data is processed and . 
stored with ADP; while accounting information is maintained in the City's New World financial 
software package. These different resources create redundant processes, necessitate manual 
tracking; and require position budgets to be developed on spreadsheets and re-entered into the 
financial software. The purchase of this software will eliminate these processes and provide an 
integrated solution, while also providing compliance assistance with the new Affordable Health 
Care Act requirements. 

Staff originally projected software costs of $80,000 with long-term savings of $19,000/yr; 
however after completing the evaluation process, the payback period and the amount of savings 
was reduced. To accommodate for this change, staff worked with New World to develop an 
alternate proposal. This proposal included the purchase of Payroll/HR software and the related 
implementation services at $70,500, with a trade-in of an existing Government Accountin~ 
Standards Board (GASS) 34 software module, which is $37,800 less than the $108,300 base 
package price. Annual software maintenance fees would be $5,300. Staff does not anticipate a 
loss of existing functionality with the trade-in of the software module because it was never fully 
implemented due to transitions in the Finance Department. While the GASS 34 reporting tool 
could be of value to the City, the integrated payroll/HR system will not only provide long-term 
savings, but it will streamline existing processes without requiring additional staff time. New 
World is also offering six-months of the annual maintenance fees at no cost; while spreading the 



-96-

Item #: 7.G. Staff Report.pdf
6-27-13 AGENDA REPORT: NEW WORLD SOFTWARE SYSTEMS 

cost of the package over two fiscal years. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Funds in the amount of $40,000 have been appropriated in the FY13/14 and FY 14/15 budgets 
to cover an $80,000 project, along with second year maintenance costs. The revised cost is 
estimated to be $70,500, and will be allocated over the same two year period, with second year 
maintenance fees. 

The City anticipates on-going savings with the elimination of the ADP contract in the second 
year. The four-year average of annual ADP fees, with the projected 2% increase is $19,500; 
while the annual HR software maintenance fees have been quoted at $5,300. This would result 
in an estimated reduction in annual costs of $14,200, while also improving efficiencies and 
insulating the City from rising costs. 

ATTACH 

1. ADP Contract 
2. New World Software Proposal, 2013. 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah, Finance Director . 
Lisa Murphy, Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and Fo4ed 
By City Manager:~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\Payroll HR Software_Staff Repoit.docx 



-97-

Item #: 7.G. Attach 1.pdf

.O:>i•1tliim~}: 
-~itt1!C.ii{t1_ 
"F•ro•l"ColJj~y.G;ir,, 

~~"J!!;-~:!Jii, 

F.i;i<d VA10~•w'c;,.i,., 

®nl<<t 

~"-

;XJJTb!ii~'rIC')l.Wf.\~6lli:!1$$11'ClilN~ 
6JJ>IJ'il.tiiERti 

J2W,t;h'.'2Jiv1';1aiiff!II 
orjj{E~A\i!l~g.1F.10' 

[\~; 

-~io'-~ 

r -L -~1 -: __ t_~- t • 

.:Al'll!-riw;fADP-i):lfylrnc<I~ - - j'fl«•rlMlh~-iri>-""'~dprll>"•ti••lii'h,tfOV•i';1>ih•:ill•n(.-ljlJ!'~IV\o!tfqt~-
~M· ;m~hr.:!\M~~(~. ~Y#J1~~-iiicfil..~lla_mJ;mt1nJ~~~i11tlJUi.!l{codwp:ndi!.l))'ilifl1rn~Ui.tC~~y 
. · · - . ~~om~I_!_bJnnf'J1J#-fl'l~i11-ar«M~tr~fllW~filJIM~;inJ!.11:n=ii.ct!i=11\l!f.ll'P.O,ffu!Mim 

·'i}~P.d:dll!Ll"riff:: .iink~llP:t .llt4J©:-l4nti~on~pGrl3d~iunf!ncOia-'v1tTrtflali(f~t!tiw4'.~Ci:W1$/lP.tt,_ ·t.~OP-.rflll~~Mo 
:pjl§QSftt~Jt~~d~·~~\y:o{l!~~~-p~n.J;\~fl~$~.~J~~dJ'.JiteiJ:iifMl(Aff~; - . . . . . 

"fooimt-j>~
j/mz~i':t

'9l!lilll:l 

_r~;~-:~~ 
-!'l]lnq~o 

2JlQ 

-1giiv#,li/l<;jl)f.citl1M<di'.!:omi_(ilt~g!•!.i\iql-~r~jfaj#f~<;~.,,;.-,,,fto:1-<t,J"l']i!1'-01to~:i...,~1ni.i1•0<0:ri<t'!ll~\V·1'i.-l•iit••rnonlljfdPowfJ1ffd"c9111pleli<ui•f 
·tlin:~i#.~~pji~GJ~~~~Jl(sp.i!cot\\nllJ"o~J~~.r0~Jatnt~P~~~·bts~~,gppJk:$ff!;lW.o~~r;~lW°lfl1'«:sTl\1~c~lWJ.pJVd1r;1utilbiilfmlijlfgm1l4JIQ.WJ1l 
sj~~~~Li¥iw:~ -

2/.·{f(btj~f.ti!°id'1f:"rllk ; ;\ffOl"l!if~\'i\ijj'}f«llilt ~f'41Pf{flit ~11unU\.iq4m1floll1itr:J:1'P"rioi!,~enf§i.fC?bp11f.t\:ua:if11r.ui~Ir-9ttcy-,.. 
.·mi:itmcm.-~r.mk1:.d"rctntcJ tw~tJ,Ys[aar __ mMthttomni.tn~1\1lhlfu:effi.c·m:-nr.1~lln'J.1t,i;lt:!l~r.·CJi•nri~f!:m:nmJllllpm~hu8..di~~~lc~s'1ajl1"i=n1.1iJff!_il}!itl:~l 
'.'~lll .. f,~~-U.i11.ui~ii!~.~-"llJiii~-~l'.-.)'i9J'.l\'1'1i<-?i!~~' - - - - - - · -

ill"JrW/Jrllf?Jt/!rifd!t}f. ,l(li!i<Etl:ip)Wl\l.~ei!:<!m<rn~l!l~ljii~_sfr-"h:t.:csptlo<;l>J!,.Ji>l-"f{~lit'1ioi"'1i-~.;,;,.,,J.Ji1D1 ofmf<ill!>,n 
:f~~!!!!-f/'!~'fr: ~'11Jilibi~f~1-gtjOJii~i:A.J!it~~~i~llO~~~:.,:i;-_ i"i!!Jitij~if/if." ."!if&~~1M~i\JDBOl..1YopiO~U(mg_fejlf~rik-urnco5{b~401H1QO.Vf~R;6;0F~ 
~~:: .1JNl;UtJ11!~f.: ·otprde{u~111far11Jthfiiitc:tJJ1rertu6111fO<i)!ionWi!:i1iJM IJVf:.Ul.lf{dtlf moJllli~\t~ptGedfl:/Cea,~i~t.1t1®~iS:~l'iO~~~~ 

--~ Wi"'-"'~·'=--_~ ·:~ ___ ::/ 

Tii!<; :J:i..nfi~'~:~'~ 

i'il.!r.ili,l/Jl~-'Pll\QJj'J)tii.iU-:vi~iiif!tiifP.Wl'Oll:l1"!li,llc;a_nxlicunvngrninA~<;;r~u.Rl!Ql_QtlJ~/\\mlPl!li!WWBXHGIITTo'llll~PJU~6' 
J\O)\l!llJl!llll'f-!JN;qBJLliL!<QVAll~. 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-98-



-99-

Item #: 7.G. Attach 2.pdf

CITY OF CAPITOLA. CA 

Budgetary Proposal Summary 

April 26. 2013 

PAYROLL & HUMAN RESOURCES SUITE 
1. Logos.NET Human Resources Management Base Suite 

- Payroll Processing 
- Personnel Management 
- Position Control 

2. Logos.NET Additional P;1yroll & HR Modules 
- Position Budgeting 

(Users included ~ 5)4 

SUB-TOTAL PAYROLL/HUMAN RESOURCES MODULES $28,000 

3. eSulte Base Software 
(Note: Customer previously licensed this product, but dropped It from maintenance. This is to 
re-license the product and put back under maintenance.) 

4. eHR 
- eTimesheets 

SUB-TOTAL eSUITE SOFTWARE MODULES $14,000 

BUSINESS ANALYTICS 
5. Human-R. .. es"'O"'U""t"'c""e71cpr;;a"'yr"'orrnr:Aa;n;;:a:;y1Yt=1cs 

- lllQlu.des~seFS ~ erYJo ved 
SUB-TOTAL BUSINESS ANALYTICS SOFTWARE MODULES $5,000 

NEW WORLD STANDARD SOFTWARE LICENSE FEE 

LESS CUSTOMER LOYALTY DISCOUNT 

24,000 

4,000 

9,000 

5,000 

47,000 

(9,000) 

TOTAL SOFTWARE LICENSE FEE 5
•
6 $313.000 

13L2A. 0426 Add HR.eS11ite & BA 

CityofCopirola, CA, 
NEW WORLD SYSTEMS' Logos PUBLlC ADMINISTRATION SOFTWARE 

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY Pagel 



-100-

Item #: 7.G. Attach 2.pdf

r119@@!3M3hfo'MIEMM@i¥' 
ITEM DESCRIPTION . INVESTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

1. Project Management Services as Required: 
- Project Management 
- Overall consultation and communication 
- Monthly status reports and project updates throughout the duration of the project 
, Implementation Plan 

Covers period of 12 months from Agreement Execution 
~ 

2. Up to""40days of Implementation and Training Services are included for: 
·-Software Tailoring and Set Up 
- User Education and Trail)ing 
- Other Technical Support 
- Travel Time 
*Assumes train-the-trainer approach 

$5,000 

49,680 

TOTAL IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES $54,680 

TOTAL ONE TIME COSTS $!l2,GSO 

City of Capitola, CA, 

-

13L2A 0426 Acfrl HR.eSrrfte & BA 
NEW WORLD SYSTEMS' Logos PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION S01"/'WARE 

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY Page2 



-101-

Item #: 7.G. Attach 2.pdf

-@l'HMWM . 
[JTEM'loESCRIPTION 

• 1. STANDARD SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (SSMA) (Per Year Cost) 

a.) Annual SSMA to begin at the end of the warranty period; year one cost to be prorated to run 
concurrently with customer's existing SSMA. 

90-Day Warranty from Date of Delivery 

Year1 SSMA 

b.) SSMA Amount to bring eSuite Base module current and put back under 
maintenance due upon Effective Date · 

No Charge 

@ --$'7';520' .st b, -t- fS" D 

$5,600 © 

- '¥'93'M'·HNWC1#3?3M=ti'IMNM 
~DESCRIPTION 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

1. ~VEL EXPENSES (estimate) 

49-trips at $1,500/each $15,000 @ 
- Includes airfare, car rental, hotel accommodations, and per diem. 

}.._oco..1 re...pre~e11fuh\.e.. and +1?:1..~oer ~ucii \~ble. -JD p.;!rft'i:!lly 
r~S~\~ In red~ced ca:.~~ 

PRICING VALID THROUGH JUNE 28, 2013. 

ENDNOTES 

Personal Computers must meet the minimum hardware requirements for New World Systems' Logos.NET product. Microsoft 
Windows XP or greater with IE 7. O or greater is the required operating ·systems for all client machines. Windows 2008 SeNer is 
required for the Application SeNer(s), Web Server(s) and Database Server. Microsoft SQL Server 2008 is required for the 
Database Server. 

New World Systems' Logos.NET product requires Microsoft Windows 2008 Server and Microsoft SQL Server _2008 including 
required Client Access Licenses (CALs) and Windows SeNer 2008 External Connector (EC) licenses for applicable Microsoft 
products. Servers must meet minimum hardware requirements provided by New World Systems. 

Suggested minimum: 100MB Ethernet Network. 10MB CATS.Ethernet Network may have less than adequate response time. 
Further consultation would be required to assess your network. 

Additional cost per group of 5 for authorized users is $5, 000. 

Prices assume that all software proposed is licensed. Prices ai:e quoted as preliminary estimates only and are subject to further 
clarification and confirmation. 

Licensed Software, and third party software embedded therein, if any, will be delivered in a machine readable form to Customer 
via an agreed upon network connection. Any taxes or fees imposed are the responsibility of the purchaser and will be remitted 
when imposed. ~ ~ , d 

l'ev\ ~.e 
Travel and expenses are not included as they are billed at actual cost. 

e>iZ 1 "- rrv~L 

@ So{+vv ';;)re_ 

@ X:-Mpf emei1 f.;1.h\'~n 

@ e~;1e- Cr-e.~nSP~ 
@i1a.ve-\ 

-
~~3,060 

S-'-f I Co8'0 

5rCooo 

\S°"\-000 

~ \o<6l 2~0 

$5", :t:6a 6nq~ 1 f\~ a..ri nu.oJ if\ 
CityofCapito/a, CA, lo \'()0 ()+~s c_,U;;;)'f ve_d 

JJL2A 0126 Add HR.eS11ite &BA 
NEWWORLDSYSIEMS'Logos PUBLICADMINISTRATION SOFTWARE -H~ (). . / 

CONFIDENTIALANDPROPRIBTARY - I' ,e_ J\fS'T yea. r Page3 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-102-



-103-

Item #: 8.A. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE LEVY OF CAPITOLA VILLAGE AND 
WHARF BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA (CVWBIA) ASSESSMENTS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the City Council conduct the required Public. Hearing and, if 
there is not a. majority vote against the proposed assessment, that the City Council adopt the 
proposed Resolution confirming the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Capitola Village and Wharf Business 
Improvement Area Assessments; adopting the Annual Plan and the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 
Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area Budget; and Levying Business 
Improvement Assessments for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 

BACKGROUND: On June 23, 2005, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 889 adding Chapter 
5.10 to the Capitola Municipal Code establishing the Capitola Village and Wharf Business 
Improvement Area ("CVWBIA"). The CVWBIA assessments fund the various programs that benefit 
the businesses within the CVWBIA district boundaries. 

DISCUSSION: On June 13, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 3958, Resolution of 
Intention to Levy Business Improvement Assessments for Fiscal Year 2013/2014, which set a 
public hearing for June 27, 2013, in accordance with state law and Chapter 5.10 of the Capitola 
Municipal Code. Pursuant to Paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Resolution, notice of this public hearing 
was published in the Santa Cruz Sentinel Newspaper on Sunday, June 16, 2013, and was mailed 
to affected business owners by the CVWBIA as required by state law on or before Monday, June 
17, 2013. 

During the June 13th meeting, Council also requested information related to sales tax trends within 
the Village, as well as the costs paid for City accounting and Public Works services. The billing for 
City services identified in the CVWBIA plan was based on past agreements; however both entities 
have decided to review the billing structure during this fiscal year. The current billing rates are 
$3,000 for Public Works and $4,200 for accounting services. 

Village sales tax revenues have increased by approximately 4% since the CVWBIA was 
established; however their proportion to other City revenues has increased by approximately 21 %. 
This large proportional increase can be largely attributed to the loss of major car dealerships and 
retailers in the 41 51 Corridor during the economic downturn. Sales tax information for the period 
from Calendar Year 2005 to 2012 is listed below for reference. 

Sales Tax Receipt Locations<1
> 2012 2005 

Based on 1 % Bradley-Burnes tax Sales Tax Percent Sales Tax Percent 
Village $ 303,209 7.4% $ 291,569 6.1% 
Upper Village 302,955 7.4% 314,066 6.6% 
Kennedy Drive 44,272 1.1% 69,267 1.4% 
41 st Avenue Corridor I All Others 3,420,942 84.0% 4, 103,349 85.9% I 

$ 4,071,378 100.0% $ 4,778,251 100.0% I 
(1) Based on STARS sales tax information by Calendar Year 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda StaffReports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.A CVWBIA FY13-14 Public Hearing 6-27-13 stf.docx 



-104-

Item #: 8.A. Staff Report.pdf
6-27-13 AGENDA REPORT: Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area 

During the June 271
h public comment portion of this hearing, written and oral protests may be made 

pertaining to the proposed levy of assessments, the amount of the proposed assessments, the 
proposed improvements and activities to be funded with the revenues derived from the proposed 
levy of assessments, and/or the proposed boundaries of the Assessment District in accordance 
with California Streets & Highways Code §36524 and §36525. 

At the conclusion of the public hearing, absent the receipt of oral and written protests from property 
owners casting a majority vote against the proposed assessment, the Council is requested to 
adopt the proposed Resolution confirming the Fiscal year 2013/2014 CVWBIA Assessments and 
adopting the Annual Plan and Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Budget, as approved by the Council on June 
13, 2013, or as amended by the Council during the hearing, if applicable. Adoption of the 
Resolution constitutes the levy of business improvement assessments for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact to the City. All administrative costs for billing and 
collections incurred by the City are reimbursed to the City from the CVWBIA. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Draft Resolution confirming the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Capitola Village and Wharf Business 
Improvement Area Assessments and adopting the Annual Plan and Fiscal Year 2013/2014 
CVWBIA Budget. 

2. Resolution No. 3958 adopted on June 13, 2013 

Report Prepared By: Kyle Solberg, Senior Accountant 
Tori Hannah, Finance Director 

Reviewed and Fo~r.ddeed 
By City Manage~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.A CVWBIA FYI 3-14 Public Hearing 6-27-13 stf.docx 



-105-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 1.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. ---

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CONFIRMING THE FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 CAPITOLA VILLAGE AND WHARF BUSINESS 

IMPROVEMENT AREA ASSESSMENTS AND ADOPTING THE ANNUAL PLAN 
AND FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 CVWBIA BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area ("CVWBIA") 
has prepared a report to the City of Capitola for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 pertaining to the 
Business Improvement Area assessments for the CVWBIA under California Streets and 
Highways Code §36533; and 

WHEREAS, that report was filed with the City Clerk on June.::1:3';20\~,3; and 

WHEREAS, Capitola Municipal Code §5.10.050 requJ.~~§::::•:·i~Jmual assessments to be 
imposed within the CVWBIA pursuant to a formula set forth lr;i.tCity··~p:µgcil Resolution No. 3453 
referenced in Capitola Municipal Code §5.10.030, and later1 ~f'nende8 esolution No. 3546; 
and 

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution< \iq. 3958 stating its 
intention to levy business improvement assessments for Fiscal Year 2013/20· ·~~ceiving the 
Annual Report and Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Budget, and approving the CVWBL··:.·'Assessment 
Basis/Business Addresses and Assessment Method; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 3958 the City Council, in accordance with 
California Streets and Highways Code $~ptipn 36535, held a public hearing on June 27, 2013, 
as provided for in Streets and Highway~·t;t$p'g§, Sections 36524 and 36525 at .which time it 
considered the annual report, the levy ofqpsilie.§§Jiplprovement assessments for Fiscal Year 
2013/2014, and received oral and written;:::proteS.t§···.:ao~t .• ~ndorsements to the regularity or 
sufficiency of the proposed business improven,~ntasse'ss·n~t~futs: · 

NOW, THEREFORE, aE IT RESOLVE~ BY THE .:CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS: ....... . 

1. The Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Capitol~.:~r~Village and Wharf Business Improvement 
Area Annual Report, including the Fiscal Year 201,3/2014 budget, as filed with the City Clerk on 
June 16, 201~, ~r1c;Lreceived by the City Council 'on June 13, 2013, as part of Resolution No. 
3958, is hereby'cdfafirr'.ljed and adopted. 

2. The adoptj:@r1:;of this Resolution shall constitute the Fiscal Year 2013/14 levy of 
assessm~;nts provided fdf'i:;ip· Chapter 5.10 of the Capitola Municipal Code pertaining to the 
Capitola VilJ~ge and Wharf et..1siness Improvement Area zone and rate of assessments adopted 
by the City CqlJ.n<?il on June 21.:,· 2013. 

I HEREB~·~.~.ERTIFY;that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council:pJ~,Jhe ..• ::~ity of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 27th day of June, 
2013, by the following!i':"\fpte: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT/ABSTAIN: 

Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda StaffReports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.A. Attach 1 BIA FY12-13 public hearing6-27-
13 _Res.doc 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-106-



-107-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 3958 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

TO LEVY BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENTS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 

7919 

WHEREAS, the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area 
("CVWBIA") has prepared a report to the City of Capitola for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 
pertaining to the Business Improvement Area assessments for the CVWBIA under 
California Streets and Highways Code §36533; and 

WHEREAS, Capitola Municipal Code §5.10.050 requires annual assessments to 
be imposed within the CVWBIA pursuant to a formula set forth in City Council 
Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Annual Report and Proposed Fiscal Year 2013-14 Budget of the 
CVWBIA pertaining to business improvement assessments, as presented in Exhibit "A" 
attached hereto, is received. 

2. The City Council intends to levy and collect assessments within ·the 
CVWBIA for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 

3. The proposed activities authorized by Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 
5.10 are described in the afore-referenced CVWBIA Annual Report. These activities 
include a variety of promotional activities, including village maintenance and 
beautification programs, and extended holiday parking programs. A number of 
promotional information media announcements and publications will also be financed 
from these funds, including regional magazine advertising, broadcast advertising and 
website advertising. 

4. The Business Improvement Area is bounded per the map of the CVWBIA 
reproduced as Exhibit "A" to Capitola Municipal Code §5.10.020 and included in the 
Municipal Code. The CVWBIA boundaries are not being altered. 

5. The Annual Report of the CVWBIA is presented in Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto. The proposed assessments will be calculated under the formula for assessment 
found in Capitola City Council Resolution No. 3546 adopted May 25, 2006. This formula 
is based on the classification of benefited businesses and the businesses' number of 
full-time equivalent employees. Assessments will not be increased. 

6. The Capitola City Council wili hold a public hearing in the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, at the hour of 7:00 p.m., 
on Thursday, June 27, 2013, to receive any oral or written protests or endorsements to 
the regularity or sufficiency of the proposed business improvement assessments. If 
written protests complying with Streets and Highways Code §36524 and §36525 are 
received from the owners of businesses which will pay fifty percent or more of the 
assessments, assessments will not be levied, the procedure will be terminated and will 
not be reconsidered until one full year has elapsed. 



-108-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

7920 RESOLUTION NO. 3958 

7. The City Clerk is directed to give notice of the public hearing to consider 
the levy of business improvement assessments for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 by publishing 
this Resolution of Intention in a· newspaper of general circulation in the City once, at 
least seven days prior to the public hearing. 

8. The CVWBIA Advisory Committee is directed to give notice of the public 
hearing to each business owner in the area by mailing a copy of the Council's Resolution 
of Intention to each business. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 131

h 

day of June, 2013, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members Norton, Storey, Bottorff, Termini, and Mayor Harlan 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 



-109-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

Activities 

EXHIBIT A 
(Resolution No. 3958) 

Annual Report & Proposed Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Budget 
CVWBIA Assessment Basis 

CVWBIA Business Addresses and Assessment Method 

7921 

The Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area ("CVWBIA" or "District"), serves 
as the primary marketing agent for the Village and Wharf businesses with the goal of increasing 
tourism and promoting the Capitola Village aJ'.!d Wharf areas. All of the activities of the 
CVWBIA relate to achieving the single objective of marketing the Capitola Village and Wharf 
Area. Infmmational brochures for visitors, an attractive and active website linked to Village and 
Wharf merchants, a Village map identifying locations of Village and Wharf merchants, 
newsletters, advertising programs, holiday events and Village betterment projects are key 
focuses of the District. This District is the primary source of funding for the promotion of the 
Village and Wharf. These goals and objectives can be achieved by the CVWBIA continuing to 
fund activities and projects that will: 

• Increase the number of year-a-round visits to the businesses within the District, emphasizing 
the period of October through May of each year. 

• Increase the number of people who stay, shop, and dine in the Village and on the Wharf of 
Capitola. 

• Improve the ease of access to infmmatiori regarding the businesses and services provided by 
the Village and Wharf BIA to likely visitors to the area via the Internet and printed 
brochure/ directories. 

• Provide fun, family-oriented events throughout the year emphasizing the attributes of the 
Village and Wharf, by working in paiinership with the Capitola/Soquel Chamber of 
Commerce. 

• Improve and enhance the appearance of the Village and Whmf in conceit with the City of 
Capitola. 

• Enhance the ability of the CVWBIA to serve as a liaison between individual business 
owners, local govt::mments, and private agencies, including the City of Capitola. 

As the CVWBIA begins its eighth year, we will continue the successful programs developed 
during the prior yems of the CVWBIA. New programs will be put in place. 

We will continue and expand successful programs from the current and prior years, which 
included the following: 

1. Village Directories. Over 75,000 directories were printed and distributed in Fiscal Year 
2011-2012. 

2. Directory Distribution. The CVWBIA has contracted with Ce1iified Folder Display Service 
for distribution of 45,000 brochures in the San Jose, Santa Clara Area and 20,000 brochures 
in Santa Cruz. This is the company with exclusive rights to lobby racks in all the hotels, 
resorts, motels and visitor centers. 



-110-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

7922 . RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 

3. Website Presence. We maintain a very attractive website for ease of use and corn1ectivity to 
local businesses. The CVWBIA has a strong Internet presence with multiple domain names, 
which can be used for different projects. The prinlaiy domain names are 
www.capitolavillage.com and www.explorecapitola.com. The website has a complete 
directory of all businesses in the boundaries of the CVWBIA with pictures and links to their 
individual websites. There is a history of Capitola written by Carolyn Swift, Capitola 
Museum Coordinator. There is a schedule of events for the year with contact information. 
The walking tour of Capitola Village is also on the site. Articles with colorful descriptions of 
Village businesses and activities have been added. There are two ways for the CVWBIA to 
capture email addresses for future correspondence with visitors to the web site. Email 
address information is captured via the contest to win a vacation in Capitola Village and 
visitors are asked to sign up at merchants' shops throughout the Village and Wharf. 

4. Volunteers. The CVWBIA members participate with the Capitola/Soquel Chainber of 
Commerce and volunteer at the various events they put on in the Village. 

5. Holiday Activities._The CVWBIA works with the Chamber and the City on the Christmas 
Holiday decorations. The CVWBIA hosts a Tree Lighting Ceremony, Community Caroling, 
and provides Holiday music throughout the Village. The CVWBIA also provides lights for 
threes throughout the Village as well for houses on Depot Hill that participate in the Holiday 
decorations. 

6. Advertising. The CVWBIA placed advertisements in travel magazines that have paid off at 
many different levels. The CVWBIA will continue cowop with the Santa Cruz County 
Conference and Visitors Council adve1iising in print, on television and radio, which 
highlights Capitola. 

7. Membership Breakfast. The quarterly breakfasts are an opp01iunity to keep the members 
informed. 

a. We have been offering educational presentations on social rietworking, search engine 
optimization and other aspects of marketing on the Internet. 

b. We have had the City Manager, City Chief of Police and Director of Public Works as 
guest speakers to keep our membership infmmed and investigate how we could better 
partner with the City to address issues in the Village. 

8. Public Works. The CVWBIA contributes annually to the City of Capitola Public Works 
Department. Our contribution is used to help maintain the Village. 

9. Chamber of Commerce. The CVWBIA contributes annually to support commlmity interest 
projects. 



-111-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 

Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area 
Assessment Basis 

7923 

The method of ~ssessment breaks down the businesses within the proposed boundary map into 
seven categories: 

1. Retail I Service businesses 
2. Restaurant/Bar I Take-out food and beverage businesses 
3. Office and Professional businesses 
4. Hotel I Motel I Inn businesses 
5. Short-term Rental businesses 
6. Specialty 
7. Seasonal Foods 

These five business categories are fmiher broken down by number of employees for the first two 
categories, a flat fee for the third and fifth categories, and a per unit fee for the 
Lodging/Motel/Inn businesses. Registered non-profits are exempt from assessment. 

The following table represents the proposed method of collection and fee determination for the 
proposed CVWBIA. 

~l 11~Jf~'*''i employees 
More than 10 

employees employees 

Retail I service $420. $840. $1260. 

Restaurant I Bar I Take-out $480. $960. $1440. 

Office I Professional $120. 

Hotel I Motel $360 per unit 

Shmi-term Rental** 
$180 

Specialty 
$120 

Seasonal Food Service 
$280 

Footnote* "Full-time emplovee" is considered one who works 2000 hours per year or more. 
Multiple part-time employees are combined into a single full-time employee for the basis of this 
assessment calculation. · 

Footnote** "Short-term rental" businesses are defined as those dwellings which, at 
least once per fiscal year, are rented to a tenant for a tenancy of less than thirty days. 

See In-Lieu Payments/Trades Program on the next page. 



-112-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

7924 RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 

In-Lieu Payments/Trades. The City Manager is authorized to approve "in lieu" assessment 
payments in the form of Gift Ce1tificates from CVWBIA retail, food or lodging business 
members whereby these businesses tender retail, restaurant and lodging gift ce1tificates for use 
by the CVWBIA in connection with its promotional activities. The amount of 'in lieu" 
assessment payments will be fixed per category, with exceptions that may be authorized by the 
City Manager. The amounts of the gift ce1tificates for each category and payment levels are as 
follows: 

Retail I service: $420. $345 $75 

$840 $690 $150 

Restaurant I Bar I Take-out $480 $405 $75 

$960 $810 $150 

$1,440 $1,215 $225 

Office I Professional $120 $120 $0 

Short-term Rental $180 $180 $0 

Hotel/Motel $360 per 
50% 50% unit 

Specialty $120 $120 $0 

Seasonal Food Service $280 $235 $45 

Associate Membership, CVWBIA is authorized to accept "associate membership" financial 
contributions from businesses outside the CVWBIA which might wish to pmticipate in the 
CVWBIA's promotional activities but which are not subject to the CVWBIA assessments. 

New Business Assessment. Assessment will be prorated by the quarter in which a business 
opens. "In Lieu" payments will be accepted. 

Business Closing. A business notifying the CVWBIA before the end of the first quarter of the 
fiscal year (September 30th) that the business will close before December 31st will be exempt 
from paying the assessment for that fiscal year. If the business does not close before December 
31st, it must pay the year's assessment in full. 

Delinquencies. We have a clear policy relative to delinquent dues. In addition to refening 
merchants with delinquent dues to a collection agency after 6 months delinquent, the delinquent 
members will be eliminated from the following listings if dues not paid by specified date: 

Listing 
Web listing 
Village Listing 
Village Brochure 

Dues must be paid in full by 
April 30, 2014 
April 30, 2014 
April 30, 2014 



-113-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 7925 

Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area 
Estimated Actual for FY 2012-2013 and Proposed Budget for FY 2013-2014 

FY 11112 FY 12113 FY 12113 
Actual Adopted Mid-Year 

Beginning Fund Balance $ 5,455 $ 5,431 $ 5,431 

Revenues 
BIA Assessment Revenues- Cash 53,444 58,200 55,330 

BIA Assessment Revenues- Trade 13,605 12,000 8,980 

Interest Revenue 121 100 21 

Total Revenues 67,170 70,300 64,331 

Total Source of Funds $ 72,625 $ 75,731 $ 69,762 

(Beg. Fund Bal & Revenues) 

Expenditures 

Advertising $ 54,170 $ 59,100 $ 45,744 

Maintenance - City Public Works 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Billing/Collection - City Accounting 4,200 4,200 4,200 

Capitola Soquel Chamber Of Commerce 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Supplies 843 1,000 541 

Website 1,720 1,000 1,521 

Administrative Assistant 260 300 

Total Use of Funds 67,194 71,600 58,006 

Ending fund Balance at June 30th $ 5,431 $ 4,131 $ 11,756 

The following tables provide detail for selected items of the proposed FY 13/14 Budget: 

Proposed 

Revenues* FY 13114 

Food 19,680 

Hotels 17,640 

Office 2,400 

Retail 22,260 

Short Term Rentals 7,380 

Subtotal $ 69,360 

* 13/l 4 Proposed Budget revenues reduced from BIA roster 
estimates based on prior year actual· infonnation 

** Gift Certificates are provided from "Trade" revenues 

Advertising 

Gift Cert.-Contest **Trade 

Holiday 

CVC Partnership 

TV/Radio 

CDS Distribution 

Directories Printing 

Consulting-Marketing & Internet 
Printing Explore 

Subtotal 

FY 13114 

Proposed_ 

$ 11,756 

56,000 

9,000 

20 

65,020 

$ 76,776 

$ 52,500 

3,000 

4,200 

3,000· 

1,000 

2,000 
300 

66,000 

$ 10,776 

Proposed 

FY 13/14 

9,000 

4,500 

9,000 

8,000 

7,500 

6,500 

7,000 

1,000 

$ 52,500 



-114-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

7926 RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 

Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area 
Budget Discussion 

Revenues: The proposed revenue is derived from the CVWBIA business listings and proposed 
assessment rates. The allocation of cash and in-lieu revenue is based upon FY 2012-13 actual. 

Expenditures: 

Summarv. The proposed expenditures include advertising and related services of $52,500, City 
Pubiic Works maintenance for beautification of $3,000, City Accounting Staff of $4,200 for 
billing and accounts payable services, $3,000 for the paiinership with the Chamber of 
Commerce, $2,000 for website services and maintenance, ai1d the $1,300 balance will be used 
for administration and office expense. 

Advertising is the CVWBIA's principal expenditure. 

• Gift Certificates ($9,000). Members may satisfy a portion of their annual fee with gift 
certificates. These certificates are used to promote specific businesses in the Village 
through donations to various activities in the Village and promotional incentives to 
potential visitors to Capitola. 

< 

• TV & Radio Advertising ($8,000). While these ai·e a more expensive form of 
advertising media, we attempt to take advantage of special opportunities with spots that 
emphasize the Capitola Village. 

e Local Directories ($12,000). We spend over $12,000 printing and distributing directories 
of all members plus special events in the Village. These are very attractive and useful 
brochures, which are available at all local merchants and in distribution centers 
throughout the ai:ea. 

• Hotel TV Channel. In the cun-ent 2013-14 year, the CVWBIA will adve1iise on a TV 
channel which will be playeci in over 25 area hotels. 

The CVWBIA will begin Fiscal Year 2013-2014 with an estimated fund balance of $11,756. 



-115-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 7927 

Capitola Village & Wharf Business Improvement Area 
Business Address and Assessment Method 

Business Address Business Name TYPE FY13/14 FY13/14 
Est. Est. Amt 
Size Due 

2098 Esplanade Bay Bar & Grill F 1 - 5 $480 
316 Capitola Ave Bella Roma Cafe F 0-5 $480 
110 Monterey Britannia Arms Pub & Rest. F 6 -10 $960 
104 Stockton Ave Village Grill & Creamery F 0-5 $480 
115 San Jose Ave, Ste. #6 Caruso's Tuscan Cuisine F 0-5 $480 
115 San Jose Ave, Ste. #7 CAVA Wine Bar F 0-5 $480 
123 Monterey El Toro Bravo F 0-5 $480 
211 Esplanade Fog Bank Bar & Grill F 0-5 $480 
200 Monterey #3 Geisha Japanese Restaurant & F 0-5 $480 

Tea House 
110 Stockton Avenue . Granny's by the Sea F 0-5 $480 
116 Stockton Ave It's Wine Tyme F 0-5 $480 
231 Esplanade #101 Margaritaville F > 10 $1,440 
201 Esplanade Mr. Kebab & Falafel F 0-5 $480 
231 Esplanade #100 Mr. Toots Coffee & Tea F 0-5 $480 
207 Esplanade My Thai Beach F 0-5 $480 
215 Esplanade Paradise Beach Grille F > 10 $1,440 
209A Esplanade Pizza My Heart F 6 - 10 $960 
115 San Jose Ave, Ste. #1 Seaside Coffee F 0-5 $480 
1750 Wharf Rd Shadowbrook Restaurant F > 10 $1,440 
200 Monterey #1 Souza's Ice Cream & Candy F 0-5 $480 
224 Esplanade Starz Cupcakes F 0-5 $480 
231 Esplanade #102 Stockton Bridge Grille F 6 -10 $960 
427 Capitola Ave Taqueria Agave F 0-5 $480 
200 Monterey #2 Taqueria Baja F 0-5 $480 
210 Monterey #1 Thai Basil F 0-5 $480 
201 Monterey #C To Thai For F 0-5 $480 
1400 Wharf Rd Wharf House Restaurant F 0-5 $480 
203 Esplanade · Zelda's F > 10 $1,440 
105 Stockton Village Deli F 0-5 $480 
311 Capitola Ave Calypso's Cove F 0-5 $480 
210 Esplanade Capitola Hotel H 8 $2,880 
5000 Cliff Dr Harbor Lights Motel H 10 $3,600 
250 Monterey Inn at Depot Hill H 12 $4,320 
1500 Wharf Rd Venetian Hotel H 19 $6,840 
312E Capitola Ave 57 Design Inc. 0 $120 
331 F Capitola Ave Advanced Ingredients 0 $120 
312D Capitola Ave Beach House Rentals 0 $120 
331 CapitolaAve Capitola Village Real Estate 0 $120 
210 Stockton Ave Capitola Surf & Paddle 0 $120 
301 Capitola Ave David Lyng & Associates 0 $120 
411 Capitola Ae Fuse Architects 0 $120 
415 Capitola Ave James B. Colip Insurance 0 $120 
425 Capitola Ave. #3 Kathy Macdonald Association 0 $120 
314 Capitola Ave Katz & Lapides 0 $120 



-116-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

7928 RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 

Business Address Business Name TYPE FY13/14 FY13/14 
Est. Est. Amt 
Size Due 

409 Capitola Ave. #A Liz De Puydt t;>hotography 0 $120 
331 Capitola Ave. #B Michael Lavigne Real Estate 0 $120 
331Capitola Ave Ste K Newman & Marcus,LLP 0 $120 
220 Capitola Avenue Psychic Mermaid 0 $120 
413 Capitola Ave Richard Emigh, Land Use 0 $120 
201 Monterey #E Run Rhino Inc. 0 $120 
331 Capitola Ave. #D Suess Insurance Agency 0 $120 
309 Capitola Ave. Vice Salon 0 $120 
312 Capitola Ave Stec Violet Blossom Massage 0 $120 
425 Capitola Ave. #2 Webster & Associates 0 $120 
111 Capitola Ave Alchemology R 0-5 $420 
103 Stockton Ave Armida Winery R 0-5 $420 
208A Monterey Avalon Visions R 0-5 $420 
110 Capitola Ave #3 Avije Fashion Gallery ·R 0-5 $420 
417 c·apitola Ave Betsy's Summerhouse An- R 0-5 $420 

tiques 
217 Capitola Ave Big Kahuna Hawaiian Shirts R 0-5 $420 
421-B Capitola Ave Buck's World R 0-5 $420 
131 Monterey Capitola Beach Co. R 0-5 $420 
1400 Wharf Rd Capitola Boat & Bait R 0-5 $420 
109 Capitola Ave Capitola Seashells R 0-5 $420 
115 San Jose Ave, Ste. #5 Carousel Taffy R 0-5 $420 
205 Capitola Ave Chocolate Bar R 0-5 $420 
209 Capitola Ave Craft Gallery R 0-5 $42.0 
207 Capitola Ave Craft Gallery Annex R 0-5 $420 
127 Monterey Cruz'n R 0-5 $420 
107 Stockton Ave. Dogmatic R 0-5 $420 
114 Stockton Av Euphoria Rio Mix R 0-5 $420 
110 Capitola Ave., #2 Free to Ride R 0-5 $420 
212 Capitola Ave Gaia Earth Treasures R 0-5 $420 
115 San Jose Ave. Grateful Tie Dyes R 0-5 $420 
219 Capitola Ave Hot Feet R 0-5 $420 
210 Capitola Ave Hour Place R 0-5 $420 
115 San Jose Ave, Ste. #11 In the Raw R 0-5 $420 
207 Monterey Avenue Just Baby Apparel & Gifts R 0-5 $420 
201 Monterey #B Kickback R 0-5 $420 
118 Stockton Ave. La Vita Company R 0-5 $420 
120 Stockton Ave. Latta R 0-5 $420 
112 Capitola Ave. Suite, 100 Lumen Gallery R 0-5 $420 
115 San Jose Ave, Ste. #2 Nazar Turkish Imports R 0-5 $420 
202 Capitola Ave. Nubia Swimwear R 0-5 $420 
204 Capitola Ave Oceania R 0-5 $420 
321 Capitola Ave Pacific Gallery R 0-5 $420 
110 Capitola Ave #1 Panache Bath & Body Shop R 0-5 $420 
115 San Jose Ave. Parking at the Mercantile R 0-5 $420 
120 Monterey Ave. Parking at the Theater R 0-5 $420 
107 Capitola Ave Phoebe's R 0-5 $420 



-117-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 7929 

Business Address Business Name TYPE FY13/14 FY13/14 
Est._ Est. Amt 
Size Due 

300 Capitola Ave Quality Market R 0-5 $420 
116 San Jose Av Rainbow City Limit R 0-5 $420 
115 Capitola Ave Capitola Reef R 0-5 $420 
112 St0ckton Av Sea Level T's R 0-5 $420 
115 San Jose Ave. She Sell Sea Shells and More R 0-5 $420 
216 Capitola Ave: Slap Happy R 0-5 $420 
214 Capitola Ave Super Silver R 0-5 $420 
117 Capitola Ave Surf n Shack R 0-5 $420 
503 Capitola Ave Suzi's R 0-5 $420 
120 San Jose Ave Sweet Asylum R 0-5 $420 
121 San Jose Ave Thomas Kinkade Gallery R 0-5 $420 
215 Capitola Ave Vanity by the Sea R 0-5 $420 
201 Capitola Ave Village Mouse R 0-5 $420 
201 Monterey #A Village Sea Glass R 0-5 $420 
115 San Jose Ave. WFO Apparel R 0-5 $420 
122 Capitola Ave Yvonne R 0-5 $420 
111 San Jose Ave #J Flip Flop Shop R 0-5 $420 
222 San Jose Av Avonne Stone Jacobs, Judy SR 1 $180 

Jacobs 
1500 Wharf Rd. #1 Bob Coe SR 1 $180 
303 Cherry Way Cal & Carla Cornwell SR 1 $180 
109 San Jose Avenue Capitola Associates, LLC SR 1 $180 
305 Riverview Ave. Capitola Pelican House SR 1 $180 
307 Capitola Ave #B Capitola Suites/BF Partnership SR 1 $180 
207 & 2'.15 San Jose Ave, A Clare St. Laurent SR 4 $720 
&B 
1500 Wharf Rd #5 Colleen Merle Lund SR 1 $180 
5005 Cliff Dr #6 Connie Eshleman SR 1 $180 
109 Monterey #8 David Johnson SR 1 $180 
116 Esplanade #A-B Dorean Moore SR 2 $360 
310 Riverview Ave Eleaner Glover SR 1 $180 
1500 Wharf Rd #14 Erline Mello SR 1 $180 
1500 Wharf Rd #8 Everett Eslinger SR 1 $180 
318 Capitola Ave #2 Fred & Sharon Andres SR 1 . $180 
1445 Wharf Rd Greg McBride SR 1 $180 
206 Monterey Jay & Pamela Chesavage SR 1 $180 
5005 Cliff Dr #3 Jean Ladoucour SR 1 $180 
301 Cherry Way Jeff & Kathie Gaylord SR 1 $180 
225 San Jose Av Michelle & Stephen Murphy SR 1 $180 

*NEW OWNERS 
1500 Wharf Rd. #20 Leonard Tyson SR 1 $180 
1500 Wharf Rd. #6 1

/ 2 Mary Russell, Syvia Nurre, SR 1 $180 
Rosemary Schaffer 

4985 Cliff Drive Michael Hutto SR 1 $180 
407 Riverview Ave Michael Pirnik SR 1 $180 
318 Capitola Ave #5 Mike & Karen McCormick "A SR 1 $180 

Beach Condo" 
· 208 Monterey C Pat & Frank Castagnola SR 1 $180 



-118-

Item #: 8.A. Attach 2.pdf

7930 RESOLUTION NO. 3958 (EXHIBIT A) 

Business Address Business Name TYPE FY13/14 FY13/14 
Est. Est. Amt 
Size Due 

327 Riverview Ave A Paulo Franca SR 1 $180 
1500 Wharf Rd #11 Robert Chestnut "Venetian SR 1 $180 

Condo" 
109 Monterey #4 Sharon Dougan SR 1 $180 
317 Riverview Ave B Steve & Linda Woodside SR 1 $180 
5005 Cliff Dr #4, 314 Sue Norris SR 2 $360 
Riverview Ave 
318 Riverview Ave Tammie Jann SR 1 $180 
4960 Cliff Dr. #2 Tim & Stacy Hopkins SR 1 $180 
1500 Wharf Rd #7 Viola M Carr SR 1 $180 
1500 Wharf Rd #3,4 Watson Family Limited Partner- SR 2 $360 

ship (Mike Newell) 
419 Capitola Ave Cali Maple Designs x $0 

Business Category Assessment Method Total Estimate 

F=FOOD Per Employee Category: 0-5; 6-10; >10 Employees F $19,680 

H =HOTEUMOTEL Per Unit or Room H $17,640 

Q;;:QFFICE Per Business I 0 $2,400 

R=RETAIL/SERVICE Per Employee Category: 0-5; 6-10; >10 Employees R $22,260 

SR =SHORT TERM RENTALS Per Unit or Room SR $7,380 

X=EXEMPT No Assessment x . 
-

Total $69,360 



-119-

Item #: 8.B. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: 1575 38th AVENUE #13-061 APN: 034-181-17 
Appeal of the Planning Commission denial for a Planned Development Rezoning, 
Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit to demolish a commercial salvage yard 
(Capitola Freight and Salvage) and construct a three-story, 23-unit residential senior 
housing project in the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. 
The Planning·Commission considered this project application at the June 6, 2013 
meeting and voted 3-2 to deny the project. 
Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Property Owner: Maureen A. Romac and Steve Thomas, filed 5/11/13 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the City Council hold the public hearing, review and consider the 
staff report, the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and: 

1) Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration; 

2) Adopt the first reading of the ordinance rezoning the property to "Planned Development" 
(Attachment 1);. and 

3) Adopt the attached resolution, thereby taking the following action on Application #13-061: 

a) Approving a Planned Development, Conditional Use Permit and Design Permit to 
become effective upon the effective date of the Rezoning Ordinance (Attachment 2). 

BACKGROUND: A preliminary proposal for a four-story, 67-unit senior housing planned 
development was reviewed by the Planning Commission and City Council in the fall of 2011. 
Based on the comments and direction received from both the Planning Commission and City 
Council, the applicant redesigned the project and submitted a formal Planned Development 
application. The new proposal is a three-story, 23-unit senior housing planned development. 

On September 6, 2012, the formal application was reviewed by the Planning Commission. The 
Planning Commission made a recommendation to the City Council to deny the project. During this 
time period, the City became aware that Planned Development applications cannot be appealed to 
the City Council if they receive a denial from the Planning Commission. The Planning 
Commission's decision was final. 

On February 14, 2013, the City Council directed staff to amend the Planned Development 
ordinance to allow for appeals to the City Council when a PD application has been denied by the 
Planning Commission. The ordinance has been amended giving City Council the ability to consider 
appeals of a PD. Following the ordinance amendment the owners have submitted a new 
application. 

Following the September 6, 2012, Planning Commission meeting, the applicant met with city staff 
to address the following issues and concerns raised by the Commission: 

• The project is not complimentary nor consistent with the scale of adjacent commercial and 
residential uses; 

• Pursuant to the Planned Development (PD) ordinance, it was expressed that the benefits of 



-120-

Item #: 8.B. Staff Report.pdf
6-27-13 AGENDA ITEM 
SUBJECT: 1575 381

h AVENUE #13-061 APN: 034-181-17 

the project to the community through the design, use, or special amenities did not justify the 
proposed exceptions to the underlying CN district standards; 

• The findings to approve a PD under four acres could not be made; 
• Concern with the second floor decks as they eliminate privacy to the adjacent properties; 
• Lack of landscaping; and 
• Concern with the mass, scale and density of the project. 

The applicant incorporated the following changes in response to the Commission's concerns 
(Attachment 3 and 4): 

• Reduction in the average height from 42' to 39'. 
• Redesign of the front of the building, eliminating the front porte-cochere and a driveway, 

improving the street appeal of the project by setting the structure back further, increasing 
the landscaping, and providing a rooftop garden area and an outdoor patio for residents off 
of the private eating area. 

• Elimination of the outdoor deck areas on the rear (west) elevation to address privacy 
concerns of the residents behind the project. 

• Redesign of the rear portion of the structure to reduce the height, scale, and mass adjacent 
to the residential neighbors. The new design relocates the elevator tower toward the center 
of the building and steps the structure away from the rear property line. 

On June 6, 2013 the Planning Commission reviewed the new application and made a 
recommendation to the City Council to deny the project. The majority of the Planning Commission 
voted to recommend the following concerns be incorporated as additional conditions should the 
City Council approve the project: 

• Require language in the lease alerting tenants to potential noise from commercial uses 
• Age restriction of 65 and older 
• Final lighting plan must be approved by the Planning Commission 
• Submission of a drainage plan 
• Landscaping plan must be approved by the Planning Commission 
• Establish a specific decibel level for rooftop equipment at a set number of feet from the 

building 
• Require the hiring of an arborist to confirm that current setbacks do not endanger existing 

redwood trees bordering the property and to be present during construction to assure that 
steps are taken to protect the trees 

• Construct a lighted crosswalk to King's Plaza 
• Confirm that the needs of seven staff, the shuttle van, no specific visitor parking and 

possible assisted living workers have been considered in parking needs 
• Prohibit parking in nearby business lots 
• Ask the city attorney to review how to enforce parking restrictions or conditions 
• Require the applicant to work with adjoining property owners on the wall height 

It should be noted that not all the Planning Commissioners agreed with the above-mentioned 
comments. A summary of the dissenting members comments are as follows: 

• The design is much improved from the prior project design 
• The project would benefit the city and is in the appropriate location 
• There are numerous Planned Developments within the city under the four-acre minimum 

• There is a need to revitalize the 41 st Avenue corridor and this project is a compelling 
argument that serves this goal 

• The project supports the Housing Element and goals of allowing a population to age in 
place 

• Location is appropriate to allow greater density 
• The project. will enhance the corridor 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.B. 38th Ave 1575 PD Senior Housing 1-24-13 
staff report.docx 



-121-

Item #: 8.B. Staff Report.pdf
6-27-13 AGENDA ITEM 
SUBJECT: 1575 381

h AVENUE #13-061 APN: 034-181-17 

Additionally, the dissenting members of the Commission stated the staff proposed conditions of 
approval addressed the issues raised by the other Commissioners. 

The Planning Commission staff report and draft minutes from the June 6, 2013 meeting are 
attached (Attachments 5 and 6). 

DISCUSSION: The 31,365 square foot (.72 acre) project site is located on 381
h Avenue be~ween 

Capitola Road and Brommer Street. The relatively flat site currently contains a commercial salvage 
yard, which is proposed to be removed as part of the project. Abutting the west property line are 
single-family homes located in the County, while to the south of the property is a self storage 
facility. Across the street is the King's Plaza shopping center, while to the north is a combination of 
office and commercial properties. 

The project consists of demolition of the existing salvage yard and its accessory buildings and 
construction of a 23-unit rental (market rate), unassisted senior housing development. The project 
applications to be considered by the City include: Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional 
Use Permit, and Design Permit for the demolition and construction. 

The proposed project will be contained within an approximately 65,000 square foot, three-story 
building. The contemporary Mediterranean architecture incorporates a mix of smooth stucco finish, 
cast stone balustrades, wrought iron railings, and barrel tile roof. The proposed housing units will be 
located on the second and third floors. The planned units include 14 studio units and nine one
bedroom units. 

The ground level includes an enclosed 35-space enclosed parking garage, a main entry lobby, a 
commercial kitchen, and a private restaurant with an outdoor dining area for residents. The restaurant 
area, with an approximately 600 square foot kitchen, will offer meals three times a day. There is 
shared common area throughout the development, with a 480-square foot pool with spa and cabana 
proposed on the third floor. A community rooftop deck has also been incorporated. A number of 
amenities will be provided for senior residents, including a swimming pool, bocci ball, hobbies, 
exercise, yoga, massage, book club, classes, educational speakers, wifi, and a shuttle service that will 
provide supplemental transportation for residents. 

PROJECT ISSUES: 

Setbacks & Building Scale 
The current· proposal addresses prior project concerns about the minimal setbacks and maximizing 
building area on the site. The setbacks have been increased on each floor, stepping back the building 
design, reducing floor area, and incorporating architectural interest and articulation on each elevation. 
The table below illustrates the setbacks in the CN District standards, and changes from the prior 
proposal to the current proposal. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.B. 38th Ave 1575 PD Senior Housing 1-24-13 
staff report.docx 



-122-

Item #: 8.B. Staff Report.pdf
6-27-13 AGENDA ITEM 
SUBJECT: 1575 381

h AVENUE #13-061 APN: 034-181-17 

Development CN District Previous Current 
Standards Proposal Proposal 

Front Yard Setback 
First Floor 15' 18' - 29' 25' - 38' 
Second Floor 15' 29' 32' 
Third Floor n/a 30' - 46' 43' 

Rear Yard 
Setback{ Residential} 
First Floor 48' 15' 15' 
Second Floor 48' 15' 23' 
Third Floor n/a 15' 30' 

Rear Yard 
Setback{ Commercial} 
First Floor 10' 15' 15' 
Second Floor 10' 15' 23' 
Third Floor n/a 15' 30' 

Side Yard Setback 
South property 
boundary 13'-0" O' O' - 6' 
First Floor 19'-7" O' - 15' O' - 15' 
Second Floor n/a O' - 15' 6' -21' 
Third Floor 
Side Yard Setback 
North property 
boundary 13'-0" 7' - 15' 7' 

First Floor 19'-7" 7' - 15' 16' 
Second Floor n/a 22' 23' 

Third Floor 

The increased setbacks and resulting building design stepping back from all property boundaries 
has reduced the overall bulk, scale and massing of the building. Additionally, the setbacks have 
allowed for landscaped deck areas throughout the project and private open space for all but the 
rear units, which were eliminated to provide privacy to the adjacent residential properties. 
The bulk and scale of the proposed structure would be similar to other development in the 
immediate area, including the adjacent self-storage facility, King's Plaza shopping center, and 
large retail outlets located along 41 st Avenue. 

Building Height 

The overall building height of the project was a major concern raised in the design review process. 
The overall building height has been reduced from the prior proposal of 42' to 39' in the current 
proposal. Additionally, the elevator tower and stairwell have been located to the center of the building 
so that the height of elevator tower and stairwell do not impact the adjacent properties. 

The building height of the project steps back at each floor level reducing the impact of height to 
adjacent properties. The first floor is -11', the second floor is - 22', and the third floor is approximately 
34', with an overall average exterior building height of 39'. The buildings to the north are -15'-20', the 
property to the south is - 30', the buildings to the east-30', and the buildings to the west are - 15'-20'. 
Although the proposed building would be higher than surrounding uses, building articulation, 
increased setbacks, and landscaping, including seven large off-site redwood trees, would soften the 
appearance. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.B. 38th Ave 1575 PD Senior Housing 1-24-13 
staff report.docx 



-123-

Item #: 8.B. Staff Report.pdf
6-27-13 AGENDA ITEM 
SUBJECT: 1575 381

h AVENUE #13-061 APN: 034-181-17 

Parking . 
The majority of the Planning Commission raised several concerns about the parking needs for the 
project tenants, employees and guests. 

The City of Capitola Municipal Code does not specifically include a parking requirement for a 
senior housing type use. The closest comparison would be the requirement for multiple-family 
residential uses, such as apartments and condominiums, which are 2.5 spaces per unit. Based on 
this requirement, a total of 58 spaces would be required. 

In order to evaluate the parking demand for the proposed use, a Forecast Trip Generation, On-Site 
Parking Analysis and Pedestrian Warrant Analysis report was prepared by RBF consulting. 
Considering the project is a senior complex, it is anticipated the parking demand will be less than a 
standard market rate apartment complex. The analysis provided an evaluation of the number of on
site parking spaces required for the proposed project utilizing guidelines specifically designed for 
senior housing land use as set forth by jurisdictions in the vicinity as well as information contained 
in other published guidelines used as industry standard. 

On-Site On-Site Adequate 
Guideline Source Senior Housing Parking Project Parking Parking Parking 

Requirement Size Spaces Spaces Spaces 
Per Guideline Required Planned Planned 

City of Santa Cruz Municipal Code 1 Parking Space for each 3 Dwelling Units 23 du 8 36
2 Yes 

1 Parking Space for Each Unit With Half the 
City of Seaside Municipal Code Spaces Covered Plus 1 Guest Parking 26 Yes 

Space for Each 10 Units 

City of Monterey Municipal Code 0.5 Parking Space for each 1 Dwelling Unit 11.5 Yes 

City of Watsonville Municipal Code 2 Parking Space for each 1 Dwelling Unit 23 Yes 
May be reduced by 50% with findings 

ITE Parking Generation, 3rd Edition 1.4 Parking Spaces per dwelling unit 1 33 Yes 

Notes: du = Dwelling Urnt 
1 = Observed peak parking demand of 50%. 
2 = Parking supply is based on Villa Capitola Unassisted Senior Housing Site Plan (Nancy Huyck, 0511712012) 

Based on the above table, the range of parking requirements for a similar project would vary from 8 
to 33 parking spaces. The previous design proposed 36 parking spaces. However, with the 
building design changes, the current design proposes a total of 35 on-site parking spaces. Based 
on the RBF analysis the project will provide an adequate number of parking spaces to serve the 
proposed senior housing use. The proposal results in a parking ratio of 1.52 parking spaces per 
unit. 

As a comparison, the Bay Avenue senior housing project utilized a parking analysis that was based on 
actual parking counts conducted over a set time period as well as consideration for the affordable 
senior housing aspect of the project. There are 109 total units and 92 on-site parking spaces. This 
results in a parking ratio of 0.84-0.94 parking spaces per unit. 

Based on the RBF analysis and comparisons of the Bay Avenue senior housing project and additional 
local jurisdictions, staff believes the proposed 35 space parking plan would be adequate to serve 
tenants, employees and guests. 

Lighting 
The site lighting will be building accent and landscape lighting. Lighting will be designed to be directed 
downward and shielded from adjacent properties, and contained on the property. Condition #11 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.B. 38th Ave 1575 PD Senior Housing 1-24-13 
staff report.docx 



-124-

Item #: 8.B. Staff Report.pdf
6-27-13 AGENDA ITEM 
SUBJECT: 1575 381

h AVENUE #13-061 APN: 034-181-17 

requires a lighting plan specifying the design, type, height, location, lumens and spread "the proposed 
lighting shall be submitted for review and approval during the building permit process. This condition 
and process will ensure that no light trespass will occur onto adjacent properties. 

Noise 
There was concern about the acceptable decibel level for the interior of the units and the rooftop 
HVAC equipment. The current state building code regulations limit interior residential noise levels to 
45 decibels. A condition has been added which requires the applicant to submit an acoustical study 
with the building permit, and to incorporate construction design and materials that will achieve an 
acceptable interior noise level for the units. 

A noise exposure level of 60 dba Ldn or less is considered acceptable within the city per the Noise 
Element of the General Plan. A condition has been added that requires the applicant to submit 
manufacturer specifications which demonstrate that the HVAC unit will comply with the 60 dba Ldn 
standard. 

Trees 
The majority of the Planning Commission recommended an arborist confirm that building construction 
would not endanger the off-site redwood trees or root system along the south property line. At the 
city's request, James P. Allen, the city's consulting arborist, reviewed the proposed development plans 
and performed a cursory site analysis of the seven coast redwood Sequoia sempervirens trees. The 
arborist's review concluded that the construction could damage the trees, therefore a condition has 
been included requiring a detailed arborist report be submitted prior to any site grading with 
recommendations for protection of the trees and root systems. 

SUMMARY: Staff believes that the necessary findings can be made to approve the proposed 
senior housing project. The property has been identified in the City's Housing Element as an 
appropriate location for increased density which necessitates a larger building envelope than 
afforded by the underlying CN zone. The Draft General Plan vision of the 381

h Avenue corridor is a 
pedestrian-friendly street with new multiple-family housing, vertical mixed use, sidewalk-oriented 
commercial uses, and streetscape and infrastructure improvements. The site's central location · 
adjacent to a mix of commercial uses is convenient for seniors. The applicant has addressed 
many of the issues raised during the design review process by significantly reducing the density, 
height, bulk, mass, and scale of the building, parking, privacy and architectural design. The project 
is compatible with the surrounding community uses and existing surrounding build scale. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Draft Ordinance rezoning the property from CN to PD 
2. Draft Resolution proposed for City council adoption, containing findings and conditions of 

the project 
3. Project Plans dated April 18, 2013 
4. Project Renderings dated April 18, 2013 
5. June 6, 2013 Planning Commission Staff Report, including the Initial Study and Negative 

Declaration 
6. June 6, 2013, 2012 Planning Commission Draft Minutes 
7. Email from Mick Routh dated June 8, 2013 
8. Letter from George Ow, Jr. dated June 19, 2013 
9. Email from Linda Smith dated June 20, 2013 
10. Email from Charles Hackett dated June 21, 2013 

Report Prepared By: Danielle Uharriet 
Interim Senior Planner 

Reviewed and F~.d 
by City Manager 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\8.B. 38th Ave 1575 PD Senior Housing 1-24-13 
staff report.docx 



-125-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 1.pdf

DRAFT 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE FOR A .72 ACRE SITE 

LOCATED AT 1575 38th AVENUE, ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER 034-181-17 BY WAY 
OF REZONING THIS PROPERTY FROM THE CN "NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL" 

DISTRICT 
TO THE PD-"PLANNED DEVELOPMENT" DISTRICT 

APPLICATION #13-061 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola reviews land use designations and zoning in order to 
regulate appropriate use of land and to protect the public health, safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, Zoning Districts specifying allowable uses, permit requirements, and 
development standards are applied to lands in order to implement General Plan land use 
designations and the City of Capitola has determined that rezoning the . 72 acre site at 1575 381

h 

Avenue is consistent with and implements the General Plan land use designation; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on June 6, 2013 and 
recommended denial of the application; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the Planning Commission's 
recommendation along with the documentary record and oral testimony, and determined that a 
23-unit senior housing use was appropriate for the site in conjunction with a Planned 
Development District zoning designation; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, following the public hearing determined to adopt the 
ordinance rezoning the subject parcel, and hereby finds that the public necessity, convenience, 
general welfare and good zoning practice, support and require amendment of the Zoning Map to 
provide "Planned Development District" zoning designation on the subject property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Capitola, 
as follows: 

SECTION 1. The real property located on the west side of 381
h Avenue between 

Capitola Road and Brommer Street, known as 1575 381
h Avenue, Assessor's Parcel Number 

034-181-17, and more particularly described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, is hereby rezoned to the PD "Planned Development" district, and the zoning Map of the 
Zoning Ordinance of the Capitola Municipal Code is hereby amended to reflect this 
reclassification. 



-126-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 2 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and take effect thirty (30) days after 
its final adoption. 

This ordinance was introduced on the 2?'h day of June 2013, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the_ day of , 2013, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED: __________ _ 

Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Su Sneddon, City Clerk 

P:\Danielle\9.C. 1575 38th Ave\38th Ave 1575 Senior Housing 6-27-13 Ordinance.doc 



-127-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 1.pdf

DRAFT 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE FOR A .72 ACRE SITE 

LOCATED AT 1575 38th AVENUE, ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER 034-181-17 BY WAY 
OF REZONING THIS PROPERTY FROM THE CN "NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL" 

DISTRICT 
TO THE PD-"PLANNED DEVELOPMENT" DISTRICT 

APPLICATION #13-061 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola reviews land use designations and zoning in order to 
regulate appropriate use of land and to protect the public health, safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, Zoning Districts specifying allowable uses, permit requirements, and 
development standards are applied to lands in order to implement General Plan land use 
designations and the City of Capitola has determined that rezoning the . 72 acre site at 1575 381

h 

Avenue is consistent with and implements the General Plan land use designation; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public he~ring on June 6, 2013 and 
recommended denial of the application; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the Planning Commission's 
recommendation along with the documentary record and oral testimony, and determined that a 
23-unit senior housing use was appropriate for the site in conjunction with a Planned 
Development District zoning designation; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, following the public hearing determined to adopt the 
ordinance rezoning the subject parcel, and hereby finds that the public necessity, convenience, 
general welfare and good zoning practice, support and require amendment of the Zoning Map to 
provide "Planned Development District" zoning designation on the subject property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Capitola, 
as follows: 

SECTION 1. The real property located on the west side of 381
h Avenue between 

Capitola Road and Brommer Street, known as 1575 381
h Avenue, Assessor's Parcel Number 

034-181-17, and more particularly described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, is hereby ·rezoned to the PD "Planned Development" district, and the zoning Map of the 
Zoning Ordinance of the Capitola Municipal Code is hereby amended to reflect this 
reclassification. 



-128-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 1.pdf
ORDINANCE NO. 2 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and take effect thirty (30) days after 
its final adoption. 

This ordinance was introduced on the 2J1h day of June 2013, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the_ day of , 2013, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED: __________ _ 
Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________ ,CMC 

Su Sneddon, City Clerk 



-129-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 2.pdf

DRAFT 

RESOLUTION NO. __ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ADOPTING THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND APPROVING A REZONING TO 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND A DESIGN 
PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL SENIOR HOUSING PROJECT ON A .72 ACRE SITE AT 1575 

38TH AVENUE (LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF 38TH AVENUE BETWEEN CAPITOLA ROAD 
ANO BROMMER STREET), BEING REZONED FROM CN (NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL) 

TO PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) DISTRICT AS PART OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT 

Project: 

APN: 

Application #13-061: 1575 38 TH Avenue, Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit, 
and Rezoning to Planned Development District 
034-181-17 

WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit and Planned 
Development zoning designation on a . 72 acre site located on the west side of 381

h Avenue 
between Capitola Road and Brommer Street in the City of Capitola, was submitted by property 
owners Maureen Romac and Steve Thomas; and 

WHEREAS, the above noted Conditional Use Permit and Design Permit proposes to create 
twenty three (23) residential senior units, utilizing the Planned Development District provisions of 
Chapter 17.39 of the Municipal Code for exceptions to various development standards as noted in 
the staff report to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, an Initial Study as prepared and circulated per CEQA requirements, and a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared based on the determination that the project will 
not have a significant effect on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered, at a duly noticed public hearing, the proposed 
Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit, and Planned Development District Rezoning for the 
project; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its June 6, 2013 meeting recommended denial of 
the project on a 3-2 vote; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is the final decision-making body on this application and can 
approve, deny, or direct continuance for redesign; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the documentary record for the project, 
including the Planning Commission staff report and draft minutes of the Planning Commission 
meeting, oral and written communications received at the June 27, 2013 public hearing of the City 
Council prior to taking action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Capitola, makes the following findings regarding the proposed application: 

1. FINDING: The parcel is suitable for, and of sufficient size to be planned and developed 
in a manner consistent with the purposes and objectives of Municipal Code Section 17.39 PD 



-130-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 2.pdf
RESOLUTION NO. 2 

Planned Development District. Being that the subject parcel is less than four acres of contiguous 
land, the City Council finds that the parcel is suitable as a PD district by virtue of its unique land 
use, and because the project would provide a desirable living environment for seniors. The site is 
bounded by properties zoned CC (Community Commercial) and CN (Neighborhood Commercial). 
As a result, to provide a suitable transition between these various land uses while accommodating 
the existing density allowed by the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance, it is concluded that the 
use of the Planned Development mechanism is appropriate for the site. 

2. FINDING: The proposed project design and improvements, as conditioned by the 
attached Conditions of Approval, are substantially in conformance with the City of Capitola's 
General Plan and Zoning Ordinance and other Municipal Code requirements, and standards as 
modified through the Planned Development provisions of the Zoning Ordinance for exceptions 
from certain zoning development standards. 

3. 

(a) The proposed housing project, including the design and improvements, is consistent 
with the City's General Plan goals to create a variety of housing types and styles 
throughout the City, in that it results in the creation of senior housing in a central 
location adjacent to a mix of commercial uses that is convenient for seniors, including a 
movie theatre, several restaurants, drug stores, and grocery stores, as well as the 
Capitola Mall. 

(b) Deviation from the CN district standards which govern the current zoning of the site has 
been minimized as required by Section 17.39.020(C) of the Planned Development 
District Standards and Requirements. Such deviations to setbacks and height will not 
have undesirable effects which outweigh the benefits of twenty three (23) senior 
housing units in a central location convenient for seniors to access community 
commercial uses and services. 

(c) The project site is not within a specific plan area nor within the Coastal Zone. 

FINDING: That the site is physically suitable for the type and density of development 
proposed. 

(a) The developable area of the site is flat, is located outside the floodplain, in close 
proximity to existing residential and commercial development where infrastructure 
already exists to serve the twenty three additional residential units, and capacity is 
available in public water and sanitary sewer facilities to serve the site. 

(b) The proposed development of the site with attached senior housing will be consistent 
with the General Plan goals. 

(c) The . 72 acre site is large enough to ensure adequate open space and parking for each 
of the units proposed. 

4. FINDING: The establishment, maintenance and operation of the residential senior 
housing, as condi_tioned, will not be detrimental to health, safety, peace, morals, comfort and 
general welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the proposed 
development, or to its future residents, or to the general welfare of the City. The project 
application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance 
and General Plan, and will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 



-131-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 2.pdf
RESOLUTION NO. 3 

(a) Community Development Department staff, the Architectural and Site Review 
Committee, and the City Council have reviewed the project and determined that the 
project, subject to the attached conditions and with the Planned Development Zoning 
designation in place, is generally consistent with the development standards of the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. Conditions of approval have been included 
to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and the General Plan. 

(b) This project has been or will be, reviewed by all responsible City, County, and Regional 
agencies, and conditions of approval have been applied as deemed necessary by the 
Planning, Public Works, and Building Department staff to ensure the continuing public 
health, safety and orderly development of the surrounding area. 

(c) Proposed connections to existing infrastructure have been reviewed and a 
determination has been made that the site can and will be served by nearby municipal 
services and utilities. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council approves the proposed Conditional Use 
Permit and Design Permit subject to, and contingent upon, the rezoning of the site to "Planned 
Development" as per the ordinance rezoning the property and further subject to the conditions of 
approval attached as Exhibit "A". 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 271

h day of June, 2013, by 
the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Su Sneddon, City Clerk 



-132-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 2.pdf
RESOLUTION NO. 

Exhibit "A" 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1575 33th Avenue 

Application #13-061 

4 

1. The project approval is for a Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and 
Design Permit to demolish a commercial salvage yard (Capitola Freight and Salvage) and 
construct a three-story, 23-unit residential senior housing project in the CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) Zoning District. 

2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the approved design must be 
approved by the Planning Commission. Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, or 
the site, must be approved by the Planning Commission. 

3. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

4. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. - 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 a.m. 
- 4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 

5. Air-conditioning equipment and other roof top equipment shall be screened from view and fall 
within the allowable city permitted decibel levels. 

6. Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to assure compliance with the City of 
Capitola Affordable (lnclusionary) Housing Ordinance. Any appropriate fees shall be paid prior 
to building permit issuance. 

7. The applicant shall submit a drainage plan, with the building permit plans, subject to the 
current Post Construction Requirements for stormwater mitigation practices as specified by the 
Regional Board and the County of Santa Cruz Design Criteria. The drainage plan shall be 
reviewed and approved to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director and the Santa Cruz 
County's Zone 5 Drainage District. 

8. The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will include 
the specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be 
utilized. Irrigation and landscaping shall be installed prior to final building occupancy. 

9. An erosion control plan shall be approved and in place prior to grading and construction on 
site. 

10. Prior to Certificates of Occupancy being issued, the project Developer shall be responsible for 
installing all required frontage improvements including curb, gutter, and sidewalk, along 381

h 

Avenue for the length of the property frontage. All sidewalks are to meet the standards for 
ADA accessibility. 

11. All lighting shall be shielded and directed on to subject property, away from adjacent residential 
properties. Lighting intensity shall be reviewed and approved by staff prior to final occupancy 
and shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon receipt of a complaint. 



-133-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 2.pdf
RESOLUTION NO. 5 

12. No roof equipment is to be visible to the general public. Any necessary roof screening is to 
match the color of the building as closely as possible. Plans for any necessary screening shall 
be submitted to the Community Development Department prior to, or in conjunction with, 
building permit submittal. 

13. A 6'-8" high concrete block wall (measured from project finished grade) shall be constructed 
along the western property line adjacent to residential properties. 

14. The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit, from the Director of Public Works, prior to 
any work in the public right of way. 

15. The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and 
Public Works Department requirements. A note shall be placed on the final building plans 
indicating this requirement. Underground utility vaults shall be located in a paved surface area 
outside of the landscaped area. 

16. The applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Santa Cruz City Water Department 
regarding landscape irrigation and/or water fixture requirements, as well as any infrastructure 
improvements. Final building plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Department prior to 
issuance of building permits. 

17. The applicant shall implement "Best Management" construction practices to control dust and 
PM10 emissions during grading and site development. The MBUAPCD identifies the following 
construction practices to control dust: 

o Water all active construction areas at least twice daily; 
o Prohibit all grading activities during periods of high winds (over 15 mph); 
o Cover all trucks hauling dirt, sand or loose materials. 
o Cover or water stockpiles of debris, soil and other materials which can become 

windblown; 
o Install wheel washers at the entrance to construction sites for all existing trucks; 
o Sweep streets if visible soil material is carried out from the construction site; 
o Apply chemical soil stabilizers on inactive construction sites; 
o Plant vegetative ground cover in disturbed areas as soon as possible. 

18. The applicant shall submit a construction plan for approval prior to building permit issuance. 
The plan shall include, but not be limited to, identifying construction hours, access to the site, 
contractor parking locations, office trailer locations, material storage, etc. 

19. If archaeological resources or human remains are accidentally discovered during construction, 
work shall be halted within 50 meters (150 feet) of the find until it can be evaluated by a 
qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is determined to be significant, appropriate 
mitigation measures shall be formulated and implemented. Disturbance shall not resume until 
the significance of the archaeological resources is determined and appropriate mitigations to 
preserve the resource on the site are established. If human remains are encountered during 
construction or any other phase of development, work in the area of discovery must be halted, 
the Santa Cruz County coroner notified, and the provisions of Public Resources Code 5097.98-
99, Health and Safety Code 7050.5 carried out. If the remains are determined to be Native 
American, the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) shall be notified within 24 hours 
as required by Public Resources Code 5097. 

20. The applicant shall meet or exceed the California Green Building Code and Capitola Green 
Building Program. 



-134-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 2.pdf
RESOLUTION NO. 6 

21. Mitigation Measure 1: The applicant shall prepare an acoustical study with the building permit 
submittal. The building plans shall incorporate any recommended building or window design 
measures, if needed to achieve required indoor noise levels. 

22. The applicant shall submit the manufacturer specifications which demonstrate that the HVAC 
will comply with the 60 dba Ldn standard. 

23. The applicant shall construct a mid-block pedestrian crossing on 381
h Avenue from the project 

to King's Shopping Center. The crossing shall be designed based on recommendations of the 
traffic engineer and approved by the Public Works Director. 

24. The applicant shall submit a detailed arborist report prior to any grading, with 
recommendations for protection of the redwood trees and the root systems. The 
recommendations shall be incorporated into the construction documents. An arborist shall be 
on-site during excavation of the site to ensure the redwood trees are not damaged. 

25. The applicant shall minimize the number of construction vehicles on-site at any one time. 

26. The applicant shall include, in the resident lease agreement, a disclosure regarding the 
potential for noise from the adjacent commercial district. 



-135-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

VILLA CAPITOLA 
Unassisted Senior Housing 
1575 38th Avenue 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 

PROJECT DATA 

O'ifNaq SI.Ml illOl'l'ICS cmd lloureen Rom~ 

oo;fft'S !<ENT: H- HU)'d< 

ASSESSOR PAl!m. h'UMSER: ~'-"181-17 

PAAC!I. .wk """"""'"' Jl,JOO !f (130'-3' +/• x 2!0'•4' +/·) 
ZOMED: FO(Plonnodllo"1opmoit) 

smw:KS: Ftlll'll F:asl: 231-0• aelbock fr.clud&ig g•-o• eidowdk {Amoga S&bodt 29'--0j 
Side South: o• ulb~ek {Al'Ct'Cgo S~ibock 4'-G") 
Rellr. Wtsl: 15'-D" 
Sidolbth:"f-0' 

AR9& Gi:l~a .ind Ms«laftd hl1ctilns on Gnllnd Floor, 13,.l78af 
Second Ao~ Onc:ud"tig GU decb}: 22,27hf 
Third AtlOI" {tnck!Cln11 all d'fC§ +pool area): 19,BOS!f 
TOT.it J..RD.: 65.45~ 

ruT COOHT; 2J Units Tolol 
Sl.u.dio:14 
Ono Sodroom: 9 

PAPJQ/ia comm 35 st.lib TDtal 

S~LDIMG HE!GITT: Ji1 +/- Avaraga 

CODE + CONSTRUCTION DATA 

NWBER OF SiO!U:S: 3 (Go~~ t S~ and ThkV stoiy l;>artm&'lh} 

BU~ OCC\JPAHCI' ~ R-2 R~cntlol 

OCCUPNff ~ FOR OOf Fl.DOR! 

~~j~l(=) 
Th'nl S1oq l=l 

TWE or CotlSTRUCTn!'l: 5.\ 

FlR£Pl!mttTIO~IUla-Flta5plfnk!u5)""'1Throuohavl 

VICINIJY MAP 
"'""' 

SCHEDULE OF DRAWINGS: 

"""""'- G-1 ~~llOH 

c-t>oo_.., 

CM. ,,_, 
~llAP - ·-· .DEIW1IO!I PINI (Aold l'f>o!o) 

·-· STE PINI 

.... msr FLOOR c.W€:E fVlt 

lrl SECOl!ll f\DOR PINI 

A-6 1\ll<il FLOOR PINI .... l!Olfl'IJll 
~7 EXJmlllp.EVAllllHS 

.... OOIJ<IC>I !WIA]U<S 

.... llUWllG Slll!IONS 

A-10 BUUm: Slll!IONS 

A-11 l»llWl'E+STEIJGl!llHG 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL DRIVE 
APTO~. CA 95003 

PHON< (831)605-1206 
fAX (Bl1)6BB-3205 

no. dqlc deacrlptlon 

REVISIONS 

PROJECT lTlt; 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1s;s 38th AVENUE 

SM7A CRUZ, CA 1150S2 

APN: 034---181-17 

SHEET 1TJlE 

GENERAL 
INFORMATION 

~None 

DATE:: 0~'-10-13 

DRAWN ~y, NUl 
JOB NO.: N1140 

DWG, NO.: NiHo-G-1 

G-1 
of 



-136-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

~ 
---------- i 

f 
i ... 

e .. 
9§1$ Of Ei§A]ONS 

=-=~~~~~~~~-==:u 
~~~·~?.t&~~r.rwoa. 
lllWDl:~rmlilH'al~ 

aws OE BEARINGS 

~l~~~~i!r"~~#S 

LEliElll2. 

+~POTE. ~=-Al'Pfa!GllD 
A m'IUGll)&l.I. 

$ RUil llQUl!M' M tl'D 

ft0$f-!B!-f1 
ILIUEll la DAC rlu 'Tr= SHLU1 lUF, ,........, 

MAp BmJi;NCE I f!GFNQ 
('!~) ............ 

(l~)CQ~ 

[1~ ~CGD1~1 

,. 

r 
GllAP!llC SCALE 

1 

( iin&r) 
tbah.• ID IL 

r 

9l-M-38 

111<1i'S<111Wl{URID) 
ll.11/JA <Riil CWllY"'11£l11l'S lfllCE 

fl.Elb.A.11--14 

FD L£.fD a: TAO 
LS7M7 

r.::":::"~::.....=-='"~===-•-t~....,.=::,-;;"":;....~-1.::...,.;::::w...,!l!!l~=~-1 ";' 
COOll: m~ H1UNO Jn'FUK!. :Mm 



-137-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

Existing Vicinity Parcels I Drainage Lines. Existing Site Conditions 

Existing Conditions for Demolition 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

PROJECT 1lTI.E 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 .3Bth AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN: 034-181-17 

SH~ TITLE 

EXISTING 
CONDITIONS for 
DEMOLITION 

SC,\l.E: None 

DAl!: 04-18-13 

DAAWN BY• 

JO.B NO.: N1t40 

owe;, NO.: N1140-A-1 

A-1 
sheo.t of eheeta 



-138-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

...:1 
' I ... [ 

·,I ... , 
1-:----t..,.._;;t-1 6'-8' TAU. BLOCK W/111. ,\LONG 

'.·' I lffSl SIDE OF fROPER!Y LINE 
I (SEPARATION FRO~ SINGLE FAlllLY REslDENCES) '; ; i ~~~rMo./li~'lr~~H&R¢i;rfE rft91.1 WEST 

···I ,., 
·:·r 
. I 

I 

:.::.1 
I 

"' ' I 

"' _:,.·I 
"•'/ .. , 
.. l·I 

.1 

: I .. , 
I .... , 

"·I 
. ~.· : 
.... ! .. , 
. ~ ' 

;-_,,.r-- ~STING DIV\IN INLET (00 7fl ll'PRDXll.IATE LOCATION 

l\JOTE 
l\JOTE 

#1: 
#2: 

NOTE #3: 

IH'..O' 

GRADING: Estimated cut i$ 1,485 ct,ibic yards 
DRAINAGE: See "Preliminary Storm Water · 
Management Report" dated June 6, 2012 
(Bowman & Williams - Consulting Civil Engineers) 
As$urne New Elevations and Existing Elevations 
ore the Same except on East $ide of Building 
(See Front / East Elevation) 

I 
f-~ --------. ----------------. ---- ---, ------, ---------

v 

It-( 

··.·: 

.,-
[II 

,_ : I I I 
-K-f-: ~ 

,_ l I 

J~ . 

~ - H-1--+--t--+---I 
s 
~ 

PRIVATE RcyAURAITT ~ 

Site Plan 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEl DRIVE 
APTOS, CA 95003 

·~~E(J~tN:g:~gg• 

~ l'.1-XM".I !Co: 

no. dolo descripUol'I 

REVISIONS 

PROJECT TITLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR MOUSING 
1575 38th ·AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN: 034-1Ej1M17 

SHEET Tm.E 

SITE PLAN 

SCALE: i/a• · .. 1•-0• 

DRAWN BY: NUl 

JOB N:>.: N1 140 

ow~. NO.: Nt t40~A-2 

A-2 
shoot of 11hoob 



-139-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

® @ .'81 
l~l'-6' \V @ ® 

1~·-0· ,,_,. U'-0' 

r.~--

1 ~ 
I 

i i ! ! 1 T i l l ! ! i · 
---i----i----. -,-. -----r---. _T ____ ! ----,----i-----,-----r---. -,-~--r---, -

~I = = =I = = 1=I = = =I '= = =I = I= =i 
i ~ · @@ ho'x 18 each i 

1 

, . I I 
I I I I I 

I I I I I I I I 
I ~ I I I I <I ,~:~ : 

I 

n 

n 

@ 

7 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

~200 SOQUEl. DRIVE 
APTOS, CA 9500J 

I 
I 

I 

: ,,.., I I I '1 '1 I II, 

I'"'"'""""" @@ 10'x18' eo. @@ 9x18 ea. I _ , 
,,,,___.._n ~___, ;; j ~ ,.,,.. '': ,,. ~ •j~ a• s "i!r j rr=~==l""':-~1-,}~,, ,.;~.,] r_=_ -~i'"··:::z, c::_-r-1=.:\=l==:t:±±:±::t---t-t i--:-1---1------1 

n ~ I = = = = =0:: =~ .. ~:'... ' ; I ~E · ' ~ =:fj' 
;.-.---9--"-----1 x -- I 1 ~ f-' · "---1..1-t--· E_ ---~~~11;:,,::::11::::~ 

~@ 1' = = = = I= ==! b . I / LJ .......... - 1-: I I . J;;::i lf----il ~ 11--H>i=""',•~-'-"-'-' 
fl ~ 9'x18' 9'x18' '- •1 I ~ i 

,..__..,..____,@) j m : 4 - I 111 ~· I >~~ r:t.r1 ·-1 
n I -, - @@ 1Q'x18' 80. jill@ 9'x18' ea. ' 1 

: I .it".'.'.'"~ "'II I ..-.~.....-r-~---J.---11---1.. 

n ! ~ ! I ! ! 11,~~ _. I 
I i I I I _L 'd;sh:o~rl : 

i I i i i~, -
-~,~'))<; LJ~l I ! ~~Tj--1 ~ ~"' ITTfT TI 1' MECIWllCIJ. & filQTijlCAI. -Exh usl >< "' -111 I II I 

: ~ 

I I I ~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

L~ -----· _· ____ _j ___ : ______ · ______ · ---~--· ---. · ___ · ___ · · __ :_.__._1 ~__.~ __ .,... __ .._ _ _L__JJ__J_ 

DINING --(t.llltfDCNOlliCQliPNIJ) 

I 
'fl 

I 

[Yl I I 
I 

,-o , I 

I 
0 I DINING 
0 

I I O· 
I () 

n 

11 xc-xx-xcxu 

no. ""'' ' dca~pt.ion 

REVISIONS 

PRQJEcr 1111.!: 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 ~lh A\<ENUE. 

SANTA. CRUZ1 CA 

APN: 0~4-161-17 

SHEET' ilTLE 

FIRST FLOOR 
GARAGE PLAN 

1-SC.\l.E~. -, -1/8-•• -,·--o-· --1 

DATf: 04-18-13 

DRAWN BY< tU.H 

JOB- NO.: N1i40 

(3 5 total parking stalls). First Floor Garage Plan A-3 
sheot of dloeta 



-140-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

9 ~ 
I I 
I 

I. 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
i 

r 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
.j 

...... 
Cf <if @ Qf Qf 14 

! - - -· l - ' 
H'•IS" .... 

Dock 

l 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

15 

-
Bottcmofmh 
7 Feel />M~ 
lJid~~vel 

HUYCK 
ARCHl'TECTS 

P200 SOQUEL DRIVE 
APTO~. CA 95003 

PHONE (831)6B5-1205 
FAX (831)668-~200 

no. dalo dHcrlptlon 

REVISIONS 

PROJECT TITI..E 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNAS!;ISTED 
SENIQR HOUSING 
1575 3Bth AVENUE 

SANTA ~RUZ, CA 

APN: 034-1~1-17 

SHEET lfJLE 

S~COND FLOOR 
PLAN 

DRAWN E!Y• NLH 
JOB NO,f Nt HO 

DWI; NO.: N.1140.,.A-4 

A-4 
shoot of 



-141-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

1 cp cp © 
T 

0 () 9 10 

T Ul'..V 

12'-&' 15'-c'' l&'-0' I U'...O' w-o· I 15'-o" W-)' 1i•-o• l?.':0' 

I I I 

,.J 
I 

I ..,,. 
I I 

I I 
I 

"'""• I 

I 
I 

~1 -
J. 

I I I 
I I I 

I I 
I 

I 
I I I 

I I I 

@ 
Cff 

13 

t5'-o" 15'-ri' u•~r 

i 
I 

I 
I 

Deck 

Deck 

POl)L 12'x 40' 

I I ·-
I I 

I . I 
I 

I I I 
I 

*oor Th]rd 
I 

14 15 

·-· 

i----

2. 

p an 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL EIRr/£ 
APTOS, CA ep:oo:s 

PHONE (831)6B5,-U06 
FAX (831)600-3205 

na. daie desi:riptian 

RE\'JSIONS 

PROJECT TITLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR MOUSING 
1570 JSlh AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APtj: 0.34-1~1-11 

SHEE:TTll'LE 

THIRD Fl,001'< 
Pl,AN 

S""!J" 1/6" • 1 •-0• . 

DAT~: 04-1a:...13 

DRAWN l!i• ~LH 

joa NO.: N1i40 

A-5 
eheet of 



-142-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

-~ g 15 
W'-O' 

t'-rt' I I ,, ... u•-o• 15'-0" 15'-0" is-~· 15'-0" 
1· 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
-------~---------

-I+-

""' r I I i 
--, ~- -----ii'l 1 ::I -- ----I I r------1 'r---- ·1 ' : ·11+r--:-----1 ' I I - ---

1

' --71--~--l i 
j I I I I I i : I I . I I I Arch Below II I I 1 

i I! f;::l========;:,~=======l~,!I======~:* ,'-~I=;:====~'~! =======l~l!l========ll,t:=========:F=========!IC::=======:I=;:.;(~----- ! I 
1-Mf-- F-~ ! i i I i i I i i 
i I ii I I I I I ! i I i I 

I F~--!F:- I ' I ,==1 :~1: I ' I 
: I , ,:____' ===i:!===;===!=i =-~-rn--H-..._~, l~n -~ A+-1. ~' i ! i 

~ ! -+I I llr- i I',_,_ ;~~ge of ~kylighl I +' L 1' 31rl---H--+ n---- ,------1,'t-:---~1-----+-l----1 .1-f- : I -- -~GREEN-BARRa.TI~---

i ! I ' '"- I I I . I : I : 1YP MOUND P.WPET : 

+--li,i--lt=:Ei*- - r----!tt,tttt'"tt,, _jj_ ttttt,,,tttt/ jj. v v=tkt7~, ~ i ~ ___ L __ J_ EJ 
I I

H-i-H-++-Hf--?-'.~:-..< "--H-t-t-+-H::!~L_J1 I I : I 

'1 :, 1~+::~;:+~~-f--+l--~c--l+-AA"'E~..,:;4-1._,s1r1"'l's::-rh~=+=~=r=+~li-m!_, I I I I I 

'1 I . / ~ ~ ' ' : I I I I . I e-pOct j BELQW 

I i I · 11-1--1--+,,.-+-tv~'++-1 t-1l~-++-.:1-.: -1-+-f-i-'T-<t-r-...-H 
1 i i I i i 

~I '1 / I ·][ 111 : : 1: _,_I I I 
I I Ill I rL 

. _r---- LI ~ ~n iii:-: 'fi-{ L __ J, L ___ l 'I ___ If 111 I 

i 1 
.. [ ~ .. ! i L __ ~L_J ___ _L ___ L __ J _________ _ 

I 

-----
I 

l • ____ _!I T 

I 1 COMMUNllY 
I DECK BElDW 

t---+t-------- ;-----. I 

I 1 
I 

0-
.__,. 

-

II 

I 

I 
Roof Plan 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL ORM: 
APJOS, CA 95003 

p~~Ec&9rN~:~~~~s 

no. dale dci:scripll?n 

REVIS!bNS 

PRqJECT~ 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 3Bth AVENUE 

SANTA c.~uz. CA 

-'PN: 034-181 ;..17 

SHEET Tnt.E 

ROOF 
PLAN 

SCALE: Va" ... 1'-0" · 

DAlE: 04-1B-l3 

DRAWN BY: Nut 

JOB No.: N114D 

DWG. NO.: Nf 140..:.A-6 

A-6 
of uheata 



-143-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

1575 

North Elevation 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL DRIVE 
APTOS, CA 95003 

PHONE {83t)BS5-1205 
FAX (831)688-3205 

-.-- ... - ::a~~--.-. -

East Elevation - Front 

no, date daacrlpUon 

REVjSION~ 

PRQJECT TfilE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 

RIPCIJN;Jl"'ml'Grtb:tl. 
--.-----=---~~·.:&----. -. 

~ 

1575 JBth AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN: 0~4-1Bi-17 

Adjacent China Village 

~ .,..... ______ , 
SHEET mtE 

EXTERIOR 
ELEVATIONS 

~~~~OORY_ ... _!.WJJl~•..,_ _ _,__~~------~---l 
. SCAUO 1/6" • 1'-0" . 

~AiE; 04-18-13 

CRAWN~: NLH 

JOB NO,: "1140 

D~. NO:: Nt t40-A-7 

A-· 7 
of 



-144-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

-- ---~~~~~p~---11.1-~~1 

- _ ____y~FNfili~~~ --

. West Elevf!tion -Rear 

HUYCK 
A R c'H I T E C T S 

9200 SQQUEt. DRIV'E 
APras, f:A' 95003 

·~~'<gf)~g::;lgg~ 

REVISION~ 

hrrrrm::;:::::;::;:::=::nmmf;;;;;;;;;;;1-~--------- -~~~~tiff~- -'"""f-~~1 PRQJECT 11TL.E 
VILLA CAPIT0LA 

- - -- - - -- - - :.,:,,.'"".'~"";:~-- UNASSISTED 

____ J 

1--.,----t--+.---·1-r-.,----1--1----i-i----+-I- - -~~~~·~ - - ~-: 

SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 ~th A\iENUE 

SAITTA CRUZ, CA 

AP~: 034-tBt-17 

SH~Tll'L£ 

EXTERIOR 
ELEVATIONS 

~'-----'---'------'-'--.,-----'--.-.,-----,.-.,----.<--"'--"'--~-.,---'--_,__ ___ _,__,_ _ _, _ __.__,,__,. __ _,_ _ _,_ __ _.'--''--~--'--,L----L,-'--.,----'--'----'-'---':.,,,..,,;;;.~-~~~~Jl~·jP""-7-'"~--------1 
SCAf...E: 1/a·· - 1'-0" 

South ~levation -Adjacent Storage DATE: 0~-18•13 

DRAWN ay, NU! 

·.JOB NO.: N1140 

DWG. Nd.1 Ni 140-A-8 

A-. 8 
aheet of oheets 



-145-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

l "" 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

~ ~-----· _.,~-~~~ .. ~D 
------..J~~,~ll. h 9200 SOQUEL DRNE 

PPTOS, CA 95003 
J 

~'-) ~ P~~EcJgf,~;:~345ga Third 
I ~---------------------------------------------- ---..... \ 

--- - ~RI&{~~~ -~ I 
I @-e':>~ I '----

~ ~tll i-\' 
I _JOI I I 

~ I I 
'\:,~.\. I I Secor.d I I 

)....!Ef!f~-fl!?R~--I '--- I 
I ....__ I ~DNIDltU'..q" I 
I I 

~ I I 
I 

I I Garoqe 
~~Al~~ J.. I I 

I I 
-~~O"_:a'_~--I 

I I 
t \ I 

~----------------------------------------------------~ Longitudinal Section 

lliX~X'M;lf; "'" 
dale descrfpUon 

fl.EYISIONS 

I II II Tl))C#~~Nla'CfP>l.MFJ.. PROJECT llllE 

_..~I Ii n I F --- ---omii<i"oiiimiTu,,,.- -~ " VILLA CAPITOLA 

H 
~-- - - --~~~.~- 1--2? UNASSISTED 

rl rr-----H SENIOR HOUSING ~ <4 ~ 
~ I I I I I I I I 1575 ~th AVENUE I I I I I I I I 

I I I I I I I I 
"-i--~~"'-~lli!!l..._-~ SANTA CRUZ, CA 

:r JI ~CEB£'M:fl-t2t~ 
APN: 034-181-17 ~ 

'"- • )I 

~ r, ~ .___!;> SH.ffi'TITlE 
~!!~~-~~--
~O,[IU2Dl+ll'-G" 

BUILDING 

~ ~ SECTIONS 

M~n~~ J.. 
~~~D'~-~--

SCALE: 1/8" - 1•-0• 

Longitudinal Section through Community/Skylight .. OATE: 04-1a-13 

Off{\WN 6'f: Nill 

JOB NO.: H114D 

OWG. ND.: N114D-A-9 

A-9 
sh11at •• sheets 

- ··-----··-··-·------------------------------------



-146-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

All Concrete Structure 

_. _ - _ -- __ ---~~f~~WP~-...... ._...~~I 

- - -- - - -- - - ~AiSl~~SWl!PJ.J1 __ 

Cross Section through Community Lightwell 

Conerele Parking Gorqge 
wi'J1 Wood fram~d Second 
and Third slor/ above 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

92CD SQQUEL DRM: 
AFrQS, Cl\ 95003 

PHONE (ll31)6BS-12D6 
FAX (831)688-3205 

no. dale d~crlptlon 

REVISIONS Pool and Structural Supportl 
2'-0' b~ow Third floor, -----------~Ill'/~~-- --{"i;h--,._~r1 P~~: :PITOlA 

--- - -.- - - ::,:r'~ "":~ !!.__ - ~ UNASSISTED 

f 
I 
I 
I 

I 

,,,.--- -

J, 
I 

I 
I 

-----------ftlltfr-

--+--,..,..·----------------------------! 

I 
I 
I 

--~-----------
I . I 

1---u...-..u..--~-~---'"1-.--~·- ~~~--- -,_. 

--~OOt~~,.~ --~ -

---------------------------+"--~:....,.,~~~mmr~~m 
\ I 

~--------------------------,------~Cross Section through Swimming Pool 

SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 JBlh A~UE 

SAUTA CRUZ. CA 

APN: 034-181-17 

SHEET TITLE 

BUILDING 
SECTIONS 

SC.AJ..Es 1/S• ... 1'-o~ 

DATE: 04-18:-13 

DRAWN e'i; NU-I 

JOB NO.: N1140 . 

DWG. NO.: N1140-A-JO 

A-10 
of 

·-----------------------------------------------=---



-147-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

.L 

PROPOSfD 6'-o" TAU. l'iRDUGHT IRON FE!\'\:( 
ALONG NORTH SlDE OF PROPERTY LINE 
(SEPA/lATIOll FROM CQMMERCIAL PARCElS) 

(3) T3 

~ PrimeDesignGroup 
~ lllddcilI~U..,.~ 

VIUICaplfllll 
Propoudl!d:arlorU9hlln.11 

Thllfo~EJVthapmpoaadl!lh'Jngde~lgncrbrlafotlho~oxtorlot11nd1ltollghtlngfor 
thop1t1Jcct: -1.Allc::delkr~\lltlbe.H!)lleftieley. 

;: ~~~:~~Ml-r:i:=%. 
.f. U;hlln;icoDtn:lbv.ilbopiiml•d~hleetlhl&.24roqt1ft.nlcnta. 
a. Ught1ngfb:tuio1pedticatb.'1QltdtcyootW.1uuumne111[glblclghttrMpimM~thG1!111 

bolrld~rlcs. 
6. U!ltfl'Gde:Slgnv.tlm&etADAalldlESrsmm!Mndttdl~ll/\C:lll!bYels 

E!ntlMpPrldngAma• 

fl!Dll!ollilrllll<Np.
~0.UR9.LbC.H51&1Cr.a,CI.~ Ph:r.1131.W.JCl:ll l11D.l,OULllO ~-

EXISTING REll'/1000 TREES 
>ll ALONG SOUl11 S!Dt 
OF PROPERTY LINE 

·, 

·•./i 

PWfllNG ~HEllUl£: 
T1 0190 europoeo majestic ~outy {Otivc} JG• Box 
12 Olea europoea moJestic beauty (Ollve) 24' Box 
TJ Oleo eurapoea little OUlc (Olive) 24• Box 
T4 M~nolia SteUola {Star Uagnollo) 24' Box 
J5 Umbellulcrla C.!;larrlca (Ca!Wornla Bay) 30" Box 
16 Ari>ulus l.lorina 24• Box 
51 Troohelo.spennum (Stor Jasmine) 5 Gallon 
S2 Comel:ia Japonlca (Camelllo) 15 Gagon 

PERMEABLE PA\!ERS 
AT IJJ!N ENTRY 

PERMfJJll.E PAVERS 
AT EXTERIOR PATIO 

Landscape Plan·+ Site Light 

HUYCK 
ARCHITEC.TS 

9200 SOQUEL ORIVE 
APTOS, CA 95003 

p~~«.~ez,~:::iJ~· 

no. de.to dCscripUan 

REVISIONS 

PROJ~CT TITLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 Jath A'iE:Ni.JE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN; 034-1B1-t7 

SHE!.TTffi.E 

LANDSCAPE PLAN 
and 
SITE LIGHTING 

DAm 04-18-13 

DRAWN 5'1': NUi 

JOB NO,: N1140 

OWG. NO.; N1140-A-11 

A-. 11 
sheet of shaots 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-148-



-149-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



-150-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f

VILLA CAPITOL'A 
I 



-151-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



-152-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



-153-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-154-



-155-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem#: 5.C. 1575 38th A'- . 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

DATE: JUNE 6, 2013 

SUBJECT: 1575 381
h AVENUE #13-061 APN: 034-181-17 

Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit to 
demolish a commercial salvage yard (Capitola Freight and Salvage) and 
construct a three-story, 23-unit residential senior housing project in the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Property Owner: Maureen A. Romac and Steve Thomas, filed: 5/11/13 

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing a planned development rezoning at 1575 38th Avenue in the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. The project site currently contains a commercial 
salvage yard which is proposed to be removed as part of the project. The proposal is a three
story, 23-unit market rate senior housing development on the 31,365 square foot lot (.72 acre). 

BACKGROUND 
A preliminary proposal for a four-story, 67-unit senior housing planned development was 
reviewed by the Planning Commission and City Council in the fall of 2011. Based on the 
comments and direction received from both the Planning Commission and City Council, the 
applicant redesigned the project and submitted a formal Planned Development application. The 
new proposal is a three-story, 23-unit senior housing planned development. 

On September 6, 2012, the formal application was reviewed by the Planning Commission. The 
Planning Commission made a recommendation to the City Council to deny the project. As a 
result of this denial, the City became aware that Planned Development applications cannot be 
appealed to the City Council if they receive a denial from the Planning Commission. The 
Planning Commission's decision was final. 

On February 14, 2013, the City Council directed staff to amend the Planned Development 
ordinance to allow for appeals to the City Council when an application has been denied by the 
Planning Commission. 

On March 7, 2013, the Planning Commission unanimously recommended that the City Council 
adopt the proposed amendments to the Planned Development Ordinance. On March 28, 2013, 
the City Council approved the first reading of the Zoning Ordinance amendment and on April 11, 
2013, the City Council approved the second reading of the Zoning Ordinance amendment. On 
May 11, 2013, the ordinance amendment became effective in areas outside the Coastal Zone. 
As the 38th Avenue senior housing project is not in the Coastal Zone, the applicant has re
submitted an application. Following the September 6, 2012 Planning Commission meeting, the 

-63-



-156-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
ILwlll TT."·"'· '"'" vULll l"'\Yt:;tn.le PC Staff Report.pdf 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 381
h Avenue 2 

applicant met with city staff to address the following issues and concerns raised by the 
Commission (Attachment D): 

• The project is not complimentary nor consistent with the scale of adjacent commercial 
and residential uses; 

• Pursuant to the Planned Development (PD) ordinance, it was expressed that the 
benefits of the project to the community through the design, use, or special amenities did 
not justify the proposed exceptions to the underlying CN district standards; 

• The findings to approve a PD under four acres could not be made; 
• Concern with the second floor decks as they eliminate privacy to the adjacent properties; 
• Lack of landscaping; and 
• Concern with the mass, scale and density of the project. 

The applicant incorporated the following changes in response to the Commission's concerns: 

• Reduction in the average height from 42' to 39'. 
• Redesign of the front of the building, eliminating the front porte-cochere and a driveway, 

improving the street appeal of the project by setting the structure back further, increasing 
the landscaping, and providing a rooftop garden area and an outdoor patio for residents 
off of the private eating area. 

• Elimination of the outdoor deck areas on the rear (west) elevation to address privacy 
concerns of the residents behind the project. 

• Redesign of the rear portion of the structure to reduce the height, scale, and mass 
adjacent to the residential neighbors. The new design relocates the elevator tower 
toward the center of the building and steps the structure away from the rear property 
line. 

The design plans, building materials and site landscaping have addressed previous review and 
comments from the Architectural and Site Review Committee. The applicant has provided a 
progression of the building design since the original preliminary PD design (Attachment B). The 
applicant has addressed many of the issues raised during the previous reviews by significantly 
reducing the density, height, mass, and scale of the building, as well as addressing access, 
parking, privacy, landscaping and architectural design. 

DISCUSSION 
The 31,365 square foot (.72 acre) project site is located on 381

h Avenue between Capitola Road 
and Brommer Street. The relatively flat site currently contains a commercial salvage yard which 
is proposed to be removed as part of the project. Abutting the west property line are single
family homes located in the County, while to the south of the property is a self storage facility. 
Across the street is the King's Plaza shopping center, while to the north is a combination of 
office and commercial properties. 

-64-



-157-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item#: 5.C. 1575 38th Avenue PC ~tatt Report.pat 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 381
h Avenue 3 

The project consists of demolition of the existing salvage yard and its accessory buildings and 
construction of a 23-unit rental (market rate), unassisted senior housing development. The 
project applications to be considered by the City include: Planned Development Rezoning, 
Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for the demolition and construction. 

The proposed project will be contained within an approximate 65,000 square foot, three-story 
building. The contemporary Mediterranean architecture incorporates a mix of smooth stucco 
finish, cast stone balustrades, wrought iron railings, and barrel tile roof. The proposed housing 
units will be located on the second and third floors. The planned units include 14 studio units 
and nine one-bedroom units (Attachment A). 

The ground level includes an enclosed 35-space enclosed parking garage, a main entry lobby, a 
commercial kitchen, and a private restaurant with an outdoor dining area for residents. The 
restaurant area, with an approximately 600 square foot kitchen, will offer meals three times a 
day. There is shared common area throughout the development, with a 480-square foot pool 
with spa and cabana proposed on the third floor. A community rooftop deck has also been 
incorporated. 

In addition to a restaurant for residents and guests, a number of amenities will be provided for 
the residents, including a swimming pool, bocci ball, hobbies, exercise, yoga, massage, book 
club, classes, educational speakers, wifi, and a shuttle service that will provide supplemental 
transportation for residents. 

General Plan 
The General Plan Designation for the site is C-LC (Commercial - Shopping Local). The 
designation is described as "Commercial areas that serve local neighborhoods." The Housing 
Element lists the site as a Mixed-Use Residential/Commercial opportunity site. Although the 
Housing Element states that a net of 17 units are possible on the site, it is possible to develop 
more. The CN zoning district does not have a specific maximum lot coverage or minimum lot 
area per unit. Therefore, density is indirectly controlled by the need to meet parking 
requirements. 

-65-



-158-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item#: 5.C. 1575 38th Avenue PC Staff Report.pdf 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 38th Avenue 4 

Neighborhood Commercial (CN) Zoning District 
The parcel is currently zoned CN (Neighborhood Commercial). The purpose of the existing CN 
district is "to accommodate, at convenient locations, those limited commercial uses which are 
necessary to meet frequently occurring basic shopping and service needs of persons residing in 
adjacent areas and to implement the harmonious intermingling of pedestrian, commercial and 
residential activities. The style and scale of development should be consistent with the foregoing 
and the intensity of uses should have low impact on the neighborhood." 

This is a neighborhood commercial district that permits single family residential and 
residential/commercial mixed use development as principal permitted uses. Multifamily 
residential is permitted with a conditional use permit. Required setbacks are 15 feet at the front, 
10% of lot width for the first floor side, and 15% of the lot width for the second floor side yards. 
The rear set back requirement is 1 O feet for commercial developments and 20% of lot depth for 
residential projects. 

Planned Development Rezoning Process 
As proposed, the development does not meet the current CN zoning district development 
standards. Therefore a Planned Development (PD) application has been submitted. Section 
17.39.01 O of the Zoning Ordinance states that the purpose of the Planned Development District 
is "to encourage and provide a means for effectuating desirable development, redevelopment, 
rehabilitation, and conservation in the city, which features variation in siting, mixed land uses, 
and/or varied dwelling types. The amenities and compatibility of PD districts is to be insured 
through adoption of a general development plan, showing proper orientation, desirable design 
character and compatible land uses." This would allow some flexibility to the development 
standards in order to achieve the desired result. 

Requested Exceptions 
The PD district provides that standards for area, coverage, density, yard requirements, parking 
and screening for PD district uses shall be governed by the standards of the zoning district most 
similar in nature and function to the proposed PD district use as determined by the Planning 
Commission. Therefore, CN zoning is most similar to the proposed PD district use. Per the PD 
ordinance, exceptions to standards are allowed when it is found that the exceptions "encourage 
a desirable living environment and are warranted in terms of the total proposed development or 
unit thereof." The following is a summary of the CN exceptions requested as part of the PD 
rezoning. 

Development Standards CN District Proposed 

Front Yard Setback 
First Floor 15' -0" landscape strip 14 + 9' sidewalk 

Second Floor 15'-0" 14 + 9" sidewalk 
Third Floor n/a 34' + 9' sidewalk 

Rear Yard Setback(Residential) 
First Floor 48'-0" 15'-0" 

Second Floor 48'-0" 23'-0" 
Third Floor n/a 30'-0" 

Rear Yard Setback (Commercial) 
First Floor 1 O' -0" including 1 O' landscape strip 

and solid masonry wall 15'-0" including 10' landscape 
strip and solid masonry wall 

Second Floor 10'-0" 23'-0" 

Third Floor n/a 30'-0" 



-159-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem#: 5.C. 1575 38th A 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 381
h Avenue 

Side Yard Setback 
South property boundary 

First Floor 13'-0" 0'-0" dining/kitchen area 

Second Floor 19'-7" 
6'-0" building 

0'-0" pool 

6'-0" decks & 15'-0" 
Third Floor n/a 0'-0" pool 

15'-0" decks & 21 '-0" units 

Side Yard Setback 
North property boundary 

First Floor 13'-0" 7'-0" building 

Second Floor 19'-7" 7'-0" decks & 16'-0" units 

Third Floor n/a 16'-0" decks & 23'-0" units 

Maximum Height 27' 39' average 

48' top of elevator tower 

Traffic/Circulation 

5 

A Forecast Trip Generation, On-Site Parking Analysis and Pedestrian Warrant Analysis report 
was prepared by RBF consulting (Attachment E) to evaluate the potential impacts of the project 
in accordance with the standards set forth by the City of Capitola. The proposed project is 
estimated to result in a net increase of 39 daily weekday trips based on trip generation rates for 
senior housing and warehouse uses published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers. 
Traffic from the existing salvage yard was deducted from the total trips generated by the 
proposed senior housing project. The proposed project is estimated to result in a slight 
decrease in AM and PM peak trips compared to the existing use. The addition of approximately 
40 project trips to study intersections throughout the day would not have a noticeable effect. The 
project traffic would result in a less-than-significant impact, and no mitigation measures are 
required. 

For vehicular circulation, site access for the proposed project is planned via one 
inbound/outbound driveway located along 38th Avenue. The proposed driveway is designed to 
be offset from two existing driveways serving the retail center across 381

h Avenue from the 
project site. The driveway design will not result in increased hazards or inadequate emergency 
access. 

In regards to pedestrian circulation, a 9' sidewalk is proposed along the street frontage of the 
property. While not currently proposed as part of the project, the RBF report evaluated the 
potential for the installation of an unsignalized mid-block pedestrian crossing to connect the 
project to the King's Plaza commercial property. The analysis presents that the pedestrian 
volume does not warrant a crossing. However, installation of the crosswalk is at the discretion 
of the City. 

Parking 
The Forecast Trip Generation, On-Site Parking Analysis and Pedestrian Warrant Analysis report 
prepared by RBF consulting reviewed parking for the proposed use. The City of Capitola 
Municipal Code does not specifically include a parking requirement for a senior housing type 
use. The closest comparison would likely be the requirement for multiple-family residential, 
such as apartments and condominiums, which is 2.5 spaces per unit. Based on this 
requirement, a total of 58 spaces would be required. 

-67-



-160-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
IL ....... TT ...... ._.. ....... .., .,., ............... ue PC Staff Report.pdf 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 381
h Avenue 6 

Considering the fact that this is a senior complex, it is anticipated that the parking demand will 
be less than a standard market rate apartment complex. The RBF analysis provided an 
evaluation of the number of on-site parking spaces required for the proposed project utilizing 
guidelines specifically designed for senior housing land use as set forth by jurisdictions in the 
vicinity as well as information contained in other published guidelines used as industry standard. 

On-Site On-Site Adequate 
Guideline Source Senior Housing Parking Project Parking Parking Parking 

Requirement Size Spaces Spaces Spaces 
Per Guideline Required Planned Planned 

City of Live Oak Municipal Code 0.6 Parking Spaces Per Unit 23 du 14 36 2 Yes 

City of Santa Cruz Municipal Code 1 Parking Space for each 3 Dwelling Units 8 Yes 

1 Parking Space for Each Unit With Half the 
City of Seaside Municipal Code Spaces Covered Plus 1 Guest Parkin~ 26 Yes 

Space for Each 1 O Units 

ITE Parking Generation, 3rd Edition 1.4 Parking Spaces per dwelling unit1 33 Yes 

Notes: du = Dwelling Urnt 
1 = Observed peak parking demand of 50%. 
2 =Parking supply is based on Villa Capitola Unassisted Senior Housing Site Plan (Nancy Huyck, 0511712012) 

Based on the above table, the range of parking requirements for a similar project would vary 
from 8 to 33 parking spaces. With a total of 35 spaces provided, the project will provide an 
adequate number of parking spaces to serve the proposed senior housing use. 

Landscaping 
With the proposed structure covering the majority of the site, there are limited opportunities for 
landscaping. Along the rear property line, a row of nine 30" box California Bay trees and six 24" 
box Arbutus Marina trees will be planted to provide screening. On the north side of the building, 
a mix of olive trees and camellia plants are proposed, in addition to a continuous walkway that 
wraps around to the rear of the property. The streetscape will incorporate a mix of olive trees, 
star jasmine and a water fountain complimenting the Mediterranean architecture. Potted plants 
will also be introduced throughout the project on the multiple decks and pool area. There are 
several existing redwood trees along the adjacent property boundary to the south. 

Lighting 
Overall site lighting will be directed downward and shielded from adjacent properties. The 
guidelines also require light to be contained on the property. An exterior lighting plan which 
delineates the type, height and location of the proposed lighting will be required as part of the 
building submittal. 

Shadow/Light 
The building design steps back at the rear of the site allowing for adequate light and solar 
access to the adjacent residential properties. Except for a limited period of time in the winter, 
the project will have a minimal solar access impact on the adjacent residential properties to the 
west. 

Walls/Fencing 
A 6'-8" high concrete block wall (measured from project finished grade) is proposed along the 
western property line adjacent to residential properties. In addition, a 6'-8" wrought iron fence is 
proposed along the north property line. 

-68-



-161-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem#: 5.C. 1575 38th A' 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 381
h Avenue 

Public Improvements 

7 

New curb, gutter and sidewalk will be installed along the 381
h Avenue frontage. The sidewalk 

will have a 9' width, with tree wells incorporated for olive trees. All utilities will be required to be 
undergrounded. 

Environmental Review 
The Initial Study was prepared and circulated per CEQA requirements, and a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration prepared for adoption based on the determination that the project will not 
have a significant effect on the environment (Attachment C). There are no changes in the 
current application that would result in a significant effect on the environment. Only one 
mitigation measure has been included regarding noise, requiring preparation of an acoustical 
study with the building permit submittal and the requirement that the building plans incorporate 
any recommended building or window design measures, if needed to achieve required indoor 
noise levels. All other potentially significant impacts were deemed less than significant based 
on the current project design, preliminary studies, and conditions of approval relating to the 
building code and city regulations. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend adoption of the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, and recommend approval of application #13-061 to the City Council, 
subject to the following conditions and based on the following findings: 

CONDITIONS 

i. The project approval is for a Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and 
Design Permit to demolish a commercial salvage yard (Capitola Freight and Salvage) and 
construct a three-story, 23-unit residential senior housing project in the CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) Zoning District. 

2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the approved design must 
be approved by the Planning Commission. Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, 
or the site, must be approved by the Planning Commission. 

3. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

4. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. - 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 
a.m. - 4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 

5. Air-conditioning equipment and other roof top equipment shall be screened from view and 
fall within the allowable city permitted decibel levels. 

6. Affordable housing in~lieu fees shall be paid as required to assure compliance with the City 
of Capitola Affordable (lnclusionary) Housing Ordinance. Any appropriate fees shall be paid 
prior to building permit issuance. 

7. A drainage plan or design shall be submitted with the final building plans, to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Director and approved by Santa Cruz County's Zone 5 Drainage District. 

8. The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will 
include the specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation 

-69-



-162-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
n~ ........... - ....... .., ........ ~ .......... ue PC Staff Report.pdf 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 381
h Avenue 8 

system to be utilized. Irrigation and landscaping shall be installed prior to final building 
occupancy. 

9. An erosio'n control plan shall be approved and in place prior to grading and construction on 
site. 

10. Prior to Certificates of Occupancy being issued, the project Developer shall be responsible 
for installing all required frontage improvements including curb, gutter, and sidewalk, along 
381

h Avenue for the length of the property frontage. All sidewalks are to meet the standards 
for ADA accessibility. 

11. All lighting shall be shielded and directed on to subject property, away from adjacent 
residential properties. Lighting intensity shall be reviewed and approved by staff prior to 
final occupancy and shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon receipt of a 
complaint. 

12. No roof equipment is to be visible to the general public. Any necessary roof screening is to 
match the color of the building as closely as possible. Plans for any necessary screening 
shall be submitted to the Community Development Department prior to, or in conjunction 
with, building permit submittal. 

13. A 6'-8" high concrete block wall (measured from project finished grade) shall be constructed 
along the western property line adjacent to residential properties. 

14. The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit, from the Director of Public Works, prior 
to any work in the public right of way. 

15. The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and 
Public Works Department requirements. A note shall be placed on the final building plans 
indicating this requirement. Underground utility vaults shall be located in a paved surface 
area outside of the landscaped area. 

16. The applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Santa Cruz City Water Department 
regarding landscape irrigation and/or water fixture requirements, as well as any 
infrastructure improvements. Final building plans shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Department prior to issuance of building permits. 

17. The applicant shall implement "Best Management" construction practices to control dust and 
PM10 emissions during grading and site development. The MBUAPCD identifies the 
following construction practices to control dust: 

o Water all active construction areas at least twice daily; 
o Prohibit all grading activities during periods of high winds (over 15 mph); 
o Cover all trucks hauling dirt, sand or loose materials. 
o Cover or water stockpiles of debris, soil and other materials which can become 

windblown; 
o Install wheel washers at the entrance to construction sites for all existing trucks; 
o Sweep streets if visible soil material is carried out from the construction site; 
o Apply chemical soil stabilizers on inactive construction sites; 
o Plant vegetative ground cover in disturbed areas as soon as possible. 

18. The applicant shall submit a construction plan for approval prior to building permit issuance. 
The plan shall include, but not be limited to, identifying construction hours, access to the 
site, contractor parking locations, office trailer locations, material storage, etc. 

-70-



-163-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem#: 5.C. 1575 38th A' 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 381
h Avenue 9 

19. If archaeological resources or human remains are accidentally discovered during 
construction, work shall be halted within 50 meters (150 feet) of the find until it can be 
evaluated by a qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is determined to be significant, 
appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated and implemented. Disturbance shall not 
resume until the significance of the archaeological resources is determined and appropriate 
mitigations to preserve the resource on the site are established. If human remains are 
encountered during construction or any other phase of development, work in the area of 
discovery must be halted, the Santa Cruz County coroner notified, and the provisions of 
Public Resources Code 5097.98-99, Health and Safety Code 7050.5 carried out. If the 
remains are determined to be Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission 
(NAHC) shall be notified within 24 hours as required by Public Resources Code 5097. 

20. The applicant shall meet or exceed the California Green Building Code and Capitola Green 
Building Program. 

21. Mitigation Measure 1: The applicant shall prepare an acoustical study with the building 
permit submittal. The building plans shall incorporate any recommended building or window 
design measures, if needed to achieve required indoor noise levels. 

FINDINGS 

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have reviewed the project and determined that the project, subject to 
the conditions of approval with the Planned Development Zoning designation, is consistent 
with the purposes of the Planned Development District. Conditions of approval have been 
included to carry out the objectives of the PD district and General Plan. 

B. The application will m~intain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have reviewed the project and determined that the proposed senior 
housing use will maintain the character and integrity of the area, implementing the 
harmonious intermingling of pedestrian, commercial and residential activities. Conditions of 
approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity 
of the neighborhood. 

C. A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared for this project based upon the 
completion of an Initial Study which identified that the project will not have a 
significant effect on the environment. 

The Initial Study was prepared and circulated per CEQA requirements, and a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration prepared for adoption based on the determination that the project will. 
not have a significant effect on the environment. 

-71-



-164-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
1L1;;111 .,.,.. "'·'"'· • ..,, .., ..,uu1 .Mv1;;11Lle PC Staff Report.pdf 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT: June 6, 2013 1575 381
h Avenue 10 

D. Planned Development Findings (Section 17.39.050) 

• The proposed PD district, and the development associated with it, can be substantially 
completed within two years of the establishment of the district. The plans for the 
development and environmental review have been completed, demonstrating a 
readiness to move forward with the project. 

• The proposed market rate senior housing development will not be detrimental to present 
and potential surrounding uses, but will have a beneficial effect which could not be 
achieved under other zoning districts by providing much needed housing to a growing 
population of seniors in a central location adjacent to a mix of commercial uses, 
including banks, a movie theatre, several restaurants, drug store, and grocery stores, as 
well as the Capitola Mall. 

• The requested exceptions to development standards are warranted by the design and 
amenities incorporated into the development which focuses on providing an independent 
senior living experience for a growing population of seniors, maximizing the use of this 
relatively unconstrained and centrally located site, already identified for infill 
development. 

• The PD district and general development plan are compatible with the general plan and 
the most recently adopted Housing Element. 
1) The site is located in a central location close to all services, and alternative 

transportation. 
2) The site is unconstrained with regard to biotic or other natural resources and 

therefore could be developed in the manner proposed without having significant 
impacts on trees, streams, wildlife, archaeological or historic resources, etc. 

3) The proposed development plan is located adjacent to commercial uses along 41 st 

Avenue, and is consistent with economic and housing goals for the City which 
seeks to provide a range of housing types. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Project Plans 
B. Project Design Progression 
C. Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration 
D. Planning Commission Minutes from September 6, 2012 
E. Forecai:;t Trip Generation, On-Site Parking Analysis and Pedestrian Warrant Analysis 

prepared by RBF Consulting, dated June 8, 2012 
F. Letter from Steve Thomas and Maureen Romac, dated May 22, 2013 
G. Petition submitted May 22, 2013 
H. Letter from George Ow Jr. dated January 14, 2013 
I. Letter from Kim Frey, dated January 15, 2013 

Report Prepared By: Danielle Uharriet 
Interim Senior Planner 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\6-6-13\Word\1575 38th Avenue PC stf rpt.docx 

-72-



-165-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 

"' (.,.) 
I 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
Unassisted Senior Housing 
1575 38th Avenue 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 

PROJECT DATA 

owNER1 Stava Thomas and Maurocn Romac 

OWNER'S AGEtm Nancy Huyck 

ASSESSOR PARca. NUMBER: 0~181-17 

p;,qca""""' """~'""* 31~0 ,, (1'0'-1' +/-. 2<0'-" +/-) 
ZONED: PD (i'lonnod ""'-'11) 

SETBACKS: ~:1ts= ~~·~::~~~:dJ'l~-o;,~~-)'°1k (Avero90 SMhack 29•-o~) 
Roar. Weat: 15'-0" 
Sl<lo Ncrllu 7'-rt' 

ARfAs.: Gi:I~ and Aseoc:lottd tunctlons Of1 Grl7IJnd Aoor. 2J,J78af 
Second Floor Oncludtng ca ciecb): 22.2.72at 
lhlcd Floar (lncludlng all decks+ pool area): 19,805,r 
1CTAL mA: OS.401 

UNIT COUNT: .?J Units Total 
SWdlo: l4 
Ono Bodrcom: 9 

PAR/ONG COUNT: 35 Slall:I Toi~ 

BUILDING HEIGHT: 39' +/- A't'tlftlgo 

CODE + CONSTRUCTION ElATA 

NUMSER OF STORIES: 3 (Go,.,, i- '""°" ond Thhl st.y ..,.rt.nonlo) 

SUlOINQ OcctJP~C'f Cl.ASSIFIC.-.TlON: R:..2 ?.o;!dcntlal 

OCCIJPHfT um> FOR El.CH FLOOR: 

"""' J=> ~~"~11Ja)' 
rn3E: CF' COHSTRUC'TlON: SA 

FIREPRlm'CT!CN: AUtamatk:FlraSprlnklgr~mThroa9f1aut 

0!!"!0111 )1114 

I """"' .... ['\ 
~ l 

J l ~ 

I , 
© 

= g ! 

""""" -\ ~- .... i/ "'-l,.-/ 
0 VICINITY M/\P 

"""'' 

SCHEDULE OF DRAWINGS: - IH GEH!Jl'l.'*'llRlll.110t< 

(l!oadart191~ 

CM. C-1 SIJ~fllj> - A-! .IJEMOU110!< PLAN (Aoriol Ffooio) 

A-2 ll1E PLAN 

IN Fm RDOR cR&f. PlM 

""" SECON,D f'µ>oR PLJ.N 

H 1Hl!D fl.DOR PLAN 

...... ROOf PLAN 
!<-1 """"""~-..... !Xl!llOR!l.£VATONS 
/t-9 BUWNG stcnoliS 

/t-10 BUWNG SE!:!IOliS 

/t-11 IJmSCliPE + SUE LJGHmC 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SCQUE" ORNE 
A"TC~. CA 9S003 

PHONE (831)685-1205 
FAX (831)888-3205 

~e,<:,<:, 
~t() i-\' 

~b.,-"\. 

no. cote deacrlptlon 

REVISIONS 

PROJECT TIM 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1515 36th AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA g5ae2 

APN: 034-181-17 

SHEET Tm..E: 

GENERAL 
INFORMATION 

DATE: 0~1B-13 

DAA\'11'1 fiY: NLH 

JOB NO.: Nll 40 

DWG, Na,: N1140-C-I 

G-1 
:iheet of 



-166-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
ILClll 'tf". v.v. J""\LLQ\,lllllCllL_J""\.pdf 

d· 4 c·.u ·1Js"' rH'1> 
S3SOd8nd lllVM30JS M3N 80'1 

NOU.ISlnOOV 30L\\ ;s 03SOd08d 

-74-



-167-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
~ 
01 
I 

~~~ 

i.·~t 

Existing Vicinity Parcels I Drainage Lines· Existing Site Conditions 

Existing Conditions for Demolition 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

'~~ . ><':'.·:·~; 
9200'°'SOOl!ia DRIVE 
APTOS, CA' 95003 

·~'t.li1.~f)'J::=3dsg• 

doscrlption 

PROJECT TITLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
157-' 3!Stti AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN: 034-191-17 

SHEEI' 1TT1..E ::+ 
CD 

EXISTING ::::1 
CONDITIONS for 
DEMOLITION 

SCALE: Nano 

DATE: 04-18-13 

DRAWN BY: 
Joa NO.: N11.+0 

DWG. NO.: N1140-A-1 

A-1 



-168-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

1-,----l--lil- 6' -8" T.'l..L BLOCK W.'l..L 1\1.DNG 
,'\ 

; .. 

: .: ~ 

" .,I• 

":.,. 
. " 
.>: 

".· 

" 

WES! SIDE OF •PROPERlY LINE 
(SEPARATION FROM SINGtr FAMILY RESICEl:ICES) 
PRC~CE FOR SURFACE DRAINAGE FROM WEST 
SIDE l.015 THROUGH' NEW 'WALL . 

NOTE #1: 
NOTE #2: 

NOTE #3: 

GRADING: Estimated cut is 1,485 cybic yords 
DRAINAGE: See "Preliminary Storm Water · 
Management Report" dqted June 6, 2012 
(Bowman qc W11liqms - Consulting Civil Engineers) 
.As$ume New Elevations and Existing Elevation:;; 
ore the Same excepf qn East $ide of Building 
(See Front / East Elevation) · · 

;,-.,/"-El!ISTING CR,\IN INLET (Cl) 
7) APPROXllJATE LOCATION 

!~~~~··-----------------------.----~...-----.~~. 
-~ --------. ------------. ---. ---. ---, ------,-----. -----

I 

'"" CJ) 
I 

.· .... : 

$ f--+--1--++ _-f-f-++ _-l-f--f-f-1-1 

~~ 
Iii -

-

-
-·-«-

-

·--:-

PRIVATE R~AURAITT 

Site Plan 

no. d~o dGocrlptlon 

RE:VISIONS 

PROJECT TITLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
';1. UNASSISTED 
~ SliNIOR lrlOUSING 

1575 38th 'AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA. 

APN~ 034--1~1-17 

SITE PLAN 

SCALE: i/a" · ... 1'-0" 

DATE: 04-18~13 

DRAWN BY: NLH 
JOB NO.: N1 140 

owq. NO.: N1140...:A-2 

A-2 
:ihaat of uhaob 

;::; 
(ll 

3 
~ 

~ 
(" 

): 
::: 
Q.I 
("l 
:::::i 

3 
(ll 
:::::i 

I 
,..., 

~ 
"'C 
c. 
-t. 



-169-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

0 © © .,,._,. © @ @ ® 

~---

1 ~ 
I 

- I - I - ! - ! - : - T - I - ! - ! - ! - ! - I -

i i ! ! i I ! ! ! ! ! i 
---i----r---. -,-. ----r----T-----f----,----i-----,-----r---. -,-~--r---, -

14'-t' 

I I=?! = '= O;::o I = I;= I= I = I= 1=·1 = I= I=! = = I= I 

!. ~ · @@ Ho'x 18 each i 

I I I I I H--1-+--+-<---

1 I I I I I I ~ H-+-+-l-1--1--l---1 

I \;I I I ~~1-~-·'"'~'"l'll-l-:~~H-t-H 
I ~ I I '! I'""'"' I 

Tl"SH 

<--{- - 1111 

n 

~·-o· 
m:V1$1CE'fl.IU(-, 

I 
I HUYCK 

ARCHITECTS 

s p~~E<acgz)~g::;Jgga 

·b 

,,,._. I I I~ 
\""'''~ _,_ _@@ 10'x18' ea.@@ 9x18 ea. ~ rr=='4~...,"Tc::::....J:[~~.,.;·~~~~tii~~~j-----H\ 

l.J--ll---1 ~ ! ! g'"8' '':18'~ '~~,·~ ! i ; : ""'~~ -- . i ~- • -;--
I ~ -~ ~ I I " ~ -II-- ~ ~"' ~ ~ ~ - ~ - ~~ ~~ ' l ~ .if-1-: /~ '--~~;;;!:IH-1 ::1--1--:::~-+:~~: 

~---1 ""' ; 9'x18' 9'x18' - -~ •i 
0 

I Im [-ii ~ .-.; 

~ 
. I 11 MX-XX-IO: XXlt 

no. date ' deacrlption 

REVISIONS 
I e i _ _ ~ ~ 1 - i: I ~ · I : /< r:i..r J-1 

i n 1 @@ 10'x18' ea.11®@ ·9'x18' ea. ' 1 
' 

1
1 -6,':"~ ~ 

1

1 ~-,-T"-r---,---~-ll-1-t-----f 
1 s [ l

1 1 
11,~;;;.u1, ~ 

PRQJECT TJTLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 

s UNASSISTED 

I
I ~ n s I I r· ..... DINING 

I I I __l .._ (i:AtiCRNTOOlllDDO!tl'Al!D)--

I ;O · dlsh'wcslior I -~ 

i n i I i i Jtt:t; - _, [Ylb==ilC=c::lfy1iilW-1~-L-.L---l--H-+ 
: .rt:;- .r ~~' . "'~~~ ~~· n ! MECHmle\L&i ~ t~~,::-l· -1-:~-H-EN- -- ID 'i DINING I 

l l __ ~1_ --_· _· ___ 2i" "_: ~ --'~'-'_'. --___ 1_. -- - -~-_· - ~I-- -_· - - _·_ - _~_.. __ 1 ___ '_ .. 11 ..... ~-'-· _.,_l ___ _..L__ _ _J_J...J. 

~ 

~ 

SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 38tl1 AVENUC: 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN: 0~-1B1-17 

SHEE:l' TlTl.E 

FIRST FLOOR 
GARA()E PLAN 

1------
SCALE; 1/8" • 1'-0" 

1-0-'-'-A""-' 0-'--4-.C:..10-_1> __ 1 
DRAWN BY: ~Lii 

Joe' NO.: N11 <JO 

DWG. NO~: N1140-A-3 

(3 5 total parking stalls). First Floor Garage Plan A-3 

I 
--.J 
--.J 
I 

:ihCGt of :ihoetci 



-170-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 

"" CX> 
I 

Deck 

Bod room 

Deck Deck 

Bedroom 

Deck 

Deck 

Bedroom 

studio 

I, 

Qeck Dock 

® 
15'~0" • 

Deck Deck 

Studio 

Stud!o 

LOBBY 

COMMUNITY 

num~ Wotor POOL EOUIPMc:NT !SPA Aiiovo! 

011ck ~ 

,-,-----·~--~r~~--~--~r---1 
l I I , I 
~- -------~- ~-------- ---~ 

POO~ EQUIPMENT ~ 

.1 
I I 

I I I 
I I I 

! Sedond !Floo Plan 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL EIRIVE 
APTO~. CA 9500;, 

P~~(a~;,~;::~~~~s 

~<?,$$ 
~'\P \'b-\""; 

~ti..-

no. dote daaorlpt!on 

REVISIONS 

PROJECT llTLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1S75 Jeth AV~UE 

SANTA qRUZ, CA 

APN: 034-1~1-17 

SHEET Tlll.E 

Sl;:COND FLOOR 
PLAN 

· SCALE: Va• - 1•-0• 

DATj::: 04-1 B-13 

DRAWN Erf; NLH 

. Joa No,;' N1HO 

DIYq. NO.: Ni1_40.,.A-~ 

A-4 
of 

;::; 
(ll 

3 
:i:: 
0 
( 

): .... .... 
Q; 
C": 

= 
(t 

( 
~ 

"t: 
a. ..... 



-171-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

1 cp ~ 5 Cf (~ 9 ® @ 12 

iol'..O" 

13 14 15 

11'-8' IS'..C" 1!i'-O' U'..O' 1!!'-a" i!i'-o• l~'·ll" 1:i•..a· 1~·:0' l!i'-a" 15'-D' -I I I ..... y.,J. 

I I 
I I 

I 
I 

Oe~k 

I Dock 

I 
Sl!Jdy 

~ 

I 
'. 

Oa~k 

I 

---

·'----

1· \~ 

. ,...... 

·-~ I 
"'1•11 II 

PDl)L 12',,; 401 

Eh:ick 
1;. 

Dock Qack Deck '/ 
11 \ 

.E>haust 

'-" I i ,...._ I ,_, 
I I 
I I 

I I 
I I 

I I ' 
I I 

I I 

l 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I I 

I 
I 

I 

: I 
1-A---_j_ _ _j_ _ _j__ _ __j___j_----f---+---:-----+--,...:.!.J.=FJ==FT=;::::==;:.=t=I ==1====1==-i~--L<i.. 

I I 
I I 

Th~rd It·
1 

Ioor P an I . 

I ~1 I -

I 
I I I I 
I I I I 

I I I 
I 
I 

I 
I I I 

i I I . I 

I 
--! 
CD 
I 

HUYCK 

9200 SOQUEL O~ 
AF'TOS, CA 9~003 

p~~'<•~?,W~~ig2• 

Rf:VTSIONS 

PROJECT TITLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED. 
SENIOR HOUSING 
157.S :SBlh AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ1 CA 

AP/:{: 034-1~t-17. 

SHEET TITLE 

THIRD Fl,00~ 

Pl,AN 

SCA~ 1/8• • 1'-0"' 

DATE: o+-1e~1J 
D~WN E(l': NLH 
Joa No.: N1i4o 
DW!1. NO.: N1 HOcA-5 

A-5 

::+ 
CD 
3 



-172-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

v 

.-v' 

0 

I 
00 
0 
I 

14 15 

I 161..a" 
I 

1· 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I I 
I I 

I I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I i __ _, 

T 

i~ i I I I 1

1 I I i 

I If{--- i ~------1, r-----1, r ---1 'r--~-! 'r----11+ !-- ' - -- i I I I -,-------I -----/1 i 
! ~+~1 i! i1 l'I I'll 1,1 I' : ~-1 : /I 

~-1-k~- ~d i i i ' i l i i ~' 
i ! i I i i i I I I i '1 I '1 ----I 

i t:± ~- µ____ _ ___, I I l'"'--!J '
1

11111111111 I i:l,P=====::;:-i 

~ :-- 11r-==- F--1 ! 1 
1111

_:::: ..... :::: ....... -.... " ,: n 1 ·i i i b---_1 i 
: I I I I iii=====i:==:;::::=:±,=. ====$ ,1=1~;;=~.::JI:::!· :!=j=~==l:::.i ' L I 11 

~---f.i:--it-f+--- -, -----ti''"""' ___ __.
1 
_____ +-ll----['.:;:: 'Rldg•o!Sk)'light I i-----1---- ---1- --~ ---~~-c~-M-~~~w~ 

I I I I 1-1- ' ...- GREEN BARREL TILE ' I l 
j j I I I I .I : TYPAAOUNOPAAAPET : !I ' 

! ! I i i I ~ : I/ I I 11·, I ---- I I c::l I i! I r ---

1
__ "-,...,,_ I/ aE'/. I I I L:::_j' 

i l i I l'l-l-l---l--l-4-l-i"~~~.,~.._--1--1-4-l-+l/4-<'Y'"--l-l---l-l-\.~~-: I: l):::::::;:d:::-~J-=-=-=-=-=·k:;~=-:l:c~~:J-==::;:==jl====~:::..J 
! I I I 111-f.-l-++.+-f.-I-+..., AA?l:;;. 1,611 SF l-l-+-l-+-1-1.,,j~ I I : I I 

! ! i 1' fll-f.-l-++.+-f.-1..,-. +v-,;.<~-+-'1-t-+...,~l-f...,' i-..<--t-+-+--f-'tt! I ! ._ ~Ol ARLELqw I 

l~l I I J.!:::====::::::,l~TTl/T,,::H-'"'t-t-tr:=::±::~,=:==:=t;;:.,:~,="~=;;:1,':;;====;;:l:,:===-l I i i 
1 
--1~ I 1 r 1 1 1 1 1 t 1 r--L- 1 1 1 

U ________ r----- L) ~ # n iii-~lii-~-{ [_ ___ Ji ______ 1,,-----~I Ir= I :i=: ====::i=1 ===::i=1 =::;-I I 

i ! ·~ I ~ ,_, ! i L __ ~L_J ___ _l_ ___ L_~----------

,_,_ 

-

1 

I 

Roof Plan 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL DRIVE 
APTOS, CA 95003 

p~:1~ez)~;::~~~s 

e":.'1' 
~tC~ \'l_, 

'VJ~_\'k 

I 

flO, date da=icrlpti~n 

R~SIONS 

PRqJECT Tm.E 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1.575 3Bth AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN: OJ+-1e1:...17 

SHEET Trrt.E 

ROOF 
PLAN 

SCA1..E: ;;a· ... 11-0". 

DA'lE: 04-18-13 

DRAWN SY1 NlH 

JOB No.i N1140 

DWG. N0.1 N1140...'..A-6 

A-6 
of 

::::; 
(ll 

3 
~ 

0 
( 

): ,.. .... 
tl: 
c-: 

(t -
I 
~ 

"t: 
c. ..., 



-173-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
()'.) ...... 
I 

North Elevation 

East Elevation ~ Front 

--. --- . ::r~1Wrm~~---. -. 

HUYCK 
ARCHIT~CTS 

9200 SOQUEL ~M: 
APTOS, CA 95003 

PHONE (631)885-1206 
FAX (831)688-3205 

dato doserlptlan 

RO\llSIONS 

PRQJECT Tl1U: 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 :3Sth AVENUE: 

SANTA CRUZ, C>. 

APN: ~+-181-17 
~ 

~ r.----------1 
SHEET 11TL~ 

EXTERIOR 
ELEVATIONS 

-~~~Df!lrf_ ... _ ~J"··---'-''"~--------
' SCALE: 11s· • , '-o" · 

1).djacent China Village DATE: 0+-16-13 

DRAWN £:!Y: NLH 

' JOB NO.: M1140 

DWCI. NO'.: N11'0-A-7 

A-· 7 



-174-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

- - -- -~l«Xm~T+!-~~--~,_~~1 
____ TOP.!f~~t._~--

~~·f,W-o• 

~ 

~ 
~ ~ 

. We·st Elev~tion -Rear 

HUYCK 
ARC;HITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL DRIVE 
APTo~, CA' 96003 

P~ONE (63i)685-1206 
FAX (831 )666-3205' 

f/Je~"'1 
~t~ \'b~\" 
~~~· 

1!i75 38lh AVENUE 

SAITTA cRUi, CA 

A.?~: 034-181-17 

SH~ET 'Tm..E 

EXTERIOR 
ELEVATIONS 

;::i 
CD 
3 
:i1 
~ 
(' 

~ 
::l 
Ill 
(") 
:::i 
3 
CD 
:::i 

1'"" 
~ 

"C 
c. ...... 

t--'~-~~----~~--,------,.-,------,...--~-~,.._-~,,,_,.._......, ___ ~~--,--_,......,...._,... __ ~-~--~~---~,.._--~,--'--_,.-,.._~--~~--=:~=.~-~~~~~Jl~·~-7-L~--------1 
: •CAl-E' ve·· - 1 •-0· 

I 
OJ 
N 
I 

South ~levation ~ Adjacent Storage 
OP..TE: o.:i.-1ei...13 

URAWN BY: NLH 

',JDS NO.: N1140 

owe. Nd.: Ni140~A-B 

A-. 8 
ahaot cf 



-175-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

' I 

I 
()) 
VJ 
I 

n /1 ~--·--------~~=~:·~CF~ I/ i._ ___________________________ ...;.. ___ __,.J ~--- ___ _J1l~Fl!l&4w:n.~11. 

~---------------------------------------------- ---... \ Third 

I 

I 
I 

,_ 1--:-----,,---,-i:='3"!"--------tir---T---H-----1+----tt-----H-------+t---H1------------1 ILJDI 
Socond 

1- r--------------------H r---i'1---++-----H-----;-1-----+t-------i-+---H------------ ) .;....ES!~~1!.!"~11:~ _ ,_ r--------------------H r---iil---++-----H-----;-1-----+t-------i-+---H----------------, ~D'Wllct: IUllA1lCIN+11•-o· -------r 

Garage 
L- ~:-~r_"_"""_ ~ -~--i--·1 

~-------------------'-"'"-'---~,--.U.-----'-'------'"'-----'-''--------'-'----'.L---------------' ~~~o,::t_ 

~----------------------------------------------------' 
I 

Longitudinal Section 

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL DRIVE 
APTOS, CA 95003 

•i;w•,&fN::::;Jsg• 

elate doaeriptlcn 

R"'1SIONS 

I II I II IF ii-.:.__----:_- -l•f?41 
'Ill~ OF lrOCD FMllllC II TCf Cf' P!Nm' PROJECT TITLE 

-l<l"lliiici"llOOiiO"'"-':- =~r---;!ri-I VILLA CAPITOLA 

I 
~ 

;r J 
,__ 

P~ 
~ 

~ 

II 
i1 
I I 
I I 
I I 

)LJ, II 

~ 
--.lD~_t'f'~l'!!P'IE?I~ .... 

n n ., ... .... 
I I l l I I 
I I I I I I ....__ 
I I I I I I "--

1--D 
I 

Longitudinal Section through Community/Skylight 

""'""" "''"'"' .,.._.. UNASSISTED 

'~ 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 .3eth AVENUE: 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN: 034-181-17 

SHEET mu: 

BUILDING 
SECTIONS 

DRAWN B'I: NLI-1 

Joa NO.: Nl140 

DWG. NO.: N1HO-A-SI 

A-9 
shocit ' of ::ihoats 

·-.. ---··-··-------------------------------------------------



-176-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
()) 

~ 
I 

2' -o• below Third Floor; 
All Car;crcte Structure 

-· - - - -- - - -- -z~L[V~+~~~;CfP11fiE!.. _~~.,..,..~1 
- - -- -- -- - - ~~~·~~J1 __ 

Cross Section through Community Lightwell 

Co11crelei Parking Garage 
with Wood Framed SCc:ond 
and Third story 'above 

-- -~~~~+~·~ - -~ -

HUYCK 
ARCHITECTS 

9200 SOQUEL CRIVE 
APTOS, CA 05003 

PHONE (031)685-1206 
FAX (631)686-.'.5205 

data description 

REVISIONS Pool and stnlclurol Supportl 
-- - - -- - - -- -~ll'.O)ruv~~~~- _..,.....,...._._~-' P~~~ ~~!TOLA 

-- - - -- - - ~~~~~J.L_ - ~ UNASSISTED 

~--~ 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I ,, 
I 

I 
I 

I 

-----------ftjjlfr- - - -

I 
I 
I 
I 
I --1------------

I I 

--~~.~--~-

----------------------------1-'-~-~!"=~~~!'lf!l'~D~lli 
\ I 

'--------------------------,.-----~Cross Section through Swimmi.J;i.g Pool 

SENIOR HOUSING 
1575 .36th AVENUE 

SANTA CRUZ, Cl\ 

APN: -034-'81-17 

SHEET Tl'TLE 

BUILDING 
SECTIONS 

Sc.>J.£: 1/B" • 1'-0' 

DRAWN B'I': NU-I 

Joa NO.: N1140 

DWG. NO.: Ni 140-A-.1 0 

A-10 
~liool 

········--·---------------------------------------'---



-177-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
co 
(J'J 
I 

:&~sagR~-g;ol~ ~~g~~Wrt11ljl~E FENCE 
(SEFAAATION FRllt.I CQMMERCIAL PARCELS) 

(3) T3 

PrimeDeaign~roup 
Dt~l~""~•1"° 

Vll1iC.pltol1 
PrapOMd~orUgbtlng 

ThDfallcwlng11111Uioprgpo11C1lghtlngdellgncrlli8riafarlhobuildlngulofiar1ml1llallghlfn;far 
lhopro.foc;t -1. AllCldeltarelghlfna.UlbohfghOITlclcy. 

2.All~rU11hUn1i1wlllbooffllhcul-on'pholcmotry. 
3, Ll;hlln;otllcl•l1C'fwllleXcooclTlllo2'41Dqt1lrwn1tnta. 
.f, U;hlln11camroillll!HbopRMad1oinoat:T/llo.24roqulramlnta, 
15.Llghllngfl~•l*lftc:ar.lonandllll)'OUlwlltcri1uftllnogll;lblo~troapa1111beyu.ndlho11b 

bollnd1u1e1. 
a. Lighllngd1Mlg11wla moolACAllrul IES l'Nlmrnondod li.-nltl.1t1c. lo'o'01'1 

1, Hlghafl'lclltCyoollrGmountperfdn11btllmum. • 
2. LECarHID~wlthglaroc:on1roland1tapoOQ.PQ11cy ... 11Wcontral. 

Paddog ffnummlf!b ood Vefct Antp; 

1. "*11malhlgheftlcDc)tl'Ullcut.otrwtbmotl'ltlOCU!ttyWghtk!if, 
2. Mlrllmal lcPN low! JandQpt llllhtlrtQ. • 

O!r.lklA..NJbl• 
Proelclrmt/ProjoctM1nagor 

ritmo~._-. 
MMNl'M.Mlll~-Clur,l:llDXlllO l'/OltNl.AJ~t11~_.......,.._ 

ElllSTI NG REDWOOD TREES 
ALL ALONG SOUTH SIDE: 
OF PROPER11' LINE 

.... ti 

PLlllllNG ?Q!EOULE: 
TI Olea ouropaeo mo)ostlc bocuty (Oivo) 36" 6ox 
T2 Olea auropoea maJestli: beauty (Ollve) 24" Boic 
T3 Oleo eurcpaco Uttle OHie (OUvc) 24" Box 
T4 Magnolia Stellato (Star Ma~notra) 24' Box 
T5 Umb•llulono Collfomico (Cofifomlo Boy) 30' Box 
T6 Arbutu~ Marina 24" Box 
51 Trcchcloepermum (Star Ja:smlnc) 5 Gallon 
52 Comcllla Japon!co (Camellia) 15 Gallon 

'.\ 

PERM!ABLE PA'IERS 
AT 1.11\IN ENTRY 

PERM!ABLE PAVERS 
AT OOERIOR PATIO 

Landscape Plait+ Site Light 

HUYCK 
ARCHITEiC.TS 

9200 SOQUEL t:IRIVE 
APTOS~ CA 9500:5 

P~~E(S~J1J:::JJ~~S 

nci. data di:i11criptlon 

RE\-lSlONS 

PROJECT TITLE 

VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
1 ~75 JBtti A'ilENiJE 

SANTA CRUZ, CA 

APN1 034-181-~7 

SHEET TITlE 

LANDSCAPE Pl.AN 
end 
SITE LIGHTING 

SCAL.E1 1/8- - 1'-0" 

DATE: o+-1a-1J 

DRAWN ElY: NLH 
JOB NO.: M1140 

OWG. NO.; N1140-A-11 

A-11 
a Moot ., shamts 



-178-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

-86-



-179-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf



-180-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf



-181-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf



-182-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf



-183-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

Thumbnail Elevation 

SUBMISSION #2 ,i · 
Villa Capitola 
(Nancy Huyck Architect) 

(Nancy Huyck Architect) 

Proposed Building 
Specifications 

•Four Story 
• 67 Units 
• 60 Car Pai-king 
•Setbacks: 

-East Front 10'-0" 
-NorthSide 5'-0" 
-WestRear 10'-0" 
-South Side 5' -0" 

Area Calculations 
Including Exterior Balconies 
-Fourth Floor 21,037 sf 
-Third Floor 25,320 sf 
-2nd Floor 26,040 sf 
-Garage 26,040 sf 
TOTAL AREA: 98,437 sf 
Height: 46 Feet Average. 

Separate Entry and Exit from Garage with front Valet Parking. 
Total Landscape Area: 4,280 sf (14% of Site.) 

• Three Story 
• 57 Units 
• 60 Car Parking 
•Setbacks: 

-EastFront -'--" 
-NorthSide -'--" 
-WestRear -'--" 
-South Side-'--" 

Area Calculations 
Including Exterior Balconies 
-Third Floor 23,812 sf 
-2nd Floor 25,220 sf 
-Garage 26, 712 sf 
TOTALAREA: 75,744sf 
Height: 45 Feet Average. 

Separate Entry and Exit from Garage. 
Total Landscape Area:-,---- sf (--%of Site.) 

• Three Story 
• 23 Units 
• 36 Car Parking 
•Setbacks: 

-East Front 5' -0" 
to allow for 9' sidewalk 

-NorthSide 6'-10" 

Area Calculations 
Including Exterior Balconies 

Third Floor 20,574 sf 
2nd Floor 23,628 sf 
Garage 23,628 sf 

:~~~~~~~~~~~swithtwo TOTAL AREA: 67,830 sf 
areas of cutouts totaling 350 sf Height: 42' Average. 

• Separate Entry and Exit from Garage w/ front Valet Parking. 
• Total Landscape Area: 4,967 sf. (16% of Site.) 
• Rear Towers Located at Setback Lines. 
• Balconies'Provided for each Rear Unit. 
• Three Story 
• 23 Units 
• 35 Car Parking 
• Setbacks: 

-East Front 23'-0" 
includes 9' sidewalk 

-NorthSide 6'-10" 
-WestRear 15'-0" 
-South Side (Storage Bldg) 
Landscape area 813 sf 

Area Calculations 
Including Exterior Balconies 

Third Floor 19,805 sf 
2nd Floor 22,272 sf 
Garage 23,378 sf 

TOTAL AREA: 65,455 sf 
Height: 39' Average. 

Total Landscape Area: 7,075 sf. (23% of Site.) 

Corrective Actions Taken 

Not Applicable 

• Reduced Mass 
• Reduced Scale 
• Reduced Height by 1 ft. 

• Reduced Mass 
" Reduced Scale 
• Reduced Height by 3 ft 
• Reduced Units to 23 
• Increased Setbacks 
• Parking/Traffic Study submitted. 

(See 6.c Attachment D, highlighted areas) 
• C.E.Q.A. Review Process Completed. 
• Mitigated Negative Declaration Prepared. 
• Created Rooftop Garden Area 
• Created Skylight to Illuminate Interior Common Areas 

• Reduced Height Average by 3 feet 

• Reduced Total Building Area by 2,375 sf. 

• Restructured Parking Garage Providing for Single 

Ingress/ Egress. (Allowing an additional 2090 sf. land

scaping fronting 38th Ave. with bistro seating. 

• Rear Balconies facing bulb avenue residents eliminated. 

• Two-44 ft. Towers Facing Bulb Ave Residents to the 

Rear Eliminated. 

• Increased Setback to 23' - o• 

Recommendations/ 
Direction from Council 

MAY20, 2011 

Reduce Mass 
Reduce Scale 
Reduce Height 

Reduce Mass 
Reduce Scale 
Reduce Height 

October 3, 2011 

• Traffic/parking study required 
• Comprehensive Environmental Impact Study 

Required 
• Increase Articulation providing 2nd and 3rd 

story balconies. 
• Create Rooftop Garden Area 
• Recomended Skylight to lliuminate Interior 

Common Areas 

September 6, 2012 
• Architectural and Site Review Board Endorses Project 

(See comments Item# 6.c Staff report P .. 2 & 3) 

~ Staff Recommends adoption of Mitigated Nega•'-·-
Declaration and Approval of Project. ;:; 

Cl) 
• Planning Commission Rejects City Recommend 3 LS 

and all submitted required data declaring: 
ii Inconsistency with existing neigborhood :i=!= 
• Insufficient percentage of Landscaping CJ1 
~ Insufficient setbacks to the South (Storage Buildi • 
• Insufficient Setbacks to the East (38th Ave) (') 
;, Privacy issues with 2nd and 3rd story balconies f; • 

Residents on Bulb Ave. "I> 



-184-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-92-



-185-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notice of Intent to 

Item ____ _ 

Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration 

PROJECT: Villa Capitola Senior Housing APPLICATION#: 12-028 

PROJECT LOCATION: 1575 38th Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010 

APPLICANT: Nancy Huyck 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project consists of demolition of an existing commercial salvage yard 
and accessory buildings and construction of a 23-unit market-rate rental, "unassisted" senior housing 
development within a new three-story building. The project applications to be considered by the City 
include: Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for the 
demolition and construction in a Neighborhood Commercial zone district. 

Significant Effects on the Environment: Exposure to Noise. 

The City of Capitola has reviewed the proposed project and has determined that the project will not have 
a significant effect on the environment with mitigation measures included as conditions of project 
approval. A copy of the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Initial Study document may be reviewed or 
obtained at the address below or is available on the City of Capitola website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us: 

City of Capitola _ 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, Ca 9501 O 

Comments on the Mitigated Negative Declaration should be submitted in writing to Ryan Bane at the 
address listed above from August 15, 2012 through September 3, 2012. The Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and project will be considered at a public hearing before the City of Capitola Planning 
Commission on September6, 2012 at 7 PM at the Capitola City Hall at the address above. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact Ryan Bane in the Community Development 
Department at (831) 475-7300 or email at: rbane@ci.capitola.ca.us. 

THIS NOTICE HAS BEEN -
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERPVOISSTOERD AT THE CLER!< 

- S OFF1CE FOR A 

PERIOD COMMENCING ~41-Q_:. 20,LbZ_ 

AND ENDING ~ ,.5 -
---~!__ __ 20./a 

·-

-93-



-186-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
item H: :>.1,.,. Auacnmem_1,.,.pdf 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Notice of Intent to 

Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration 

PROJECT: Villa Capitola Senior Housing APPLICATION#: 12-028 

PROJECT LOCATION: 1575 381
h Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010 

APPLICANT: Nancy Huyck 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project consists of demolition of an existing commercial salvage yard 
and accessory buildings and construction of a 23-unit market-rate rental, "unassisted" senior housing 
development within a new three-story building. The project applications to be considered by the City 
include: Planned Development Rezoni_ng, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for the 
demolition and construction in a Neighborhood Commercial zone district. 

Significant Effects on the Environment: . Exposure to Noise. 

The City of Capitola has reViewed the proposed project and has determined that the project will not have 
a significant effect on the environment with mitigation measures included as conditions of project 
approval. A copy of the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Initial Study document may be reviewed or 
obtained at the address below or is available on the City of Capitola website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us: 

City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, Ca 9501 O 

Comments on the Mitigated Negative Declaration should be submitted in writing to Ryan Bane at the 
address listed above from August 15, 2012 through September 3, 2012. The Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and project will be considered at a public hearing before the City of Capitola Planning 
Commission on September 6, 2012 at 7 PM at the Capitola City Hall at the address above. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact Ryan Bane in the Community Development 
Department at (831) 475-7300 or email at: rbane@ci.capitola.ca.us. 

-94-



-187-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

Association of Monterey Bay Area 
Governments--AMBAG 
P.O. Box809 
Marina, CA 93933-0809 

County Clerk 
c/o Clerk of the Board 
701 ·Ocean Street 
Santa Cruz, CA .95060 

Santa Cruz County 
Public Works Department, Room 41 O 
701 Ocean St. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

Santa Cruz County Planning Dept. 
Kathy Previsich, Director 
701 Ocean Street, 4th Floor 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

City of Santa Cruz Water Department 
212 Locust Street · 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

fllMENV-12 

Villa Capitola 
MND-lnitial Study 

DISTRIBUTION LIST 

-1-

lterr 

(Rev 3/6/l l) 

-95-



-188-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
n~111 tt. o.\J. J-\LLa1.;11111em:_v.pdf 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

The City of Capitola has prepared this Mitigated Negative Declaration for the following described 
project: 

PROJECT: Villa Capitola Senior Housing APPLICATION#: 12-028 

PROJECT LOCATION: 1575 381
h Avenue, CA 95010 

APPLICANT: Nancy Huyck 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project consists of demolition of an existing commercial salvage 
yard and accessory buildings and construction of a 23-unit market-rate rental, "unassisted" senior 
housing development within a new three-story building. The project applications to be considered 
by the City include: Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design 
Permit for the demolition and construction in a Neighborhood Commercial zone district. 

FINDINGS: The City of Capitola Community Development Department has reviewed the 
proposed project and has determined, based on the attached Initial Study, that the project will 
not have a significant effect on the environment with implementation· of mitigation measures. 
Consequently, adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration is appropriate. An Environmental 
Impact Report is not required pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 
(CEQA). This environmental review process and completion of the Initial Study and Mitigated 
Negative Declaration were conducted in accordance with the State CEQA Guidelines. 

The following mitigation measure!? will be incorporated into the project design or as conditions of 
approval, to ensure that any potential environmental impacts will not be significant. 

Impact 

Exposure to Noise. 

Mitigation 

MITIGATION MEASURE 1: Require preparation of an 
acoustical study with building permit submittal and 
require building plans to .incorporate any recommended 
building or window design measures, if needed to· 
achieve required indoor noise levels. 

Oat~ 

·-96-



-189-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE 
CAPITOLA, CA 95010 
PHONE: (831) 475-7300 FAX: (831) 479-8879 

INITIAL STUDY 

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Project Title: Villa Capitola Unassisted Senior Housing 

Application No.: #12-028 

Project Location: 1575 38
1
h Avenue 

Name of Property Owner: Steve Thomas and Maureen R.omac 

Name of Applicant: Nancy Huyck 

Assessor's Parcel 
034

_
181

_
17 

Number(s): 

Acreage of Property: 31,365 square feet (0.72.:!: acres) 

General Plan Designation: C-LC (Shopping - Local) 

Zoning District: CN (Neighborhood Commercial) 

Lead Agency: City of Capitola 

Prepared By: Stephanie Strelow, Strelow Consulting 

Date .Prepared: July 30, 2012 

Contact Person: Ryan Bane, Senior Planner 

Phone Number: (831) 475-7300 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 1 

Item 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-97-



-190-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
nem ff: O.\.,,. Auacnmenc_'"'.pdf 

II. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

A. Environmental Setting and Surrounding land Uses 

This project site is located within the western portion of the City of Capitola, south of Capitola 
Road on the west side of 381

h Avenue. The site is located at 1575 381
h Avenue, just south of the 

Capitola Mall (see Figure 1). The site is bordered by 381
h Avenue and the Kings Plaza Shopping 

Center on the east, commercial uses on the north and south, and residential uses on the west. 
The properties to the west are located within the unincorporated area of Santa Cruz County. 

The project site is flat and currently is developed with a commercial salvage yard (Capitola 
Freight and Salvage) that consists of areas of stockpiled building elements -(windows, doors, 
cabinets) and appliances, several older structures and an unpaved parking area. Approximately 
seven trees are located on the property, primarily at the edges. 

The surrounding neighborhood is primarily characterized as commercial, except for residential 
uses that are located to the west of the site. A storage facility with parking is located 
immediately south of the project site; a row of redwood trees on this adjacent property borders 
the property line. Two older single-family homes are located adjacent to the project site on the 
north, which appear to be used for commercial purposes and are located within a commercial 
zone. A parking lot serving commercial uses along Capitola Road also borders the project site 
on the north. Older single-family homes are located to the west of the project site. An aerial 
photo with the existing site conditions is presented on Figure 2. 

B. Proiect Description 

Background. A preliminary proposal for the project site consisted of a four-story, 67-unit senior 
housing planned developed that was reviewed by . Capitola's Architectural and Site Review 
Committee, Planning Commission and City Council in the fall of 2011. Based on ·comments and 
direction given at that time, the applicant redesigned the project and submitted a formal Planned 
Development application. The current proposal has been reduced in size to a three-story, 23-unit 
project as further described below. 

Project Description. The project consists of demolition of the existing salvage yard and its 
accessory buildings and construction of a 23-unit rental (market rate), "unassisted" senior housing 
development. The project applications to be considered by the City include: Planned 
Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for the. demolition and 
construction. 

The proposed project will be contained within an approximate 70,000 square foot, three-story 
building. The proposed housing units will be located on the second and third floors. The planned 
units include 11 studio units, nine one-bedroom units, two one-bedroom with study units, and one 
two-bedroom with study unit. 

The ground level includes an enclosed 36-space enclosed parking garage. An approximate 520 
square foot "private restaurant" also is located on the ground floor adjacent to the parking area, 
which would serve meals in a dining room, coffee bar or poolside cabana. The restaurant area 
(with an approximate 520 square foot kitchen) is intended for residents only, where meals will be 

1575 3Bfh Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 2 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-98-



-191-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem 

served three times a day. A lobby area is located on the second, and a 480-square foot pool with 
spa and cabana is proposed on the third floor. The site plan with the first two floors is shown on 
Figure 3. 

Access will provided via 38th Avenue with a separate entrance and exit. Information provided by 
the applicant indicates that shuttle service will be provided for supplemental transportation for 
residents. 

C. Agencies whose approval is required (and permits needed) 

None are known other than the City of Capitola. 

FIGURE 1: Vicinity Location 

S 0 UR CE: Imagine Capitola - City of Capitola General Plan Update 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 3 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-99-



-192-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item#: 5.C. Attachment_C.pdf 

FIGURE 2:. Existing Site Conditions 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page4 

E · · s· c d' · x1st1ng . · 1te · on .. 1tions 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-100-



-193-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem_ 

FIGURE 3: Site Plan - First & Second Floor Plans 

-- .......... ~ .... , .. ·,-, .. ·-· .. ,-,-,-,·,·t-· 
~ -,-- -------- -----~--~-----L-~-----~--~-----~---~----~---~---- ------

ll 

L. I .- /"° f i lr r ~e~: IBr.och I I' r I r~, r r r I II·$ 
i 10 ,, 

! I 
I'/~ '~ ut:c~""" I! 

@o 10'xl6' each ' I 
ru.~~6..-.;$.l,__,,<$: ,. 

'l n i •I 
j• ii 

~ n IO'xts' each --- -I :Y• ''" "~ Q)• f'0• '!JI - - i - ;:'-I ~ 9'<18'1', \O'xl6 ~ ~ • i . ··1"· ! ' . 
·~ = = =N =I" = i I OI . i: ----, ,,/ .. --=1 = = = ij .. --· .. -. J - - p p - i' ~/~-~~--: l ' if< 

~ . Q)• 1=1~1- l~H=F ! IO'x16' each 9'x18 - - ----
ii ~xlB'mh ~r~w ~ I 

&1"""1;-.,...._JH,1-..~~ ': ' n 1 '! 
~~ 

I > 

t (1)<1 
J1 @~ IO'x~ ~<h ~ ~ -~I ~~ 

v . 
~ 

IO'xt8' """'"""""' \! 
=11 II II ----- j ------- -----

(3 6 total parking stalls) @ First Floor Garage Plan 

+--'~<-, ~-r-~-+-~-+-='~-+-1 ~·~-· -+j ---~'--+-~-I-~-+--'=--< 

i i i 
I I i 
I .... I "" .. I .. I ""' 

Q Second Floor Plan 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 5 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-101-



-194-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
nem ff; o.v. Auac;nmem:_v.pdf 

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected by the Project: The environmental factors 
checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact 
that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following 
pages. 

./ Aesthetics 
Agriculture & Forest ./ Air Quality 
Resources 

./ Biological Resources Cultural Resources ./ Geology I Soils 

./ Greenhouse Gas ./ Hazards & Hazardous ./ Hydrology I Water 
Emissions Materials Quality 

Land Use I Planning Mineral Resources ./ Noise 

./ Population I Housing ./ Public Services Recreation 

./ Transportation I Traffic ./ Utilities I Service Systems ..( Mandatory Findings of 
Significance 

A. Instructions to Environmental Checklist 

1. A brief explanation is required (see VI. "Explanation of Environmental Checklist Responses") for all 
answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the information sources a 
lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question (see V. Source List, attached). A "No 
Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact 
simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture 
zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors as 
well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based 
on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2. · All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, 
cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational 
impacts. 

3. Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the 
checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant 
with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is 
substantial evidence that any effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially 
Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. 

4. "Negative Declaration: Le_ss Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated: applies where 
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" .to a 
"Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly 
explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level. 

5. Earlier Analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, 
one or more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. 
Section 15063(c)(3)(D). In this case a discussion should identify the following on attached sheets: 

a) Earlier analysis used. Identify earlier analyses and state where they are available for review. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 6 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-102-



-195-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item ... _____ ·-----····-··-_-·.--· 

b) Impacts adequately addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within 
the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal 
standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on 
the earlier analysis. 

c) Mitigation measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation 
Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the 
_earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project. 

6. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources 
for potential impacts {e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared 
or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the 
statement is substantiated. 

7. Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or 
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8. The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a) The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluation each question; and 

b) The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 

B. Use of Earlier Analyses 

The project site is located within the service area of the City of Santa Cruz ·water 
Department. In December 2011, the Santa Cruz City Council adopted the 201 O Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP), which evaluates water supply and demand within the 
City's service area over the next 20 years. Additionally, the City of Santa Cruz updated its 
General Plan, which was adopted by the City Council in June 2012 and certified an EIR 
for the General Plan 2030 at the same time. The EIR provides a comprehensive analysis 
of impacts of water demand within the City's service area. Both the UWMP and General 
Plan EIR assess future water demand within the City's water service area that is located 
outside Santa Cruz city limits. 

The preparation of this Initial Study has drawn from data and analyses contained in both 
the City of Santa Cruz adopted 201 O UWMP and certified General Plan 2030 EIR. These 
documents are hereby "incorporated by reference" pursuant to the State CEQA 
Guidelines section 15150. Where an EIR or Negative Declaration uses incorporation by 
reference, the incorporated part of the referenced document shall be briefly summarized 
where possible or briefly described if the data or information cannot be summarized. The . 
EIR analyses and conclusions and relevant findings of the 201 O UW_MP are summarized 
in subsections 17(b,d) and 18(b) of this Initial Study. The documents are on file and may 
be reviewed at the City of Capitola during business hours (Monday through Friday, 8 AM 
to 12 PM and 1-5 PM), located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA. The documents are 
also available on the City of Santa Cruz website. 1 

1 City of Santa Cruz Planning Department: http://www.cityofsantacruz.com/index.aspx~page=348 and City of 
Santa Cruz Water Department: http://www.cltyofsantacruz.com/Modules /ShowDocument.aspx2documentid=24687. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 7 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-103-



-196-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
11em ff: o.v. Auacnmem_v.pdf 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 

: .;-,:· . . . . ·~- ·- ~ -,: . .. . ; .; 

'; i(; . · :Ai='sjJ;iEii~s,Jiv<:>~·1~r.t~:~,-~:r<>ie~ti . 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including 
but not limited to trees, rock outcroppings, and 
historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or 
quality of the site and its surroundings? 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare 
which would adversely affect day or nighttime views 
in the area? 

Potentially 
Significant 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

:2:>!,11r1r~1~~~~!'~~~Lit~~rrrait :1rI~i~~~12:r1::t~~·~iw~~~r 
1° . ·.ofC:9n:serv~ti9n.as .. _a!1.PRtia.n~i inoci~i'.to-use in assessing (mpac~s on=agrfcuifor~·ancf: .. :· -
: :o ··t~rinian~ . .-::W9uld t~e_proj~_ct:·:_ ~.: · · · . · __ . · . · · _ -· ·· · .-. -· · : · · . '· 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as 
shown o'n the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 
use? (V.4} 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a. 
Williamson Act contract? 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, 
forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code 
section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public 
Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned 
Timberland Production (as defined by Government 
Code section 51104(g))? 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of 
forest land to non-forest use? 

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment 
which, due to their location or nature, could result in 
conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 8 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-104-



-197-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the 
applicable air quality plan? 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute to an 
existing or projected air quality violation? 

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of 
any criteria pollutant for which the project region is 
non-attainment under an applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard (including releasing 
emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for 
ozone precursors)? 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 
concentrations? 

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial 
number of people? 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or 
through habitat modifications, on any species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special-status 
species in local or regional plans, policies, or · 
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian 
habitat or other sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional pl.ans, policies, 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally 
protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, 
marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means? 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any 
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or 
with established native resident or migratory wildlife 
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife 
nursery sites? 

1575 38lh Avenue 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page·9 

Potentially 
Significant 

Issues 

I terr 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

./ 

./ 

No 
Impact 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-105-



-198-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
nem ff: o.v. Anacnmem_ v.pdf 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues {and Supporting Information Sources): 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, 
or state habitat conservation plan? 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as defined in 
CEQA Guidelines section 15064.5? 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource pursuant 
to section 15064.5? 

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological 
resource or site or unique geologic feature? 

d) Distwb any human remains, including those interred 
outside of formal cemeteries? 

Potentially 
Significant 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

./ 

. ~ .· .. 

./ 

./ 

./ 

-:a;, :(~'G.~q[rj:(iy. ANP'.-'5diLS: Wotild th~ project~xpe>se;people or stru"tui:es =to pqtl:mti~I - --
,._=.-.\_··:} ~M:~~f~~~i~f_ady_~f~~-:~~ff~c~~' ·i0~,U~lri{f.~h~--rl$k .. o~ l_q~~f~ir.tju..y·,._.Qr-de~~-~~ .i~Y·?~l\iir:i~~i:._· ··~ -~ · · 

a) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated 
on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 
Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the 
area or based on other substantial evidence of a 
known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and 
Geology Special Publication 42? 

b) Strong seismic ground shaking? 

c) Seismic-related ground failure, including 
liquefaction? 

d) Landslides? 

e) Would the project result in substantial soil erosion or 
the loss of topsoil? 

f) Would the project be located on a geologic unit or 
soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable 
as a result of the project, and potentially result in on
er off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction or collapse? 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 10 

./ 

./ 

./ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-106-



-199-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 

g) Would the project be located on expansive soil, as 
defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building 
Code (1994), creating substantial risks to life or 
property? 

h) Would the project have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative 
waste water disposal systems where sewers are not 
available for the disposal of waste water. 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly 
or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on 
the environment? 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation 
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions 
of greenhouse gases? 

.·· .. 

Item _________________________ -.- __ _ 

Potentially 
Significant 

Issues . 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

. - ···. -' 

Les:;; Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

.; :_ :~ 

s; = :/H,~~p§ ANPH~j\RQG>"U~' llJiAl:s~i~g:s=~ :w~u"fq-the wqJ,e~t;: -•= 
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 

environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset 
and accident conditions involving the release of 
hazardous materials into the environment? 

c) 

d) 

e) 

f) 

g) 

Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or 
acutely hazardous materials, substances, orwaste 
within :V4 mile of an existing or proposed school? 

Be located on a site which is included on a list of 
hazardous materiai_s sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, 
would it create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment? 

For a project located within an airport land use plan 
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 
two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 
would the project result in a safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the project area? 

For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, 
would the project result in a safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the project area? 

Impair implementation of or physically interfere with 
an adopted emergency response plan or emergency 
evacuation plan? 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior_ Housing Page 11 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 

-107-



-200-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
n:em ff: 0.1.,.,. Auacnmem_1.,.,.pdf 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant 

Issues 

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of 
loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, including 
where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or 
where residences are intermixed with wildlands? 

\9. ·:_.:.~vpgoL:~~Yi3~Ni)) WJA.J,;ER. gUAL[T'Y. Wi~ul~::f!Je ~i'C?Jecf: 
a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 

discharge requirements? 

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 
such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer 
volume or a lowering of the local ground water table 
level (for example, the production rate of pre-existing · 
nearby wells would drop to a level which would not 
support existing land uses or planned uses for which 
permits have been granted)? 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of 
the site or area, including through the alteration of 
the course of a stream or river, in a manner which 
would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or 
off-site. 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of 
the site or area, including through the alteration of 
the course of a stream or river, or substantially 
increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a 
manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site. 

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed the capacity of existing or planned storm 
water drainage systems or provide substantial 
additional sources of polluted runoff? 

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood-hazard area 
as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or 
Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood_ hazard 
delineation map? (V.1 a) 

h) Place within a 100-year flood-hazard area structures 
which would impede or redirect flood flows? (V.1 a) 

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of 
loss, injury or death involving flooding, including 
flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 
{V.1) 

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? {V.1 a) 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 12 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

.. 
•. 

Less Than No Significant Impact Impact 

./ 
.• .. 

· .. 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 

-108-



-201-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 

... 

·:~o;: :i~·~~J.jsE:A&oPL.~NN!Ne~: NiJa.u1~ .. i11e·prG;Jech . 

a) P~ysically divide an established community? 

b) . Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or 
regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the 
project (including, but not limited to the general plan, 
specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning 
ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

c) Conflict with any applicable Habitat Conservation 
Plan or Natural Community Conservation Plan? 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral 
resource that would be of value to the region and the 
residents of the state? (V.1 a) 

· b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important 
mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local 
general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan? 
(V.1 a) 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels 
in excess of standards established in the local 
general plan or noise ordinance or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive 
ground borne vibration or ground borne noise 
levels? 

c) Substantial permanent increase in ambient noise 
levels in the project vicinity above levels existing 
without the project? 

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above 
levels existing without the project? 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan 
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 
two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 
would the project expose people residing or working 
in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

1575 38•h Avenue 
Villa Cqpitola Senior Housing Page 13 

Potentially 
Significant 

Issues 

Item 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

-·-., 

./ 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

.. , 
. .. . . 

No 
Impact 

. · : ~ 
=·.-:.•\"" .. 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

......... ' . 

./ 

./ 

';,' _,: 

./ 

./ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-109-



-202-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
tlt::lll tr. o.v. ttttct1.ri1111t::11L_v.iJdf 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, 
would the project expose people residing or working 
in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, 
either directly {for example, by proposing new 
homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of roads or other infrastructure)? 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, 
necessitating the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, 
necessitating the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

a) Fire protection? 

b) Police protection? 

c) Schools? 

d) Parks? 

e) Other public facilities? 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and 
regional parks or other recreational facilities such 
that substantial physical deterioration of the facility 
would occur or be accelerated? 

b) Include recreational facilities or require the 
construction or expansion of recreational facilities 
which might have an adverse physical effect on the 
environment? 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 14 

Potentially 
Significant 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

./ 

./ 

./ 

:: / . . . . : ·- - :_:~ ~ 

No 
Impact 

./ 

./ 

./ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-110-



-203-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy 
establishing measures of effectiveness for the 
performance of the circulation system, taking into 
account all modes of transportation including mass 
transit and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, including but 
not limited to intersections, streets, highways and 
freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass 
transit? 

b) 

c) 

d) 

e) 

f) 

Conflict with an applicable congestion management 
program, including, but not limited to level of service 
standard and travel demand measures, or other 
standards established by the county congestion 
management agency for designated roads or 
highways? 

Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including 
either an increase in traffic levels or a change in 
location, that results in substantial safety risks? 

Substantially increase hazards due to a design -
feature (for example, sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (for example, 
farm equipment)? 

Result in inadequate emergency access? 

Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs 
supporting alternative transportation (for example, 
bus turnouts, bicycle racks.) 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the 
applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board? 

b) Require or result in the construction of riew water or 
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, the construction of which could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm 
water drainage facilities or expansion of existing 
facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental effects? 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the 
project from existing entitlements and resources, or 
are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

1575 38 111 Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 15 

Potentially 
Significant 

Issues 

lten 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

,/ 

-. 

,/ 

No 
Impact 

,/ 

,/ 

- ,/ 

,/ 

-· 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-111-



-204-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
item if: o.~. Attacnmem_ ~.pdf 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues {and Supporting Information Sources): 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the 
project's projected demand.in addition to the 
provider's existinq commitments? 

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted 
capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste 
disposal needs? 

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and 
requlations related to solid waste? 

_._ -

-Potentially 
Significant 

Issues 

.. -· .·: 

:_ 1a·~.-· MANDAT0°RY FIN~_IN~s i:OF ·s]GNIFICANCE;~ Bo.~s ·the ·,proJeC·t: 
- ... - · .. -·· . ·--. . : . - - --.-. 

a) Have the potential to degrade the quality of the 
environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a 
fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-sustaining levels,
threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, . 
reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or 
endangered plant or animal or eliminate important 
examples of the major periods of California history 
or prehistory? 

b) Have impacts that are individually limited, but 
cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively 
considerable" means that the incremental effects of 
a project are considerable when viewed in 
connection with the effects of the past projects, the 
effects of other current projects, and the effects of 
probable future projects.) 

c) Have environmental effects which will cause 
substantial adverse effects on human beings, either 
directly or indirectly? 

1575 3Blh Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 16 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

./ 

No 
Impact 

./ 

./ 

./ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-112-



-205-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem ___ ______________________ -.- __ _ 

IV. DETERMINATION: 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the 
environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared_ 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the ./ 
project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment and 
an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a potentially significant or a potentially 
significant unless mitigated impact on the environment, but at least one effect (1) has 
been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal 
standards, and (2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier 
analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed 
adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION 'pursuant to applicable 
standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are 
imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

~--
Ryan Bane, Senior Planner Date 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing .Page 17 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-113-



-206-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
n:em 'ff: 0.1..,,. Auacnmem:_1..,,.pdf 

V. SOURCE LIST 

1. City of Capitola. 

a) Adopted September 28, 1989. General Plan City of Capitola. Prepared by 
Freitas+ Freitas. 

b) Adopted February 11, 2010. "City of Capitola Housing Element of the 
General Plan 2007-2014." 

2. "Imagine Capitola" - City of Capitola General Plan Update. 

a) "General Plan Update Existing Conditions White Paper #1. March 2011. 
Prepared by Design, Community & Environment for the City of Capitola. 

b) "White Paper #3 - Transportation & Parking". April 2011. Prepared by RBF 
Consulting and Kimley-Horn and Associates. 

c) "White Paper #4 - Environmental Resources & Hazards". April 2011. 
Prepared by RBF Consulting. 

d) "White Paper #5 - Environmental Resources & Hazards". April 2011. 
Prepared by RBF Consulting. 

3. City of Santa Cruz. 

a) June 26, 2012. Adopted. General Plan 2030. 
b) April 2012. "City of Santa Cruz General Plan 2030 Final EIR." 

c) September 2011. "City of Santa Cruz General Plan 2030 Draft EIR." 

d) December 2011. Adopted. "City of Santa Cruz Urban Water Management 
Plan 2010." 

4. California Department of Conservation. 2007. "Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program." 

5. Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District. 

a) August 2008. 2008 Air Quality Management Plan for the Monterey Bay 
Region. 

b) February 2008. "CEQA Air Quality Guidelines." 

c) May 18, 2011. Staff Report regarding " Presentation on Thresholds of 
Significance for Greenhouse Gases and Provide Suggestions to Staff for the 
Recommendation to be Pres.ented at the June 2011 Board Meeting." 

d) July 12, 2011. Staff Agenda Item for Board Meeting on June 15, 2011 
regarding "Consider Adoption of a Resolution Approving Proposed Revisions 
to the District Consistency Procedure." 

6. Donald Ballanti, Certified Consulting. Meteorologist. ·June 22, 2012. "Greenhouse 
Gas Analysis for the Villa Capitola Project, Capitola, California." 

7. Bowman & Williams. June 6, 2012. "Preliminary Storm Water Management Report 
for Senior Housing, APN: 034-181-17, 1575 381

h Avenue, Santa Cruz, California." 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 18 

Initial Study 
July 30, 20 l 2 

-114-



-207-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem 

8. RBF Consulting. June 8, 2012. "Forecast Trip Generation, On-site Parking Analysis 
and Pedestrian Warrant Analysis for the Proposed Villa Capitola Senior Housing_ 
Project." 

9. Global Climate Change References: 
a) California Air Resources Board. September 22, 201 O (Last Updated). 

"Greenhouse Gas Inventory Data - 2000 to 2008." Online at: 
http:/lwww.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/data.htm 

MAY 12, 2010. "California Greenhouse Gas Inventory for 2000-2008 
- By - by Category as Defined in the Scoping Plan" 
May 28, 2010. "Trends in California Greenhouse Gas Emissions for 
2000 to 2008 - by Category as Defined in the Scoping Plan." 

b) California Air Resources Board. December 2008. Climate Change Proposed 
Scoping Plan ....,.. A Framework for Change." December 2008. Online at: 
http:/lwww.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/document/adopted scoping plan.pdf 

c) California Climate Action Team. December 2010. "Climate Action Team 
Report to governor Schwarzenegger and the California Legislature." 
California Environmental Protection Agency. 

d) California Governor's· Office of Planning and Research. June 19, 2008. 
"CEQA and Climate Change: Addressing Climate Change Through California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Review." 

e) California Natural Resources Agency. "2009 California Climate Adaptation . 
Strategy." A Report to the Governor of the State of California in Response to 
Executive Order S-13-2008. 

f) Bay Area Air Quality Management District. June 2010. "California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines." Online at: 
http:/lwww.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Planninq-and-Research/CEQA
GUIDELINES/Updated-CEQA-Guidelines.aspx 

VI. EXPLANATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST RESPONSES 

1. Aesthetics. 

(a) Scenic Views. The proposed project is located within a developed commercial 
area within the City of Capitola. The City's General Plan does not identify any "vista 
points" in the project vicinity. The project site is not visible from a designated vista 
point nor is it within an identified or observed scenic view. There are no scenic views 
across or from the project site. Tl:1e project would not obstruct or remove scenic 
coastal views as none exist in the area. 

(b) Scenic Resources. The site contains seven trees, including two large pine trees, 
one redwood and four smaller ornamental trees. The two large pines are taller than 
other onsite trees and are visible in the immediate vicinity of the project site. 
Generally, trees are planted along 381

h Avenue. · 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 19 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-115-



-208-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
n:em "ff: :,.\.1. Auacnmem_\J.pdf 

Impact Analysis. All onsite trees will be removed for project development. None of 
the trees are visually prominent or distinctive, and they do not represent a 
significant visual element of the surrounding area, which is characterized by 
existing commercial development with landscaping. The pine tree in the 
southeast corner of the site is the most visible and is prominent in the immediate 
vicinity of the project site, but it does not possess unique or unusual aesthetic 
features for this type of tree. Trees are planted along 381

h Avenue, including 
redwood trees further south of the site, and as a result, the street appears lined 
with trees that partially screen some existing buildings. While any tree may be 
considered to possess aesthetic attributes, the trees on the project site do not 
possess qualities under which they would be considered scenic, such as being 
visually prominent from a wide area, visually distinctive and/or being an 
exceptional specimen of a particular species. Thus, the onsite trees are not 
considered a scenic resource, and the project would not have an adverse effect 
on scenic resources. Tree removal in relation to City tree removal regulations is 
reviewed below under subsection 4(e). 

(c) Visual Effects upon Surrounding Area. The visual quality of the project vicinity is 
characterized primarily by a mix of developed commercial uses. Commercial uses 
are prominent along the segment of 381

h Avenue in which the project site is located, 
including the Kings Plaza Shopping Center to the east and the Capitola Mall to the 
north. Commercial development dominates the visual character in the area, 
although some older homes of mixed styles and age are located further south of the 
project site along 381

h Avenue. Trees are planted along 381
h Avenue. 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project would result in construction of a new three
story building within a predominantly commercial area. The building will occupy 
nearly the entire site. It will of similar scale and mass as the storage facility to the 
south and other larger commercial buildings in the area, including those at the 
Kings Plaza Shopping Center to the east and at the Capitola Mall to the north. 
The proposed building would be one taller than existing buildings, and would be 
more massive than residential properties to the west. 

Building elevations provided as part of the site plan are shown on Figure 4. The 
overall building mass is broken up by architectural recesses and windows along 
each side. Additionally, the upper floors are slightly set back from the ground 

. floor on the front and partially on the rear, which also reduces the overall building 
mass. 

. 1575 38th Avenue 

The building height of 42 feet exceeds the height limit of 27 feet for the CN zone 
in which the site is located. However, the proposal includes a rezoning to 
Planned Development in which building heights can vary. The project site is 
located at the edge of the Community Commercial district in which heights of 40 
feet are permitted. Given this proximity, the proposed building height would not 
be substantially different than permitted heights in the adjacent district or some 
structures in the area and along 41s1 Avenue. The building height likely would be 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 20 
Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-116-



-209-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
lten . ... ____ . --------------_--.---

most noticeable from residential properties to the west, although landscaping 
would be provided along this boundary. 

Overall, the project building mass and scale is similar to other commercial 
buildings in the vicinity, and the project would not substantially degrade the visual 
character of the surrounding area. The building height would be greater than 
other nearby. buildings, but is not likely to appear out of scale with vicinity 
commercial buildings. With the planned architectural and building design 
features, materials, and colors, the proposed building would not substantially 
degrade the existing visual character of the surrounding area. Removal of the 
onsite trees (as discussed above in subsection 1b) would not be highly 
noticeable given the commercial character of the area and other tree cover that 
is present along 38th Avenue. Therefore, the project wo.uld have a less-than
significant impact on the visual character of the.surrounding area. Further review 
of design details will be made by the City Planning Commission as part of the 
Architectural and Site approval that is required for permitted or conditional uses 
in a· CN district as provided in Chapter 17 .63 of the City's Municipal Code. 

(d) Light and Glare. The project will not result in introduction of a major new source 
of light and glare, although there will be exterior building lighting typically associated 
with residential and planned development buildings. This is not expected to create 
significant visual impacts on the surrounding neighborhood. Further review of design 
details will be made as part of the Architectural and Site review process. Additionally, 
standard conditions of approval require that all lighting shall be shielded and directed 
on to the property, away from adjacent residential properties. Lighting intensity shall 
be reviewed and approved by staff prior to final occupancy and shall be reviewed by 
the Planning Commission upon receipt of a complaint. 

2. Agricultural and Forest Resources. The project site is located in a developed 
urban area. The project site is not in agricultural production or located adjacent to or 
near agricultural uses. The project site, as all of Capitola, is designated "Urban and 
Built-Up" by the California Department of Conservation Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program (SOURCE V.4). Similarly, the project site is located within a 
developed commercial area and is riot designated for timber resource production. 
The proposed project would have no effects on agricultural or forest resources. 

3. Air Quality. 

(a) Consistency with Air Quality Management Plan. The proposed project will result in 
construction of 23 senior residential units. On June 15, 2011 the Monterey Bay 
Unified Air Pollution Control District (MBUAPCD) Board approved a new procedure 
for determining consistency with the Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP), effective 
September 1, 2011. In the past, the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 
(AMBAG) determined whether population increases would remain within AMBAG's 
population forecasts used in the AQMP. The new procedure uses AMBAG's adopted 
housing unit forecast instead of population (SOURCE V.5d). 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 21 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-117-



-210-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
nem 'ff: :,.1..;. Attacnmem_1..;.pdf 

FIGURE 4: Building Elevations 

Front Elevation -East 

Rear Elevation -West 

1-'-----'--'---'--'----'-'---LL--'--'---'--'----'-'----'--'--..LL--'--'---'.L.'---'---'-----!.-----_[-
1l{ii------------------------------------""\::,------------------------------------.----------------- ut ~ -tn.33o 

~~.i:i" Side Elevation Facing Storage - South 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 22 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-118-



-211-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem 

The Air District's adopted procedure was Used to determine project consistency with 
the AQMP. The city of Capitola had 5,537 existing dwelling units as of January 1, 
2012.2 According to Capitola City staff, there are four residential units that are under 
construction or have been approved. With these four units and the project (23 units), 
there would be a total of 5,564 residential units within the City which is below the 
AMBAG forecast of 5,601 units projected in 2015. Therefore, the proposed project is 
consistent with the AQMP, and would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
theAQMP. 

(b) Project Emissions. To protect public health, both the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) and the California Air Resources Board (CARB) have established 
ambient air quality standards (AAQS) that are the maximum levels of ambtent 
(background) air pollutants considered safe, with an adequate margin of safety to · 
protect public health and welfare. The national standards address six criteria 
pollutants, including ozone, carbon monoxide, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, fine 
particulate matter (both PM10 and PM2.5, which refer to particles less than 10 microns 
and 2.5 microns, respectively), and lead. The state standards, which are generally 
more stringent than the federal standards, apply to the same pollutants as the 
federal standards do, but also include sulfate, hydrogen sulfide, and vinyl chloride. 

The North Central Coast Air Basin (NCCAB), in which the project site is located, is 
under the jurisdiction of the Monterey Bay Air Pollution Control District (MBUAPCD) 
and includes Santa Cruz, Monterey and San Benito Counties. The NCCAB is 
currently .in attainment for the federal PM10 (particulate less than 10 microns in 
diameter), ozone, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, and carbon monoxide standards 
and is unclassified or attainment for the federal PM25 and lead standards. The basin 
is designated non-attainment for the state ozone and PM10 standards, and is in 
attainment for all other state standards, except for carbon monoxide for which it is 
unclassified (SOURCE v.sa). 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project consists of construction of 23 senior· 
housing units. There would be vehicular traffic increases associated with the 
proposed project, but emissions would not exceed MBUAPCD's criteria for 
significance. According to the MBUAPCD's CEQA Guidelines (February 2008), 
the proposed number of new residential units is below the District's screening 
level for potential significant ozone impacts for apartments and condominiums 
(SOURCE V.5b). Furthermore, the project does not include operations that would 
result in stationary emissions. Thus, the project would not violate current air 
quality standards, and would result in a less-than-significant impact related to air 
emissions. 

Demolition, excavation and construction could result in generation of dust and 
PM10 emissions. According to MBUAPCD's "CEQA Air Quality Guidelines" (as 

2 Per California Department of Finance, "E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the 
State, 2011 and 2012" (May 2012. Online at: http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-
5/2011-20 /view.php. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 23 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-119-



-212-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
item tf: ~.1.,,;. Anacnmem_1.,,;.pdf 

updated in June 2008), 8.1 acres could be graded per day with minimal 
earthmoving or 2.2 acres per day with grading and excavation without exceeding 
the MBUAPCD's PM10 threshold of 82 lbs/day. The project site area · is 
approximately 0. 72 acres, which would be below the 2.2 acre grading threshold. 
Thus, potential construction-related PM10 emissions would be less-than
significant. 

(c) Cumulative Pollutant Increases. According to the MBUAPCD CEQA Guidelines, 
projects that are consistent with the "Air Quality Management Plan" (AQMP) would 
not result in cumulative impacts as regional emis_sions have been factored into the 
Plan. The MBUAPCD prepares air quality plans, which address attainment of the 
state and federal emission standards, and which, incorporate growth forecasts 
developed by AMBAG. As indicated in subsection 3(a) above, the proposed project 
is consistent with the AQMP, which takes into account cumulative development 
within the City, and thus, cumulative emissions have been accounted for in the Plan. 

(d) Sensitive Receptors. The project site is located within a developed area of the City 
of Capitola and is surrounded primarily by commercial development, except for 
residential development on the west. As indicated above, the proposed project would 
not result in stationary emissions. Thus, the proposed project will not expose 
sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. 

Diesel particulate matter was identified as a toxic air contaminant (TAC) by the State 
of California in 1998. Following the identification of diesel as a TAC, the California 
Air Resources Board (CARB) developed a comprehensive strategy to control diesel 
PM emissions. The "Risk Reduction Plan to Reduce Particulate Matter Emissions 
from Diesel-Fueled Engines and Vehicles"~a document approved by GARB in 
September 2000-set goals to reduce diesel PM emissions in California by 75% by 
2010 and 85% by 2020. This objective would be achieved by a combination of 
approaches (including emission regulations for new diesel engines and low sulfur 
fuel program). An important part of the Diesel Risk Reduction Plan is a series of 
measures for various categories of in-use on- and off-road diesel engines, which are 
generally based on the following types of controls: 

Retrofitting engines with emission control systems, such as diesel particulate 
filters or oxidation catalysts, 

Replacement of existing engines with new technology diesel engines or 
natural gas engines, and 

Restrictions placed on the operation of existing equipment. 

Once the Diesel Risk Reduction Plan was adopted, the ARB started developing 
emission regulations for a number of categories of in-use diesel vehicles and 
equipment. In July 2007, the ARB adopted regulations for in-use, off-road diesel 
vehicles that will significantly reduce particulate matter emissions by requiring fleet 
owners to accelerate turnover to cleaner engines and install exhaust retrofits. 

157 5 381h Avenue 

Impact Analysis. Demolition, excavation, grading and project construction could 
involve the use of diesel trucks and equipment that will emit diesel exhaust, 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 24 
Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 

-120-



-213-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem ________ ------------------·- __ _ 

including diesel particulate matter, which is classified as a toxic air contaminant. 
Adjacent residents and businesses would be exposed to construction-related 
diesel emissions, but activities that would use diesel equipment would be of 
temporary and of short-term duration. Thus, potential exposure to adjacent 
residents is considered a less-than-significant impact. 

There are existing residential units adjacent to the site on the west. Construction
related diesel emissions would be of limited duration (i.e., primarily during 
grading) and would be temporary. CARB has identified diesel exhaust particulate 
matter as a toxic air contaminant, and assessment of toxic air contaminant 
cancer risks is typically based upon a 70-year exposure period. Project 
excavation and construction activities that would utilize diesel-powered 
equipment would expose receptors to possible diesel exhaust for a very limited 
number of days out of a 70-year (365 day per year, 24-hour per day) period. 
Because exposure to diesel exhaust will be well below the 70,-year exposure 
period, and given the. limited and short-term duration of activities that would use 
diesel equipment, construction-related diesel emissions are not considered 
significant. Furthermore, the State is implementing emission standards for 
different classes of on- and off-road diesel vehicles and equipment that applies 
to off-road diesel fleets and includes met;tsures such as retrofits. Additionally, 
Title 13 of the California Code of Regulations (section 2485(c)(1)) prohibits idling 
of a diesel engine for more than five minutes in any location. Thus, the project 
would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations, and 
potential exposure of sensitive receptors to diesel emissions and associated 
risks is considered a less-than-significant Impact. 

(e} Odors. The planned residential use will not create objectionable odors. 

4. Biological Resources. 

The· project site is located along 381
h Avenue, west of 41st Avenue, which is a major 

transportation and commercial arterial. The site is developed with a commercial 
salvage· materials business, and is located within a developed commercial area. 
There are no known biological resources on the project site or in the vicinity. The site 
is not mapped in the City's General Plan as being located in a riparian corridor or 
monarch butterfly grove (SOURCE v.1 a): 

(e) Tree Removal. There are seven existing trees on the project property, including 
two large pine trees, one redwood and four smaller ornamental trees. The majority 
of the trees are located on the· perimeter of the site. The trees on the project site are 
not_ considered "heritage" trees under City of Capitola regulations (Chapter 12.12 -
Community Tree and Forest Management). However, removal of non-heritage trees 
requires a permit pursuant to section 12.12.160 of the City's Municipal Code with the 
following findings: 

1575 3B•h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 25 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-121-



-214-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item n: b.c.;. Anacnmem_c.;.pdf 

1. The tree removal is in the public interest based on one of the following: 
a. Because of the health or condition of the tree, with respect to disease 

infestation, or danger of falling; 
b. Safety con'siderations; or 

c. In situations where a tree has caused, or has the potential to cause, 
unreasonable property damage and/or interference with existing utility 
services. 

2. All possible and feasible alternatives to tree removal have been evaluated, 
including, but not limited to undergrounding of utilities, selective root cutting, 
trimming and relocation. 

3. The type, size and schedule for planting replacement trees are specified and shall 
be concurrent with the tree removal or prior to it. 

4. The removal of the tree would not be contrary to the purposes of Chapter 12.12 -
"Community Tree and Forest Management" and Chapter 17.95 - Environmental 
Sensitive Habitats. 

5. Replacement trees in a ratio of two to one as needed to ensure that with 
replacement trees, a canopy coverage of at least fifteen percent will result, and 
location(s) for tree replanting are selected, and/or as a last resort, in-lieu fees have 
been paid as a condition of the permit in accordance with Section 12.12.190. 
Replacement trees and/or in-lieu fees are not required if post-removal tree canopy 
coverage on the site or parcel will be thirty percent or more. 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project will result in removal of seven trees, but 
none are considered heritage trees under City regulations. Removal would not 
conflict with City regulations with approval of a permit and replanting 
replacement trees. Thus, the impact is considered less-than-significant. 

None of the existing onsite trees will be retained. An arborist report has not been 
prepared, and thus; the condition of the trees is unknown. The trees are on the 
edge of the property, except for four smaller trees within the site. The trees 
located at the edges of the property may ultimately damage sidewalks or utilities. 
The proposed landscaping plan shows planting of 15 olive trees along the 
eastern and l}orthern property boundaries. This represents one tree over the a 2-
to-1 replacement ratio required under City regulations, and thus, exceeds the 
City's replanting ratio requirement. Thus, it appears that planned tree removal 
would not conflict with City regulations, but City staff will provide further review 
as part of the tree removal permit process. 

Existing redwood trees located on adjacent property to the south would be 
retained. These could be inadvertently damaged during grading and 
construction. Grading and soil compaction and inadvertent damage due to 
construction equipment could damage the root zones unless the trees and root 

. zones are adequately protected during construction. Although no mitigation 
measures are required, the following Condition of Approval is recommended to 
ensure protection of adjacent trees. 

· 1575 3B1h Avenue 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Implement measures to protect 
existing redwood trees along the property boundary in order to minimize 
damage to the trees and their root zones during construction as 
recommended by a certified arborist review. 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 26 
Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-122-



-215-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem ________________ _ 

(f) Conflicts with Plans. There are no adopted Habitat Conservation Plans in the 
vicinity. 

5. Cultural Resources. There are no historical resources on the project site. 

(b) Archaeological Resources. According to the City maps, the project site is not 
located within an archaeologically sensitive area. The project site has been 
previously graded and disturbed. Thus, there would be no impacts to cultural 
resources. However, the following Condition of Approval is recommended in the 
event that unknown resources are discovered during project grading and excavation. 

RE.COMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: If archaeological resources or 
human remains are accidentally discovered during construction, work 
shall be halted within 50 meters (150 feet) of the find· until it can be 
evaluated by a qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is 
determined to be significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be 
formulated and implemented. Disturbance shall not resume until the 
significance of the archaeological resources 'is determined and 
appropriate mitigations to preserve the resource on the site are 
established. If human remains are encountered during construction or 
any other phase of development, work in the area of discovery must be 
halted, the Santa Cruz County coroner notified, and the provisions of 
Public Resources Code 5097.98-99, Health arid Safety Code 7050.5 
carried out. If the remains are determined to be Native American, the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) shall be notified within 24 
hours as required by Public Resources Code 5097. 

(c) Paleontological/Unique Geological Resources. No unique geologic features have 
been identified. The proposed demolition and construction of the proposed senior 
housing project will have no effect on any unanticipated paleontological resources. 

6. Geology and Soils. 

(a-c) Seismic Hazards. The projE?Ct site is located in a seismically active region of 
California. There are no active faults which underlie the City of Capitola, but active 
faults are lo,cated nearby in the Santa Cruz Mountains and offshore in Monterey Bay 
(SOURCE v.1 ~). The regional faults of significance potentially affecting Capitola include 
the San Andreas, the Zayante, and the Palo Colorado-San Gregorio. 

The most probable seismic hazards to Capitola are from the San Andreas Fault (in 
the Santa Cruz Mountains) and, further south, the Palo Colorado-San Gregorio fault. 
Seismic historical records of the area show that earthquakes of 6.5 - 7.0 magnitude 
occur periodically on the San Andreas Fault. The main trace of the San Andreas 
Fault is approximately nine miles northeast of Capitola. One of the largest 
earthquakes in the Santa Cruz area occurred on October 17, 1989 due to movement 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

'· 
/ 

Page 27 
Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-123-



-216-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item n: 5.G. Attacnment_G.pdf 

on this fault and measured 7.1 on the Richter scale. The epicenter of the Loma 
Prieta earthquake was approximately five (5) miles southeast of Capitola (SOURCE 

V.2c). 

The Zayante fault is located approximately five miles northeast of Capitola, and the 
Palo Colorado-San Gregorio is located approximately 14 miles southwest of 

· Capitola. The California Division of Mines and Geology considers the Zayante fault 
active (SOURCE V.2c). The Palo Colorado-San Gregorio fault is not well understood, 
but is considered potentially active with an estimates maximum credible magnitude 
of 7.7 and a recurrence level of 800+ years (Ibid.). 

The primary seismic hazard that could affect the project is seismic shaking. The site 
is located in an area subject to high seismic shaking hazards according to maps in 
the City's General Plan (SOURCE v.1 a). Liquefaction, differential compaction of near 
surface soils, and iateral spreading can present seismic hazards during 
earthquakes. The potential for these hazards to occur are dependent on soil 
conditions and geologic patterns (SOURCE V.2c). Soil liquefaction occurs when loose, 
saturated sandy soil deposits lose internal strength and transform from a solid to a 
liquefied state due to reduced stresses within the soils mass. The site is in a low 
liquefaction potential zone {Ibid.). 

The California Building Standards Code (CBC) design standards have a primary 
objective of ensuring public safety and a secondary goal of minimizing property 
damage and maintaining function during and following a seismic event. The CBC 
prescribes seismic design criteria for different types of structures, and provides 
methods to obtain ground motion inputs. The CBC also requires analysis of 
liquefaction potential, slope instability, differential settlement, and surface 
displacement due to faulting or lateral spreading for various categories of 
construction. Recognizing that the risk of severe seismic ground motion varies from 
place to place, the CBC provisions vary depending on location within the state. 

Impact Analysis. The project site is located in an area of high seismic activity and 
will be subject to strong seismic shaking during an earthquake. Preparation of a 
geotechnical report will be required prior ·to issuance of a building permit per 
California Building Code requirements, and the building will be required to be 
designed in accordance with the latest edition of the California Building Code, 
which sets forth structural design parameters for buildings to withstand seismic 
shaking without substantial structural damage. Structures built in accordance 
with the latest edition of the California Building Code and recommendations in 
the required geotechnical report have an increased potential for experiencing 
relatively minor damage Which should be repairable. Thus, this is considered a 
less-than-significant impact. 

(e,g) Soils and Erosion. According to the Soil Conservation Service Soil Survey of 
Santa Cruz (August 1980), onsite soils are classified as Pinto loam and Elkhorn 
sandy loam. These soils are classified as having a low to moderate shrink-swell 
potential depending on soil depth, and erosion hazard is slight to moderate. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 28 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-124-



-217-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem ... _____ ------------------·- __ _ 

' . 

Impact Analysis. Soils with potential shrink-swell conditions could result in 
structural damage if not properly designed. The required geotechnical report will 
set forth site preparation and foundation requirements that will be address onsite 
soil constraints determined through soil borings and testing. Thus, impacts 
related to soils constraints are considered less-than-significant. 

The onsite project soils are classified as having a slight to moderate erosion 
hazard. Project development will include excavation and grading, although the 
project site is relatively flat and located ·within a developed urban area. 
Approximately 1,485 cubic yards of material will be excavated, which will require 
submittal of a grading pla·n with erosion control measures in accordance with City 
regulations. The project site is not located adjacent to existing water bodies. 
With implementation of required erosion control measures as part of the required 
grading plan, the potential for offsite erosion and inadvertent transport of soils 
into the municipal storm drain system is considered less-than-significant. 
Although mitigation measures are not required, the following Condition of 
Approval is recommended. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Implement erosion control 
measures, including, but not limited to: conduct grading prior to the rainy 
season if possible; protect disturbed areas during the rainy season; 
implement other Best Management Practices (BMPs) during construction 
to protect water quality; and immediately revegetate disturbed areas. 

(h) Soil Suitability for Septic Systems. The site is currently served by sewer as is the 
balance of the City, therefore there are no impacts associated with new septic 
systems. 

7. Greenhouse Gas Emissions. 

(a} Greenhouse Gas Emissions. Climate change refers to any significant change in 
measures of climate, such as average temperature, precipitation, or wind patterns 
over a period of time. Climate change may result from natural factors, natural 
processes, and human activities that change the composition of the atmosphere and 
alter the surface and features of the land. Significant changes in global climate 
patterns have recently been associated with global warming, an average increase in 
the temperature of the atmosphere near the Earth's surface, attributed to 
accumulation of . greenhouse house gas (GHG) emissions in the atmosphere. 
Greenhouse gases trap heat in the atmosphere, which in turn heats the surface of 
the Earth. Some GHGs occur naturally and are emitted to the atmosphere through 
natural processes, while others are created and emitted solely through human 
activities {SOURCE V.9d). 

Climate change models predict changes in temperature, precipitation patterns, water 
availability, and rising sea levels, and these altered conditions can have impacts on 
natural and human systems in California (SOURCE V.9c). Changes· in temperature, 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 29 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 

-125-



-218-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
item 'ff: 0.1.,;. Attacnmem_1.,;.pdf 

precipitation, and sea levels can affect California's public health, habitats, ocean and 
coastal resources, water supplies, agriculture,· forestry, and energy use (Ibid.), as 
well as result in increased droughts and flooding. Potential global warming impacts 
in California may include, but are not limited to, loss in snow pack, sea level rise, 
more extreme heat days per year, more high ozone days, more large forest fires, 
and more drought years. Secondary effects are likely to include a global rise in sea 
level, impacts to agriculture, changes in disease vectors, and changes in habitat and 
biodiversity (SOURCE V.6). . 

The most common GHG that results from human activity is carbon dioxide, followed 
by methane and nitrous oxide (SOURCE V.9d). The primary contributors to GHG 
emissions in California (as of 2008) are transportation (about 37%), electric power 
production (24%), i"ndustry (20%), agriculture and forestry" (6%), arid other sources, 
including commercial and residential uses (13%). Approximately 81% of California's 
emissions are carbon dioxide produced from fossil fuel combustion (SOURCE V.9a). 

The State of California passed the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (AB 32), 
which seeks to reduce GHG emissions generated by California. The Governor's 
Executive Order S-3-05 and AB 32 (Health & Safety Code,·§ 38501 !"lt seq.) both 
seek to achieve 1990 emissions levels by the year 2020. Executive Order S-3-05 
further requires that California's GHG emissions be 80 percent below 1990 levels by 
the year 2050. AB 32 defines GHGs to include carbon dioxide1 methane, _nitrous 
oxide, hydrocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulfur hexafluoride. 

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) is the lead agency for implementing 
AB32.ln accordance with provisions of AB 32, GARB has completed a statewide 
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Inventory that provides estimates of the amount of GHGs 
emitted to, and removed from, the atmosphere by human activities within California. 
Based on review of this inventory, in December 2007 CARB approved a 2020 
emissions limit of 427 C02 equivalent million metric tons (MMT C02e)3

, which is 
equivalent to the 1990 emissions level. In accordance with requirements of AB32, a 
Scoping Plan was released in October 2008 and adopted by GARB in December 
2008. Key elements for reducing the state's greenhouse emissions to 1990 levels by 
2020 include: 

Expanding and strengthening existing energy efficiency programs as well as 
building and appliance standards; 

Achieving a statewide renewables ener9y mix of 33 percent; 

Developing a California cap-and-trade program that links with other Western 
Climate Initiative partner programs to create a regional market system; 

3 The C02 equivalent emissions are commonly expressed as "million metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent 
(MMTC02E)". The carbon dioxide equivalent for a gas is derived .by multiplying the tons of the gas by the 
associated Global Warming Potential (GWP). 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 30 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-126-



-219-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem 

Establishing targets for transportation-related greenhouse gas emissions for 
regions throughout California, and pursuing policies and incentives to 
achieve those targets; 

Adopting and implementing measures pursuant to existing State laws and 
policies, including California's clean car standards, goods movement 
measures, and the Low Carbon fuel Standard; and · 

Creating targeted fees, including a public goods charge on water use, fees 
on high global warming potential gases, and a fee to fund the administrative 
costs of the State's long-term commitment to AB 32 implementation {SOURCE 

V.9b). 

The Scoping Plan ide~~tifies 18 emissions reduction measures that address cap-and
trade programs, vehic e gas standards, energy efficiency, low carbon fuel standards, _ 
renewable energy, re· ional transportation-related greenhouse gas targets, vehicle 
efficiency measures/goods movement, solar roofs program, industrial emissions, 
high speed rail, green building strategy, recycling, sustainable forests, water and air 
(SOURCE V.9b). 

Senate Bill 375, signed in 2008, aims to reduce greenhouse gas em1ss1ons by 
discouraging urban sprawl and reducing vehicle miles traveled. Among other things, 
SB 375 requires regional transportation plans to include a "sustainable community 
strategy" (SCS) to meet greenhouse gas reduction targets set by the California Air 
Resources Board. AMBAG is currently developing such a plan in cooperation with 
local juri~dictions. To encourage smart growth development, SB 375 also provides 
streamlined review under CEQA for certain projects consistent with the SCS: transit 
priority projects (projects comprising at least 50 percent residential use, a residential 
density of at least 20 units per net acre and located within one half mile of a regional 
transit corridor) and residential or mixed use projects with a residential component 
requiring at least 75 percent of the total square footage. 

Senate Bi!! 375 established a basis for identifying regional reduction targets related 
to transportation and land use. It is one of the CARB's Scoping Plan strategies to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the transportation sector, and the Scoping 
Plan estimates a reduction of statewide GHG emissions by 5 million metric tons 
(SOURCE V.9b), approximately 3% of the total statewide GHG emissions reduction 
identified in the strategies outlined in the Scoping Plan. In order to achieve these 
reductions, SB 375 requires metropolitan transportation plans to include a 
"Sustainable Communities Strategy" (SCS) to meet GHG reduction targets for 
vehicle travel. In September of 2010, the GARB adopted regional per capita 
greenhouse gas targets for each of California's eighteen nietrcipolitan planning 
regions as required under SB 375. The Monterey Bay area's specific mandate is to 
reduce per capita greenhouse gas emissions from cars and light trucks to 2005 
levels by 2020 and to reduce per capita levels to 5% below 2005 levels by 2035. 
This results in a regional per capita GHG emissions target of 14.1 pounds per day 
per capita for 2020 and 13.4 pounds per day per capita for 2035. 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 31 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-127-



-220-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item n: o.l,;. Anacnment_L;.pdf 

The City of Capitola is in the process of updating its General Plan, which will include 
preparation of a Climate Action Plan. The Association of Monterey Bay Area 
Governments (AMBAG) completed GHG emissions inventories for all member 
jurisdictions, induding the City of Capitola. The City of Capitola inventory identifies 
citywide GHG emissions as well as emissions produced solely from City government 
operations occurring in the year 2005. In 2005, approximately 76,020 metric tons of 
C02 were emitted within the community of Capitola (SOURCE V.2c). 

1575 381h Avenue 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project will result in the construction of 23 
senior housing units. The project site currently is developed with a materials 
salvage yard that will be demolished. The project will result in an increase in 
GHG emissions, primarily due to project-related traffic, energy use, and 
construction-related traffic and energy use. 

The project is estimated to result in a net increase of GHG emissions of 
approximately 296 metric tons C02e annually due to project operation (i.e., 
traffic, energy use, etc.), and approximately 772 metric tons due to 
construction (SOURCE V.6). To date, no state agency has adopted significance 
criteria for GHG emissions. In June 2010, the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (BAAQMD) in the San Francisco Bay area revised and 
adopted its CEQA Guidelines, which include thresholds of significance for 
greenhouse gas emissions. The BAAQMD was the first regional air district to 
adopt numeric thresholds for greenhouse gas emissions from residential and 
commercial projects. The guidelines identified 1, 100 MT C02e/yr or 4.6 
MT/year per service population (residents/employees) as a numeric 
emissions level below which a project's contribution to global climate change 
would be less than "cumulatively considerable" (SOURCE V.9f). 

The project site is located within the jurisdiction of the Monterey Bay Unified 
Air Pollution Control District (MBUAPCD), which to date, has not adopted 
significance criteria or thresholds. However, in June 2011, the MBUAPco· 
initiated a process to develop GHG emission thresholds for project and plan 
level impact analyses. At that time, District staff recommended a threshold of 
4.6 MT/year per service population (residents/employees) for land use 
projects, which is similar to the threshold adopted by the BAAQMD. This 
approach is based on the total emissions estimated for the land use sector 
for the state of California divided by the state's projected service population. 
This reflects the total number of jobs and residents provided by a project, 
such that the project would ensure consistency with the goals of AB 32 (i.e., 
1990 GHG emissions levels by 2020) (Ibid.). GHG thresholds are under 
review by the MBUAPCD, but have not yet been adopted 

Although, neither the city of Capitola nor the MBUAPCD has adopted GHG 
emiss_ion significance thresholds, the project's estimated GHG emissions 
(about 296 MT/year C02e) are below significance thresholds proposed in the 
San Francisco Bay area (1, 100 MT/yr). While this threshold is adopted for 
the San Francisco Bay area, the area is adjacent to the MBUAPCD_ region; 
and it does support the conclusion that the project-level emissions are le~s 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 32 
Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-128-



-221-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item ... -·-·. ·----·····-··---·.--· 

than significant and less than cumulatively considerable. The estimated 
increase in residential population resulting from the project would represent 
8.5 MT/year. This is below the AMBAG target of 14.1 MT/year. (See 
discussion below under section 13 regarding estimated project population.) 

The project's estimated GHG emissions are below targets adopted by 
AMBAG and significance thresholds adopted by the BAAQMD. The GHG 
emissions calculated by the project would be partially offset by emissions 
related to the existing onsite use. It is also expected that GHG emissions 
resulting from the proposed project would be partially offset by the 
incorporation of energy and water conserving features and "green" building 
designs that would be required under State building regulations. The 
applicant has indicated that the project will be a "LEED" certified 
development.. Furthermore, the project site is within vvalking distance to 
commercial and shopping facilities, and it is located within an area served by 
transit, bicycle and pedestrian facilities. Bus stops are located near the site 
on Capitola Road and 38th Avenue within walking distance to the project site. 
The project represents infill development with a density of approximately 22 
units per acre. The proposed residential use and proximity to a transit 
corridor are consistent with SB375 priority projects. Therefore, greenhouse 
gas emissions resulting from development of the project is considered a less
than-significant impact, and the project's incremental effect is less-than
cumulatively considerable. 

(b) Conflict with Applicable Plans. The project would not conflict with implementation 
of state plans adopted for the purpose of reducing greenhouse gas emissions. The 
City of Capitola is in the process of updating its General Plan and preparing a 
Climate Action Plan to address citywide greenhouse emissions, but a plan has not 
been completed or adopted. -

8. Hazards. -

(a.c-d) Hazardous Materials/Wastes. The proposed project does not involve the 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials or wastes and would not result in 
creation of a public health hazard. The project consists of a 23-unit senior housing 
project. As such, the proposed use will not result in creation of risks associated with 
hazardous material use, exposure to health hazards, or creation of a health hazard. 

(b) Hazardous Materials Release. The project site is currently used as a commercial 
salvage yard that sells used windows, doors, -cabinets, appliances, and tiles and 
other building components. Several dicier structures are present on the site. Th~ 

- existing onsite buildings will be demolished. It is not known whether existing 
buildings may contain asbestos or lead-based paint. Any demolition of buildings 
containing asbestos would be required to comply with the Monterey Bay Unified Air 
Pollution Control District's Rule 306 that requires reporting and investigatfon of 
certain buildings with asbestos as established under federal law. The National 
Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPS) as set forth in the 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 33 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-129-



-222-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
item 'ft: b.l;. Attacnment_l;.pdf 

Code of Federal Regulations-40CFR61--is designed to prevent "visible emissions" 
of asbestos when buildings are renovated or demolished. Under federal law, a 
building must be inspected for asbestos prior to demolition or renovation, and federal 
and state agencies must be notified prior to demolition. According to the State Air 
Resources Control board, removal and disposal of asbestos procedures and 
controls must be specified in the notification form. 

- Impact Analysis. Construction workers may be exposed to asbestos during 
demolition of existing buildings if found. However, demolition would need to 
comply with local and federal standards and permit requirements if asbestos is 
found. Therefore, this is considered a less-than-significant impact. Although 
mitigatio11 measures are not required, the following Conditions of Approval are 
recommended. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: All demolition activities to be 
undertaken according to MBUAPCD Rule 306 requirements and OSHA 
standards to protecf workers from asbestos and lead based paint, if 
found within buildings to be demolished. Specific measures include air 
monitoring during demolition/construction activities, which include existing 
buildings. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Any building materials 
classified as hazardous materials will be disposed of in conformance with 
Federal, State, and local laws. 

(e-f) Airport Safety. The project site is not located near a public airport or private 
airstrip. 

(g} Emergency Response. The site location and scale have no impact on emergency 
response or emergency evacuation. 

9. Hydrology. 

(a-b) Water Quality Standards and Groundwater. The project is located on a 
developed site within a developed urban area and will not affect groundwater 
recharge. 

(c-e) Drainage; The City of Capitola maintains its street drainage systems and relies 
on the County to provide major storm drain services through the Santa Cruz County 
Flood Control & Water Conservation District Zone 5. The infrastructure associated 
with flood protection and stormwater drainage includes underground systems; above 
ground drainage ditches and water courses; pump stations, catch basins and 
outfalls. Storm drainage from most of the 41 st Avenue area flows to a Santa Cruz 
County flood control drainage basin near 38th Avenue/Brommer Street, and then 
flows into Moran lake, north and west of Capitola (SOURCE v.2d). Capitola prepared a 
Draft Stormwater Management Plan in 2008 that contains policies and measures to 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 34 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 

-130-



-223-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfI terr 

implement best management practices related to its drainage infrastructure, 
including outfall inspection and cleaning, annual storm drain cleaning in the fall, and 
zero discharge sidewalk cleaning (Ibid.). 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project will result in an increase of impervious 
surfacing, although the site currently contains impervious surfacing due to the 
presence of buildings and sheds. The proposed project would result in 
approximately 26,600 square feet of impervious surfacing, including replacement 
of approximately 50% of the existing impervious surfacing on the site (SOURCE 

v.7). Runoff flows from the site will increase from 0.37 cubic feet per second (cfs) 
to 1.18 cfs for a 10-yuear storm event and from 0.48 cfs to 1.56 cfs for a 25-year 
storm event (Ibid.). The project will not alter existing drainage patterns. All site 
runoff from roof and hardscape areas will be routed to an underground detention 
system, consisting of a chamber that will provide detention storage (Ibid.). 
Detained runoff will be released at pre-development rates to an offsite storm 
drain system that ultimately discharges to the County-maintained detention basin 
located at the southeast corner of the Brommer and 39th Avenue intersection. 
Thus, project runoff and drainage is considered a less-than-significant impact. 
Drainage improvements will be required to be designed in accordance with City 
standards and Public Works requirements. 

(f) Water Quality. Within urbanized areas such as the City of Capitola, pollutants 
frequently associated with storm water include sediment, nutrients, oil and grease, 
heavy metals, and litter. The primary. sources of storm water pollution in urban 
areas include automobiles, parking lots, landscape maintenance, construction, illegal 
connections to the storm water system, accidental spills and illegal dumping. 

/! 
Urban runoff and other 1'non-point source" discharges are regulated by the 1972 
Federal Clean Water ,_¢.ct (CWA), through the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit program that has been implemented in two 
phases through the California Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB). 
Phase I regulations, effective since 1~90, require NPDES permits for storm water 
discharges for certain specific industriar facilities and construction activities, and for 
municipalities with a population size greater than 100,000. Phase II regulations 
expand the NPDES program to include all municipalities with urbanized areas and 
municipalities with a population size greater than 10,000 and a population density. 
greater than 1,000 persons per square mile. Phase II regulations also expand the 
NPDES program to include construction sites of one to five acres. 

Cities and districts maintaining stormwater systems must obtain coverage under a 
NPDES stormwater permit and impleinent stormwater pollution prevention plans or 
stormwater management programs (both using best management practices) that 
effectively reduce or prevent the discharge of pollutants into receiving waters: For 
most jurisdictions, the best management practices. have resulted in higher 
operations and maintenance costs for their stormwater systems. The City of Capitola 
is working on a joint effort with other jurisdictions to develop guidelines to implement 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 35 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-131-



-224-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
item ff: 0.1..,;. Attacnmem_ 1..,;.pdf 

the state's requirement for storm water retention on new construction sites (SOURCE 
V.2d). 

Impact Analysis. Project runoff would not result in significant wat~r quality 
degradation as the proposed parking area will be an enclosed parking garage as 
part of the first floor, which would limit urban pollutants from vehicles from 
entering storm drainage facilities. Additionally, the project stormwater 

·management plan calls for use of Best Management Practices (BMPs) to treat 
runoff prior to discharge into the underground detention basin, which may consist 
of treating runoff through vegetated areas or by utilizing a mechanical treatment 
unit (SOURCE V.7). Thus, no impacts to water quality are anticipated as a result of 
project stormwater runoff. 

Project excavation and grading could result in· potential off-site transport of 
sediments into the municipal storm drain system. An erosion control plan has not 
yet been prepared. However,· as discussed in subsection 6(e,g) above, project 
grading is regulated by the City, which requires submittal of a grading plan with 
erosion control measures. Implementation of erosion control measures would 
prevent sediments from inadvertently entering storm drains. 

10. Land Use and Planning. The project is located within a developed area of the 
city of Capitola, and is located on a site that is currently developed. The proposed 
demolition of the existing salvage yard and development of the proposed senior 
housing project would not divide an established community. There are no known 
Habitat Conservation or Natural Community Conservation Plans that would be 
applicable to the site. 

(b-c) Consistency with Local Policies./ Plans. The project site is designated for 
commercial uses in the City's General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. The CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zone district allows multiple residential with the 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. However,· the project includes a proposed_ 
rezoning to a PD (Planned Development) district. As indicated in the City's current 
Housing Element (SOURCE v.1 b), development standards in the PD zone are flexible, 
tailored to the constraints of the site and needs of the development. The Housing 
Element identifies the PD zone as a way to allow site-specific density increases. 
Additionally, the project site is identified as a housing opportunity site in the Housing 
Element. The project does not conflict with any pblicies or regulations adopted for 
the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental impact. 

11. Mineral Resources. The General Plan determined that no known mineral 
resources were located within the General Plan Area which would be of value to the 
region or state, and the site is already developed with a residential use. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 36 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-132-



-225-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem 

12. Noise. 

(a-b) Noise Exposure. The project site is not located near an airport or private airstrip. 
However, the site is located within a commercial area that is affected by traffic noise, 
primarily along Capitola Road and 41 51 Avenue. According to information developed 
as part of the City's General Plan update, the project site is located with an area that 
could experience very high noise intensity levels, although specific ambient noise 
levels are not identified (SOURCE V.2c). 

The City General Plan identifies land use compatibility standards for noise levels. 
For multi-family residential uses, normally acceptable exJerior noise levels 60-65 
decibels and conditionally acceptable levels are identified as 60-70 decibels. These 
standards indicated that new development in a conditionally acceptable nois_e range 
should be undertaken only after a detailed analysis of noise reduction requirements 
is made. Interior noise levels are limited to 45 decibels pursuant to state regulations. 

Impact Analysis. The proposal consists of construction of 23 senior housing units. 
Project interior and outdoor areas may be exposed to noise levels that exceed 
City standards due to traffic noise along 381h Avenue and nearby Capitola Road. 
This is considered a potentially significant impact. 

The City of Capitola General Plan sets forth noise and land use compatibility 
standards. Noise levels of 60 to 70 CNEL are considered conditionally 
acceptable for multi-family residential uses, and may need additional noise 
insulation or attenuation in building designs. City and State standards require 
interior noise levels of 45 decibels (dB) or less. Closed windows, building 
r.naterials and design features, such as insulation and noise-attenuating 
windows, can reduce interior noise levels. Preparation of an acoustical study as 
recommended in the City's General Plan (Policy 8) with Implementation of 
recommendations in the study will reduce the impact to a less-than-significant 
level. 

MITIGATION MEASURE 1: Require preparation of an acoustical study with 
building permit submittal and require building plans to incorporate any 
recommended building or window design measures, if needed to achieve 
required indoor noise levels. · 

Monitoring: Include measure as Condition of Project Approval. Require 
applicant to submit acoustical study to Planning Department staff prior to 
construction for approval. City Planning and Building staff are responsible 
for reviewing building plans to ensure recommended measures are 
incorporated into the building design. · 

(c} Permanent Noise Increases. The immediate project vicinity is characterized by 
commercial uses, except for residential uses to the west. The proposed residential 
uses would not result in significant increases in ambient noise levels, especially with 
regards to existing commercial business activity and traffic. A swimming pool is 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 37 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-133-



-226-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
nem ff: o.\J. 1-urncnmem_\J.pdf 

proposed on the third floor along the 381
h Avenue frontage, and would be located 

away from existing residences. There is no planned· extei"ior mechanical equipment 
that would generate increased sound levels or noise. 

(d) Temporary Noise. There will be a temporary increase in existing noise levels 
during demolition, grading and construction. Adjacent residential uses to the west 
are considered sensitive receptors. Anticipated equipment includes, but is not limited 
to equipment that would be used for excavation, grading, and building construction, as 
well as trucks. 

1575 38th Avenue 

Impact Analysis. Construction activities could cause temporary annoyance and 
activity interference at adjacent residences. Construction-related noise levels 
would vary throughout the day, depending on the type of equipment in use at any 
one time. Conventional construction activities are expected to generate noise 
levels in the range of 75 to 85 decibels at a distance of 50 feet. Noise levels 
would decrease with distance from the site. Noise levels associated with 
construction will vary throughout the construction period and throughout any given 
day, depending on the type of equipment in use. Noise levels associated with use 
of heavy equipment would be intermittent throughout a given day. Because 
construction-related impacts are temporary and noise levels are variable, 
construction-related noise impacts are considered less-than-significant. Although 
mitigation measures are not required, Best Management Practices are 
recommended as a Condition of Approval to be included in the project 
construction specifications. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Require implementation of the 
following measures during construction: 

Prohibit construction on weekends and limit construction to 
weekdays between 8 AM and 5 PM. 

Require proper maintenance of construction equipment. 

Require all stockpiling and vehicle staging areas and stationary 
noise-generating construction equipment to be located as far as 
possible from nearby residences as practicable. · 

As part of construction specifications, require all equipment to be 
kept in good repair and fitted with superior quality mufflers. All 
equipment shall be properly maintained to assure that no 
additional noise, due to worn or improperly maintained parts, 
would be generated. 

Require the contractor to assure that mobile noise-generating 
equipment and machinery are shut off when not in use. 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 38 · 
Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-134-



-227-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem 

13. Population and Housing. 

(a) Population Growth. The city of Capitola had 5,537 existing dwelling units as of 
January 1, 2012 with a total population of 9,981 residents. 4 The proposed project 
will result in construction of 23 senior housing units. The resulting population 
increases is estimated at approximately 35 new residents assuming one person per 
studio unit and up to two persons per one- and two-bedroom units. The City's overall 
average household size is 2.124 residents per dwelling unit. The City's population 
would total 10,016 residents with the proposed project, which would not AMBAG's 
population forecast of 10,222 residents by the year 2015, Thus, the population 
expected with the proposed project is within population growth projections for the 
City, and the proje.ct would not result in a substantial increase in population growth. 

(b-c) Removal of Housing/Displacement of People. The project site currently is in 
commercial use, and the project will not result in removal of existing housing or 
displacement of people. 

14. Public Services. . 

(a-b) Fire and Police Protection Services. The proposed project will be served by 
.existing seryices and utilities. The project will have no measurable effect on existing 
public services in that the incremental increase in demand will not require expansion 
of any services to serve the project. Construction of new fire or police facilities to 
serve the project would not be warranted. New development will be required to install 
automatic fire sprinklers and alarms in accordance with _City requirements and comply 
with other Fire Department recommendations regarding access. Thus,· the proposed 
project would n<;>t result in significant impacts to fire and police protection services. 

(c) Schools. The proposed project would result in construction of 23 senior housing 
rental units. As a senior housing project, there would _be no increase in study 
enrollments or impacts to existing school facilities. 

(d) Parks. See discussion below under subsection 15 - Recreation. 

15. Recreation. . 

The proposed project's net increase of 23 senior residential units and the associated 
population of 35 estimated residents will result in an incremental increased demand 
for recreational facilities, but is not expected to result in a significant increased use 
to existing parks and facilities to the extenl that a substantial physical deterioration 
would occur. The project does provide onsite swimming pool and spa. 

4 Per California Department of Finance, "E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the 
State, 2011 and 20 l 2" (May 201 2. Online at: 
http://www.dof.ca.gov/research /demographic/reports/estimates le-5/2011 -20 /view.php. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 39 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-135-



-228-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
item lf: ::>.1..;. Attacnmem_1..;.pdf 

16. Transportation/Traffic. 

(a-b.f} Traffic and Circulation. The project site is located on 381
h Avenue, just south of 

Capitola Road and west of 41 51 Avenue. 381
h Avenue is identified as a collector street 

in the City's existing General Plan, but is identified· as a "minor" arterial· in the 
background reports prepared for the General Plan Update that is in progress 
(SOURCE V.2b). The Capitola Road/381

h Avenue intersection is signalized. There are 
no congestion management programs in effect in Capitola or county of Santa Cruz. 
The proposed project would not conflict with adopted policies or plans supporting 
alternative transportation. 

Impact Analysis. The proposed proJect is estimated to result in an increase in daily 
traffic, but would result in reduced trips during peak hours. Thus, increased 
traffic as a result of the project is considered a less-than-significant impact. 

The proposed project is estimated to result in a net increase of 39 daily weekday 
trips based on trip generation rates for senior housing and warehouse uses 
published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (SOURCE V.8). Tr_affic from 
the existing salvage yard was deducted from the total trips generated by the 
proposed senior housing project. The proposed project is estimated to result in a 
slight decrease in AM and PM peak trips compared to the existing use. The 
addition of approximately 40 project trips to study intersections throughout the 
day would.not have a noticeable effect. Thus, the project's traffic would result in 
a less-than-significant impact, and no mitigation measures are required. 

(d-e) Access. Site access for the proposed project is planned via one inbound 
driveway and one outbound driveway located along 38th Avenue. Due to the site 
location, the proposed driveways are planned to be offset from the two existing 
driveways serving the existing retail center located across the project site on 38th 
Avenue. The project design would not result in increased hazards or inadequate 
emergency access. 

17. Utilities and Service Systems. The proposed project will be served by existing 
utilities and will have no measurable effect on existing sewer, water, or storm 
drainage utilities in that the incremental increased demand will not require expansion 
of any of those services or construction of new facilities to serve the project. 

(a-b. e) Wastewater Collection and Treatment. Sanitary sewer service for the City of 
Capitola is provided under contract through the Santa Cruz County Sanitation 
District, which provides sewage collection and disposal services to the Live Oak, 
Capitola, Soquel, and Aptos areas. The City of Capitola is not responsible for nor 
has the authority to maintain the sanitary sewers. The District's customers generate 
approximately 5-6 million gallons a day (mgd) of wastewater that flows to the Lode 
Street treatment facility and is then pumped to the City of Santa Cruz wastewater 
treatment plant at Neary Lagoon (SOURCE V.2d). 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 40 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 

-136-



-229-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem ________ ------------------.----

Wastewater treatment is provided by the City's wastewater treatment plant that has 
an average dry weather flow capacity of 17 million gallons per day (mgd) and 
currently operates at approximately 62 percent of its· capacity with a remaining 
capacity of approximately 10.5 mgd. As part of the total capacity, the Santa Cruz 
County Sanitation District has treatment capacity rights of 8 million gallons per day. 
The Sanitation District contributes 5.5 mgd with a remaining capacity of 2.5 mgd 
(SOURCE V.3b). The treatment plant has adequate capacity to serve the project, which 
is estimated to generate approximately 0.001 mgd of wastewater based on a 
conservative estimate that 90 percent of the estimated project water use would 
result in wastewater generation. 

(b.d) Water Supply. The project site is located within the service area of the City of 
Santa Cruz Water Department. The City of Santa Cruz Water Department serves 
approximately 22,000 connections in an approximate 20 square mile area that 
includes lands within existing City limits, a portion of UCSC, a portion of Live Oak in 
the unincorporated area of Santa Cruz County, a small part of the City of Capitola 
and coastal agricultural lands outside City limits. 

In December 2011, the Santa Cruz City Council adopted the 201 O Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP) in accordance with State law, which evaluates water· 
supply and demand within the City's service area over the next 20 years. 
Additionally, the City of Santa Cruz updated its General Plan, which was adopted by 
the City Council in June 2012. The City of Santa Cruz General Plan 203.0 EIR was 
certified at the same time. The EIR provides a comprehensive analysis of impacts of 
water demand within the City's service area. Both the UWMP and General Plan EIR 
assess future water demand within the City's water service area that is located 
outside· Santa Cruz city limits based on population growth projections developed by 
the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG). The following section 
summarizes background information contained in these documents, which are 
incorporated by reference as indicated in section 111.B of this Initial Study. A 
summary of existing conditions is presented; the full water supply review and 
analysis is provided on pages 4.5-1 to 4.5-44 of the Draft EIR volume and pages 3-
2 to 3-19 of the Final EIR volume.) 

Water Supplies. The City's water system is comprised of four main sources of 
supply: North Coast sources; San Lorenzo River diversions; . Loch Lomond 
Reservoir; and Live Oak wells. On average, about 84 percent of the City's annual 
water supply needs are met by surface diversions from the coastal streams and San 
Lorenzo River, while approximately 12 percent is supplied by Loch Lomond 
Reservoir and four percent of the supply is derived from the Live Oak Well system 
(SOURCE V.3d). ·Major facilities include two water treatment plants, several pump 
stations and 16 distribution reservoirs storing almost 15 million gallons of treated 
water. There are also about 300 miles of water pipelines throughout the service area 
(Ibid.). 

Water production has fluctuated over the past ten years; annual production has 
ranged from a high of nearly 4,500 MGY in 2000 to a low of approximately 3,200 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 41 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-137-



-230-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item#: 5.C. Attachment_c.pdf 

MGY in 2009 (SOURCE V.3d). Average water production between 198_5 and 2010 was 
approximately 3,900 MGY, while average water produCtion between 2006 and 2010 
averaged approximately 3,500 MGY (Ibid.). 

The 201 O UWMP estimates. future water supplies in the year 2030 as 4, 160 MGY, 
depending on the outcome of negotiations between the City and regulatory agencies 
regarding releases for fish habitat. Continued access to the same amount of North 
Coast supply sources will depend on the outcome of a Section .10 "incidental take" 
permit application and accompanying Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) that are 
being prepared by the City pursuant to the federal Endangered Species Act for City 
activities designed to prevent take of a listed federal species. The permit and plan 
must be approved by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and NOAA National Marine 
Fisheries Service (NMFS). The City entered into the HCP process in 2001, and over 
the past 6 years, the City has coordinated and met with U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service and NMFS on HCP-related issues and has conducted a number of studies. 
A draft HCP ·has not yet been completed, but the City has prepared and submitted a 
Draft Conservation Strategy that identifies minimum in-stream flows at City. 
diversions to minimize the effect of diversions on habitat conditions for steelhead 
and coho salmon. 

Th~ water supply estimates in the 2010 UWMP were developed using the City's 
water supply operations model and incorporates the best availabie information about 
future operations beginning in 2015 under a yet to be approved Habitat 
Conservation Plan (HCP). The final outcome is not known as the City of Santa.Cruz 
is currently negotiations with the federal agencies on flow requirements. 

Water Demand. The adopted 2010 UWMP estimates a water demand of between 
4,046 and 4,537 MGY in the year 2030 within the entire water s.ervice area. This is 
based on two scenarios; the higher demand reflects water use trends experienced 

- between 1999 and 2004, while the lower demand reflects more recent water use 
trends experienced in 2007-08. The 2010 UWMP indicates that the lower de111and 
scenario is more reasonable given recent trends and state mandates for water 
conservation (SOURCE V.3d). 

In 2009, the state of California enacted SB?, which sets a goal of reducing urban per 
capita water use by 20% by December 31, 2020. Under the law, each urban retail 
water supplier must include a base daily water use, a 2020 urban water use target 
and ·an interim (2015) water use target in its UWMP. The baseline water use value 
for California as a whole is 192 gallons per capita per day (gpcd); the value for the 
Central Coast Region, which encompasses the area from Santa Cruz to Santa 
Barbara, is 154 gpcd (SOURCE V.3d). Over the last 10-year period, per capita water 
use within the City of Santa Cruz water service area has declined from about 126 
gpcd in 2001 to 93 gpcd in 2010 {SOURCE V.3d). The City's 10-year baseline (ending 
2010), determined in accordance with the state's technical methodologies, is 113 
gpcd. In accordance with state methodologies, the UWMP includes a 2020 target of 
11 O gpcd, and the City would be in compliance with state law if it maintains its per 
capita demand at or below this level. 

157 5 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 42 

Initial Study 
July 3,0, 2012 

-138-



-231-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item ... -·-·. ·----·····-··---··-· 

. [ 

Water Supply Reliability. The primary water reliability issue currently facing the City 
of Santa Cruz is the lack of adequate water supply during droughts due to the wide 
range in the yield of surface water sources from year to year and limited storage 
capacity. Updated modeling conducted for the 2010 UWMP found that the worst
year peak season shortage could ·range between 23 and 37% and between 42 and 
51 % with additional flow releases for fish habitat. Historically, one dry or critically dry 
year has not created a water shortage due to sufficient storage in Loch Lomond 
ReseNoir. Based on past experience, however, a shortage is likely to occur when 
the central coast region experiences two or more dry or critically dry years in a row 
(SOURCE V.3d). The total water supply estimated to be available to the City in single 
dry years (i.e., 1994) is 3,900 MG (Ibid.). However, during an extreme two-year 
drought similar to the 1976-77 event, the estimated water supply available to the City 
in the second year of that event is 2,800 MG with a resulting deficit of approximat~ly 
1,200 MG (Ibid.). The peak season is between April and October since this is ·the 
period that would be most affected by a supply shortage due to peak water demand . 

The City faces a series of ongoing challenges that potentially could lead to some 
loss of existing supply in the future, although it is uncertain at this time to what 
extent and which supplies might be affected. These considerations include: potential 
flow releases associated with the HCP as described above, the outcome of water 
rights petitions, groundwater availability and climate change issues. These 
considerations are described in section 4.5 of the City 6f Santa Crnz General Plan 
2030 Draft EIR as updated by the Final EIR document. 

The City of Santa Cruz has been actively considering possible new water supplies 
for nearly 20 years. In 2005, the City adopted an Integrated Water Plan (IWP), which 
identifies a water management strategy. The purpose of the IWP is to help the City 
reduce drought year water shortages and provide a reliable supply that meets long
term needs while ensuring protection of public health and safety. The adopted IWP 
water management strategy consists of the following three major components: 

Water conservation programs. 

Customer use curtailment (water use cutback) in times of shortage. 

Supplemental water supply for drought protection provided by a 2.5 million
gallon-per-day (mgd) desalination plant with potential for expansion up to 4.5 
mgd in increments of one mgd. · 

The City is· active.ly implementing water conservation programs. Additionally, the 
City and Soquel Cr~ek Water District are pursuing regulatory approvals for a 
permanent, 2.5 mgd (with potential for expansion to 4.5 mgd) desalination plant. The 
facility would provide a backup water supply to the City in times of drought and 
would provide water to the District at other times to reduce its reliance on well water 
and avert the threat of seawater intrusion in local groundwater aquifers. 

A one year of testing at a pilot desalination plant has been completed, and 
environmental review is underway for a permanent facility, which is expected to be 
constructed and in operation by the year 2016, pending completion of project-level 

1575 38th Avenue Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page43 

-139-



-232-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item n: 5.c.;. Attacnment_c.;.pdf 

environmental review and regulatory permit approvals, e.g., approval of a coastal 
development permit from the California Coastal Commission. The design and 
environmental review phases are currently undeiway. There is some uncertainty 
related to the approval and timing of the permanent desalination plant construction 
and operation. The likelihood of construction of a permanent plant is currently 
uncertain as design plans have not been completed, and it cannot be predicted at this 
time whether the Coastal Commission and other agencies would issue the necessary 
approvals. 

Impact Analysis-. The proposed project is estimated to result in a net increase 
in water demand of approximately 0.53 MGY based on water use rates 
developed by the City Water Department for the residential ·uses, 
landscaping and swimming pools as summarized on Table 1. This estimate 
deducts estimated existing water demand at the site based on City of Santa 
Cruz rates. Additionally, the proposed project includes a restaurant-dining 
facility for residents only. Thus, project water use may be a slightly higher, 
i.e. 0.6 MGY. Discussions with staff of the City Water Department indicate 
that the estimate project water demand is consistent with water use at a 
nearby 25-unit senior housing project. 

Multi-Family Residential 
Units 

Landscaping · 

Swimming Pool 

Total Project Water Use: 

. Existing Consumption 

Salvage Materials Yard 

Net Water Use 

Table 1: Estimated Project Water Demand 

23 units 

2,000 sq. ft. 

480 sq. ft 

10,000 sq. ft . 

70 gpd /room 

0.02 x sq. ft. = billing units 
(100 c~ x 100 x 7.48 

gallons 

Area x 4 x 7.48 gallons 

12 gallons/sf/yr 

0:60 

0.03 

0.02 

0.65 

0.12 

0.53 

5 
Other potential permits, approvals and/or consultations for a permanent desalination plant and 

supporting infrastructure (i.e., intake facility and distribution pipeline) may be required from vprious agencies, 
including, but not limited to U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, State Lands Commission, and California Department of 
Health Services. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 44 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-140-



-233-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
.. lterr . ... -· _ .. ·----· ····-· ·--_ ·.- -· 

The estimated project water demand is within the 20-year estimated water 
demand· for areas outside Santa Cruz city limits. The 201 O UWMP predicts 
that water supplies will be adequate in normal years to serve estimated 
growth within the City of Santa Cruz water service area. Therefore, 
increased water demand under normal conditions is a less-than-significant 
project impact. · 

During periods of drought, water customers would be subject to water 
curtailment as enacted by the City. The minimal increased water demand 
associated with the proposed project would not cause any noticeable effects 
on the level of curtailment that would be required of all water customers in a 
single dry year scenario .. The proposed project's increased demand is 
considered minimal and would not have significant effects on the levels of 
curtailment that would be required throughout the service area. As indicated 
above, the City of Santa Cruz in partnership with. the Sequel Creek Water 
District is pursuing development of a desalination facility th?t would serve the 
City during periods of drought. 

(c) Storm Drainage Facilities. See discussion above under subsection 9 (c-e) 
regarding drainage. 

(f) Solid Waste Disposal. Since 2007, the City of Capitola has a franchise agreement 
with Green Waste Recovery (GWR) for the collection of refuse, recycling, and yard 
waste. Solid waste collected in Capitola is transferred to the Monterey Peninsula 
Class Ill Landfill located in the City of Marina, which is operated by the Monterey 
Regional Waste Management District. It is a regional disposal facility that serves an 
853 square mile area with a population of approximately 170,000. This landfill covers 
475 acres and is comprised of both unlined and lined disposal areas. Waste types 
accepted and permitted at this facility include: agricultural, construction/demolition, 
sludge (biosolids), and mixed municipal. The landfill has a remaining waste capacity 
of approximately 40 million tons (74 million cubic yards) and has an anticipated life 
capacity of 100 years (SOURCE V2.d). Thus, there is adequate existing capacity to 
serve the proposed project. 

18. Mandatory Findings of Significance. 

(a) Quality of the Environment. The proposed project would have no effect on 
biological or cultural resources and would not result in elimination of important 
examples of major period of California history or prehistory. The project would not 
degrade the quality of the environmental or otherwise affect fish and wildlife habitat. 
No significant impacts were identified related to cultural historical resources. 

(b) Cumulative Impacts. There are no cumulative projects pending in the city of 
Capitola, except for the opening of a Target store at the Capitola Mall to replace a 
former department store that closed within the last few years. The proposed project 
would contribute to cumulative water supply and global climate change impacts as 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 45 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-141-



-234-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item n: 5.C. Attachment_C.pdf 

discussed below. There are no other known significant cumulative impacts to which 
the project would contribute. · 

Water Supply. The proposed project will contribute to cumulative water demand under 
normal and under drought conditions in which there are existing water shortages. 
Cumulative development and growth within the City's water service area could result 
in a cumulative increase in water demand of approximately 520 MGY by the year 
2030 (SOURCEi V.3b), which includes projected population growth outside city limits but 
within the City's water service area. This cumulative water demand estimate is 
based on population projections for areas outside city of Santa Cruz city limits, but 
does not include any additional growth that may be anticipated in the City of Capitola 
General Plan, which is being updated. 

The City of Santa Cruz adopted 2010 UWMP indicates that there would be adequate 
supplies during a normal year to serve cumulative development within the service 
area based on expected water demand trends and usage. However, as indicated 
above in subsection 17(b-d), existing supplies may be reduced in the future with 
implementation of a Habitat Conservation Plan and resolution of petitions before the 
State Water Resources Control Board, although whether or not this may occur is 
uncertain at this time, and if so, to what extent and which supplies might be affected 
also are not known. If water demand in the City's water serv'ice area is higher than 
what was experienced in the last five years (instead of more recent lower water 
demand levels), cumulative development could result in a significant cumulative 
impact on water supply during normal years (SOURCE V3.c). 

Additionally, cumulative water demand would also increase during drought periods in 
which City supplies cannot meet water demand unde_r existing conditions. The 2010 
UWMP estimates an annual shortfall of approximately 1,200 MGY in 2030 during a 
multiple-year drought. Thus, cumulative development and growth would result in a 
significant cumulative water impact as it results in additional demand in a system 
that does not currently have adequate water supplies during a drought condition. 

As previously indicated in section 17 above, the City has been actively considering 
possible new water supplies for nearly 20 years, and its adopted Integrated Water 
Plan (!WP) identifies potential approaches to drought-year water supply options. The 
adopted !WP water management strategy includes three components: water 
conservation, water use curtailment during droughts, and a supplemental 
desalination water supply. The City is actively implementing water conservation 
programs. The City currently imposes a "System Development Charge" on all new 
connections based on meter size that is used to fund conservation programs and 
partially offset the desalination plant's costs. 

The certified !WP EIR evaluates impacts of the construction of a desalination facility 
and associated pipelines on a programmatic level, which are summarized in the City 
of Santa Cruz General Plan 2030 EIR. Construction could have physical 
environmental effects, and the IWP EIR identified potentially significant impacts that 
could be mitigated to a less-than-significant level, except for temporary construction 
noise. The ElR also includes further review of population projections and City/County 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Poge 46 

Initial Stu<;ly 
July 30, 2012 

-142-



-235-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
.. ' Item ... _____ ----·-·····-··---··-·· 

land use planning documents prior to any expansion of a plant in ensure that 
development of an additional water supply is consistent with plan·ned growth 
projections (SOURCE V:3c). 

The City has completed a one-year operation of the pilot desalination plant, and 
design and environmental review for a permanent facility are currently underw.ay. A 
permanent desalination plant is expected to be constructed and in operation by the · 
year 2016, pending completion of project-level environmental review and acquisition 
of necessary regulatory approvals (e.g., from the California Coastal Commission). 
The desalination facility would provide a supplemental water supply during periods of 
drought and could be expanded at a future time to provide additional supply after 
additional environmental review and permitting. The City acknowledges some 
uncertainty related to the. approval of and timing for construction of the permanent 
desalination facility as the project is subject to completion of environmental review and 
permit approvals, including a coastal permit from the Caiifornia Coastal Commission. 

The City's adopted IWP and 201 O UWMP identified seawater desalination as the 
only feasible alternative for a backup supply of drinking water during a drought. 
Recycled wastewater was determined to be potentially feasible for landscape 
irrigation, but is not the City's preferred water supply strategy, although the City's 
General Plan 2030 policy remains open to pursuing this option (SOURCE V.3d). 

1575 38th Avenue 

Cumulative Impact Analysis. Cumulative development and .growth would 
result in a significant cumulative water impact as it results in additional 
future demand in a system that does not have adequate existing or long
term water supplies during drought conditjons and may not have 
adequate future supplies in normal yE;Jars. The project's incremental 
contribution to this situation would be less than one hundredth of one 
percent of the total cumulative· demand. 

The project will be required to include water conserving fixtures and 
landscaping in accordance with building code and City requirements. In 
addition, the project will pay the required "System Development Charge;" 
which is used in part to implement conservation and desalination plant 
costs planned under the !WP. Under drought conditions, the project, like 
other City customers, would be required to curtail water use by varying 
amounts, depending on the severity of the drought. The minor increase in 
project water demand would not substantially exacerbate water s.upply 
reliability during a drought or in the future due to cumulative growth 
because, as explained above (in section 17[b,d]), and would not be 
expected to result in any noticeable increase in the curtailment in 
customer use that would be implemented during drought conditions. 
Thus, the incremental effects of the proposed project would not be 
cumulatively considerable. 

Additionally, the City's adopted Integrated Water Plan includes a 
supplemental future supply· of 2.5 MG/year from the proposed, but not yet 
approved or constructed desalination plant. The facility, would provide a 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 47 
Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-143-



-236-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item#: 5.C. Attachment_C.pdf 

supplemental water supply during periods of drought and could be 
expanded in the future to provide additional water to accommodate 
growth planned within the City's water service area .. As indicated above 
(in section 17[b,d]), the City is in the process of completing design plans 
and preparing an ElR for the project. The City also regularly monitors 
water demand and water supply options via preparation of annual water 
demand reports to the City Council and five-year updates of the UWMP, 
which includes a 20-year planning horizon for water supply management. 

Global Climate Change. See discussion above under subsection 7 above regarding 
global climate change. 

(c) Substantial Adverse Effects on Human Beings. No environmental effects have been 
identified that would have direct or indirect adverse effects on human beings, except 
for potential exposure to noise, which can be mitigated to a less-than-significant 
level. 

1575 3B•h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 48 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 

-144-



-237-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdfItem 

EXCERPT PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 6, 2013 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

c. 1575 38TH AVENUE #12-028 APN: 034-181-17 

Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit to demolish a 
commercial salvage yard (Capitola Freight and Salvage) and construct a three-story, 23-unit 
residential senior housing project in the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Property Owner: Maureen A. Romac, filed 3/2/12 
Representative: Steve Thomas 

Commissioner Newman recused himself as he has an interest in property within 300 feet of the 
subject property application. 

Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 

Chairperson Graves acknowledged receipt of a letter from County Supervisor John Leopold's office. 

Commissioner Smith clarified the concrete wall shown on the current plans, is 6'-8" high. She asked 
staff to highlight the changes in the current proposal from the preliminary review plans. She noted 
that the City Council had reviewed and commented on a three story, 57 unit proposal, and this is a 
three story 23 unit project. 

Senior Planner Bane responded that the current plans are almost identical to the preliminary review 
plans. 

Commissioner Ortiz questioned the General Plan comments in the second to last paragraph on page 
70 of the agenda packet. She asked if this is language from the current General Plan and will it carry 
forward into the next General Plan. 

Consultant Susan Westman responded that the current Housing Element identified this property as a 
possible low income housing site. The next Housing Element will require new sites to be identified for 
low income units. 

The public hearing was opened. 

Maureen Romac, property owner/applicant, spoke in support.in application. She stated that they have 
worked with the neighbors to design this project and will continue to listen to neighborhood and city 
concerns. 

Commissioner Ortiz asked if there is an age requirement, if the residents buy a meal plan; is there 
more than one shuttle bus; how many employees are there; what is the range of units offered to 
residents in this project? 

Maureen Romac responded that the minimum age is 55 years of age; residents will be purchasing a 
meal plan as part of the tenancy agreement; there will be one shuttle bus; there will be four 
employees; there are studio units, one-bedroom units and two-bedroom units. 

Rick De La Cruz, spoke in support of the application. 

-145-



-238-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
nem ff: o.\J. Auacnmern_u.pdf 

CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 6, 2012 

Mark Davidson, spoke with concerns regarding the project. He requested clarification about the 
number of units specified in the staff report on page 4, General Plan, and the zoning change process. 
He requested a copy of the shading plan/shadow study. 

Chairperson Graves explained the planned development process. He stated the staff would provide 
the shading plan/shadow study. 

Don Mosegaard, representing three neighbors along the rear property boundary, spoke with concerns· 
regarding the project. He submitted a handout of comments. 

Kim Fry, spoke with concerns about the project height, setbacks, drainage issues, and loss of privacy 
and solar access. She requested construction hours be limited to 8:00 a.m.-6:00 p.m. 

Tatiana Teeuwissc, spoke with concerns about the project height, loss of privacy and solar access, 
and noise during construction and the future use of the property. 

Teressa Stolroff, spoke with concerns about the project and concurred with the prior speakers. She 
stated that the new plan reduced the number of units, but not the mass of the building. The elevation 
along the Bulb Avenue properties is a very straight wall with no articulation. 

Steve Thomas, property owner, acknowledged the public comments. 

Richard Haack, architect's representative, clarified the rear yard setback could be 1 O feet, but the 
planned development permit allows for reduced setbacks. 

The public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Routh stated the following: Below are the reasons I enumerated as to why the 
Planning Commission should not support this application and the commissioners agreed. 

I stated the use is appropriate for the site but does not warrant all the exceptions being made to the 
zoning ordinance. 

To quote the purpose of the CN Zone, "The purpose of the CN district is to accommodate, at convenient 
locations, those limited commercial uses which are necessary to meet frequently occurring basic 
shopping and service needs of people residing in adjacent areas and to implement the harmonious 
intermingling of pedestrian, commercial, and residential activities." 

Here's the important part: "The style and scale of development should be consistent with the foregoing 
and the intensity of uses should have a low impact on the neighborhood". 

The two important words here are "scale" and "consistent". This project is certainly not complimentary 
nor consistent to the scale of adjacent commercial and residential uses. 

Planned Development standards and requirements state that "standards for area, coverage, density, 
yard requirements, parking and screening for PD district uses shall be governed by the standards of the 
residential, commercial, or industrial zoning district most similar in nature to the proposed PD district 
use." For this application, that would be the CN district standards and requirements. 

The development standards and requirements for the CN district require a 27' height limit (the 
proposed structure is 42' high), side yard setbacks of 10% for the first floor (the proposed development 
has O' and 6'10" setbacks), and 15% for the second floor (the proposed structure has O' and 
6'1 O"setbacks), 15' front setback (the proposal is for O' setback) and a minimum of 1 O' rear yard for 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\6-6-13\Word\Attachment E.doc 

-146-



-239-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdflterr 
CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 6, 2012 

commercial uses and greater for residential uses (the proposed development has 15' rear yard 
setback). 

The zoning ordinance does allow exceptions, but in order to grant these kind of exceptions there must 
be overwhelming benefits provided to the community through design, use, or special amenities. The 
benefits are not so overwhelming that we should set aside all of the CN district requirements and 
standards. Keep in mind also, this application is not even for a principal permitted use, but a conditional 
use. 

In addition, the landscaping requirement in the CN zone requires 5% of the lot to be landscaped. This 
proposal has a few potted plants in the front and minimal landscaping on the rear and north sides. On 
the south side the applicant is claiming the landscaping on the adjacent storage facility as if it were part 
of this project while it may adequately screen the south side, the applicant has no control over the 
adjacent property and redwood trees. 

Nothing in this proposal conforms to any of the development standards required in the CN zone. In 
fact it does not conform to any standards in any zone. 

PD district standards and requirements also state no PD district shall include less than 4 acres (this 
proposal is .72 acres, 31,385 sq. ft.) unless certain findings are made; that the land is suitable as a PD 
district by virtue of its unique historical character (nothing historical about a used building supply lot), 
topography (nothing unique about a flat lot), land use (nothing special or unique about a large multi
family residential structure), or landscaping (no unique landscaping currently exists and none included 
in the proposal). It is impossible to make any of these findings. 

In this case, the PD application simply is an end run around the requirements set forth in our zoning 
·ordinance. It is a blatant attempt to squeeze more units, with inadequate setbacks and landscaping, at a 
height not in scale with the adjacent neighborhoods. 

The density of this project is 1 unit for every 1365 sq. ft. The last time this community allowed a project 
of similar density was when the condominiums along Park Ave were approved way back in 1970. and 
the next election after those were approved a new council eliminated the zoning designation (RM-H) 
that supported that density and it has remained that way ever since, through several general plan 
updates and zoning ordinance revisions. The community has repeatedly spoken loudly, over several 
years and general plan and zoning updates, that this high zoning density is not supported in our 
community. 

Approving this application, which meets no current development standards in the city, jeopardizes the 
very integrity of our zoning ordinance. 

At the conclusion of the above comments, fellow Planning Commissioners concurred unanimously. A 
motion was made and seconded to deny the application based on the above reasons and passed 
unanimously. It is probable this application will be appealed to the City Council and the Planning 
Commission stated very specifically that they wanted the council to be made aware of the above 
comments. 

Commissioner Ortiz concurred with Commissioner Routh's comments. She stated Commissioner 
Routh's comments should be forwarded to the City Council verbatim. She stated her concerns about 
applicant's anticipated number of employees with all of the services proposed: laundry, cooks, 
servers and the shuttle bus. She did not support the second floor decks as they eliminate privacy to 
adjacent properties. She recommended staff incorporate the green building requirements into the 
conditions of approval and that the construction hours be modified to address adjacent businesses 
and residents. 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\6-6-13\Word\Attachment E.doc 

-147-



-240-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
11.ern H-: ;;i.1,,,. P.LLcti.;nmeriL_u.pdf 

CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 6, 2012 

Commissioner Smith concurred with Commissioner Routh's comments. She stated that senior 
housing is an important housing type to incorporate into our community. But the project, as proposed, 
shows minimal changes from the preliminary review. 

Chairperson Graves stated that although the current proposal is scaled back from the prior design in 
the number of units, there are several concerns about the mass of the building the lack of landscaping 
throughout the project site. There is very minimal privacy afforded to the adjacent neighbors. He 
supported the concept of senior housing on this site, and the planned development process is the 
correct mechanism to achieve this project, but there are too many units. He stated that large scale 
developments have not been successful in Capitola noting the Capitola Beach Villas project. He had 
concerns about the drainage the fence or wall on the west property boundary and the impact of 
balconies facing west into the adjacent residential properties. 

Consultant Susan Westman explained through the General Plan process, the 41 51 Avenue Area study 
provided the applicants with design that included increases to the project density, wider sidewalks and 
higher buildings along 381

h Avenue. 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ROUTH AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
ORTIZ TO RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COUNCIL DENIAL OF A NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND 
THE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-028. 

THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE: AYES: COMMISSIONERS ORTIZ, 
ROUTH, SMITH AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES. NOES: NONE. ABSENT: NONE. ABSTAIN: 
NEWMAN. 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\6-6-13\Word\Attachment E.doc 

-148-



-241-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
·Item TT· ""' ......... ,....,."'""'--·····-·· .. _-·t"'-· 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

s·ubject: 

CONSULTING 

MEMORANDUM 

Mr. Steve Jesberg - City of Capitola 

Frederik Venter, PE - RBF Consulting 

June8, 2012 

JN 70-100436 

Forecast Trip Generation, On-Site Parking Analysis and Pedestrian 
Warrant Analysis for the Proposed Villa Capitola Senior Housing Project 

This memorandum summarizes analysis of the ·following traffic and parking elements 
related to the proposed Villa Capitola Senior Housing Project: 

• Forecast net trip generation of the proposed project; 

• Evaluation of on-site parking for the proposed project; 

• Evaluation for the potential· installation of an unsignalized mid-block 
pedestrian crossing between the project site and. the retail center located 
across 38th Avenue; and · · 

• Evaluation for the potential installation of a mid..;block pedestrian crossing 
between the project site and the retail center located across 33th Avenue. 

PROPOSED PROJECT . 

The proposed Villa Capitola Senior Housing project located at 1575 38th. Avenue in the 
City of Capitola consists of construction of a three-story 23-unit attached senior housing. 
The proposed project is planned to displace the existing 0.72-acre commercial salvage 
yard and storage land use on the project site. 

Site access for the propos.ed project is planned via one inbound driveway and one 
outbound driveway located along 381

h Avenue. Due to the site location, the proposed 
driveways are planned to be offset from the two existing driveways serving the existing 
retail center located across the project site on 38th Avenue. Exhibit 1 shows the location 
of the project site and the planned driveways in relation to the existing retail center 
located across the project site on 381h Avenue. 

Table 1 summarizes the dwelling unit types for the 23 proposed dwelling units. 

-149-



-242-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf / 

. ' ( 

.. .. 
ri~ 

!\ 
~- ~ ~-. 

i"lt::ri 

~·· 
t , . 

... 
~1.f · 

,. 

Notto Scale 

Proposed Project Driveways In Relation to Driveways Across 38th Avenue 
H:'.pda!a\70100436\Exhibi!s'Exh01.ai MA.v12012 Exhibit 1 

- --------

-150-



-243-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

Table 1 
Proposed Project Unit Types 

Unit Type Count 

Studio 11 

One Bedroom 10 

One Bedroom with Study- 1 

Two Bedroom 1 

Total 23 

FORECAST PROJECT TRIP GENERATION 

To calculate trips forecast to be generated by the proposed project and the existing 
commercial salvage yard and storage, Institute of Transportation Engineers (!TE) trip 
generation rates were utilized. It should be noted that !TE does not have a specific land 
use category that defines the existing land use. As such, a comparable land use 
category was selected. The category selected is warehousing. Warehouses store 
materials and also have limited sales, per the !TE land use definition. A retail land use 
was not selected since the trip rate would have been unreasonably high and present 
unrealistic trip generation results. Table 2 summarizes the /TE trip generation rates 
used to calculate the number of trips forecast to be generated by the proposed project 
as well as the existing commercial salvage yard. 

Table 2 
/TE Trip Generation Rates Per Unit of Land Use for Proposed Project & Existing Land Uses 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Trip Generation Rate Trip Generation Rate 
Daily Trip 

Land Use (/TE Code) - Units Generation 

In Out Total In Out Total Rate 

Proposed Project 

Senior Adult Housing - Attached (252) - dwelling 
0.05 0.08 0.13 0.10 0.06 0.16 3.48 

Trips per dwelling unit unit 

Existing Land Use to be Displaced 

Warehousing (150)- Trips per acre acres 7.22 2.81 10.03 3.04 5.65 8.69 57.23 

Source: 2008 !TE Trip Generation Manual, ff' Edition. 

2 

-151-



-244-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf { ( 

Utilizing the trip rates shqwn in Table 2. Table 3 summarizes the net trips forecast to be 
generated by the proposed project accounting for the displaced land use on the project 
site. 

Table 3 
Forecast Net Trip Generation of Proposed Project 

AM Peak Hour Trips PM Peak Hour Trips 
Daily Land Use 

In Out Total In Out Ti:>tal 
Trips 

Proposed Project Trip Generation 

23 Attached Senior Adult Housing Dwelling Units 1 2 3 2 2 4 BO 

Existing Land Use to be Displaced 

0. 72 Acres of Warehousing/Storage 5 2 7 2 4 6 41 

Total Forecast Net Trip Generation of Project ·4 0 .4 0 -2 -2 39 
( Proposed minus existing) 

As shown in Table 3, when compared to the existing commercial salvage yard and 
storage, the proposed project is forecast to generate fewer trips during the a.m. and p.m. 
peak hours, but approximately 39 more trips during the day {the daily trips present a 
combination of non-peak hour and peak hour trips). 

PARKING ANALYSIS 

This section provides a f?Ummary of analysis for the following items related to the on-site 
parking for the proposed project: · 

• Number of on-site parking spaGes required for the proposed project per the City 
of Capitola Municipal Code; 

• Number of on-site parking spaces required for the proposed project utilizing 
guidelines for senior housing land use per other jurisdictions and standards; 

• Parking. space dimension requirements for the proposed project per the City of 
Capitola Municipal Code; 

• Number of accessible parking spaces required for the proposed project per the 
2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design (Department of Justice, September 
15, 2010); 

• Accessible parking space width requirements for the proposed project per the 
2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design (Department of Justice, September 
15, 2010); and · 

• Evaluation of vehicle maneuvers within the parking structure of the proposed 
project. 

3 

-152-



-245-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

Number of On-Site Parking Spaces Required Per City of Capitola Municipal Code 

The City of Capitola Municipal Code does not specifically include number of on-site 
parking space requirements for the senior housing land use category. Th13refore, this 
analysis is based on the land use category which best fits the proposed project 
description and is covered in the City of Capitola Municipal Code which is the land use 
described as dwellings, apartments, and condominiums. 

Hence, using the on-site parking requirements for Land Use C (dwellings, apartments, 
and condominiums) in Section 17.51.130 of the City of Capitola Municipal Code 
contained in Attachment A, the proposed project would be required to meet the following 
parking req·uirements: 

• Dwellings, apartments, and condominiums (townhouse) of more than four units, 
one covered space for each unit, plus O!Je and one-half additional spaces on the 
site for each dwe!ling units. Each regular space must be a minimum of nine feet 
by eighteen feet. Forty percent of the spaces may be compact spaces of eight 
feet by sixteen feet. 

Table 4 summarizes the number of on-site parking spaces required according to City of 
Capitola Municipal Code utilizing guidelines established for dwellings, apartments, and 
condom.iniums land uses in comparison to the number of on-site parking spaces planned 
to be provided for the proposed project. 

Table 4 
On-Site Parking Spaces Required Per City of Capitola Municipal Code 

(Utilizing Dwellings, Apartments, & Condominiums Land Use Category) 
and On-Site Parking Spaces Planned for·Proposed Project 

On-Site On-Site Adequate 

Project Size and Land Use City Parking Parking Parking Parking 
Requirements 1 Spaces Spaces Spaces 

Required Planned Planned 

1 covered space 
23 du of attached senior adult housing per unit plus 1.5 58 36 3 No 

space per unit 2 

Notes: du = Dwelling Unit 
1 = Based on City of Capitola Municipal Code 
2 = One of the spaces for each unit must be covered 
3 = Parking supply is based on Villa Capitola Unassisted Senior Housing Site Plan (Nancy 
Huyck, 0511712012) 

As shown in Table 4, based on the City of Capitola Municipal Code and utilizing the 
guidelines established for dwellings, apartments, and condominiums land uses, the 
proposed project is required to provide a total 58 parking spaces. 

Based on the proposed project site plan dated May 17, 2012, the proposed project is 
planned to provide a total of 36 -parking spaces. Hence, the proposed project is 22 
parking spaces short of the parking requirements for the City of Capitola when utilizing 
guidelines established for dwellings, apartments and condominiums land use. 

4 

-153-



-246-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( · 

Number of On-Site Parking Spaces Required for Proposed Project Utilizing 
Guidelines for Senior Housing Land Use Per Other Jurisdictions and Guidelines 

This section. provides an eval.uation and analysis of the number of on-site parking 
spaces required for the proposed project utilizing guidelines specifically designed for 
senior housing land use as set forth. by other jurisdictions in the vicinity of the project site 
as well as information contained in other published guidelines used as industry standard. 

The following standards arid published guidelines were used in providing a comparative 
evaluation for the number of on-site parking spaces required for the proposed project: 

• Number of on-site parking spaces required for senior housing land use per 
Section 17.25.030 of the City of Live Oak, California Municipal Code contained in 
Attachment B; 

• Number of on-site parking spaces required for senior housing land use per 
Section 24.12.240 of the City of Santa Cruz, California Municipal Code contained 
in Attachment C; 

• Number of on-site parking spaces required for senior housing land use per 
Section 17.34.040 of the City of Seaside, California Municipal Code contained in 
Attachment D; and 

• Number of on-site parking spaces required for attached senior housing land use 
based on actual site surveys conducted and published in Parking Generation, :rd 
Edition (Institute of Transportation Engineers, 2004) contained in Attachment E. 

Table 5 summarizes the number of on-site parking spaces required for the proposed 
project utilizing guidelines specifically designed for senior housing land use as set forth 
by other jurisdictions in the vicinity of the project site as well as information contained in 
other published guidelines ·used as industry standard. 

5 

-154-



-247-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item TT'.""'·""· l"""\.L&.D.v•11••~•·L_ ..... ....,u.• 

Table 5 
On-Site Parking Spaces Required For Senior Housing Utilizing Guidelines Set 

Forth by Other Jurisdictions or Published in Other Industry Standard Documents 

On-Site On-Site Adequate 

Guideline Source 
Senior Housing Parking Requirement 

Project Size Parking Parking Parking 
Per Guideline Spaces Spaces Spaces 

Required Planned .Planned 

City of Live Oak Municipal Code 0.6 Parking Spaces Per Unit 14 

City of Santa Cruz Municipal Code 1 Parking Space for each 3 Dwelling Units 8 

23 du . 36 2 

1 Parking Space for Each Unit With Half the 
City of Seaside Municipal Code Spaces Covered Plus 1 Guest Parking 26 

Space for Each 10 Units 

ITE Parking Generation, 3rd Edition 1.4 Parking $paces per dwelling unit1 33 

Notes: du = Dwelling Unit 
1 = Observed peak parking demand of 50%. 
2 =Parking supply is based on Villa Capitola Unassisted Senior Housing Site Plan (Nancy Huyck, 0511712012) 

As shown in Table 5, utilizing guidelines specifically designed for senior housing land 
use as set forth by other jurisdictions in the vicinity of the project site as well as 
information contained in other published guidelines used as industry standard, the 
proposed project is required to provide a total of between 8 and 33 parking spaces. 

Based on the proposed project site plan dated May 17, 2012, the proposed project is 
planned to provide a total of 36 parking spaces. Hence, based on guidelines for senior 
housing land use as set forth by City of Live Oak, City of Santa Cruz, City of Seaside 
and ITE, the proposed project is planned to provide adequate .number of parking spaces. 

Parking Space Dimension Requirements Per City of Capitola Municipal Code 

· As identified earlier, based on the City of Capitola Municipal Code, the minimum parking 
space width for the proposed .project is 9 feet wide and 18 feet long. Additionally, based 
on the City of Capitola Municipal Code, forty percent of the parking spaces can be 
compact spaces of eight feet wide by sixteen feet long. · 

Based on the project site plan dated May 17, 2012, all of the 36 parking spaces planned 
to be provided by the proposed project are 18 feet long and range between 9 and 10 feet 
in width. 

Therefore, based on the project site plan dated May 17, 2012, all of the planned parking 
spaces would meet the parking space dimension requirements per the City of Capitola 
Municipal Code and none of the parking spaces are planned to be compact size. 

Number of On-Site Accessible Parking Spaces Required Per Americans with 
Disabilities Act 

Table 6 summarizes the number of on-site parking spaces required for the proposed 
project per the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design (Department of Justice, 
September 15, 2010) in comparison to the number of on-site ADA parking spaces 
planned to be provided for the proposed project. 

6 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

-155-



-248-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( 

Table 6 
OnaSite Accessible Parking Spaces Required 

and On-Site Accessible Parking Spaces Planned for Proposed Project 

Total Number of Minimum Number of Number of On-Site Adequate Accessible 
Parking Spaces Required Accessible Accessible Spaces Parking Spaces 

Provided Parking Spaces 1 Planned Planned 

36 2 ·2 3 Yes 

Notes: 
1 =Source: Table 208.2 of the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design (Department of Justice, 

September 15, 2010) 
2 = Parking supply is based on Villa Capitola Unassisted Senior Housing Site Plan (Nancy Huyck, 

0511712012). 

As shown in Table 6, based on the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design 
(Department of Justice, September 15, 2010), the proposed project is required to 
provide a total 2 accessible parking spaces. Based on the project site plan dated May 
17, 2012 and contained in Attachment F, the proposed project is planned to provide a 
total of 3 accessible parking spaces which include one a van accessible parking space. 
Hence, the proposed project is planned to provide adequate accessible parking spaces 
per the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design (Department of Justice, September 
15, 2010). 

Accessible Parking Space Width Requirements Per Americans with Disabilities Act 

Table 7 summarizes the width requirements for the accessible parking spaces planned 
to be provided by the proposed project per the 201 O ADA Standards for Accessible 
Design (Department of Justice, September 15, 2010) in comparison to the accessible 
parking space widths planned to be provided for the proposed project. 

Table 7 
On-Site Accessible Parking Spaces Width Requirements 

and On-Site Accessible Parking Space Widths Planned for Proposed Project 

Width of Width of 
Type of Minimum Width for Minimum Width Accessible Adjacent Access ADA Width 

Accessible Accessible Parking for Adjacent Parking Space Aisle Provided Requirements 
Parking Space Space 1 Access Aisle 2 Provided by by Proposed Met? 

Proposed Project 3 Project 3 

Van 8feet 8 feet 9feet 8 feet 4 Yes 

Passenger Car 8feet 5 feet 9feet 8 feet 5 Yes 

Pass·enger Car 8feet 5 feet 10feet 5 feet Yes 

Notes: 
1 =Source: Section 502.2 of the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design (Department of Justice, September 15, 2010). 
2 =Source: Section 502.3 of the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design (Deparlment of Justice; September 15, 2010). 
3 = Based on Villa Capitola Unassisted Senior Housing Site Plan (Nancy Huyck, 0511712012). · 
4 =Access aisle shared with the adjacent passenger car accessible parking spact;i (see Exhibit 2). 
5 = Access aisle shared with the adjacent van accessible parking space (see Exhibit 2), 

7 

-156-



-249-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item n .. ......... l""\LLQ"''"""""•_ .... .., .... 

As shown in Table 7,_ based on the project site plan dated May 17, 2012 and _contained 
in Attachment F, the planned accessible parking spaces for the proposed project are 
planned to meet the width requirements identified in the 201 O ADA Standards for 
Accessible Design (Department of Justice1 September 15, 2010). 

Evaluation of Vehicle Maneuvers Within The Parking Structure 

An evaluation of passenger car parking and turning maneuvers has been performed to 
determine potential maneuverability issues for passenger cars when utilizing the 
proposed parking structure. 

Based on the performed evaluation, passenger vehicles are anticipated to have the 
ability to turn the corners within the proposed parking structure. However, access to a 
few of the planned parking spaces located by the walls might require wide turning 
radiuses and the drivers would need to plan ahead when entering these parking spaces 
so that they can approach the parking stall with a wider turning radius. Additionally, 
access to one of the planned parking spaces might require the driver to backup into the 
parking space. 

Exhibit 2 shows the site plan for the proposed project and the graphic evaluation of the 
turning movements within the proposed parking structure. 

EVALAUATION FOR THE POTENTIAL INSTALLATION OF AN UNSIGNALIZED MIO
BLOCK PEDESTRIAN CROSSING 

The California Manual on Uniform Traffic- Control Devices for Streets and Highways 
(MUTCD) (Federal Highway Administration, 2009 Edition as amended for use In
California) does not specify any guidelines for determination of the need to install an 
i.msignalized pedestrian .crossing at a mid-block location. However, Section 38.18 of the 
MUTCD states: 

"Mid-block pedestrian crossings are generally unexpected by the motorist and should be 
discouraged unless, in the opinion of the engineer, there is a strong justification in favor 
of such installation. Particular attention should be given to roadways with two or more 
traffic lanes in one direction as a pedestrian may ·be hidden from view by a vehicle 
yielding the right-of-way to a pedestrian." 

Installation of a mid-block pedestrian crossing in ·front of the project site crossing 381
h 

Avenue would be at the discretion of the City. However, it is recommended that the 
following issues be considered when planning and constructing an unsignalized mid-
block pedestrian crossing: -

• Provide adequate lighting to enhance the visibility of pedestrians to vehicular 
~~ -

• Provide a - raised pedestrian crossing to enhance pedestrian visibility to 
vehicular traffic; 

• Evaluate sight distance in the vicinity of the pedestrian crossing location and 
restrict parking adjacent to the pedestrian crossing location to provide better
pedestrian vis_ibility; 

• Provide clear marking and advance warning signs per the MUTCD guidelines 
for vehicles approaching the pedestrian crossing location; 

8 

-157-



-250-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( ( 

SITE BOUNDARY~ 

,-------------------------- -------------------------------- ---- -- . I 

I 

I 
I 

11-
.~ 

@)@ O'x 18 each ,~ 

(D@ 10'x18' each?/. ii 

(±)@ 10'x18' each 2@ 

p , _,,,,., .. ,. 
I 
I 

L_ __ __J1:==4~:=dJ--""---b~~=:::!!J 
I . jg· I 
~ 
3' 11' 

~ 
Not to Scale 

P-Possenger Car 
Width : r 
Track : 61 

lock to Lock Time : 6.0 
Ste:aring Angle : !J1.6 

Note: Exhibit is based on Villa Capitola Unassisted SenioF Housing Site Plan (Nanr;y Huyck, 0511712012) 

.., ... 
-I 
:c 

~ m z 
c:: 
m 

Site Plan for Proposed Project & Passenger Vehicle Turning Manuevers 
H,\pda1a1101004301rrofficl.Exhto1s\Exh>.a1 MAY/2012 Exhibit 2 

-158-



-251-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

• Narrow the street cross section at the pedestrian crossing location by means 
such as installation of a bulb out; 

• Provide cross-walk markin·gs per the MUTCD guidelines; and 

• Provide In-Roadway Warning Lights at the crosswalk as permitted and 
instructed in section 4N.02 and other related sections of the MUTCD . 

Exhibit 5 shows a conceptual layout of the pedestrian crossing on 33th Avenue. 

EVALAUATION FOR POTENTIAL INSTALLATION OF SIGNALIZED MID-BLOCK 
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING 

To eva.luate the need for installation of a signalized pedestrian crossing on 38th Avenue 
between the project site and the existing retail center across the project site, a peak hour 
pedestrian volume traffic signal warrant analysis (Warrant 4) has been prepared in 
accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets 
and Highways (MUTCD) (Federal Highway Administration, 2009 Edition as amended for 
use in California). 

Pedestrian Volume Warrant (MUTCD Warrant 4) 

In accordance with the MUTCD guidelines, the need for a traffic control signal at an 
intersection or mid-block shall be considered if an engineering study finds that one of the 
following criteria is met: 

A. For each of any 4 hours of an average day, the plotted points 
representing the vehicles per hour on the major street (total of both 
approaches) and the corresponding pedestrians per hour crossing the 

. major street (total of all crossings) all fall above the curve in Figure 
4C-5 of the MUTCD; or 

B. For 1 hour (any four consecutive 15-minute periods) of an average 
day, the plotted point representing the vehicles per hour on the major 
street (total of both approaches) and the corresponding pedestrians 
per hour crossing the major street (total of all crossings) falls above 
the curve in Figure 4C-7 of the MUTCD. 

If the posted statutory speed limit or the 851h-percentile speed on the major street 
exceeds 35 mph, or if th8' intersection lies within the built-up area of an isolated 
community having a population of .less than 10,000, MUTCD Figure 4C-6 may be used 
in place of MUTCD Figure 4C-5 to evaluate Criterion A, and MUTCD Figure 4C-8 may 
be used in place of MUTCD Figure 4C-7 to evaluate Criterion B. 

The Criterion for pedestrian volume crossing the major street may be reduced as much 
as 50 percent if the 15th-percentile crossing speed of pedestrians is less than 3.5 feet 
per second. 

9 

-159-



-252-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( 

l'OTAL©i;' Al:.L 
PlioesmtANs 

CR.OSSlt~G: 

( 

MAJORSWSE;r~ I 
flE1'E$1'Rt.MiJ$: .MJO- i"'-·'""··-""'···""---r-""--""'~--""i-'""' .....,,~,..,,...,*"'......,~"""""~""""'~ ......... +•...,,,......;.. ...... _..,_..,_j,,. __ ,.,_.,, ___ ,.,.; __ _ 

PEit:U~CUFl{PFtl} 

Source: 2012 MUTCD 

---- - -,,~ - -- 1(11' 

oott ~oo !!00 ~(IQ Wil i!O-~ ~ 1® 4:1w 1~i1 f$ilO 1400< 
ihfA-JOO.fffRcfIT-TOTAl.OFBO:rt.l•APP~IESc-
- Vt:EtOCES f'·ERJ'tOlifR't)/P.H' -

. "lll<iW: f01Jl!lb~ll~!M lli!.'ir:rltlt~w'.llht!fli!ftm, 

!WA 4iID '500 iOO 7il(l Wl ifID. 
MAJOR l;il1REi1IT-roT:Ab.WFeorr1 AP-PROAGHE---8= 

·v1;1111ctE;S l¥~R:l'!QUR-qv'Prl). 

'ff;Jll!!:.1swn·B[Jfi!ljia.ma:i'il~J!t#,~'llrl2lmilfr.oltt,~ma. 

10 

-160., 



-253-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

TO'm.LJJF IU.L 
PEIJ!El;HRIAMS 

cnos~MG 
MJWIOR .. Sl:'liREET'" 

PSt:JES."fRIAMS: 
Pelit HOU~ (pP.111 

Item"· ..... v. l'"'l.1.1.a .... 11111c111._ ..... ..., ..... 

aoo· ;f6~ mit ~~ 100 :81111 mm t~n i1oor:iaoo i:JOO. Moo ~500 1000 t:J'OO' 1000 
MAJQFf6JftEl0-T.QTAf. ()f OOTH.APPH.OA.Q-fES

'VEMt~LESPeft HOUl'i (:'t/Pij}. 

"Illa~ t;m ppk e,p.!!4fe!!<a.ifl~~nhre$1.olthliteme. 

.1200 ,~ «I\1< ~ ;oo_~ T(lii -~ ~- iooG -.. boo. t2[lDJ 

MAJQRST;l1Etr...::TOTAl OFBC:JIHAPPOOMHltS-- . . -. V&ttttes :PEFHIQUR {VP:J.lf- . .. -

"Na~~pprn;t;!µ•:a.5 tJw .n:w.rer:t1w~~va1urne-. 

11 

-161-



-254-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( ( 

Pedestrian Volume Warrant (MUTCD Warrant 4) Calculations 

Since the posted speed limit on the 381h Avenue is 25 miles per hour and the 15th_ 
percentile crossing ·speed of pedestrians utilizing the crosswalk is forecast to be less 
than 3.5 feet per second, based on MUTCD guidelines, f=igure 4C-7 with a SO-percent 
reduction for the required number of pedestrians crossing per hour is used to for the 
peak hour warrant calculations. 

Based on information provided by the project applicant a maximum total of 92 persons 
associated with the project site are forecast to cross 381

h Avenue to access the existing 
retail center and other land uses in the project site vicinity. 

Existing peak hour vehicular traffic volumes ufilized in this analysis are based on 
information contained in the Reposa Avenue Traffic Study recently ·prepared by RBF 
Consulting. 

Table 8 summarizes the results of the Warrant 4 (Pedestrian Volume Warrant) analysis 
during the a.m. peak hour and the p.m. peak hour. Exhibit 3 shows the forecast 
pedestrian volume warrant analysis chart for the a.m. peak hour conditions. Exhibit 4 
shows the forecast pedestrian volume warrant analysis chart for the p.m. peak hour 
conditions. 

Table 8 
Summary of Warrant 4 - Pedestrian Volume Warrant Analysis 

Warrant Satisfied? 
Study Location 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Project Site Location at 38th Avenue No No 

As shown in Table 8, the MUTCD Pedestrian Volume Warrant is not satisfied for the 
study location. However, vehicular and pedestrian volumes at this location should be 
monitored and a signalized pedestrian crossing could be installed when the pedestrian 
and vehicular voiumes become high enough to satisfy the warrant: 

Meanwhile, installation of a signalized pedestrian crossing is at the discretion of the City. 

Exhibit 5 shows a conceptual layout of the pedestrian crossing on 38th Avenue. 

C:\Documents and Settings\alextabrizi\Desktop\Capitola Senior Housing Memo_OB.08.2012.doc 

12 

-162-



-255-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item ff; "·'"'· A.ua1,;111111::11L_c.pu1 

MUTCD Figure 4C-7. Pedestrian Peak Hour 
Adjusted per MUTCD guidelines-lo reflect less than 3.5 feet per second 15th percentile pedestrian walking speed 

350 

d 

"'· 300 ,... 
0 
"l1 
)> ,... 
r 

250 - " -um 
mo 
Om men en-1 
-l ;o 200 
~~ 
Zen 
eno 
";o 150 mo 
"'en :r:en gz 
"'Gl 100 -;;:: 
~ 
0 

~ 
........ 

' "" ....... """' ~ ...... 
-- ............ 
~ ft ft 

I iJ ~ 
~ 

;o 
U> 50 -l ;o 

,., 
.,,. 

m 
!:!j • 

300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 1100 1200 1300 1400 

Source: 2012 MUTCD 

MAJOR STREET - TOTAL OF BOTH APPROACHES 
(VEHICLES PER HOUR) 

Notes: Vehicular volumes are based on data contained in the Reposa Avenue Traffic Analysis prepared by RBF Consu!Ung 
Pedeslrian crossing volumes are based on data provided by project applicant 

• 67 pedeslrians per hour applies as the lower threshold volume adjusted per MUTCD guidelines 
to reflect less than 3.5 feet persecond 15th percentile pedestrian walking speed 

67' 

1500 1600 1700 1800 

~ H"Pd•la\70100438\Exhlbi"\Exh03.ai 

Forecast Existing AM Peak Hour 
Pesdestrian Crossing Warrant Analysis for 38th Avenue 

MAV/2012 Exhibit3 
• • • 

-163-



-256-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
lt~m #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( ( 

MUTCD Figure 4C-7. Pedestrian Peak Hour 

350 
Adjusted per MUTCD guidelines to reflect less than 3.5 feet per second 15th.percentile.pedestrian walking speed 

d 
~ 300 r 
0 
"Tl 
)> 
r 
r 250 --u 

"m mo 
CJ m mm 
{/} -l 

~~ 200 
)> z 
Zen 
"'o 
";u 150 mo 
;u en 
:i:en gz 
;u Gl 

100 ~:;;:: 

('.: 
0 
;u 

~ 50 
;u 

' " ~ 
" ........ ....... 

"' "-.. ..... ...........__ 
-.............. --.... ---- •• ............ 

I 
....__ 

I 
1!!! 

.. .... 
67* 

m I 

~ I 
I 

300 .400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 1100 1200 1300 1400 1500 1600 1700 1800 

Source: 2012 MUTCD 

MAJOR STREET· TOTAL OF BOTH APPROACHES 
(VEHICLES PER HOUR) 

Notes: Vehicular volumes are based on data contained in the Reposa Avenue Traffic Analysis prepared by RBF Consulling 
Pedestrian crossing volumes are based on data provided by project applicant . 

• 67 pedestrians per hour applies· as the lower lhreshold volume adjusted per MUTCD guidelines 
to reflect less than 3.5 feet per second 15th percenUle pedestrian walking speed 

Forecast Existing PM Peak Hour 
Pesdestrian Crossing Warrant Analysis for 38th Avenue 

H:'!.pdala\70t004M\E>:hibits\Exh.04.ai MAY/2012 Exhibit4 

-164-



-257-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdt 

I I @ I I 
0 

B 
® • I ! 

Q) Q) Q) j 

® 

, , 
0 

-165-



-258-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( ( 

ATTACHMENT A 
City of Capitola Municipal Code 

Parking Space Requirements 

-166-



-259-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
· 17 .51.130 Number of parking ~ _ ,es required. Item #: 5.C. Attachment_t:.pdT 

Capitola Municipal Code 

. Up Previous Next Main Search Print No Frames 

Title 17 ZONING 
Chapter 17.51 PARKING AND LOADING 

17.51.130 Number of pa.rking spaces required. 

The number of off-street parking spaces required for each use shall be as follows: 

Residential. 

A. Residential Structures, Single-Family Detached. 

1. The minimum parking requirement for single-family residential units up to one thousand five hundred 
square feet shall be two uncovered spaces. 

2. For single-family residential units one thousand five hundred one square feet to two thousand square 
feet, the minimum requirement shall be two spaces, one of which must be covered. 

3. For single-family residential units two thousand one square feet to two thousand six hundred squ~re feet, 
the minimum parking requirement shall be tbree spaces, one of which must be covered. 

4. For single-family residential units two thousand six hundred one square feet to four thousand square feet, 
the minimum parking requirement shall be four spaces, one of which must be covered. 

5. Fm.: single-family residential units four thousand one square feet and larger, the minimum parking 
requirement shall be one covered space and tbree uncovered spaces unless the planning commission determines 
that additional parking is needed based on house size, location, and/or conditions in the neighborhood. 

6. Interior (covered) parking spaces shall be a minimum of ten feet by twenty feet clear, as measured from 
the interior finished wall surfaces. An additional one hundred square feet of ancillary activity area, e.g., laundry, 
workshop, or storage, which is not included in the area subject to additional parking requirements, is permitted in . 
conjunction with the first required covered space provided in a detached garage. 

7. The planning commission may require additional uncovered parking spaces beyond the minimum 
requirement for residential units over four thousand square feet, or if a finding can be made that there is a 
parking problem in the neighborhood. 

8. No additional square footage exceeding ten percent of the existing gross floor area may be added to an 
existing single-family residential unit, unless minimum parking requirements are met. 

9. Uncovered parking spaces for single-family residential units shall be ten feet by twenty feet in the front 
setback (or eighteen feet minimum for lots located in sidewalk exempt areas), i.e., on the driveway apron, with 
two feet of landscaping provided along the side property line, except that for existing homes and remodels, 
uncovered parking spaces may be nine feet wide. Uncovered spaces provided in tandem on a single-width 
driveway beyond the front setback shall also be located within an eleven-foot (for remodels and additions) or 
twelve-foot (for new units) area-that includes two feet ofrequired landscaping adjacent to the side property line. 
Tandem spaces outside the front setback may be eighteen feet in length. 

10. Two feet oflandscape planting is required in the front yard setback between the parking area and the side 

property line. 

11. Maximum width of driveways serving attached or detached garages is twenty feet, not including the 
landscaped area. 

12. A twelve-foot driveway is required to access attached or detached single garages beyond the front 
setback for new homes; an eleven-foot driveway may be permitted for remodels and additions. Two cars may be 
parked in tandem in the driveway in front of a garage or carport. 

http://qcode.us/codes/capitola/view .php ?topic= 17-17 _ 51-17 _ 51_l30&frames=on 4/11/2012 
-167-



-260-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf { 

i 1.J i .1Jv i 'I wuuv1 vi pm-"..l.li.~ _paces required. ( Page 2 of3 · 

13. :Permeable driveway materials other than gravel are encouraged, as well as paved wheel strips for 
driveways, to increase extent of pervious surfaces on site. 

B. Dwellings duplex or triplex, two for each unit, one space for each unit must be covered, tandem parking 
is permitted if the tandem parking is for an individual unit, each space must be a minimum of nine feet by 
eighteen feet. 

C. Dwellings,_apartments and condominiums (townhouse) of more than four units, one covered space for 
each unit, plus one and one-half additional spaces on the site for each dwelling unit. Each regular space must be 
a minimum of nine feet by eighteen feet. Forty percent of the spaces may be compact spaces of eight feet by 
sixteen feet. 

D. Hotels and motels, one space for each guest room. Such additional spaces as the planning. commission 
determines are necessary for the owners and employees. Each regular space must be a minimum of nine feet by 
eighteen feet. Thirty percent of the spaces may be compact spaces of eight feet by sixteen feet. 

E. Bed-and-breakfast, one space for each bedroom rented, in addition to the spaces required for the single
family residence, each regular space must be a minimum of nine feet by eighteen feet. Fifty percent of the spaces 
may be compact spaces of eight feet by sixteen feet. 

Quasi-public. 

F. Churches, clubs, lodges, theaters, 

one space for each forty square feet of floor area usable for seating or one for each three seats each regular space 
must be a minimum of nine feet by eighteen feet. Thirty percent of the spaces may be compact spaces of eight 
feet by sixteen feet. 

G. Schools, one space for each employee, including teachers and administrators, plus additional spaces as 
determined by the planning commission to be adequate for student and visitor parking. Each regular space must 
be a minimum of nine feet by eighteen feet. Forty percent of the spaces may be compact spaces of eight feet by 

sixteen feet. 

H. Sanitariums and nursing homes, one space for each six beds plus one space for each three employees, all 
nine feet by eighteen feet. 

I. Medical office and clinics, one space for each three hundred square feet of gross floor area or five spaces 
per doctor, whichever is greater, all nine feet by eighteen feet. 

Commercial. 

J. Retail use and restaurants/take-out food establishments with six or fewer seats, one space for every two 
hundred forty square feet of gross floor area, each regular space must be a minimum of nine feet by eighteen 
feet. Thirty percent of the spaces may be compact spaces of eight feet by sixteen feet. 

K. Wholesale establishments or warehouses, including mini-storage, one space per each five thousand 
square feet. Each space must be a_ minimum of nine feet by eigh~een feet. No compact spaces are allowed. 

L. Restaurants, one space per sixty square feet of gross floor area, each regular space must be a minimum 
of nine feet by eighteen feet. Fifty percent of the spaces may be compact spaces of eight feet by sixteen feet. 

M. Bakeries, one space per two hundred forty square feet of gross floor area, each regular space must be a 
minimum of nine feet by eighteen feet. Thirty percent of the spaces may be compact spaces of eight feet by 

sixteen feet. 

N. Bowling alleys, one space per five lanes, plus parking required for restaurant or retail uses associated 
with the facility, each regular space must be a minimum of nine by eighteen feet. Thirty percent of the spaces 
may be compact spaces of eight feet by sixteen feet. 

0. Offices, corporate, administrative, real estate, one space per two hundred forty square feet of gross 

http://qcode.us/codes/capitola/view.php?topic= l 7-17 _51-17 _51 _130&frames=on 4/11/2012 
-168-



-261-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
i 7.51.130 Number of parking&... es required. Item ~= o.ll. Auacnmem:_c.pm 

building space. Each regular space must be a minimum of nine feet by eighteen feet. Thirty percent of the spaces 
may be comp-act spaces of eight feet by sixteen feet. 

P. Large community care residential facility or large family day care house, one for each employee not 
permanently residing at the facility or house. Parking requirements not specifically mentioned shall be 
determined by the planning commission. (Ord. 873 § 15, 2004; Ord. 718 § 1 (part), 1991; Ord. 700, 1990; Ord. 
695, 1990; Ord. 023 (part), 1987: Ord. 608 § 10, 1986; Ord. 388 § 17.09;1975) 

http://qcode.us/codes/capitola/view .php ?topic= 17-17 _ 51-17_51_130&frames=on 4/1112012 
-169-



-262-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( ( 

ATTACHMENT B 
-City of Live Oak, CA Municipal Code Pages 

-170-



-263-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item#: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf 

17.25.110 

17.25.130 

Landscaping and Lighting 

Maintenance 

17.25.010 Purpose 

The following requirements are intended to ensure that sufficient but not excessive off-street 
parking facilities are provided for all uses, and that parking facilities are designed to be attractive 
and unobtrusive. 

17.25.020 Applicability 

At the time of the installation, erection, enlargement or increase in capacity of any building, or at 
the time there is a change in the nature of occupancy or expansion of use of property, any of 
which would require increased parking, the following minimum off-street parking and loading 
spaces shall be provided, as well as adequate ingress and egress, in accordance with this Chapter. 

17.25.030 Required Parking 

A. Number of required spaces: The following number of spaces are required for each 
listed use, unless provided for elsewhere in this Chapter. The spaces shall_ be located on 
the same building site as the building or use, unless otherwise provided in this Chapter. 

· Table 17.25.030: Required Parking by Land Use 

Single family residence 2 spaces. 
Two family residence or 2 spaces per residence. 
half-plex 
Multiple family residence 1 space per studio apartment or one-bedroom unit. 

1.5 spaces per two-bedroom unit. 
2 spaces per three-bedrooms or more. 
- Plus 1 guest space per 10 residences. 

Second residence 1 space in addition to the 2 spaces for the primary 
residence. 

Manufactured home park 2 spaces per residence (may be tandem) plus 1 guest 
space per 5 residences. 

Bed and breakfast, 2 spaces plus 1 space per room for rent. 
boarding house 
Residential care home, .6 space per unit, or prepare a parking study based on 
senior housing type of residents, proximity to services (shopping, 

medical, .etc.) and transit. 

-171-



-264-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( ( 

ATTACHMENT C 
City of Santa Cruz, CA Municipal Code Pages 

-172-



-265-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item ff; o.\.,,. Auctcnme11L_c..pu1 

4/26/12 Sahta Cruz, California 

v. Physical therapy 1 space per 200 square feet of floor area. In 
addition, 1 space per 50 square feet of pool 

Residential Uses 
\ VV O.LGL j 0.1 v~ 

w. 

Number of Bedrooms 

Type Efficiency 1 2 3 4 or more 

Single-family *(including 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 3 + 1 for ea. addl. 
townhouses) bedroom 

Houseboat, duplex, triplex, 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.0 3 + 0.5 for ea. 
multiple mobilehome addl. bedroom 

Lodging, rooming houses and 2 spaces, plus 1 for each bedroom 
bed-and-breakfast inns 

Residence halls, dormitories. 0. 75 space for each guest or occupant 

Senior housing development 1 for each 3 dwelling units or rooms intended 
for separate occupancy, plus an area of land 
equal to the required off-street parking for 
apartments, not including required open 
space, which could be converted to parking 
should the retirement center change to a 
multifamily residential use 

Small ownership unit (SOl)) 1 space for each dwelli!lg unit 

Single-room occupancy 0. 75 for each dwelling unit 
dwelling unit, less than 300 
square feet** 

Single-room occupancy 1 for each dwelling unit 
dwelling unit, 300 square feet 
or more** 

Accessory dwelling unit*** 1 parking space, covered or uncovered, shall· 
be provided on site for each bedroom in 
addition to the required parking for the 
primary residence 

Community housing projects In addition to meeting above residential 
parking requirements, 1 additional parking 
space for each 4 dwelling units shall be 
provided 

Covered Parking. At least 1 of the required parking spaces for each dwelling unit shall be 
covered, within a carport or a garage unless otherwise specified within Title 24. Each . 
standard-size parking space required to be located in a garage or carport for a residential 
unit shall be not less than nineteen feet in length by eight and one-halffeet in width (19 ft. x 
8 1/2 feet) 

Covered Parking Exception. Exceptions to parking requirements may be granted to 

www.codepublishing.com/CAlSantaCruz/ -173-



-266-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( 

ATTACHMENT D 
City of Seaside, CA Municipal Code Pages 

-174-



-267-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attacnment_t:..pctr 

4/26/12 Municode 

17.34.040 - Number of parking spaces required. 

Each land use shall be provided the number of off-street parking spaces required by this 
section. See Sections 17 .34.060 and 17.34.070 for off-street parking requirements for bicycles and 
motorcycles, respectively. 

A. Parking requirements by Land Use. 
1- Each land use shall provide the number of off-street parking spaces required by Table 

3-7, except where a greater number of spaces is authorized through minor use permit or 
use permit approval in compliance with Section 17.52.070 

2. A land use not specifically listed in Table 3-7 shall provide parking as required by the 
zoning administrator. The zoning administrator shall use the requirements in Table 3-7 
as a guide in determining the appropriate number of off-street parking spaces required 
for the use. 

3. In any case where Table 3-7 expresses a parking requirement based on floor area in 
square feet {for example: one space for each one thousand sf), "sf' means square feet 
of gross interior leaseable floor area, unless stated otherwise (e.g., ground area). 

4. A single use with accessory components shall provide parking for each component. For 
example, a hotel with a gift shop shall provide the parking spaces required by Table 3-7 
for a hotel (e.g., the guest rooms), and for a gift shop. 

B. Expansion of Structure, Change in Use. When a structure is enlarged, or when a change in its 
use requires more off-street parking than the previous use, additional parking spaces shall be 
provided in compliance with this chapter. See also Chapter 17.62 (Nonconforming Uses, 
Structures and Parcels). 

C. Multi-Tenant Sites. 

1. A site with. multiple tenants (e.g., two or more) shall provide the aggregate number of 
parking spaces required for each separate use (e.g., sum of the separate requirements 
for each use), except where the site is developed as an integrated shopping center with 
shared parking and no spaces reserved for a particular use. In this instance, the 
parking shall be provided as required by Table 3-7 for a shopping center. 

2. When a multi-tenant center includes one or more uses that will need more parking than 
retail uses (e;g., a health/fitness facility, restaurant, or theater) additional parking shall 
tie required for the non-retail use unless a parking reduction is approved in compliance 
with Section 17.34.080 (Reduction of Parking Requirements), below. 

D. Alternate Use of Parking Areas Prohibited. Off-street parking areas shall not be used for the 
repair, servicing, or storage of vehicles or materials, the sale of any goods or sell(ices, or any 
other work area. 

E. No Reduction of Parking Facility Allowed. No off-street parking facility shall be reduced in 
capadty or in area without sufficient additional capacity or additional area being provided in 
order to comply with the parking regulations of this chapter. 

F. Recreational Vehicle (RV) Parking Spaces. Off-street recreational vehicle (RV) parking spaces 
shall be provided as follows for re~ail uses, shopping centers, and visitor attractions that are 
required by this chapter to provide forty or more off-street parking spaces. 
1. Number of RV Spaces Required. RV parking spaces shall provided at a minimum ratio of 

one RV space for each forty off-street vehicle parking spaces, or fraction thereof, 
required by this chapter. 

2. RV Stall Dimensions. Each RV parking space shall be designed as a pull-through space 

library.municode.comfprint.aspx?clientlD=16030&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2nibrary.municode.com% ... -175-



-268-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( 

4/26/12 Municode 

( 

with a minimum width of twelve feet and a minimum length of forty feet, with fourteen feet 
of vertical clearance. · 

3. Modifications by Zoning Administrator. The zoning administrator may modify the 
provisions of this subsection through a minor use permit granted in compliance with 
Section 17 .52.070 

G. Excessive Parking. 

1. . The city discourages a land use being provided more off-street parking spaces than 
required by this chapter in order to avoid the inefficient use of land, unnecessary 
pavement, and excessive stormwater runoff from paved surfaces. 

2. The provision of off-street parking spaces in excess of the requirements in Table 3-7 is 
allowed only with minor use permit approval in compliance-with Section 17.62.070, and 
only when additional landscaping, pedestrian amenities, and necessary storm drain 
improvements are provided to the satisfaction of the review authority~ 

H. Rounding of Calculations. If a fractional number is obtained in calculations performed in 
compliance with this chapter, one additional parking space shall be required for a fractional 
unit of one-half or above, and no additional space shall be required for a fractional unit of less 
than one-half. 

I. Bench or Bleacher Seating. Where fixed seating is provided as benches, bleachers, pews, or 
similar seating, a seat shall be defined as twenty-four inches of bench space for the purpose of 
calculating the number of parking spaces required by Table 3-7. 

J. Parking Based on Employees. Whenever parking requirements are based on the number of 
employees, calculations shall be based on the largest number of employees on duty at any 
·one time. 

K. Use of On-Street Parking-Exception. Available on-street parking spaces cannot be used to 
meet the parking requirements -identified in this chapter. An exception to this provision may be 
granted for a licensed day care facility or a pre-school, subject to minor use permit approval in 
compliance with Section 17 .52.070 

1. The minor use permit may be issued if it meets all of the following criteria, in addition to 
the findings identified in Section 17.52.070 
a. The exception shall be granted only for uses in an existing structure. It shall not 

be granted for any expansion- of gross floor area to a structure, for new 
construction, or where the use of an existing buiiding has been intensified by 
subletting portions of the building for additional uses. 

b. The maximum amount of parking which is feasible shall be-provided on-site. 

c. The exception shall only be granted ih situations where the city engineer has 
determined that the exception will not result in potentially unsafe conditions for 
vehicles or pedestrians. 

2. Each minor use permit that grants an exception to off.:.stre~t parking requirements shall 
be reviewed on an annual basis and, if it is found that the use of on-street parking 
spaces by the facility is creating a nuisance, the city may initiate proceedings to revoke 
the minor use permit in compliance with Section 17.69.080 (Revocation of Permits). 

L. ·Nonconforming Parking. A use or structure with nonconforming off-street parking may be 
physically changed or undergo a chang~ in use in-compliance \Mth the following provisions. 
1. Residential Uses. No additional parking spaces shall be required; provided, the change 

does not increase the number of dwelling units, nor eliminate the only portion cif the site 
that can be used for the required or existing parking or access. 

2. Nonresidential Uses. 

a. The number of existing parking spaces shall be maintained on the site and 
additional parking shall be provided in compliance with this chapter for any 

Jibrary.municode.com/print.aspx?clientlD=16030&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.municode.com% •.. -176-



-269-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.l;. Attacnment_t:..par 

4/26/12 Muni code 

additional floor area. 
b. If the use of the structure is changed to one that requires more parking than the 

previous use, only the difference between the number of parking spaces required 
for the previous use and those required for the new use shall be added. 

c. The change shall not eliminate the only portion of the site _that can be used for 
the required or existing parking or access. 

3. Waiver of Requirements. The parking requirements of this chapter may be waived by 
the commission through use permit approval when a no8conforming structure is 
proposed for rehabilitation if the commission first finds that the existing structure 
location, parcel size, or topography renders the requirement unreasonable. 

Table 3-7 Parking Requirements By Land Use 

Land Use Type: Manufacturing Processing and Vehicle Spaces Required 
Warehousing 
All manufacturing, industrial, and processing uses, except 1 space for each 200 sf of office area; 
the following 1 space for each 500 sf of floor and/or ground area 

devoted to other than office use; 
1 space for each 5,000 sf of open storage. 

Media production 1 space for each 300 sf. 
Recycling facilities 
Heavy or light processing facilities Determined by use permit. 
Large collection facilities Determined by _use permit. 
Scrap/ dismantling yards 1 space for each 300 sf, plus 1 space for .each 10,000 sf of 

gross yard area. 
Small collection facilities Determined by minor use permit. 
Wholesaling and distribution 1 space for each 500 sf. 

Land Use Type: Recreation, Education, and Public Vehicle Spaces Required 
lt\ssembly 
Clubs, community centers, lodges, and meeting halls 1 space for each 4 fixed seats or 1 space for each 100 sf 

where there are no fixed seats. 
Commercial recreation facilities - Indoor, except for the 1 space for· each 400 sf. 
~allowing: 

lArcades 1 space for each 200 sf. 
Bowling alleys 14 spaces for each alley. 
Pool and billiard rooms ~spaces for each table. 
Commercial recreation facilities - Outdoor Determined by use permit. 
Conference I convention and sports I entertainment 1 space for each 200 sf. 
facilities 
Equestrian facilities 1 space for each 5 horses boarded. 

Golf 
Golf courses and country clubs 14 spaces per hole, plus as required by this table for 

accessory uses {e.g., banquet room, bar, pro shop, 
restaurant, etc.) 

Golf driving range 1 space for each tee. 
Health/fitness facilities 1 space for each 200 sf. 
Library, gallery, and museum 1 space for each 300 sf. 
Schools (private or public) 
Kindergarten and nursery schools 1 space per employee plus 1 space for each 10 children. 

library.municode.com/print.aspx?clientlD=16030&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f"/o2flibrary.municode.com% ... -177-



-270-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( 

4/26/12 

( 
Municode 

'Middle) Elementarv/iunior hi!:1hs 1 soace oer emolovee olus 1 soace for each 10 students. 
(Secondary) High schools 1 space per employee plus 1 space for each 10 students. 
Colleges and uhtversntes (including trade, business, and 1 space per employee plus 1 space for each 5 students. 
art/ music/ dancing schools) 
Studios.{art, dance, martial arts, music, etc.) 1 space for each 200 sf. 
Theaters, auditoriums, and places of assembly 1 space for each 4 s·eats or 1 space for each 100 sf, 

~hichever would yield more spaces. 

Land Use Type: Residential Uses !Vehicle Spaces Required 
Condominiums and condominium conversions 2 covered spaces for each unit, plus 1 space for each unit 

for guest parking. 
Duplex, triplex, or fourplex unit 1 covered space for each unit, plus 1 space for each 2 

units for guest parking. 
Live/work unit 2 spaces for each unit. 
Mo bi lehome · 

Outside of mobilehome park 1 covered space for each unit. 
Within a mobilehome park 2 covered spaces for each mobilehome (tandem parking 

allowed in an attached carport), plus 1 guest parking 
spaces for each 4 units. Recreational vehicle parking shall 
be provided at the rate of 1 space for every 5 units. 

Multi-family housing 
0 - 1,800 sf 1 covered space for each unit, plus 1 space for each 2 

units for guest parking. 
1,801+ sf 2 covered spaces for each unit, plus 1 space for each 2 

units for guest parking. 
Residential care facility 1 space for each 2 residential units, plus 1 space for each 

~units for guests and employees. 
Residential second unit 1 additional parking space (Parking in the front or street 

side setback shall not count toward this parking 
requirement. 

Senior housing 1 space for each unit with half the spaces covered, plus 1 
guest parking space for each 10 units. 

Single dwelling with additions 
0-1,200sf No additional parking requirement. 
1,201 - 1,800 sf 2 spaces, at east one covered. 

1,801+ sf 2 covered spaces. 
Single dwelling, attached· 12 spaces within a garage for each unit, plus 1 space for 

each unit for guest parking. 
Single dwelling, detached 2 spaces within a garage. 

Land· Use Type: Retail and Service Commercial !vehicle Spaces Required 
Parking-Requirements. In an effort to simplify the calculation of parking demand and to anticipate future tenants, 
the list of nonresidential (e.g., retail" and service commercial) off-street parking requirements shall be broken down 
into the following four distinct categories based on the anticipated level of parking demands. See also the parking 
requirements for other specific retail and service uses on the following page. 
Group One: Uses with "low parking· demand." Examples 1 space for each 500 sf or less, with a minimum 
include appliance, carpet, fabric, furniture, and tile requirement of 4 spaces. 
stores; book, card, and stationary stores; camera, dry 
cleaning and laundry, flower, gift, glass, hardware, 

library.municode.com/print.aspx?clientlD=16030&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.municode.com% ... -178-



-271-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item ff; O.\.,,. Auacnmem:_c.pu1 

4/26/12 Municode 

heating and electrical, jewelry, paint, pet, plumbing, 
wallpaper stores; home improvement stores; photography 
~tudios, print shops; supermarkets; and other retail and 
light industrial uses determined to be similar by the 

trmlqgiafJmi@§es<Wffi.i "medium parking demand." 1 space for each 300 sf or less, with a minimum 
Examples include bakeries, banks, barber shops, beauty requirement of 5 spaces. 
shops, business and professional offices, convenience 
stores, department stores, donut and ice cream shops, 
liquor stores, secondhand stores, and other retail uses 
determined to be similar by the zoning administrator. 
Group Three: Uses with "high parking demand." Examples 1 space for each 200 sf. 
include bars, coffee houses, dental and medical offices 
and clinics, health clubs, laundromats, restaurants and 
other intense uses determined to be similar by the zoning 
administrator. 
Group Four: Uses with "unique parking demands." Examples include auto repair, auto sales, contractor's yards, 
funeral homes, gas stations, hotels and motels, large day care facilities (e.g., child care and seniors), large group 
homes, mini-warehouse, self-service car wash, theaters, and other uses determined to be similar by the zoning 
administrator. 
Auto and vehicle repair/service 14 spaces for each service or wash bay, plus spaces for any 

office as required by this section for offices. 
IAuto and vehicle sales and rental 1 space for each 400 sf of floor area for the showroom and 

offices, plus 1 space for each 2,000 sf of outdoor display 
area, plus spaces as required by this section for parts 
sales and vehicle repair/service. 

Contractor's storage yards 1 space for each 3,000 sf of lot area, plus spaces for any 
office as required by this section for offices . 

Gas stations without repair services . 25 space for each gas pump, plus 2 spaces for each 
gasoline pump island, plus spaces as required by this 
section for convenience goods sales. 

Large day care facilities 1 space for each staff person, plus 1 space for each 3 
occupants 

Lodging - hotels and motels 1 space for each unit, plus 2 spaces for the manager or 
owner, plus required spaces for all accessory uses (e.g., 
conference.center, restaurant, spa, or other recreational 
~acilities). 

Mortuary, funeral homes 1 space for each 300 sf of floor area within the facility or 
1 space for each 4 seats in the sanctuary, whichever would 
{ield more spaces. 

Personal storage (mini-warehouses) 14 spaces for the manager's office. 

Restaurant 1 space for each 3 seats. 
Self-service car washes 1 space for each wash bay. 
lfheaters (e.g., movie) 1 space for each 4 seats or 1 space for each 100 sf, 

!whichever would yield more spaces. 

(Ord. 955 § 1 (part). 2006). 

library.municode.com/print.aspx?clientlD=16030&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.municode.com% ... -179-



-272-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( 

ATTACHMENT E 
ITE Parking Generation Senior Housing 

Parking Survey Summary 

-180-



-273-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
-item#: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf 

Land Use: 252 
Senior Adult Housing-Attached 

Land Use Description 

Senior adult housing consists of attached independent living developments, including retirement 
communities, age-restricted housing and active adult communities. These developments may include 
limited social or recreational services. However, they generally lack centralized dining and on-site 
medical facilities. Residents in these communities live independently, are typically active (requiring little to 
no medical supervision) and may or may not be retired. Congregate care facility (Land Use 253) and 
continuing care retirement community (Land Use 255) are related uses. 

Database Description 

The database consisted of two study sites. 

• The study sites had 46 and 91 dwelling units. 
• Parking supply ratio: 1.2 and 1.4 spaces per dwelling unit, respectively. 
• Weekday peak parking demand ratio: 0.50 and 0.33 parked vehicles per dwelling unit at the 46- and 

91-unit sites, respectively. 
• Saturday peak parking demand ratio: 0.50 and 0.34 parked vehicles per dwelllng unit at the 46- and 

91-unit sites, respectively. 

Parking demand counts were submitted for the hours beginning at 9:00 a.m., 10:00 a.m., 2:00 p.m. and 
5:00 p.m. From these limited data, no definitive peak hour or peak period was established. 

Study Sites/Years 

Huntington Beach, CA (1989) 

Institute of Transportation Engineers 6~0~/ Parking Generation, 3rd Edition 

-181-



-274-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( ( . 

ATTACHMENT F 
Proposed Project site Plan 

-182-



-275-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item 11-: ~.t,;. Attacnmem_1:..par 

I I _._ I I I I I 

:~--
' 

! ! . j ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ________ ._ ____ T---,-----.----J~---.-,---r,_--,---r---,---r---- ..--------- I 
I 
I 

ffANCY HUYCK 

ARCHITECT 

I 
I 
I 

I H 
I 
I 

I 

I I= 

I/,- @@ hO'x 18 each 

f-1 
.~ 

jB 
I 
I 

,) : )-~"~~· «~./I= r~,_I= I I= I= I= I I= I= I= I r I= 

'·· ~ I ,. I ,:;:: _, ... _ 4-,r-r.-r--r-r-r-.t--.~·r-1:, -tt 

"""sooua.""'"' ""°' CA "'°" 
~<i&'Wi::i::s 

I 
I 

I n 

I~ 

@@ 10' x 18' each 
n. 

... -*"""'==='11 

n @@ 10'xl8' each 

I [~-l 
L _ I I 

: ~ i I ! &.tu~ ~c frOl!l J6Vl A~ EMl'ER'!!!!J°"•f-l-+-if-+-H-H • 

I ,• I ',• I 

! +-' @@ IO'x18' each i Q)@ 'xl8 e<~ CD@~ CD@ I .... ~ --,-----i ---•"---, -- - ,_ 
11 i

1
, I"-' 9'xl8'f-.,.' IO'x16 11 ~ II ' '------1 

= = I = = = N =["\._ 4 ! I I ,, ,, ,_ I 
I I I I I I ............... r- t-

t=" l=:o i==:l I~ l=:i I I· I I ( l ..''~~..,.,. r! ... fiia-a-a:..., 

~ d ~ ~N ~ • I~ ·.~ilttltlll:::J· ~· .1:1-,,,_ ___,,_: -;: !, 

'r f ' I - I I Ir- I I I....... .Hll. ........... i= r- !::::: __,... l-~-.+-..,,.--lf-,._-.,-... -1 

. (D@ IO'x18' each I ~~ :: I - 1-t->-+-";,._,:,:11: 1 k JDD -~ ~~ _ ~ l 1-""""'"'-----< 

I I I ~HCP ' I 

CD@ 
10'x18' 

I I .I, ~ I 
I ~ I '"J-+-11-\--H-t-tt-I ~ I 1 i I I tAhrliq~O">laSWlkrlntc Dlr i I 
i ! i H- l 

v I 
I 
I 

..,,,..,,..,. I 
I 

l~~-1~,r~ ''lid' @@ 10'x18' each-'
11

__ •Ills!· ·1····~ <d 
=II-- ----~~------- ~=========11 I 

I 

~ ... , ... 

"""""""" 
VILLA CAPITOLA 
UNASSISTED 
SENIOR HOUSING 
IOT~~tn.A't'ENUE: 

Sol.UTA CRUZ. CA 

APff:Ol4-1$1-11 

FIRST FLOOR 
GARAGE PW! 

sa.te 1/4" - t'--o"' 

6-\IT: 05-17-lZ 

JOB MO.! Nlt«<l 

(36 total parking stalls) Q First Floor Garage Plan A- 3 
Wtt ol shEds 

-183-



-276-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_E.pdf ( ( 

\ 



-277-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item tt; o.v. RLLa1,;111111::11L_r.tJu• 

May 22, 2013 

Planning Commission 
Planning Staff 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

Dear Planning Commission, 

VILLACAPITOLA 
1575 38thAvenue 

C1pitol<i, CA 95010 

Villa Capitola offers retirement living at its best in a small town environment with big city 
benefits. It draws its inspiration from the Mediterranean style of Italy. This independent senior 
living complex consists of 23 units of high quality architecture with a variety of floor plans 
including studios, one-bedroom and two bedroom residences. Villa Capitola ·is a new kind of 
retirement village for a new kind of retiree. In this ideal location residents can stay within the 
compiex and enjoy many activities such as swimming, bocci ball, hobbies, exercise, yoga, 
massage, book club, classes, educational speakers, wifi, and dining. In addition, residents can 
walk to nearby book stores, theaters, restaurants, and numerous retail outlets and services. Our 
shuttle service will provide supplemental transportation for residents to a variety of popular 
destinations along our beautiful coast. The on·site restaurant will serve meals in a dining room, 
coffee bar, or poolside cabana. Residents will be surrounded with an invigorating sense of 
community in the heart of Capitola. 
Significant changes In this senior living complex have been made since our original submittal. 
These revisions were made in response to feedback from the City Council, the Planning 
commission and our neighbors on 38thAvenue and Bulb Avenue. With assistance from Capitola 
Planning Department and Public Works the following changes have been made: 

• A significant reduction in scope of project. 

11 Increased setbacks on side, front, and rear. 

• Height reduction from 4 stories with 67 units to 3 stories with 23 units. 

• Completed traffic study indicating little measurable impact. 

• Completed parking study finding 35 spaces more than sufficient. 

• A Negative Environmental Declaration indicates that there is no mitigation necessary far 
this buitding to fit in the neighborhood. 

• Increased landscaping for a total of 23% of site. 
• Single ingress/egress to parking garage 
• Two towers and balconies removed from back of building to accommodate neighbor 

concerns regarding privacy. 

RECEIVED 

MAY 2 3 2013 

CITY OF CAPIT--185-



-278-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item#: 5.C. Attachment_F.pdf 

The building has been totally redesigned to be consistent with the existing neighborhood while 
taking into consid.eration future development in the area. We have discussed with the Capitola 
Public Works Department how a combined effort can make our portion of 38th Avenue roadway 
a snapshot of what future redevelopment could be. 

Villa Capitola has been designed, engineered, and will be constructed by Santa Cruz County's 
most reputable professionals. fn keeping with world class standards in green building, 
repurposed materials will be used when appropriate. Our energy source wiU be supplemented 
by a comprehensive solar system. Recirculation of rain water from an on- site reservoir wlll 
decrease use of public water sources. 
We look forward to working with the City of Capitola to make this senior living complex an asset 
to the community. 

Regards, 

~ 
Maureen Romac-Thomas 

-186-



-279-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item if: :>.1.;. Arracnmem:_r- .pm 

ATTACHMENTS 

Drawings: 7 sets 

Materials Board: submitted previously 

Preliminary Storm Water Management Report (Bowman& Williams) 2 booklets submitted previously 

PROJECT DATA 

Villa Capitola: Unassisted Senior Rentaf Units for ages 55 and older 

Location: 1575 38th Avenue Capitola, CA (mailing address ls Santa Cruz CA 95062 

APN: 034-181-17 

Parcel Site: Approximately 31,300 sf (130' x 240' approximately} 

Zoning: PD 

Number of Stories: 3 

Number of Re$idential Units: 23 

Number of Parking Stalls: 35 

PROPOSED PROJECT TEAM 

Developer: Steve Thomas and Maureen Romac 

Land Surveyor: Bowman and Williams 

30 Rendering: Alan Hymes Animatehouse 

Architect: Huyck Architects 

Civil Engineer: Bowman& Williams 

Structural Engineer: Mclucas Engineers 

Mechanical Engineer: Axiom Engineers 

Electrical Engineer: Prime Design 

Landscape Design: Huyck Architects 

Construction Consultant: Tewolde Berhane 

General Contractor: Slatter Construction 

-187-



-280-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-188-



-281-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item.,,.. '1.\J • ..... ui:l.1.;111111::11L_u.µu1 

Dear Planning Commissioners, 

The attached documents are petitions with signatures of persons in support of the proposed 
senior living development on 38th Avenue. The majority of these signatures are from Capitola 
and specifically the streets surrounding the property (41st Ave., 381

h Ave. and Bulb Ave.). There 

are almost 200 signatures representing a cross section of ethnicity, gender, age and economic 

status. Many expressed interest in ·living in this residential development themselves or for their 

own family members. 

Thank you for your time and consideration, 

Maureen A. Romac 

RECEIVED 

MAY 2 3 20\3 

CITY OF CAPIT1-:1 a9-



-282-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I _... 
c.o 
0 
I 

;::; 
CD VILLA CA.PI1<9LA 
3 

Please sign below to show your support for the construction of senior housing at 1575 33th Avenue. This senior housing will :t!= 
consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining room and other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. P1 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to restaurants, grocery store, theater and other retail outlets. This petition will r> 
be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. ~ 

. '. Ill 
0 

,-~~~~~~-~~~~.-~~~~~--~~~~~~~.-~~~~~~~~.-~~~~--~~~~~-~ 

Print Name Street Address City Email or phone# Siqnatur~-"'i 3 
1---.,,..,--~~~~~~~~-t-~~~~~--r-__,__~~~~--~t--~~--'--~~~~~+-~-=-_____,,'--!-~~~~~~-CD 

(~ I J. /0/7 dtf-·~~I('.'.. ~j ./ 
1
;:l. 

., . .,_) {:-1. I t\~ I\.. · {(i/ j /~ 
~/.~;~~~, --~.~-~~--~//;-+-~~~~~-,/~~~,~L~-+~~~~~~~~ ... 7~~+·::__;,~· ~,·~--~~· ~~~~ 

11 ·' l I I )/./ jl// .C-) lA". J t·, 'SJ·~i{"_L- //. ·;,,::.-1··' S; I,// C--d '('..~ .// Ji,4(1_~ ! . • _., 1 .. 1 ',,,.;<, ·- -- I //;:i--....__..--......, __ .""-"'"" .. 
-- l v ~--(,----1 

c)4>1dvce- fitL/;, .vv\ 131S-A 6~t''U1 
;,-;-(-. .-.)tiv1-<.:d!A./fi--OJ(.../tLh./'v-y"--.. 

_...~""'Tfe· ...., ........ ~ ·'l (_ ~· f'.., ...., • ..___/ 
r"'' ... ·~~ _, _ _.~ ... /·y··~ : 

<:...." 7/""?--- } . . ---

13?3 

''--' r -o "-'" . i\ ·'2- ..... L. r1-00- ·~·:;-\.,./) "·?: 

....... ...., 
I"\. Mo 

t 1 

(.,..·/1 c .J r .· 7 /1 

v 



-283-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 

I 
....\. 

<.O 
->. 
I 

VILLA VPITC9LA 
Please sign below to show your support for the construction of senior housing at 1575 3gth Avenue. This senior housing will 

. consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining room and other amenities in a 3'story Mediterranean style building. 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to restaurants, grocery store; theater and other retail ou!lets. This petition will 
be. presented·to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. .1 ; 

! ' 

Print Name 

·~ \_. .... • 

I<."'~·" 

. Street Address Cit 

J;_fW. G-V I ('-vJ JO..··'\' (}- .. 
(-?e;-c7 (l c'-( c 4-1 

Email o.r phone# Si nature 

// : 
\.. //Jz .-f''(_ ....:.---.. . 

. .. ~ff-, I 



-284-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f
VILLA CAPITOLA ::;: 

CD 

Please sign below to show your support for the construction of senior housing at 1575 3gth Avenue. This senior housing will 
3 

consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining room and other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. ~ 

This location offers seniors the ability to walk to re~staurants, grocery store, theater and other retail outlets. This petition will 0 

:t> be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. ~ 
Ill 
(") 

.--~~~~~~~~~--,~~~~~~~~~~~~~..-~~~~~~~~-,--~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Print Name Street Address Cit Email or hone# Si nature 3 
1--~~'--~~~~~~----4~~~~~~~-'--~~~--~-1-~~-'-~~~~~-+--d.-~~~~~~~~~~CD 

:::l 
I,.... 

l-L~~~~~~n~J(::..__,~~£2f-U.d.'fi.t::.=--~~~~::'.!:...2.1e_.LW22'::L!:!:E.~~~~--4~4~n.tb~s?..__-J-_E_~...::::LJ.d.::.~z.=:t.k__~-1-_.,,..,,d2::.~~~~1'.'.c:~:::::::::__~~ 

-· 
/c !'r\) 

z." ~-·cc ut..1-·· .---·---

-5912 

---
~~~~~W-.fl-_\!'L!:..•~~~~--LL!::;_.>:._.J~L..L.:.!e~r~·~A~n1~~--.~t~4~~='~·iv~/i~i:.....,=--1-~~~~~~~~-1- ~&~~\~~2¥~==-~~~ 

.c: ·/-./>? 6r .......--..·--·~ 
{.-/ 

c. 
-+. 



-285-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f
VILLA CAPI1C!JLA 

Please sign below to show your support for the construction of senior housing at 15·75 3gth Avenue. This senior housing will 
consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool,. dining room and other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to restaurants, grocery store, theater and other retail outlets. This petition will 
be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. 

Print Name Street Address Cit Email or hone# 

,.. 



-286-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f
VILLA CAPITOLA ;::; 

CJ) 

Please sign below to show your support for the construction of senior housing.at 1575 3gth.Avenue .. This senior housing will ! 
consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining room and· other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. ~ 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to restaurants, grocery store, theater ahd other retail outlets. This petition will fl 
be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission a.nd Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. ~ 

Q) 
0 

r-~~~~~~~~~~--,~~~~~~~-~~~~~~-,~~~~~~~~~--.--~~~~~~~~~~~-~ 

.. ~ ...... 

.___,,On~' c:..:<::::. 

' I' •, . I 
I ~ ) , 

'· ,/ 

\ \ I ~ '• I I f I I 



-287-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
....>. 
(,0 . 

CJl 
I 

VILLA CAPI1<9LA · 
Please sign below to show your support for the construction of senior housing at 1575 3gth Avenue. This senior housing will 
consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining room and other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to restaurants, grocery store, theater and other retail outlets. This petition will 
be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. 

All~ ' ·,.-;/ 'l \ I /~· r.t,·\,l" \~1 1 l · t_i 
VI. -~ \. 

l. 7:....... ·-1 .. I ·? o "'\-;,... Ljv :2 
__, '1,- • >--\ ?' r "'---· 

{ 
" <"' 

o@. (), \1v\6\ ' 
'-.. 

E_
., .. / 11 .--/ 

.d?' /~L 
- ·~/(_, ·--··· l - ---···--c'" 



-288-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I ........ 
(() 
(J) 

I 

....-1 / ,/ 
/ .... . .... · .i ./ 

.''
>\ ,..._.,; '/' ·- .v ; . 

_..· / (,I ,._,,·' 

,....~ 

0·p..\i it~/. :\ 

'7 ; .· . ..~ . 

?" .. , ,- .-, /.7 _.'llJ .. , ,(/ /? . ' .. .. ~ -· ..,, , __ ) 
/·-\) "(i-7 '·· , .• .. ~ 



-289-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f
. · ·· :· · :::- !"' ,.. · .. ; .... :. ·· :": .: .·( ·.:".·. · ; ::·.;.:·.,-::; .. :. ·:< ~r:cc-'lif>~~:·~1r~.L·-A:; :r.::::;~<:\· ...... · . . .. ·.J .. - 1 ~1:;~! ·r· 

· ~· · p1··eti~e"~fg.r1 b\~i:lo~ t~·:sJ\;cu~~ytIQ.r ~up:p.o:ri-··f.b.~· t-11'e~:~.6~~f.~.u9.f:i:<:H:(:a,f;:.s.~rfi'~·r.:~.oqsl·n~·:·mt .1~.75 3"8~· ~~ertu:~. This ;i1:nlb"r.·'h~ous·i.ng.~ii'I · .· 

· co·~~:ist.·o.r~~~ .~ri.it?;::·~::~~.~-~I'~~~M~)·. __ "r)~~:~Dj~,'.~~'.·::?::~;¥~!'}~t~:i"~~:·~·~:~· .. ~:itifn~:ot~;~r:::~~:·ni;;·'.·~;.:::.~?:"~~;j~:.·; .. ~.0~~.~:.:Nl~~if.~~r,~~~~n:·:eY:'~· o_u_i.1d):~9: 
· Th1s. locctt1on·;.off~.r:~\9.E:~.ii:r1.~r\S. T:li:~l'q· .. r!~tX:·~·C? :~ql,k.:~e;;·~~?·f;.~.~l?~ri;ts, grocery :~for.~, ·11i~pf.·~:t':,,a·t;n!~'{q~H.!\?r.,F.~t<;Hli.o~. le:ts~ This· pet1tr'o1tw111. 

''
1 
.. "be pres~nt'ed· ·;to· th~:'·afu~i:t~.:lh:'·f?.l'ctriAh1s{'ctikfrhils~ixfri}O:b~::.ehpit~ld Ci·ty CquHi;:i·l>Jfhein~Sf.dJ( · · · 'P,b .. ;,4'.?·;<t: ,~:" · .·. ~ · · · · · . · .. 
.... . . .. .. : . .. .. ""·:·:,· .. ,, ·,.· .. · "·" .. ·:·, .... : .,- : .. · .. :::~... · ... · .. '..... . ... , ... · ..... :>-':;.:;;"~·:;'. .. ·:· :}:/.,,:~.::·";::··::;~.:..: .. ::':':·""'., .. .,.}~;::,.:··::::,f.\H,:1: :';•':::: ... 

ffrr:tlf::N~rn;~>:'.''::,:,, .... ,.::.· .. :. :· .. ·;:~>)f'1.~t.he¢ff·:~:~8:~ei:$·:::Q\·:f..;:; .. . .... ''·:· ... o'::,$·r,fi~i:f.\6W:'.~h:b'h-'~#i·.: .. ;.:')) ·· ... "·:..\~:·-.\:hl~T Tif'.r .. ;::_;T(f.:. ~::-

:;1'1"'~~J;,1~~0~_'2JJ!:r~~ ~~~~~/·~'~;. $1c~~;~~ffJ:Lfi,~L, ·· 1 ']J;li : <:.x·· 

,\·: . 
.... "/', ... 

:• 

. '..i· 

~ . ' 

', l. 

;:+ 
CD 
3 
=l:i' 

~ 
(" 

): .... ,.... 
ll: 
\, 

-
( 
G 
i:: 
c 



-290-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I _... 
(0 
OJ 
I 

,.;!~N\ ~· 

(t~~1£f.&~ il, t.-1.!i 

VILLA CAPITOLA 

.'? 



-291-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

. ·. :•:~:~:;~2~~7t:~:~:k~~~i;~«~~t i'~~i~~:!;~s;!!1i?~~~~l:~~~::~n9:. 
Th Ls to cation 6ffe~s senitiP~s",tJW~tdbHi'.'.ht. tb'..%vaH~';;f..6··ft~~+eimrari·i"S·;>grci·c:ery~:~for~~·:.t.hedw~nC&tt:ci:i10f.hiir' 'fi·k.ttdl"··dci¥.:1f'.f~(;ITiL~ ·petilidn .. wi"l I 

.·-be.pr.~sented to'.the tapi•~-~.:;iti'P:J·tfrtn.·iAg~:¢~~~\j:~·~:i'drr::?.}~~ .. :C~pJf·cHct.,idt;·c~whdL. !fibri:~:f:~r\~~'d:f.;;~YPP~r+.~· ... ·. . ·· ·· · 
' ..... ' .( 

., .. . ' 
' ' 

. .· ~J·~·:4t?uf ' 

a' :' ":~· ~]:/.,._ . .' ' . " . Sh.!)1::'. ·,,.' .. b,,:·' . -~ .... .' ' 
' ~ .. CJ·' .. ' ... -~· .. ' .' .. . 

. . 
·" ..... .: ' ~ . . : ' . " 

'\!<:·.-::.: ... ',, i 
i' ' 

ct 
3 
:i1 
(J 

('. 

6 
Ill 
(") 
:::l 
3 
('D 
:::l 

' 11"'1 

G 
"C 
c 
-t 



-292-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
I\.) 
0 
0 
I 

··,. :-:~:-.-. '·VILLA .lPtrcDLA ct 
. Pl~ase sign below to shGw your.:sup·p9rt fo,r the c~nstructibn of. senior housirtg. at 1575 33t~ A.veh.Lie. This:,~erii.b~ ho.using wi.1.1 ~ 

. ' consist of 23 units, a parking garag·e,- swimming pool;.dining. rbom and other:amenities.in ·aj story Mediterranean style. building. ~ 
· This focritioh offers .seniors the abiiity to walk to: restaurants,.gr.ocery s+ore·, +heater ·dnd other retail .. ou~lets.' This petition will fl 
·be :presented ·to the Ccq:ritolct Plan.ni·ng Commission dnd Capitola City Council. Thank .. for yoi;tf"'. ·s\.lpport; · :: ,. · ~ 

. . . . . . ' SU 
., '· ·; i. g. 

·Print Name ··. ?treet Address Cit/ · Email·or. '.ro)1~#. .[: ....... ; .$i.· nat~~~: .· .: J . . ~ 

.. :. ~.::1.. qJ"'. (}, ,,,,.,.,,· .· J.,-1,
1
.: J... . ,, . 1;.., .P ·,f_ .. . ·, ·.· 1····.·;·"·"·.·-.·· .. r .. ·· .... :. 1~ ..... ·.·.· I~ . . v n .r ~'. .. D ~ · 'O·Vi·'n, .. ;, · _.:e,r · lO S fe.:.&·:.:" "c>r ~"1'"'v~l1i-/"'-;ri;);< z. · · . . » -... . . " · u' 

.·~ 

· · .. J ~\"·(\,. · .. lcr:i-cJ {o · . , o"' . 
: ·''·.·· _:::;, .. 

. . \ £oL\ .. 4I-''0 '~, ct'.(!\& rrA . 
. . . u".W''!() ~- (\ \J.~\k. CJ~ 0\ ~.Uf:b 

/:.__/ . 
-:_;.irf'.· ... 

. "· . , t'.1.~ 

"/\0.:10,-A~ti '\?o\ Uh:'\l,:A 
·GCXYBhttSB..CA~'; 

' .· .. : .. 

j,. . 
. :I:. 

i 
. ! . 

.;·'·....... r : 
. . 4'.,,....~ ' ; i ' 
' : . [ 

. ' 



-293-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f
I, 

I VILLA lPITc9LA 
Please sign below to show your support for the construction of senior housing at 1575 3gth Avenue. This senior housing will 
consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining room and other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to restaurants, grocery store, theater and other retail outlets. This petition will 
be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Coancil. Thank for your support. 

Print Name Street Address Cit · Email or hone# 

.... ., 
(dlt1ttb od·1ntl(@·.,tt.k.:rz1re rt-"-- ·· /j~ 

.·/~ ' / .... ,, 
~~---.__--- (,_,.A-------·-~ ~ 

::i:l 

~'~.A~·~~L~~~~-c~.$--1.!~l.-A~~~~-1--~~'~~j~t,~~-~~~~·~~2.W.---f"Fd-'~~-+-~-·J~;~l~1S=---~c~_~~'~~-r-~~~~~~~~~-----j~ 

(.__·~777.~k?'Z~~~7~~~.~-~~~-+~2~-~/L~-··__L_~~:z__~~~+Y.~/-5_~_$._~~·-g_-~y_7~·lo_··~~;r--~·~~-=·~ .. ~-----"1§ 
(") 

~r1l\~~~~~~·~~0'.L-~~~~~~~~--t-=-s3~~~i_~_i_-·q~·1fJ~\-r~~-thm-7f-r-~I 
I Dll((,i o;e0o(1 L(-Scr-t{&Lf~~ I~ 
NL_~~~L___:_:_~~~~~J_~~~~~~~~~~~L-~~~~~~__J~~---tf--~~~~~---'~ 
0 0 
~ ~ 
I 



-294-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
N 
0 
N 
I 

.,,~ . VILLA CAPITOLA ct 
3 

Please sign below to show your support for the construction of senior housing at 1575 3gth Avenue. This senior housing will =1:1:: 

consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining room and other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. !'1 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to r1~staurants, grocery store, theater and other retail outlets. This petition will !'.1 
be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. ~ 

Ill 
(") 

r-~~~~~~~~~~~--,-~--~~~~~~~~~~~~---,-~~~~~~~~~-,.~~~~.~~~~~~~~~::::r 

Print Name Street Address City Email or hone# Si nature 3 
r-~~~~~~~~~~~-t-~~~~~~~-~~~~--,-~~-r-~~~-'-~~~~~--t~""'--~-~~~~~~~~~~~ 

.r·. . : •.• . ··'"" r~.,; .,·.; .... 

:·)~·{ ;'I 
"···· i I 

I '-.) f"·. i' . (~' ,,I\ ... t( ~\\_, 'h/ I t··hf (.Pr,.. f """ ~\.,I~' 11 l f \ '.,.,.' 

f /1 
, I f"t"' ;·· . ,... . , .. J . 

J , ,._, • I 

/ (,103 l?i::.d1HA .. <'i> LJ PJ .• I / / ,,./ ,~ 
t ~ •t •• ..- ""'> • / S /''")"'J'';'ij'~... ..,) ,. t. / ,. .. , \ ) ·;: r 1 ' \ l ,..-' 

... c '::. l- rr11J /" l' 1 .... ·i·-' C/ Su)) t. (l{.\L.. Q.. c; C\ 'vJ 11\ if:.... ·1 l''V\ ti 1~·\Ct1 1l.u i... ,,,.. .. i· ·'/ C r ·1J-.....,.J.. Lt. 1> Gl 
' ' ~ a. 

"LL.,..:-),. -7,..., .,._::.c::rl ....- """' 
Tf./;; c:><i.X:: C::,j // 

, / 

It' .. ,.,:..~· 
~· .~) 

/ 
'· 



-295-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
N 
0 
VJ 
I 

: .• f. ,• . VILLA ~PI1<9LA 
Please sign below to show your support for the constructi?n.of senior housing at 1575 38th Avenue. This' senior housing will 
consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining .room cind other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to restaurants, grocery.store, theater and other retail outlets. This petition will 
be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. 

Print Name Street Address ·Cit Email or hone# Si natur~. 

•' 

D) ~rJ~ 'DsricoJ 



-296-

Item
 #: 8.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f

I 
N 
0 
~ 
I 

VILLA CAPITC9LA 
;::; 
CD 
3 

·Please sign below to show your support for· the construction of senior housing at 1575 3gth Avenue. This senior housing will ~ 
consist of 23 units, a parking garage, swimming pool, dining room and other amenities in a 3 story Mediterranean style building. ~ 
This location offers seniors the ability to walk to rE~staurants, grocery store, theater and other retail outlets. This petition will )> 
be presented to the Capitola Planning Commission and Capitola City Council. Thank for your support. 6f 

... ~........ 0 

Print Name Street Address City 
~ 7113f~Y.Jt42 ·if=-s 

!-t) fl f.ti.1 f/P r;?<1v ~ ~:z..--~/>,_ ,!"'A /// ""'?' 1-,,J'/-/ . 

I , ---- -- ' ·-

·1f a OA "J(\)11..e.. ~- 1110 LPZ~-1J fJv-et1u~ f/1[J1, 
___) 

Sci rr!-ct C r Lt z. 
I - j 

cA 
f\/\or \o. 13'\L, }",'\ ! U;/ D 8Lt) b Avenvr.e 

I 
qs-0&2-

/-' 

/]a. /;; /1 v &.. 
.. -. 

/..5/7.5"' ! 
I' '·r ,. :•,l/(/b ~; 

j'//111 f~ y ' /l/i i:· 11J{)1-) ·7 14 /t..! "2_;;:;~. /5uL.b 4 vL c--· ' ··~ 
!) ? 0/,; !ff 2-s-·~u( h ,I{ u ,,.-/j i,,. ..---'"/{__L j. ~- /(' ",7' ,. < 

-". I !" n cd.--~c:!'b•·'\ j) {J(c· ,.._ ) 
· Ltnlr\...A~ . ..,_ ~/"I vf//, /~ J ~'1'.r<=r ,_, 

'" ' s ( ····70~ b ·Oi. J ._, / 61. 17 '-'-1 .-· ... :· 
(A./ s {) (j I L.b. C. I / I 9·) tJ. ( /j I .. 

') ~c1?Yll\ ~rt:.c"vtecee G,•'\p.O« RQj4 Ct ~:;c l"vtc (Oh 
J 05Q0.1---

I 

-
Email or phone# Siqnature 

7-~' ~ /'<._ --- ..... 

bla ~r I..• 

11UVl1-a if· 131u-'?-;<..) 

..._ --'% -~ ??/ 
~-~ 

- . 

-
/JAAtl-41 ./'l . .A....-1 ·/,.., ,,},,..,;:, ¢..-

-·---- .r 6z"' / 
/~·· I.·· 

/ .. · .'l/t-( 1,,. Yr/ /M,,-t~c?':~ 

«9 ~ -·/: 
~ .. 

.i/ /.--· 
I: ~ .... 

-''·" -f.. · I ~ ~S - '/ ./ --- .. __ ... 
,·'; 

~ -· q.;(~ • •. ~ ·1~~~ 6'.>···" I.:~ - ~~~~~:: .. ~.~ .. '<--Jrr: 
.. -··· "\ 

7---/ ,·,,...--------"') ,.. I (·· _ _.t -----····" ' 

f .. ~ /t vf1 (:, ~/ I " ;/ J?-·-- . ..._;,.';'~~./ ·0 

I 

::l" 
3 
CD 
::I -



-297-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf

George Ow, Jr. 
King's Plaza Shopping Center 
160141st Avenue, Suite202 

Capitola, CA, 95010 
831-475-9042 Capitola Office. 831-423-0128 Home Office. 831-426-5772 Fax. 

GeorgeOwJr@aol.com 

January 14, 2013 

Capitola City Council 
420 Capitola Ave, 
Capitola, CA 95010 

Sent via Email and Regular Mail. 

RE: 1575 381
h Avenue-ProposedPlannedDevelopmentRezoning, Conditional use 

Permit, and Design Pe1mit 

Dear City of Capitola Council Members: 

I am resubmitting this letter to you in order to ensure that it is part of the public record for 
the Capitola City Council Meeting on January 24, 2013 at 7 :OOpm. My name is George 
Ow, Jr. and my family and I own King's Plaza Shopping Center, which is located directly 
across the street from 1575 38th Avenue, the site of the proposed planned development 
rezoning to construct a three story, 23-unit senior housing project in the existing 
neighborhood commercial zoning district. My parents built and operated King's Market 
grocery store (now OSH) on our property in 1963 and my family and I developed the 
second phase of.King's Plaza shopping center in 1972. King's Plaza Shopping Center 
has been an extremely successful retail shopping center for 48 years. In order to 
successfully operate their businesses, the tenants of King's Plaza need the ability to load 
and unload products into their stores, have easily accessible trash enclosures, and 
maintain operating hours that can go late into the evening. I am concerned that if 1575 
3 8th A venue is rezoned to ailow a 4-story senior housing complex to be developed, it will 
lead to problems that are inevitable when residential uses are placed within close 
proximity to commercial uses. 

I will use what has transpired with the Best Western Hotel next to King's Plaza Shopping 
Center as an example of some of the problems that arise when people live and sleep 
within close proximity to commercial uses. The Best Western Hotel was built in 2000, 
over 28 years after the neighboring commei:cial quilding (that .houses O'Reilly Autoparts, 
Save Mart, and Rite Aid) was constructed. After choosit;tg, to locate directly next to the 
garbage enclosures a.Ila loading-docks of these businesses that have been operating for 
decades, the Best Western manager complained incessantly and tried to impose 

-205-



-298-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
Item #: 5.C. Attachment_H.pdf 

limitations on the times when the businesses could load and unload their shipments of 
merchandise. This has not been good for the hotel owners or King's Plaza and its 
tenants. These problems could have been avoided if the Best Western would have chosen 
to locate elsewhere or changed the layout of its hotel or had well planned screening plants 
or further sound proofed their building. I want to protect against future problems like 
these arising with future residents of the proposed senior house project at 1575 3gth 
Street. 

It is important to keep zoning districts consistent because deviating from existing zoning 
districts can lead incompatible uses being located next to each other. If a four story 
senior housing project is built at 1575 38th A venue, there is a high likelihood that the 
residents would object to looking at the back of the King's Plaza Shopping Center (the 
buildings that house Tony & Alba's, Palace Art Supply, OSH's garden department, and 
CineLu:x: Theatres), the delivery hours of the tenants, the location of the garbage 
enclosures, and the noise that is associated with businesses at King's Plaza Shopping 
Center. Why create future problems? 

If the Capitola City Council deems the rezoning of 1575 38th Ave appropriate, then it 
should make the applicant aware that it will be locating a housing complex next to an 
active commercial site that will often create noise in the early mornings and late at night. 
Moreover, I ask that you impose as a condition of approval, that a sound wall, sound 
proof rooms and very high shielding landscaping like tall bamboo be installed to provide 
a physical barrier between 1575 38 Avenue and King's Plaza Shopping Center. Lastly I 
would like the City Council to ensure that the construction of a senior housing complex at 
1575 33tll Ave will not cause any additional costs or have future limitations to be put on 
my family's land or our tenants' operations (such as limited loading hours, limited trash 
pickup hours, changing the location or style of the trash enclosures, etc). 

Thank you very much for your consideration of my requests. As long as the City Council 
ensures that no limitations are ever put on any tenants of King's Plaza Shopping Center 
due to being located next to a senior housing complex and the applicant constructs its 
project in a manner so as to prevent its residents from being awakened or be any way 
bothered by operations at King's Plaza Shopping Center, my family and I are open to the 
idea. 

Best Regards, 

~0r 
George Ow, Jr. 
Ow Family Trusts 

-206-



-299-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 5.pdf
lte111 ff". ;J.v. 1-\lld\;lllllt:llL_l.tJUI 

Dear Mayor Harlan and Counsel members; 1/15/13 

We hope that you will take notice and action, if it is possible, on an agenda item that is on the City 

Counsel's agenda Jan. 2~th of this month. It is regarding the proposed building plan at 1575 
38th Ave. It will be the 2nd time this proposal has come before the City Counsel. My husband 
and I have significant and multi-faceted concerns about this proposal and have attended all 
Planning Commission and the previous City Counsel meeting. Our home and property share a back 
fence along the west side of this property. 

1. The proposed building is too tall in com.parison to the existing homes surrounding it and will 
significantly/negatively impact our privacy, and access to morning sunshine. IF it is built to the 
proposed specification, the building will loom over our 1 story single. family home like a giant 
spaceship or something. In addition there are water table issues, concerns with 
quiet/peacefulness, to a small degree air quality & property values. There are no other buildings 
on 38th Ave over 2-story high. We urge you to only issue approval for a two story building at 
this site. A two-story building is a good fit with surrounding structures, and can ameliorate the 
negative impact of this multi-unit residential building proposal on existing neighbors. 
2. We would also like the set-back to be 20 feet, in keeping with reasonable set backs already in 
place. 
3. Building schedule/times; If approved, please do not allow construction to start earlier than 9 
am Mon-Fri and should end by 6 pm as the noise pollution may be going on for many months or the 
better part of a year. Also, not construction during the week ends please. We realize that a 
certain amount of air pollution will take place during construction and are not looking forward to 
this: 
4. We have heard from John Leopold's office that the balconies from the back (Western fadng 
wall) and that the South-Western Tower has been removed. We very much appreciate this! This 
is an awesome step towards maintaining some semblance of privacy for the homeowners to the 
west of this site as these are 1 story garden homes. ·we have not heard from Steve Thomas or 
Maureen Romac. But we hope that plans are developed to prevent others from being able to look 
directly into our home's windows from the 2nd or higher floors~ 
5. Careful planning must prevent any water run off issues to be created or cause any problems for 
neighbors due to the construction of this site. This must be addressed because the area used to 
be marsh land and the water tal:>le is very high as other neighbors will testify. 
6. The redwood trees on the southern side will likely have root damage and crowded roots and die 
as a result of this building proposal as it currently is stated. 

In closing, we cannot understand any enthusiasm one would have towards this project as only the 
rich will be able to afford a unit, per stated monthly/annual resident costs. 

Sincere regards, Kim Frey 1530 Bulb Ave 831 462-2366 

-207-



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-300-



-301-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 6.pdf

EXCERPT JUNE 6, 2013 PLANNING COMMISSION 
DRAFT MINUTES 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

C. 1575 38th AVENUE #13-061 APN: 034-181-17 
Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit to demolish a 
commercial salvage yard (Capitola Freight and Salvage) and construct a three-story, 23-unit 
residential senior housing project in the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Property Owner: Maureen A Romac, filed: 5/11 /13 
Representative: Steve Thomas 

Interim Planner Uharriet reviewed background on the project and previous applications. The project 
now consists of a three-story, 23-unit senior housing building. Changes to this application based on 
prior input include reduced height, stepped back stories, a single driveway, additional landscaping, 
and eliminated back decks. The on-site restaurant will not serve the public, and six to eight of the on
site employees will be housed in four of the apartments. Additional conditions recommended by staff 
are the installation of a mid-block pedestrian crossing, the retention of an arborist who will be on-site 
to ensure protection of the redwoods on the property boundary, and the minimization of construction 
vehicles on site. 

The conditions also call for an acoustic report to be completed prior to building that will recommend 
levels for soundproofing. Planner Uharriet said she was unable to find an industry standard for the 
decibel level for residential uses adjacent to commercial uses. The acoustic report will determine the 
appropriate mitigations. 

Commissioner Ortiz confirmed that a lighting plan had not yet been submitted, and said that were the 
project to be approved, she would like to see that element come back to the commission for approval, 
rather than at staff level. She also confirmed that employee residents would need to be served by the 
parking. 

Property owner Maureen Romac gave an overview of the vision for Villa Capitola's independent 
senior living. Residents of the studio and one-bedroom units can choose from a variety of meal plans 
through the on-site restaurant, and rents include housekeeping, maintenance, landscaping, a shuttle 
service, pool and spa, fitness equipment, a community rooftop garden and 24-hour emergency 
service. It does not include assisted living, but tenants may bring in that additional help. The building 
will be fully ADA accessible and use green construction techniques. 

Commissioner Graves said that parking is a major concern, and confirmed that none of the spaces 
are compact size. He worries about ample accommodation for residents, staff, and guests. He also 
asked if the palm tree shown in elevations is in the landscaping plan. He was told it is not. 

Chairman Routh asked what the planned age requirement will be since he feels it should be listed as 
a condition. Ms. Romac and Steve Thomas replied that they initially considered age 55, but since the 
project has been scaled back 65 is more likely. 

Chairman Routh and Commissioner Ortiz expressed concerns that if the project is not successful as a 
senior residence, they fear it could come back to the City with a request for an all-age use, and then 
the parking will not be sufficient. Mr. Thomas noted that his team used the consultants chosen by the 



-302-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 6.pdf
June 6, 201-3 Planning Commission 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page2 

City to prepare the parking study, which is based on various senior facilities, and the parking provided 
in the project was derived from that study. 

Ms. Romac and Mr. Thomas also confirmed that the units will be leased, not sold, and have no up
front entrance fee. They estimated a studio with a partial meal plan would cost about $3,300 a month, 
while a one-bedroom with full meals may go for about $5,000. a month. They agreed to bring both 
final lighting and landscaping plans back for commission review. 

In response to concerns about a fountain, Mr. Thomas noted that the site is collecting rainwater and 
reusing water on site. 

Commissioner Smith suggested the project may add an additional fee for parking as a way to 
discourage extra vehicles. 

Chairperson Routh opened the public hearing. 

A member of the public spok'e in support of the project, saying it is ideal for seniors who lose the 
ability drive before they need other services. 

Neighbor Kim Frey likes the idea of the project, but feels it is too large for the parcel. She does not 
feel it will work well with the adjacent single-family home neighborhood. She gave the commission a 
petition signed by 15 owners and residents of Bulb Avenue opposing the scale and style of the 
development. She also expressed concern about water runoff management given the area's tendency 
to be marshy. 

Tatyanna Teenwisse, who operates a business on property she co-owns adjacent to the site, said that 
while she in is favor of the concept of the project, she feels its scale does not suit the community. She 
also expressed concerns about access to solar rights and privacy issues for her clients. Bart 
Teenwisse noted they installed a sump pump to address drainage problems. He questioned whether 
the apartment cost was appropriate for the location and worried about a domino effect of larger 
projects. 

Nancy Huyck shared the shading study to address concerns about solar impacts, and Josh Schneider 
of Slatter Construction explained it shows no impact by shading most months of the year. 

Don Mosegaard of Bulb Avenue said he believes the project is too dense and too high for the location. 
He worried how the construction would impact the redwood trees. 

Chairman Routh closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Ortiz confirmed the shuttle will park on site. 

Commissioner Smith asked about noise levels for the acoustic study. Mr. Schneider confirmed that 
noise levels from outdoors are generally not a concern with modern construction materials and an 
appropriate decibel level can usually be achieved with double pane windows. 

Commissioner Graves noted the redwood trees are not on the project property and can be protected. 
He said his main concern is parking. He visited a number of the homes on Bulb Avenue and thinks the 
shade fears would prove unfounded. He said he sees much improvement in the plan and noted that 



-303-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 6.pdf
June 6, 2013 Planning Commission 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page 3 

dense development and narrower setbacks could be permitted under current zoning. He 
recommended establishing set decibel levels for rooftop equipment. 

Commissioner Smith agreed the plan is much improved. She feels it would benefit the city and is 
appropriate for the location. She wants to see a complete landscaping plan and would support both 
the conditions calling for an arborist for the redwoods and setting the age limit at 65 and above. 

Commissioner Ortiz said she believes the parking is not adequate. She wanted assurance that wall 
heights were acceptable to neighbors. She recommended adding a lighted crosswalk to the conditions 
and supports the arborist requirement. 

Commissioner Welch commended the applicants for their determination and willingness to 
accommodate concerns. He said the project supports the housing element and goals of allowing a 
population to age in place. He accepts the parking study. In response to Commissioner Ortiz's 
comment that many in the community felt the housing element density was forced on the city by the 
state, he said this location is one where it seems appropriate to allow a greater density, and this 
project would enhance the corridor. 

Chairperson Routh addressed a letter from King's Plaza owner George Ow Jr. concerning the 
possibility of future complaints about noise from long-existing commercial uses. Chairperson Routh 
would like to require that lease agreements include an acknowledgement that there may be noise 
from the adjoining commercial district. He supports a condition restricting residents to age 65 and up, 
and he confirmed that a drainage plan would be required. He said his primary concern is the 
protection zoning provides neighbors, and he is having trouble finding that this project rises to a level 
that would allow an exception. The parcel is significantly smaller than the recommended four acres for 
a planned development, and he feels the project falls short of finding (a) "securing the purposes of the 
zoning ordinance" and (d) "the requested exemptions to development standards are warranted by the 
design and amenities." 

A motion to approve application #13-061 as described in the staff report with the additional 
condition of having an arborist on site was made by Commissioner Welch. The motion failed 
to receive a second. 

Commissioners Graves and Ortiz concurred with Chairman Routh regarding the size and findings for 
a Planned Development. 

Commissioner Smith disagreed that the lot size should be a major factor, noting that there are 
numerous Planned Development areas within the city under the four-acre total. She said the need to 
revitalize the 41 s~ Avenue corridor is compelling and this project serves that goal. 

Commissioner Graves expressed concern about allowing a very dense use adjacent to single-family 
residences. He did note, however, that a commercial development would allow 10-foot setbacks in the 
rear, less than this project proposes. He also took exception to portions of Mr. Ow's letter regarding 
screening, calling the back of Orchard Supply an eyesore because items are not enclosed as they 
should be. Commissioner Graves also noted the store violates city ordinance by placing garden 
products in the front parking; therefore, he would not support language preventing all future 
restrictions. 



-304-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 6.pdf
June 6, 2013 Planning Commission 
DRAFT Minutes 
Page4 

Commissioner Ortiz said that she would support restricting spillover parking into King's Plaza and 
other nearby businesses. Commissioner Graves agreed, and said he does not believe the parking 
study allowed for the possibility of additional assisted living personnel. 

A motion to deny application #13-061 with note of the following requested conditions and 
concerns in case of appeal was made by Chairman Routh and seconded by Commissioner 
Graves: 

Require language in the lease alerting tenants to potential noise from commercial uses 
Age restriction of 65 and older 
Final lighting plan must be approved by the Planning Commission 
Submission of a drainage plan 
Landscaping plan must be approved by the Planning Commission 
Establish a specific decibel level for rooftop equipment at a set number of feet from the building 
Require the hiring of an arborist to confirm that current setbacks do not endanger existing redwood 
trees bordering the property and to be present during construction to assure that steps are taken to 
protect the trees 
Construct a lighted crosswalk to King's Plaza 
Confirm that the needs of seven staff, the shuttle van, no specific visitor parking and possible assisted 
living workers have been considered in parking needs 
Prohibit parking in nearby business lots 
Ask the city attorney to review how to enforce parking restrictions or conditions 
Require the applicant to work with adjoining property owners on the wall height 

Commissioner Welch noted that a number of these are addressed in the staff report and 
recommendation, and asked that Council be made aware that this list does not reflect all members of 
the Commission. 

The motion carried by the following roll call vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Ortiz, and 
Chairperson Routh No: Commissioners Smith, and Welch. Abstain: None. 



-305-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 7.pdf

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Goldstein, Jamie 
Monday, June 10, 2013 1 :56 PM 
Grunow, Rich; Uharriet, Danielle 

Subject: FW: 38th Ave Senior Housing Application 

-----Original Message-----
From: Mick Routh [mailto:gwakwak@qmail.com] 
Sent: Saturday, June 08, 2013 11: 16 AM 
To: City Council 
Cc: Mick Routh 
Subject: 38th Ave Senior Housing Application 

6/8/2013 

Mayor and Council members, 

At the Thursday June 6, 2013 meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission the Commission voted 3-2 to deny 
the staff recommendation for approval of the 38th Ave senior housing application. 

The following concerns were raised.The Commission requested that these concerns be addressed by the 
Council if and when the Planning Commission decision is appealed to your body. 

1. The mass and scale of the project is too large for the site. 

2. Parking is inadequate. When 6-8 employees plus a shuttle bus are utilizing on-site parking, there is not enough 
parking for the tenants. In addition, and related, there is no condition restricting the age of tenants. The 
Commission supported setting a minimum age limit of 65 years. The Commission believed setting an age limit at 
less than age 65 will result in additional parking impacts as most couples less than age 65 are both working and 
own two vehicles. Even with the condition of age 65, Commissioners felt the number of parking spaces would 
still not be adequate.The Commission also supported a condition requiring tenants to park on-site. No overflow 
parking to be allowed in the Kings Plaza center. 

3. The Commission was concerned that without a condition requiring tenants to be a minimum age, if the 
project did not meet occupancy projections of seniors, it may revert to renting to any age tenants, 
compounding the potential parking problems. Capitola Villas was cited as an example. 

4. The project does not rise to the threshold of exceptionality to allow the required findings to be made to 
establish a PD District of less than 4 acres. It was stated that the zoning ordinance is a covenant with the public 
guaranteeing that their property will be safe guarded from incompatible uses or building design not reflecting 
the zoning requirements. Allowing the formation of a PD District and proposed development thaf does not 
adhere to the CN zoning standards amounts to spot zoning and denies the public those safe guards inherent in 
the zoning ordinance. 

5. The Commission wants the redwood trees on the storage facility property protected by having an arborist on
site when the construction takes place on the south side of the property adjacent to the redwood trees. There 
was particular concern about the area where the proposed project has a zero lot line set back, which may 
result in root system destruction and excessive trimming. It was also discussed that an arborist report should be 
required for that area prior to construction. 

6. The landscape plans and renderings do not agree. A large palm tree shown in the renderings is not included 
in the landscape plans. 

1 



-306-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 7.pdf

7. The Commission requested that if the application is approved, the applicant return to the Commission with a 
lighting and drainage plan. 

8. Require language in the tenant lease/rental agreement that the tenant acknowledges that adjacent 
commercial uses may generate noise during deliveries and garbage pick up. 

There were several other minor concerns that may or may not be reflected in the minutes but are available thru 
viewing of the recording of the meeting. 

Mick Routh 
Capitola Planning Commission Chair 

Sent from my iPad 

2 



-307-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 8.pdf

Rt:.cE.\\fEO 
\)\1 George Ow, Jr. 

j\J~ 'Ji\)'[ King's Plaza Shopping Center 
p..?\\0\J>. 1601 41 st A venue, Suite 202 

C\\{ Of C Capitola, CA, 95010 
831-475-9042 Capitola Office. 831-423-0128 Home Office. 831-426-5772 Fax. 

June 19, 2013 

Capitola City Council 
420 Capitola Ave, 
Capitola, CA 95010 

GeorgeOwJr@aol.com 

Sent via Email and Regular Mail. 

RE: 1575 38th Avenue - Proposed Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional use 
Permit, and Design Permit 

Dear City of Capitola City Council Members: 

I am resubmitting this letter to you in order to ensure that it is part of the public record for 
the Capitola City Council Meeting on June 27, 2013 at 7:00pm. My name is George Ow, 
Jr. and my family and I own King's Plaza Shopping Center, which is located directly 
across the street from 1575 38th Avenue, the site of the proposed planned development 
rezoning to construct a three story, 23-unit senior housing project in the existing 
neighborhood commercial zoning district. My parents built and operated King's Market 
grocery store (now OSH) on our property in 1963 and my family and I developed the 
second phase of King's Plaza shopping center in 1972. King's Plaza Shopping Center 
has been an extremely successful retail shopping center for 49 years. In order to 
successfully operate their businesses, the tenants of King's Plaza need the ability to load 
and unload products into their stores, have easily accessible trash enclosures, and 
maintain operating hours that can go late into the evening. I am concerned that if 1575 
38th Avenue is rezoned to allow a 3-story senior housing complex to be developed, it will 
lead to problems that are inevitable when residential uses are placed within close 
proximity to commercial uses. 

I will use what has transpired with the Best Western Hotel next to King's Plaza Shopping 
Center as an example of some of the problems that arise when people live and sleep 
within close proximity to commercial uses. The Best Western Hotel was built in 2000, 
over 28 years after the neighboring commercial building (that houses O'Reilly Autoparts, 
Save Mart, and Rite Aid) was constructed. After choosing to locate directly next to the 
garbage enclosures and loading docks of these businesses that have been operating for 
decades, the Best Western manager complained incessantly and tried to impose 



-308-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 8.pdf

limitations on the times when the businesses could load and unload their shipments of 
merchandise. This has not been good for the hotel owners or King's Plaza and its 
tenants. These problems could have been avoided ifthe Best Western would have chosen 
to locate elsewhere or changed the layout of its hotel or had well planned screening plants 
or further sound proofed their building. I want to protect against future problems like 
these arising with future residents of the proposed senior house project at 1575 381

h 

Street. 

It is important to keep zoning districts consistent because deviating from existing zoning 
districts can lead incompatible uses being located next to each other. If a four story 
senior housing project is built at 1575 381

h Avenue, there is a high likelihood that the 
residents would object to looking at the back of the King's Plaza Shopping Center (the 
buildings that house Tony & Alba's, Palace Art Supply, OSH's garden department, and 
CineLux Theatres), the delivery hours of the tenants, the location of the garbage 
enclosures, and the noise that is associated with businesses at King's Plaza Shopping 
Center. Why create future problems? 

If the Capitola City Council deems the rezoning of 1575 381
h Ave appropriate, then it 

should make the applicant aware that it will be locating a housing complex next to an 
active commercial site that will often create noise in the early mornings and late at night. 
Moreover, I ask that you impose as a condition of approval, that a sound wall, sound 
proof rooms and very high shieldin~ landscaping like tall bamboo be installed to provide 
a physical barrier between 1575 381 Avenue and King's Plaza Shopping Center. Lastly I 
would like the City Council to ensure that the construction of a senior housing complex at 
1575 381

h Ave will not cause any additional costs or have future limitations to be put on 
my family's land or our tenants' operations (such as limited loading hours, limited trash 
pickup hours, changing the location or style of the trash enclosures, etc). 

Thank you very much for your consideration of my requests. As long as the City Council 
ensures that no limitations are ever put on any tenants of King's Plaza Shopping Center 
due to being located next to a senior housing complex and the applicant constructs its 
project in a manner so as to prevent its residents from being awakened or be any way 
bothered by operations at King's Plaza Shopping Center, my family and I are open to the 
idea. 

Best Regards, 

~0t-
George Ow, Jr. 
Ow Family Trusts 



-309-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 9.pdf

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Linda Smith [capitolalinda2@gmail.com] 
Thursday, June 20, 2013 4:49 PM 
City Council 
Grunow, Rich; Goldstein, Jamie; Uharriet, Danielle 
38th Avenue Project 

I have been made aware of the email dated June 8 to you from Chairperson Routh regarding the referenced 
project as discussed at our June 6 meeting. While we appreciate the dedication of the Chair in providing 
Council with this early summary of our deliberations, all of the concerns listed in his email do not represent a 
consensus voiced by the majority of the commissioners. 

I was assured by Chairperson Routh that differing opinions would be presented, and I do not believe his email 
does that. I am confident that the staff report you will receive for your meeting next week will offer a more 
balanced summary. 

Respectfully, 
Linda Smith 

Life is short - Break the rules! 
Forgive quickly .. Kiss slowly .. 
Love truly .. Laugh uncontrollably ... 
And never regret anything that made you smile! 

1 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-310-



-311-

Item #: 8.B. Attach 10.pdf

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Sneddon, Su 
Friday, June 21, 201310:31 AM 
Grunow, Rich 
Uharriet, Danielle 
FW: Villas Capitola 

From: Charles. Hackett [mailto:charles@charlesandcharles.com] 
Sent: Friday, June 21, 2013 10:12 AM 
To: City Council 
Subject: Villas Capitola 

Mayor and council members; 20 June 13 

I fully endorse Villas Capitola for approval. 
There is a hole in the City and a handsome, well 
appointed, and located retirement facility will 
certainly go a long way to fill the need. 
As I approach my mid 70's, I am beginning to 
seriously consider my options. 
I find this developments design most appealing. 
I am looking forward to visiting the finished 
residences. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Charles Hackett 

1 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-312-



-313-

Item #: 8.C. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

POLICE AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

ONE DAY VILLAGE CLOSURE TO VEHICLE TRAFFIC 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report and provide direction to staff. 

BACKGROUND: During its May 9, 2013, City Council meeting, direction was provided to staff to 
evaluate the possibilities of having a day where pedestrian traffic flowed freely along the 
Esplanade absent the presence of vehicles. 

DISCUSSION: The Police Department traditionally handles temporary road closures throughout 
the City on a routine basis. The closures are most prominent in the summer season and generally 
occur in the Village along the Esplanade. Prior to the actual road closures, proper signage and 
notifications are completed to minimize impacts to local businesses and residents. Considerations 
are outlined to address emergency access points for emergency personnel. 

Staff has evaluated the City Council direction and recommends the City set a date in early Fall for 
a car-free day on the Esplanade, lower Monterey Avenue and San Jose Avenue. Under this 
scenario, Capitola Avenue and Stockton Avenue would remain open. 

Given existing special event schedules staff suggests Sunday, September 29th or Sunday, 
October 13th would be most appropriate. Setting the date now will give residents and businesses 
adequate time to prepare. The closure would be contingent upon completion of the Lower Pacific 
Cove Parking Lot. · 

In general, closing the Esplanade to vehicle traffic involves proper advance postings and 
notifications of the impending road closers. Prior to towing of vehicles from the posted areas, the 
Police Department will make attempts to locate the registered owner when they are local. Staff 
suggests implementing the standard vehicle traffic protocol for this event. In addition, to help 
minimize day-of traffic impacts, staff proposes a Community Service Officer would be available for 
traffic control at Stockton Avenue/Esplanade during peak traffic time periods. 

Lastly, the Public Works Department proposes the City would issue encroachment permits to any 
Capitola business to use a 20' x 20' section of the street. The permits would be issued on the 
following criteria: 

1. Businesses on a closed street could only use street area fronting their.business; 

2. Businesses not on a closed street and community groups who receive sponsorship from 
the City could only use street area along the Esplanade between San Jose Avenue and 
Monterey Avenue; 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\9.C. VILLAGE CLOSURE staff report 062013 
Su.docx 



-314-

Item #: 8.C. Staff Report.pdf

6-27-13 AGENDA ITEM 
SUBJECT: VILLAGE CLOSURE TO VEHICLE TRAFFIC 

3. Encroachment Permits would be issued for $32 (50% of a regular encroachment permit 
fee), permit holder will need to meet insurance requirements for General and Auto Liability 
($500,000 minimum each for Personal injury and Property Damage) with the City of 
Capitola named as an additional insured; 

4. Encroachment permits would be made available on a first come first served basis based 
on the attached map. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Unknown at this time, but there will be staff costs and permit fees depending on 
the type and size of activities permitted. It is anticipated that the proposed event could be 
accommodated within the existing Department budgets. An expanded event that included other 
activities (music, activities, and sports competitions) would either require a third party organizer or 
a budget amendment to fund increased staff time to plan the event. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Map of Possible Vendor Locations on Closed Street Days 

Report Prepared By: Rudy Escalante 
Chief of Police 

Reviewed and Foft .. :d 
By City Manager 

v 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda StaffReports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\9.C. VILLAGE CLOSURE staff report 062013 Su.docx 



-315-

Item
 #: 8.C

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

Possible Vendor Locations for Closed Street Days 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-316-



-317-

Item #: 8.D. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2013 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: UPDATE ON THE NEW CITY OF CAPITOLA WEBSITE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Presentation. 

BACKGROUND: At the January 24, 2013, City Council Meeting, the Council authorized the City 
Manager to enter into an Agreement with aHa! Consulting, to create a new website for the City of 
Capitola. The new website went live on June 10, 2013. 

DISCUSSION: The previous website for the City of Capitola (www.ci.capitola.ca.us) was designed 
in 2002 and needed a complete redesign. aHA! Consuluting proposed the package entitled "Aha 
Web for Small Cities" which includes the web framework developed from their work with larger 
government agencies. This made the transition to a modern web platform much less expensive 
than it would have been with a fully customized solution. Any request to the old domain name will 
redirect the user seamlessly to the new website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us. 

· FISCAL IMPACT: As of this time, the City of Capitola has spent $3,340 of the approved $4,000 for 
the website, which includes the first year of hosting and support. The City was able to eliminate the 
$150/month expense for the previous website. 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Larry Laurent 
Information Systems Specialist 

Reviewed and Fo 
by City Manager: --;----r-............ -

R:\CITY COUNCIL\City Council\Agenda Staff Reports\2013 Agenda Reports\06 27 13\9.D. websit?_update.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-318-



-319-

Item #: 9.A. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dear Mr. Bottorff, 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN 

Kathy [mk.barnes@yahoo.com] 
Wednesday, June 26, 2013 12:29 PM 
Bottorff, Ed 
City Council 
El Saito Resort 

Item 7.C . 

JUN 26 Z013 
crrv OF CAPITOLA 

ClTY CLERK 

I am writing to express my concerns regarding the plans for an expansion of the El Saito Resort on Depot Hill. Having 
grown up on Depot Hill in the 1950s and 60s, I have seen many changes in Capitola ... some good .... some not so good . I 
believe the expansion from 11 transient cottages to a 41 unit hotel/ resort would be one of the not so good changes. 

As you know, Depot Hill has always been a unique and special neighborhood. It has retained it's character over the years 
with a mix of summer houses and permanent residences. Some homes have remained in families for many years to be 
enjoyed by multiple generations. Depot Hill is a residential community. If this expansion is allowed, I fear that the 
essential character will change. 

Since all traffic on Depot Hill must enter by either Central or Escalona Avenues , I fear a significant increase in traffic will 
occur with the expansion of El Saito. On many days, cars are parked on both sides of Central Avenue wh ich significantly 
restricts traffic flow. Since there are no sidewalks on Depot Hill , families, couples and kids walk, stroll , ride bikes and play 
on all the streets. 

In sum, Depot Hill is a residential neighborhood with lots of pedestrians, no sidewalks, no parking and lots of vehicular 
traffic already. I think the addition of a 41 unit resort is a very bad idea that will change this special neighborhood forever. 
I strongly urge you to oppose this project. 

Sincerely, 
Kathy Barnes 
208 Central Avenue 
Capitola , CA 

mk.barnes@yahoo.com 

Sent from my iPad 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-320-



-321-

Item #: 9.B. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN[ 

Bruce R. Holloway [b3r1 h@comcast.net] 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 12:25 PM 
City Council 

Item 7.E. 

Consent agenda item 7.E (Library amendment) 

Hi Councilmembers , 

JUN 17 2011. 
~lfY OF CAPITOLA 

Cl1YCLERK 

The Background given is somewhat garbled . Yes , the City is a party to two 
joint powers agreements pertaining to libraries . No , neither of those 
JPAs provides for alternate board members . The "bylaws " of the Library 
Joint Powers Board is a separate document adopted by that board which does 
provide for alternates . The Library Financing Authority also has bylaws 
which can be amended by its board without requiring action by the five 
parties. 

Here are links on the Library website to the LJPB JPA 
(http : //www . santacruzpl.org/aboutscpl/govern/8/) and the LFA JPA 
(http : //www . santacruzpl . org/aboutscpl/govern/12/) so anyone can see that 
the word "alternate " does not appear in either one . 

You and your City Attorney know this measure is totally unnecessary 
because you already appointed an alternate (Councilmember Storey) to the 
LFA board on December 13 . Three out of four city councils which are 
parties to the agreement did so right after the las t election . 

The words " at the pleasure of " come from British law and before that from 
Roman law . No one could have life , liberty , or property except '' at the 
pleasure of " the Roman emperor , so those words connote absolute authority . 

Those words in each JPA confer absolute authority ·on each of the parties 
to provide for representation by their members at every meeting in any way 
they choose . 

The City Attorney was present at the LJPB meeting last December 3 when 
Supervisor Leopold voted on behalf of the county as an alternate even 
though that JPA doesn ' t expressly provide for alternates . The County 
Counsel was present on Janua ry 29 when Supervisor Leopold was reappointed 
as an alternate to the LJPB even though .that JPA doesn ' t expressly provide 
for alternates ; it only says "at the pleasure of " each of the parties 
including the Board of Supervisors . 

You shouldn ' t approve this amendment to the LFA JPA without considering 
whether the same amendment is necessary to the LJPB JPA and why or why 
not. Alternates appointed to the LJPB have sat on the dais and voted for 
many years . 

Respectfully , Bruce Holloway 

1 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-322-



-323-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Date: June 27, 2013 

To: City Council 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
MEMO 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL 

Re: Additional Material - Item 8.B. 
Revised the draft Resolution and Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Please find the attached revised the draft Resolution and Mitigated Negative Declaration 
regarding a Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for a 
three-story, 23-unit residential senior housing project located at 1575 38th Avenue. 



-324-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ADOPTING THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND APPROVING A REZONING 
TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND A DESIGN 

PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL SENIOR HOUSING PROJECT ON A .72 ACRE SITE AT 1575 
38TH AVENUE (LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF 38TH AVENUE BETWEEN CAPITOLA 

ROAD AND BROMMER STREET), BEING REZONED FROM CN (NEIGHBORHOOD 
COMMERCIAL) TO PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) DISTRICT 

ASPARTOFTHEPROPOSEDPROJECT 

Project: 

APN: 

Application #13-061: 1575 38 TH Avenue, Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit, 
and Rezoning to Planned Development District 
034-181 -17 

WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit and Planned 
Development zoning designation on a .72 acre site located on the west side of 381

h Avenue 
between Capitola Road and Brommer Street in the City of Capitola, was submitted by property 
owners Maureen Romac and Steve Thomas; and 

WHEREAS, the above noted Conditional Use Permit and Design Permit proposes to 
create twenty three (23) residential senior units, utilizing the Planned Development District 
provisions of Chapter 17.39 of the Municipal Code for exceptions to various development 
standards as noted in the staff report to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, an Initial Study as prepared and circulated per CEQA requirements, and a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared based on the determination that the project 
will not have a significant effect on the environment; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered, at a duly noticed public hearing, the 
proposed Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit, and Planned Development District Rezoning 
for the project; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its June 6, 2013 meeting recommended denial 
of the project on a 3-2 vote; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is the final decision-making body on this application and 
can approve, deny, or direct continuance for redesign; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the documentary record for the project, 
including the Planning Commission staff report and draft minutes of the Planning Commission 
meeting, oral and written communications received at the June 27, 2013 public hearing of the 
City Council prior to taking action . 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Capitola , makes the following findings regarding the proposed application: 

1. FINDING: The parcel is suitable for, and of sufficient size to be planned and 
developed in a manner consistent with the purposes and objectives of Municipal Code Section 
17.39 PD Planned Development District. Being that the subject parcel is less than four acres of 
contiguous land, the City Council finds that the parcel is suitable as a PD district by virtue of its 



-325-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

unique land use, and because the project would provide a desirable living environment for 
sen iors. 

The proposed land use would be unique in the City of Capitola because there is a vital need for 
additional senior citizen housing and the project location and amenities would provide a distinct 
housing alternative exclusively for seniors. The only housing in the City currently designated for 
senior citizen occupancy are the Bay Avenue Apartments. the Loma Vista Mobile Home Park, 
and the Shorelife Community Church Neighborhood Manner. The proposed project would be 
the only housing development in the City which offers senior citizens a central location within 
easy walking distance to a regional shopping center and public transportation . The facility 
would also be the only housing development in Capitola to offer an assortment of on-site 
amenities and recreational opportunities specifically catered to an active senior lifestyle. 

The California Legislature has expressly found (Civil Code section 51.3) that there are senior 
citizens who need special living environments and services and there is an inadequate supply 
of this type of housing in the state. The California Department of Housing and Community 
Development has also published data which indicates that the population of senior citizens is 
expected to rise dramatically with the impending retirement of baby boomers, further increasing 
the need for a variety of senior housing products. The proposed project would provide a unique 
housing type for seniors that is not currently available in Capitola and which will help fulfill 
senior housing deficiencies identified by the State. 

The site is bounded by properties zoned CC (Community Commercial) and CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) . As a result , to provide a suitable transition between these various land uses 
while accommodating the existing density allowed by the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance, it 
is concluded that the use of the Planned Development mechanism is appropriate for the site. 

2. FINDING: The proposed project design and improvements, as conditioned by the 
attached Conditions of Approval , are substantially in conformance with the City of Capitola 's 
General Plan and Zoning Ordinance and other Municipal Code requirements, and standards as 
modified through the Planned Development provisions of the Zoning Ordinance for exceptions 
from certain zoning development standards. 

(a) The proposed housing project, including the design and improvements, is consistent 
with the City's General Plan goals to create a variety of housing types and styles 
throughout the City, in that it results in the creation of senior housing in a central 
location adjacent to a mix of commercial uses that is convenient for seniors, 
including a movie theatre, several restaurants, drug stores, and grocery stores, as 
well as the Capitola Mall. The project is also consistent with the City's Housing 
Element which identifies the property as an opportunity site for increased density. 

(b) Deviation from the CN district standards which govern the current zoning of the site 
has been minimized as required by Section 17.39.020(C) of the Planned 
Development District Standards and Requirements. Such deviations to setbacks and 
height will not have undesirable effects which outweigh the benefits of twenty three 
(23) senior housing units in a central location convenient for seniors to access 
community commercial uses and services. 

Deviations to setback. height, and parking standards are warranted because 
measures have been incorporated into the project to minimize any undesirable 
effects, including building articulation to reduce the appearance of height, bulk and 
scale and an enhanced landscaping plan to soften visual impacts from public rights-



-326-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

3. 

of-way and neighboring properties. Furthermore, the proposed height and setback 
deviations would enable the site to be developed in a manner consistent with 
surrounding development, including the immediately adjacent self-storage facility 
and large retail outlets across the street in King's Shopping Plaza. 

Parking deviations would not create an undesirable effect because the parking 
demand for senior citizen housing is less than standard, non-age restricted multi
family housing. According to the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), a 
nationally recognized authority and developer of transportation and parking 
standards, senior citizen housing requires 1.4 parking spaces per residential unit. 
The ITE parking standard accounts for the demand created by senior housing 
complexes, including residents. employees, and guests. The proposed project 
exceeds this standard by providing 1.5 spaces per unit. 

As previously stated, the project would also provide needed housing for senior 
citizens. The City of Capitola currently has limited housing opportunities which are 
designated for retirement aged people and the project would provide a unique 
product which allows seniors to walk to a regional shopping center and public 
transportation. The project would also provide on-site amenities and recreational 
opportunities which are currently not available to active seniors in Capitola. 

Deviations to development standards of the underlying zone are necessary to allow 
the proposed project. The project requires sufficient building area to provide 
reasonably sized accommodations, on-site parking, landscaping, recreational 
amenities, and ADA accessible features which could not be developed with strict 
conformance to the development standards of the underlying zone. 

(c) The project site is not within a specific plan area nor within the Coastal Zone. 

FINDING: That the site is physically suitable for the type and density of 
development proposed . 

(a) The developable area of the site is flat, is located outside the floodplain, in close 
proximity to existing residential and commercial development where infrastructure 
already exists to serve the twenty three additional residential units, and capacity is 
available in public water and sanitary sewer facilities to serve the site. 

(b) The proposed development of the site with attached senior housing will be 
consistent with the General Plan goals, including the City's Housing Element which 
identifies the property as an opportunity site for increased density. 

(c) The .72 acre site is large enough to ensure adequate open space and parking for 
each of the units proposed. Parking provided by the project would exceed the 
parking requirements established for senior housing as established by the Institute 
of Transportation Engineers. 

4. FINDING: The establishment, maintenance and operation of the residential senior 
housing, as conditioned, will not be detrimental to health, safety, peace, morals, comfort and 
general welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the proposed 
development, or to its future residents, or to the general welfare of the City. The project 
application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 
Ordinance and General Plan, and will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood . 



-327-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

(a) Community Development Department staff, the Architectural and Site Review 
Committee, and the City Council have reviewed the project and determined that the 
project, subject to the attached conditions and with the Planned Development 
Zoning designation in place, is generally consistent with the development standards 
of the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district and a Rezoning to a Planned 
Development would encourage development of a desirable living environment. 
Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance and the General Plan. 

{b) This project has been or will be, reviewed by all responsible City, County, and 
Regional agencies, and conditions of approval have been applied as deemed 
necessary by the Planning , Public Works, and Building Department staff to ensure 
the continuing public health, safety and orderly development of the surrounding 
area. 

(c) Proposed connections to existing infrastructure have been reviewed and a 
determination has been made that the site can and will be served by nearby 
municipal services and utilities. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council approves the proposed Conditional 
Use Permit and Design Permit subject to, and contingent upon, the rezoning of the site to 
"Planned Development" as per the ordinance rezoning the property and further subject to the 
conditions of approval attached as Exhibit "A". 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 2th day of June, 
2013, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Stephanie Harlan, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 



-328-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Exhibit "A" 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1575 381

h Avenue 
Application #13-061 

1. The project approval is for a Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and 
Design Permit to demolish a commercial salvage yard (Capitola Freight and Salvage) and 
construct a three-story, 23-unit residential senior housing project in the CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) Zoning District. 

2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the approved design must 
be approved by the Planning Commission. Similarly, any significant change to the use 
itself, or the site, must be approved by the Planning Commission. 

3. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

4. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. - 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 
a.m. - 4:00 p.m ., per city ordinance. 

5. Air-conditioning equipment and other roof top equipment shall be screened from view and 
fall within the allowable city permitted decibel levels. 

6. Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to assure compliance with the City 
of Capitola Affordable (lnclusionary) Housing Ordinance. Any appropriate fees shall be paid 
prior to building permit issuance. 

7. The applicant shall submit a drainage plan, with the building permit plans, subject to the 
current Post Construction Requirements for stormwater mitigation practices as specified by 
the Regional Board and the County of Santa Cruz Design Criteria . The drainage plan shall 
be reviewed and approved to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director and the Santa 
Cruz County's Zone 5 Drainage District. 

8. The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will 
include the specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation 
system to be utilized. Irrigation and landscaping shall be installed prior to final building 
occupancy. 

9. An erosion control plan shall be approved and in place prior to grading and construction on 
site. 

10. Prior to Certificates of Occupancy being issued, the project Developer shall be responsible 
for installing all required frontage improvements including curb, gutter, and sidewalk, along 
381

h Avenue for the length of the property frontage . All sidewalks are to meet the standards 
for ADA accessibility. 

11. All lighting shall be shielded and directed on to subject property, away from adjacent 
residential properties. Lighting intensity shall be reviewed and approved by staff prior to 
final occupancy and shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon receipt of a 
complaint. 



-329-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

12. No roof equipment is to be visible to the general public. Any necessary roof screening is to 
match the color of the building as closely as possible. Plans for any necessary screening 
shall be submitted to the Community Development Department prior to, or in conjunction 
with, building permit submittal. 

13. A 6'-8" high concrete block wall (measured from project finished grade) shall be constructed 
along the western property line adjacent to residential properties. 

14. The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit, from the Director of Public Works, prior 
to any work in the public right of way. 

15. The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and 
Public Works Department requirements. A note shall be placed on the final building plans 
indicating this requirement. Underground utility vaults shall be located in a paved surface 
area outside of the landscaped area. 

16. The applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Santa Cruz City Water Department 
regarding landscape irrigation and/or water fixture requirements, as well as any 
infrastructure improvements. Final building plans shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Department prior to issuance of building permits. 

17. The applicant shall implement "Best Management" construction practices to control dust 
and PM10 emissions during grading and site development. The MBUAPCD identifies the 
following construction practices to control dust: 

o Water all active construction areas at least twice daily; 
o Prohibit all grading activities during periods of high winds (over 15 mph); 
o Cover all trucks hauling dirt, sand or loose materials. 
o Cover or water stockpiles of debris, soil and other materials which can become 

windblown; 
o Install wheel washers at the entrance to construction sites for all existing trucks; 
o Sweep streets if visible soil material is carried out from the construction site; 
o Apply chemical soil stabilizers on inactive construction sites; 
o Plant vegetative ground cover in disturbed areas as soon as possible. 

18. The applicant shall submit a construction plan for approval prior to building permit issuance. 
The plan shall include, but not be limited to, identifying construction hours, access to the 
site, contractor parking locations, office trailer locations, material storage, etc. 

19. If archaeological resources or human remains are accidentally discovered during 
construction, work shall be halted within 50 meters ( 150 feet) of the find until it can be 
evaluated by a qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is determined to be 
significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated and implemented. 
Disturbance shall not resume until the significance of the archaeological resources is 
determined and appropriate mitigations to preserve the resource on the site are established. 
If human remains are encountered during construction or any other phase of development, 
work in the area of discovery must be halted, the Santa Cruz County coroner notified, and 
the provisions of Public Resources Code 5097.98-99, Health and Safety Code 7050.5 
carried out. If the remains are determined to be Native American, the Native American 
Heritage Commission (NAHC) shall be notified within 24 hours as required by Public 
Resources Code 5097. 



-330-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

20. The applicant shall meet or exceed the California Green Building Code and Capitola Green 
Building Program. 

21. Mitigation Measure 1: The applicant shall prepare an acoustical study with the building 
permit submittal. The building plans shall incorporate any recommended building or window 
design measures, if needed to achieve required indoor noise levels. 

22. The applicant shall submit the manufacturer specifications which demonstrate that the 
HVAC will comply with the 60 dba Ldn standard. 

23. The applicant shall construct a mid-block pedestrian crossing on 381
h Avenue from the 

project to King's Shopping Center. The crossing shall be designed based on 
recommendations of the traffic engineer and approved by the Public Works Director. 

24. The applicant shall submit a detailed arborist report prior to any grading, with 
recommendations for protection of the redwood trees and the root systems. The 
recommendations shall be incorporated into the construction documents. An arborist shall 
be on-site during excavation of the site to ensure the redwood trees are not damaged. 

25. The applicant shall minimize the number of construction vehicles on-site at any one time. 

26. The applicant shall include, in the resident lease agreement, a disclosure regarding the 
potential for noise from the adjacent commercial district. 



-331-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE 
CAPITOLA, CA 95010 
PHONE: (831) 475-7300 FAX: (831) 479-8879 

INITIAL STUDY 

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Project Title: Villa Capitola Unassisted Senior Housing 

Application No.: #12-028 

Project Location: 1575 38
1
h Avenue 

Name of Property Owner: Steve Thomas and Maureen Romac 

Name of Applicant: Nancy Huyck 

Assessor's Parcel 
034-181-17 

Number(s): 

Acreage of Property: 31 ,365 square feet (0.722: acres) 

General Plan Designation: C-LC (Shopping - Local) 

Zoning District: CN (Neighborhood Commercial) 

Lead Agency: City of Capitola 

Prepared By: Stephanie Strelow, Strelow Consulting 

Date Prepared: July 30, 2012 

Contact Person: Ryan Bane, Senior Planner 

Phone Number: (831) 475-7300 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 1 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-332-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

II. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND ENVIRONMENT AL SETTING 

A. Environmental Setting and Surrounding Land Uses 

This project site is located within the western portion of the City of Capitola, south of Capitola 
Road on the west side of 33th Avenue. The site is located at 1575 381h Avenue, just south of the 
Capitola Mall (see Figure 1 ). The site is bordered by 33th Avenue and the Kings Plaza Shopping 
Center on the east, commercial uses on the north and south, and residential uses on the west. 
The properties to the west are located within the unincorporated area of Santa Cruz County. 

The project site is flat and currently is developed with a commercial salvage yard (Capitola 
Freight and Salvage) that consists of areas of stockpiled building elements (windows, doors, 
cabinets) and appliances, several older structures and an unpaved parking area. Approximately 
seven trees are located on the property, primarily at the edges. 

The surrounding neighborhood is primarily characterized as commercial, except for residential 
uses that are located to the west of the site. A storage facility with parking is located 
immediately south of the project site; a row of redwood trees on this adjacent property borders 
the property line. Two older single-family homes are located adjacent to the project site on the 
north, which appear to be used for commercial purposes and are located within a commercial 
zone. A parking lot serving commercial uses along Capitola Road also borders the project site 
on the north. Older single-family homes are located to the west of the project site. An aerial 
photo with the existing site conditions is presented on Figure 2. 

B. Project Description 

Background. A preliminary proposal for the project site consisted of a four-story, 67-unit senior 
housing planned developed that was reviewed by Capitola's Architectural and Site Review 
Comrnittee, Planning Commission and City Council in the fall of 2011. Based on comments and 
direction given at that time, the applicant redesigned the project and submitted a formal Planned 
Development application. The current proposal has been reduced in size to a three-story, 23-unit 
project as further described below. 

Project 0 es c r i pt ion . The project consists of demolition of the existing salvage yard and its 
accessory buildings and construction of a 23-unit rental (market rate), "unassisted" senior housing 
development. The project applications to be considered · by the City include: Planned 
Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for the demolition and 
construction . 

The proposed project will be contained within an . approximate 70,000 square foot, three-story 
building. The proposed housing units will be located on the second and third floors . The planned 
units include 11 studio units, nine one-bedroom units, two one-bedroom with study units, and one 
two-bedroom with study unit. 

The ground level includes an enclosed J6-35-space enclosed parking garage. An approximate 
520 square foot "private restaurant" also is located on the ground floor adjacent to the parking 
area, which would serve meals in a dining room, coffee bar or poolside cabana. The restaurant 
area (with an approximate 520 square foot kitchen) is intended for residents only, where meals 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 2 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-333-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

will be served three times a day. A lobby area is located on the second, and a 480-square foot 
pool with spa and cabana is proposed on the third floor. The site plan with the first two floors is 
shown on Figure 3. 

Access will provided via 381
h Avenue with a separate entrance and exit. Information provided by 

the applicant indicates that shuttle service will be provided for supplemental transportation for 
residents. 

C. Agencies whose approval is required (and permits needed) 

None are known other than the City of Capitola. 

FIGURE 1: Vicinity Location 

~,,. ~~----~~------- .. ~----..- 1 )iioi--~-:-===--~---~~~~ 
,_./ - Municipal Yard I 

\ ~-~ . •~, .... ~.,- -~ I 
,,.,,"' I. ... . . I ---·, 

I ---1 I · I 
I 1.,..1" .--_ l ___ J Santa Cruz Library ,. .• ;,•~ j 
1
1 

f fapitol'! ~'""".· c;h_ .,,•' • / '"' ,. I 
I .-« New Brighton ' ... r " / I _rJ;o.,-';_ S~t • - .;:.? Middle School I -

/ \ l .\ J. 
f ll <~ti# 1 ~ ! . - ~~ CityH! -~ --~ 

fpit>J~CT SITS: C ·. 1 Fr . IM • ,r:PCc1ficCovePark1ngLot · 
I_ . , . ""\Ii, !!:".',, ap1to a . ":7;:c;tati::e:';'•/•( 4< ' 

I., ("'"' - .,'1 ' 
-- l-1 ~ .. ! "b" 

: "..,""' . . ! !. ........ ~ \ 
I { _ _..--...! \ 
I . D'.M "'~ • ,...-!.- .; 
-1 / / '=apitola Munic(p~ Wharf 

i Community Cente: bpal,l'~~ementary Scho9Jefroposed) L--., / 
,. . ----------\ ' .,,;,; 
~ ' ' / 1~----1' r-- Ll-V I .._ __ _ 

--~~- ) 
I J ,.. .... 
L.J r 

( 

~ c~. =sw=~, _,)""z.=,~·:v ~t 
........ 

/ 

I 

S 0 UR CE: Imagine Capitola - City of Capitola General Plan Update 

1575 381fl Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 3 

J\!I ON TE R E Y ·· B AY · 

• Capitola Public Facilities 

i:.'J Gty Urrit 

C. J Sphere of Influence 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-334-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

FIGURE 2: Existing Site Conditions 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 4 

Existing Site Conditions 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-335-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

FIGURE 3: Site Plan - First & Second Floor Plans 

(36 total parking stalls) ~ First Floor Garage Plan 

@ Second Floor Plan 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 5 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-336-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Ill. ENVIRONMENT AL CHECKLIST 

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected by the Project: The environmental factors 
checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact 
that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following 
pages. 

../ Aesthetics Agriculture & Forest 
Resources 

../ Air Quality 

../ Biological Resources Cultural Resources ../ Geology I Soils 

../ Greenhouse Gas ../ Hazards & Hazardous ../ Hydrology I Water 
Emissions Materials Quality 

Land Use I Planning Mineral Resources ../ Noise 

../ Population I Housing ../ Public Services Recreation 

../ Transportation I Traffic ../ Utilities I Service Systems ../ Mandatory Findings of 
Significance 

A. Instructions to Environmental Checklist 

1. A brief explanation is required (see VI. "Explanation of Environmental Checklist Responses") for all 
answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the information sources a 
lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question (see V. Source List, attached). A "No 
Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact 
simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture 
zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors as 
well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based 
on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2. All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, 
cumulative as well as project-level , indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational 
impacts. 

3. Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the 
checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant 
with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is 
substantial evidence that any effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially 
Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required . 

4. "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated: applies where 
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a 
"Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly 
explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level. 

5. Earlier Analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, 
one or more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration . 
Section 15063(c)(3)(D). In this case a discussion should identify the following on attached sheets: 

a) Earlier analysis used. Identify earlier analyses and state where they are available for review. 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 6 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-337-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

b) Impacts adequately addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within 
the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal 
standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on 
the earlier analysis . 

c) Mitigation measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation 
Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the 
earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project. 

6. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources 
for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared 
or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the 
statement is substantiated . 

7. Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or 
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8. The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a) The significance criteria or threshold , if any, used to evaluation each question; and 

b) The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 

8. Use of Earlier Analyses 

The project site is located within the service area of the City of Santa Cruz Water 
Department. In December 2011, the Santa Cruz City Council adopted the 2010 Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP), which evaluates water supply and demand within the 
City's service area over the next 20 years. Additionally, the City of Santa Cruz updated its 
General Plan, which was adopted by the City Council in June 2012 and certified an EIR 
for the General Plan 2030 at the same time. The EIR provides a comprehensive analysis 
of impacts of water demand within the City's service area. Both the UWMP and General 
Plan EIR assess future water demand within the City's water service area that is located 
outside Santa Cruz city limits. 

The preparation of this Initial Study has drawn from data and analyses contained in both 
the City of Santa Cruz adopted 2010 UWMP and certified General Plan 2030 EIR. These 
documents are hereby "incorporated by reference" pursuant to the State CEQA 
Guidelines section 15150. Where an EIR or Negative Declaration uses incorporation by 
reference, the incorporated part of the referenced document shall be briefly summarized 
where possible or briefly described if the data or information cannot be summarized. The 
EIR analyses and conclusions and relevant findings of the 2010 UWMP are summarized 
in subsections 17(b,d) and 18(b) of this Initial Study. The documents are on file and may 
be reviewed at the City of Capitola during business hours (Monday through Friday, 8 AM 
to 12 PM and 1-5 PM), located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA. The documents are 
also available on the City of Santa Cruz website. 1 

1 City of Santa Cruz Planning Department: http://www.cityofsantacruz.com / index.aspx?page=348 and City of 
Santa Cruz Water Department: http://www.cityofsantacruz.com / Modules / ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=24687. 

1575 381h Avenue 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 7 
Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-338-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Potentially 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially Significant Less Than 
No 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant Unless Significant 

Impact 
Issues Mitigation Impact 

Incorporated 

1. AESTHETICS. Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? ./ 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including ./ 
but not limited to trees , rock outcroppings, and 
historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or ./ 
quality of the site and its surroundings? 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare ./ 
which would adversely affect day or nighttime views 
in the area? 

2. AGRICULTURE RESOURCES. In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources 
are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural 
Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Department 
of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and 
farmland. Would the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as 
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the ./ 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 
use? (V.4) 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a ./ 
Williamson Act contract? 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, ./ 
forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code 
section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public 
Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned 
Timberland Production (as defined by Government 
Code section 51104(g))? 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of ./ 
forest land to non-forest use? 

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment ./ 
which, due to their location or nature, could result in 
conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

1575 381h Avenue Initial Study 
July 30, 20 l 2 Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 8 



-339-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Potentially 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially Significant Less Than 
No 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant Unless Significant 

Impact 
Issues Mitigation Impact 

Incorporated 

3. AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air 
quality management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the 
following determinations. Would the project: 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the 
applicable air quality plan? 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute to an 
existing or projected air quality violation? 

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of 
any criteria pollutant for which the project region is 
non-attainment under an applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard (including releasing 
emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for 
ozone precursors)? 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 
concentrations? 

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial 
number of people? 

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or 
through habitat modifications, on any species 
identified as a cand idate, sensitive, or special -status 
species in local or regional plans, policies , or 
regulations , or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian 
habitat or other sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional plans, policies, 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally 
protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, 
marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal , filling , hydrological interruption, or other 
means? 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any 
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or 
with established native resident or migratory wildlife 
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife 
nursery sites? 

157 5 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 9 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

,/ 

,/ 

Initial Stu d y 
July 30, 2012 



-340-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Potentially 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially Significant Less Than 
No 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant Unless Significant 

Impact 
Issues Mitigation Impact 

Incorporated 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances ./ 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat ./ 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local , regional , 
or state habitat conservation plan? 

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as defined in 
CEQA Guidelines section 15064.5? ./ 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource pursuant 
to section 15064.5? ./ 

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological 
resource or site or unique geologic feature? ./ 

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred 
outside of formal cemeteries? ./ 

6. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project expose people or structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving: 

a) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated 
on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 
Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the 
area or based on other substantial evidence of a 
known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and 
Geology Special Publication 42? 

b) Strong seismic ground shaking? ./ 

c) Seismic-related ground failure , including 
liquefaction? 

d) Landslides? 

e) Would the project result in substantial soil erosion or 
the loss of topsoil? ./ 

f) Would the project be located on a geologic unit or 
soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable 
as a result of the project, and potentially result in on-
or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction or collapse? 

1575 3 8th Avenue 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 10 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

Ini t ial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-341-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant 

Issues 

g) Would the project be located on expansive soil , as 
defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building 
Code (1994), creating substantial risks to life or 
property? 

h) Would the project have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative 
waste water disposal systems where sewers are not 
available for the disposal of waste water. 

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project: 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly 
or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on 
the environment? 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation 
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions 
of greenhouse gases? 

8. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset 
and accident conditions involving the release of 
hazardous materials into the environment? 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or 
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste 
within ;,{ mile of an existing or proposed school? 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of 
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, 
would it create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment? 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan 
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 
two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 
would the project result in a safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the project area? 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, 
would the project result in a safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the project area? 

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with 
an adopted emergency response plan or emergency 
evacuation plan? 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 11 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
No 

Significant 
Impact 

Impact 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-342-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant 

Issues 

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of 
loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, including 
where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or 
where residences are intermixed with wildlands? 

9. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project: 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements? 

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 
such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer 
volume or a lowering of the local ground water table 
level (for example, the production rate of pre-existing 
nearby wells would drop to a level which would not 
support existing land uses or planned uses for which 
permits have been granted)? 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of 
the site or area, including through the alteration of 
the course of a stream or river, in a manner which 
would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or 
off-site . 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of 
the site or area, including through the alteration of 
the course of a stream or river, or substantially 
increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a 
manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site . 

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed the capacity of existing or planned storm 
water drainage systems or provide substantial 
additional sources of polluted runoff? 

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood-hazard area 
as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or 
Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard 
delineation map? (V.1 a) 

h) Place within a 100-year flood-hazard area structures 
which would impede or redirect flood flows? (V.1 a) 

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of 
loss, injury or death involving flooding, including 
flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 
{V.1) 

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? {V. la) 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 12 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than No Significant Impact 
Impact 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-343-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 

10. LAND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established community? 

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or 
regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the 
project (including, but not limited to the general plan, 
specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning 
ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

c) Conflict with any applicable Habitat Conservation 
Plan or Natural Community Conservation Plan? 

11. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral 
resource that would be of value to the region and the 
residents of the state? (V.1 a) 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important 
mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local 
general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan? 
(V.1 a) 

12. NOISE. Would the project result in: 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels 
in excess of standards established in the local 
general plan or noise ordinance or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive 
ground borne vibration or ground borne noise 
levels? 

c) Substantial permanent increase in ambient noise 
levels in the project vicinity above levels existing 
without the project? 

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above 
levels existing without the project? 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan 
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 
two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 
would the project expose people residing or working 
in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 13 

Potentially 
Potentially Significant 
Significant Unless 

Issues Mitigation 
Incorporated 

../ 

Less Than 
No 

Significant 
Impact 

Impact 

../ 

../ 

../ 

../ 

../ 

../ 

../ 

../ 

../ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-344-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Potentially 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially Significant Less Than 
No 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant Unless Significant 

Impact 
Issues Mitigation Impact 

Incorporated 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, 
would the project expose people residing or working 
in the project area to excessive noise levels? ,/ 

13. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, 
either directly (for example, by proposing new 
homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of roads or other infrastructure)? ,/ 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, 
necessitating the construction of replacement ,/ 
housing elsewhere? 

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, 
necessitating the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? ,/ 

14. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts 
associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities or need 
for new or physical altered governmental facilities, the construction pf which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response 
times, or other performance objectives for any of the public services: 

a) Fire protection? ,/ 

b) Police protection? ,/ 

c) Schools? ,/ 

d) Parks? 
,/ 

e) Other public facilities? ,/ 

15. RECREATION. Would the project: 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and 
regional parks or other recreational facilities such ,/ 
that substantial physical deterioration of the facility 
would occur or be accelerated? 

b} Include recreational facilities or require the 
construction or expansion of recreational facilities ,/ 
which might have an adverse physical effect on the 
environment? 

1575 38'h Avenue Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 14 



-345-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant 

Issues 

16. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project: 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy 
establishing measures of effectiveness for the 
performance of the circulation system, taking into 
account all modes of transportation including mass 
transit and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system , including but 
not limited to intersections, streets, highways and 
freeways , pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass 
transit? 

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management 
program, including, but not limited to level of service 
standard and travel demand measures, or other 
standards established by the county congestion 
management agency for designated roads or 
highways? 

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including 
either an increase in traffic levels or a change in 
location, that results in substantial safety risks? 

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design 
feature (for example, sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (for example, 
farm equipment)? 

e) Result in inadequate emergency access? 

f) Conflict with adopted policies , plans, or programs 
supporting alternative transportation (for example, 
bus turnouts, bicycle racks .) 

17. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project: 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the 
applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board? 

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or 
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, the construction of which could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm 
water drainage facilities or expansion of existing 
facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental effects? 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the 
project from existing entitlements and resources, or 
are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

1575 38th Avenue 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 15 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
No Significant 

Impact 
Impact 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

Ini t ial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-346-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS Potentially 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 
Significant 

Issues 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the 
project's projected demand in addition to the 
provider's existing commitments? 

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted 
capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste 
disposal needs? 

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 

18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE. Does the project: 

a) Have the potential to degrade the quality of the 
environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a 
fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-sustaining levels, 
threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, 
reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or 
endangered plant or animal or eliminate important 
examples of the major periods of California history 
or prehistory? 

b) Have impacts that are individually limited, but 
cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively 
considerable" means that the incremental effects of 
a project are considerable when viewed in 
connection with the effects of the past projects, the 
effects of other current projects, and the effects of 
probable future projects.) 

c) Have environmental effects which will cause 
substantial adverse effects on human beings, either 
directly or indirectly? 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 16 

Potentially 
Significant 

Unless 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
No 

Significant 
Impact 

Impact 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

,/ 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-347-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

IV. DETERMINATION: 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the 
environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the ./ 
project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment and 
an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a potentially significant or a potentially 
significant unless mitigated impact on the environment, but at least one effect (1) has 
been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal 
standards, and (2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier 
analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed 
adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable 
standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are 
imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

Ryan Bane, Senior Planner Date 

157 5 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 17 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-348-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

V. SOURCE LIST 

1. City of Capitola. 

a) Adopted September 28, 1989. General Plan City of Capitola. Prepared by 
Freitas + Freitas. 

b) Adopted February 11, 2010. "City of Capitola Housing Element of the 
General Plan 2007-2014." 

2. "Imagine Capitola" - City of Capitola General Plan Update. 

a) "General Plan Update Existing Conditions White Paper #1. March 2011 . 
Prepared by Design, Community & Environment for the City of Capitola. 

b) "White Paper #3 - Transportation & Parking". April 2011 . Prepared by RBF 
Consulting and Kimley-Horn and Associates. 

c) "White Paper #4 - Environmental Resources & Hazards". April 2011. 
Prepared by RBF Consulting . 

d) "White Paper #5 - Environmental Resources & Hazards". April 2011 . 
Prepared by RBF Consulting . 

3. City of Santa Cruz. 

a) June 26, 2012. Adopted . General Plan 2030. 

b) April 2012. "City of Santa Cruz General Plan 2030 Final EIR. " 

c) September 2011. "City of Santa Cruz General Plan 2030 Draft EIR." 
d) December 2011 . Adopted . "City of Santa Cruz Urban Water Management 

Plan 2010." 

4. California Department of Conservation. 2007. "Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program." · 

5. Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District. 

a) August 2008. 2008 Air Quality Management Plan for the Monterey Bay 
Region . 

b) February 2008. "CEQA Air Quality Guidelines." 

c) May 18, 2011. Staff Report regarding " Presentation on Thresholds of 
Significance for Greenhouse Gases and Provide Suggestions to Staff for the 
Recommendation to be Presented at the June 2011 Board Meeting ." 

d) July 12, 2011. Staff Agenda Item for Board Meeting on June 15, 2011 
regarding "Consider Adoption of a Resolution Approving Proposed Revisions 
to the District Consistency Procedure. " 

6. Donald Ballanti , Certified Consulting Meteorologist. June 22, 2012. "Greenhouse 
Gas Analysis for the Villa Capitola Project, Capitola, California ." 

7. Bowman & Williams. June 6, 2012. "Preliminary Storm Water Management Report 
for Senior Housing , APN: 034-181-17, 1575 381

h Avenue, Santa Cruz, California." 

157 5 38•h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Pa ge 18 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-349-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

8. RBF Consulting . June 8, 2012. "Forecast Trip Generation, On-site Parking Analysis 
and Pedestrian Warrant Analysis for the Proposed Villa Capitola Senior Housing 
Project." 

9. Global Climate Change References: 

a) California Air Resources Board. September 22, 201 O (Last Updated). 
"Greenhouse Gas Inventory Data - 2000 to 2008." Online at: 
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/data.htm 

MAY 12, 2010. "California Greenhouse Gas Inventory for 2000-2008 
- By - by Category as Defined in the Scoping Plan" 
May 28, 2010. "Trends in California Greenhouse Gas Emissions for 
2000 to 2008 - by Category as Defined in the Scoping Plan." 

b) California Air Resources Board. December 2008. Climate Change Proposed 
Scoping Plan -A Framework for Change." December 2008. Online at: 
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/document/adopted scoping plan.pdf 

c) California Climate Action Team. December 2010. "Climate Action Team 
Report to governor Schwarzenegger and the California Legislature." 
California Environmental Protection Agency. 

d) California Governor's Office of Planning and Research. June 19, 2008. 
"CEQA and Climate Change: Addressing Climate Change Through California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Review. " 

e) California Natural Resources Agency. "2009 California Climate Adaptation 
Strategy." A Report to the Governor of the State of California in Response to 
Executive Order S-13-2008. 

f) Bay Area Air Quality Management District. June 2010. "California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines." Online at: 
http://www.baaqmd.gov/Divisions/Planning-and-Research/CEQA
GUIDELINES/Updated-CEQA-Guidelines.aspx 

VI. EXPLANATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST RESPONSES 

1 . Aesthetics. 

(a) Scenic Views. The proposed project is located within a developed commercial 
area within the City of Capitola. The City's General Plan does not identify any "vista 
points" in the project vicinity. The project site is not visible from a designated vista 
point nor is it within an identified or observed scenic view. There are no scenic views 
across or from the project site. The project would not obstruct or remove scenic 
coastal views as none exist in the area. 

(bl Scenic Resources. The site contains seven trees, including two large pine trees, 
one redwood and four smaller ornamental trees. The two large pines are taller than 
other onsite ·trees and are visible in the immediate vicinity of the project site. 
Generally, trees are planted along 381

h Avenue. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 19 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-350-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Impact Analysis. All onsite trees will be removed for project development. None of 
the trees are visually prominent or distinctive, and they do not represent a 
significant visual element of the surrounding area, which is characterized by 
existing commercial development with landscaping. The pine tree in the 
southeast corner of the site is the most visible and is prominent in the immediate 
vicinity of the project site, but it does not possess unique or unusual aesthetic 
features for this type of tree. Trees are planted along 381

h Avenue, including 
redwood trees further south of the site, and as a result, the street appears lined 
with trees that partially screen some existing buildings. While any tree may be 
considered to possess aesthetic attributes, the trees on the project site do not 
possess qualities under which they would be considered scenic, such as being 
visually prominent from a wide area, visually distinctive and/or being an 
exceptional specimen of a particular species. Thus, the onsite trees are not 
considered a scenic resource, and the project would not have an adverse effect 
on scenic resources. Tree removal in relation to City tree removal regulations is 
reviewed below under subsection 4( e ). 

(cl Visual Effects upon Surrounding Area. The visual quality of the project vicinity is 
characterized primarily by a mix of developed commercial uses. Commercial uses 
are prominent along the segment of 381

h Avenue in which the project site is located, 
including the Kings Plaza Shopping Center to the east and the Capitola Mall to the 
north. Commercial development dominates the visual character in the area, 
although some older homes of mixed styles and age are located further south of the 
project site along 381

h Avenue. Trees are planted along 381
h Avenue. 

1575 38th Avenue 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project would result in construction of a new three
story building within a predominantly commercial area. The building will occupy 
nearly the entire site . It will of similar scale and mass as the storage facility to the 
south and other larger commercial buildings in the area, including those at the 
Kings Plaza Shopping Center to the east and at the Capitola Mall to the north. 
The proposed building would be one taller than existing buildings, and would be 
more massive than residential properties to the west. 

Building elevations provided as part of the site plan are shown on Figure 4. The 
overall building mass is broken up by architectural recesses and windows along 
each side. Additionally, the upper floors are slightly set back from the ground 
floor on the front and partially on the rear, which also reduces the overall building 
mass. 

The building height of ~ 38 feet exceeds the height limit of 27 feet for the CN 
zone in which the site is located. However, the proposal includes a rezoning to 
Planned Development in which building heights can vary. The project site is 
located at the edge of the Community Commercial district in which heights of 40 
feet are permitted. Given this proximity, the proposed building height would not 
be substantially different than permitted heights in the adjacent district or some 
structures in the area and along 41 st Avenue. The building height likely would be 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 20 
Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-351-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

most noticeable from residential properties to the west, although landscaping 
would be provided along this boundary. 

Overall, the project building mass and scale is similar to other commercial 
buildings in the vicinity, and the project would not substantially degrade the visual 
character of the surrounding area. The building height would be greater than 
other nearby buildings, but is not likely to appear out of scale with vicinity 
commercial buildings. With the planned architectural and building design 
features, materials, and colors, the proposed building would not substantially 
degrade the existing visual character of the surrounding area. Removal of the 
onsite trees (as discussed above in subsection 1 b) would not be highly 
noticeable given the commercial character of the area and other tree cover that 
is present along 381

h Avenue. Therefore, the project would have a less-than
significant impact on the visual character of the surrounding area. Further review 
of design details will be made by the City Planning Commission as part of the 
Architectural and Site approval that is required for permitted or conditional uses 
in a CN district as provided in Chapter 17.63 of the City's Municipal Code. 

(dl Light and Glare. The project will not result in introduction of a major new source 
of light and glare, although there will be exterior building lighting typically associated 
with residential and planned development buildings. This is not expected to create 
significant visual impacts on the surrounding neighborhood. Further review of design 
details will be made as part of the Architectural and Site review process. Additionally, 
standard conditions of approval require that all lighting shall be shielded and directed 
on to the property, away from adjacent residential properties. Lighting intensity shall 
be reviewed and approved by staff prior to final occupancy and shall be reviewed by 
the Planning Commission upon receipt of a complaint. 

2. Agricultural and Forest Resources. The project site is located in a developed 
urban area. The project site is not in agricultural production or located adjacent to or 
near agricultural uses. The project site, as all of Capitola, is designated "Urban and 
Built-Up" by the California Department of Conservation Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program (SOURCE V.4) . Similarly, the project site is located within a 
developed commercial area and is not designated for timber resource production. 
The proposed project would have no effects on agricultural or forest resources. 

3. Air Quality. 

(a) Consistency with Air Quality Management Plan. The proposed project will result in 
construction of 23 senior residential units. On June 15, 2011 the Monterey Bay 
Unified Air Pollution Control District (MBUAPCD) Board approved a new procedure 
for determining consistency with the Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP), effective 
September 1, 2011. In the past, the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 
(AMBAG) determined whether population increases would remain within AMBAG's 
population forecasts used in the AQMP. The new procedure uses AMBAG's adopted 
housing unit forecast instead of population (SOURCE V.5d) . 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 21 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-352-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

FIGURE 4: Building Elevations 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 22 

Front Elevation - East 

Rear Elevation - West 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-353-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

The Air District's adopted procedure was used to determine project consistency with 
the AQMP. The city of Capitola had 5,537 existing dwelling units as of January 1, 
2012. 2 According to Capitola City staff, there are four residential units that are under 
construction or have been approved. With these four units and the project (23 units), 
there would be a total of 5,564 residential units within the City which is below the 
AMBAG forecast of 5,601 units projected in 2015. Therefore, the proposed project is 
consistent with the AQMP, and would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
the AQMP. 

(bl Project Emissions. To protect public health, both the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) and the California Air Resources Board (CARB) have established 
ambient air quality standards (AAQS) that are the maximum levels of ambient 
(background) air pollutants considered safe, with an adequate margin of safety to 
protect public health and welfare. The national standards address six criteria 
pollutants, including ozone, carbon monoxide, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, fine 
particulate matter (both PM10 and PM2.5, which refer to particles less than 10 microns 
and 2.5 microns, respectively), and lead. The state standards, which are generally 
more stringent than the federal standards, apply to the same pollutants as the 
federal standards do, but also include sulfate, hydrogen sulfide, and vinyl chloride. 

The North Central Coast Air Basin (NCCAB), in which the project site is located, is 
under the jurisdiction of the Monterey Bay Air Pollution Control District (MBUAPCD) 
and includes Santa Cruz, Monterey and San Benito Counties. The NCCAB is 
currently in attainment for the federal PM10 (particulate less than 10 microns in 
diameter), ozone, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, and carbon monoxide standards 
and is unclassified or attainment for the federal PM25 and lead standards. The basin 
is designated non-attainment for the state ozone and PM10 standards, and is in 
attainment for all other state standards, except for carbon monoxide for which it is 
unclassified (SOURCE V.5a ). 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project consists of construction of 23 senior 
housing units. There would be vehicular traffic increases associated with the 
proposed project, but emissions would not exceed MBUAPCD's criteria for 
significance. According to the MBUAPCD's CEQA Guidelines (February 2008), 
the proposed number of new residential units is below the District's screening 
level for potential significant ozone impacts for apartments and condominiums 
(SOURCE V.5b). Furthermore, the project does not include operations that would 
result in stationary emissions. Thus, the project would not violate current air 
quality standards, and would result in a less-than-significant impact related to air 
emissions. 

Demolition, excavation and construction could result in generation of dust and 
PM10 emissions. According to MBUAPCD's "CEQA Air Quality Guidelines" (as 

2 
Per California Department of Finance, "E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the 

Stat.e, 2011 and 201 2" (May 201 2. Online at: http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-
5 /2011 -20/view.php. 

157 5 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 23 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-354-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

updated in June 2008), 8.1 acres could be graded per day with minimal 
earthmoving or 2.2 acres per day with grading and excavation without exceeding 
the MBUAPCD's PM10 threshold of 82 lbs/day. The project site area is 
approximately 0.72 acres, which would be below the 2.2 acre grading threshold . 
Thus, potential construction-related PM 10 emissions would be less-than
significant. 

(cl Cumulative Pollutant Increases. According to the MBUAPCD CEQA Guidelines, 
projects that are consistent with the "Air Quality Management Plan" (AQMP) would 
not result in cumulative impacts as regional emissions have been factored into the 
Plan. The MBUAPCD prepares air quality plans, which address attainment of the 
state and federal emission standards, and which, incorporate growth forecasts 
developed by AMBAG. As indicated in subsection 3(a) above, the proposed project 
is consistent with the AQMP, which takes into account cumulative development 
within the City, and thus, cumulative emissions have been accounted for in the Plan. 

(d) Sensitive Receptors. The project site is located within a developed area of the City 
of Capitola and is surrounded primarily by commercial development, except for 
residential development on the west. As indicated above, the proposed project would 
not result in stationary emissions. Thus, the proposed project will not expose 
sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. 

Diesel particulate matter was identified as a toxic air contaminant (TAC) by the State 
of California in 1998. Following the identification of diesel as a TAC, the California 
Air Resources Board (CARB) developed a comprehensive strategy to control diesel 
PM emissions. The "Risk Reduction Plan to Reduce Particulate Matter Emissions 
from Diesel-Fueled Engines and Vehicles"-a document approved by CARB in 
September 2000-set goals to reduce diesel PM emissions in California by 75% by 
2010 and 85% by 2020. This objective would be achieved by a combination of 
approaches (including emission regulations for new diesel engines and low sulfur 
fuel program). An important part of the Diesel Risk Reduction Plan is a series of 
measures for various categories of in-use on- and off-road diesel engines, which are 
generally based on the following types of controls: 

Retrofitting engines with emission control systems, such as diesel particulate 
filters or oxidation catalysts, 

Replacement of existing engines with new technology diesel engines or 
natural gas engines, and 

Restrictions placed on the operation of existing equipment. 

Once the Diesel Risk Reduction Plan was adopted, the ARB started developing 
emission regulations for a number of categories of in-use diesel vehicles and 
equipment. In July 2007, the ARB adopted regulations for in-use, off-road diesel 
vehicles that will significantly reduce particulate matter emissions by requiring fleet 
owners to accelerate turnover to cleaner engines and install exhaust retrofits. 

1575 381h Avenue 

Impact Analysis. Demolition, excavation, grading and project construction could 
involve the use of diesel trucks and equipment that will emit diesel exhaust, 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 24 
Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-355-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

including diesel particulate matter, which is classified as a toxic air contaminant. 
Adjacent residents and businesses would be exposed to construction-related 
diesel emissions, but activities that would use diesel equipment would be of 
temporary and of short-term duration. Thus, potential exposure to adjacent 
residents is considered a less-than-significant impact. 

There are existing residential units adjacent to the site on the west. Construction
related diesel emissions would be of limited duration (i.e., primarily during 
grading) and would be temporary. CARS has identified diesel exhaust particulate 
matter as a toxic air contaminant, and assessment of toxic air contaminant 
cancer risks is typically based upon a 70-year exposure period. Project 
excavation and construction activities that would utilize diesel-powered 
equipment would expose receptors to possible diesel exhaust for a very limited 
number of days out of a 70-year (365 day per year, 24-hour per day) period. 
Because exposure to diesel exhaust will be well below the 70-year exposure 
period , and given the limited and short-term duration of activities that would use 
diesel equipment, construction-related diesel emissions are not considered 
significant. Furthermore, the State is implementing emission standards for 
different classes of on- and off-road diesel vehicles and equipment that applies 
to off-road diesel fleets and includes measures such as retrofits . Additionally, 
Title 13 of the California Code of Regulations (section 2485(c)(1)) prohibits idling 
of a diesel engine for more than five minutes in any location. Thus, the project 
would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations, and 
potential exposure of sensitive receptors to diesel emissions and associated 
risks is considered a less-than-significant impact. 

(e) Odors. The planned residential use will not create objectionable odors . 

4. Biologica l Resources. 

The project site is located along 381
h Avenue, west of 41 st Avenue, which is a major 

transportation and commercial arterial. The site is developed with a commercial 
salvage materials business, and is located within a developed commercial area. 
There are no known biological resources on the project site or in the vicinity. The site 
is not mapped in the City's General Plan as being located in a riparian corridor or 
monarch butterfly grove (SOURCE v.1 a). 

(e) Tree Removal. There are seven existing trees on the project property, including 
two large pine trees, one redwood and four smaller ornamental trees. The majority 
of the trees are located on the perimeter of the site. The trees on the project site are 
not considered "heritage" trees under City of Capitola regulations (Chapter 12.12 -
Community Tree and Forest Management). However, removal of non-heritage trees 
requires a permit pursuant to section 12.12.160 of the City's Municipal Code with the 
following findings: 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 25 

Init ial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-356-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

1. The tree removal is in the public interest based on one of the following: 
a. Because of the health or condition of the tree, with respect to disease 

infestation, or danger of falling ; 
b. Safety considerations; or 

c. In situations where a tree has caused, or has the potential to cause, 
unreasonable property damage and/or interference with existing utility 
services . 

2. All possible and feasible alternatives to tree removal have been evaluated, 
including, but not limited to undergrounding of utilities, selective root cutting, 
trimming and relocation . 

3. The type, size and schedule for planting replacement trees are specified and shall 
be concurrent with the tree removal or prior to it. 

4. The removal of the tree would not be contrary to the purposes of Chapter 12.12 -
"Community Tree and Forest Management" and Chapter 17.95 - Environmental 
Sensitive Habitats. 

5. Replacement trees in a ratio of two to one as needed to ensure that with 
replacement trees, a canopy coverage of at least fifteen percent will result, and 
location(s) for tree replanting are selected, and/or as a last resort, in-lieu fees have 
been paid as a condition of the permit in accordance with Section 12.12.190. 
Replacement trees and/or in-lieu fees are not required if post-removal tree canopy 
coverage on the site or parcel will be thirty percent or more. 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project will result in removal of seven trees, but 
none are considered heritage trees under City regulations. Removal would not 
conflict with City regulations with approval of a permit and replanting 
replacement trees . Thus, the impact is considered less-than-significant. 

None of the existing onsite trees will be retained. An arborist report has not been 
prepared, and thus, the condition of the trees is unknown. The trees are on the 
edge of the property, except for four smaller trees within the site. The trees 
located at the edges of the property may ultimately damage sidewalks or utilities. 
The proposed landscaping plan shows planting of 15 olive trees along the 
eastern and northern property boundaries. This represents one tree over the a 2-
to-1 replacement ratio required under City regulations, and thus, exceeds the 
City's replanting ratio requirement. Thus, it appears that planned tree removal 
would not conflict with City regulations, but City staff will provide further review 
as part of the tree removal permit process. 

1575 381h Avenue 

Existing redwood trees located on adjacent property to the south would be 
retained. These could be inadvertently damaged during grading and 
construction. Grading and soil compaction and inadvertent damage due to 
construction equipment could damage the root zones unless the trees and root 
zones are adequately protected during construction . Although no mitigation 
measures are required, the following Condition of Approval is recommended to 
ensure protection of adjacent trees. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Implement measures to protect 
existing redwood trees along the property boundary in order to minimize 
damage to the trees and their root zones during construction as 
recommended by a certified arborist review. 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 26 
Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-357-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

(fl Conflicts with Plans. There are no adopted Habitat Conservation Plans in the 
vicinity. 

5. Cultural Resources. There are no historical resources on the project site. 

(bl Archaeological Resources. According to the City maps, the project site is not 
located within an archaeologically sensitive area. The project site has been 
previously graded and disturbed. Thus, there would be no impacts to cultural 
resources. However, the following Condition of Approval is recommended in the 
event that unknown resources are discovered during project grading and excavation. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: If archaeological resources or 
human remains are accidentally discovered during construction, work 
shall be halted within 50 meters ( 150 feet) of the find until it can be 
evaluated by a qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is 
determined to be significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be 
formulated and implemented. Disturbance shall not resume until the 
significance of the archaeological resources is determined and 
appropriate mitigations to preserve the resource on the site are 
established. If human remains are encountered during construction or 
any other phase of development, work in the area of discovery must be 
halted, the Santa Cruz County coroner notified, and the provisions of 
Public Resources Code 5097.98-99, Health and Safety Code 7050.5 
carried out. If the remains are determined to be Native American, the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) shall be notified within 24 
hours as required by Public Resources Code 5097. 

(cl Paleontological/Unique Geological Resources. No unique geologic features have 
been identified . The proposed demolition and construction of the proposed senior 
housing project will have no effect on any unanticipated paleontological resources. 

6. Geology and Soils. 

(a-cl Seismic Hazards. The project site is located in a seismically active region of 
California. There are no active faults which underlie the City of Capitola, but active 
faults are located nearby in the Santa Cruz Mountains and offshore in Monterey Bay 
(SOURCE v.1 a) . The regional faults of significance potentially affecting Capitola include 
the San Andreas, the Zayante, and the Palo Colorado-San Gregorio. 

The most probable seismic hazards to Capitola are from the San Andreas Fault (in 
the Santa Cruz Mountains) and , further south, the Palo Colorado-San Gregorio fault. 
Seismic historical records of the area show that earthquakes of 6.5 - 7.0 magnitude 
occur periodically on the San Andreas Fault. The main trace of the San Andreas 
Fault is approximately nine miles northeast of Capitola . One of the largest 
earthquakes in the Santa Cruz area occurred on October 17, 1989 due to movement 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 27 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-358-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

on this fault and measured 7.1 on the Richter scale . The epicenter of the Loma 
Prieta earthquake was approximately five (5) miles southeast of Capitola (SOURCE 

V.2c). 

The Zayante fault is located approximately five miles northeast of Capitola, and the 
Palo Colorado-San Gregorio is located approximately 14 miles southwest of 
Capitola. The California Division of Mines and Geology considers the Zayante fault 
active (SOURCE V.2c). The Palo Colorado-San Gregorio fault is not well understood, 
but is considered potentially active with an estimates maximum credible magnitude 
of 7.7 and a recurrence level of 800+ years (Ibid.) . 

The primary seismic hazard that could affect the project is seismic shaking. The site 
is located in an area subject to high seismic shaking hazards according to maps in 
the City's General Plan (SOURCE v.1 a). Liquefaction, differential compaction of near 
surface soils, and lateral spreading can present seismic hazards during 
earthquakes. The potential for these hazards to occur are dependent on soil 
conditions and geologic patterns (SOURCE V.2c). Soil liquefaction occurs when loose, 
saturated sandy soil deposits lose internal strength and transform from a solid to a 
liquefied state due to reduced stresses within the soils mass. The site is in a low 
liquefaction potential zone (Ibid .). 

The California Building Standards Code (CBC) design standards have a primary 
objective of ensuring public safety and a secondary goal of minimizing property 
damage and maintaining function during and following a seismic event. The CBC 
prescribes seismic design criteria for different types of structures, and provides 
methods to obtain ground motion inputs. The CBC also requires analysis of 
liquefaction potential, slope instability, differential settlement, and surface 
displacement due to faulting or lateral spreading for various categories of 
construction . Recognizing that the risk of severe seismic ground motion varies from 
place to place, the CBC provisions vary depending on location within the state. 

Impact Analysis. The project site is located in an area of high seismic activity and 
will be subject to strong seismic shaking during an earthquake. Preparation of a 
geotechnical report will be required prior to issuance of a building permit per 
California Building Code requirements, and the building will be required to be 
designed in accordance with the latest edition of the California Building Code, 
which sets forth structural design parameters for buildings to withstand seismic 
shaking without substantial structural damage. Structures built in accordance 
with the latest edition of the California Building Code and recommendations in 
the required geotechnical report have an increased potential for experiencing 
relatively minor damage which should be repairable. Thus, this is considered a 
less-than-significant impact. 

(e.gl Soils and Erosion. According to the Soil Conservation Service Soil Survey of 
Santa Cruz (August 1980), onsite soils are classified as Pinto loam and Elkhorn 
sandy loam. These soils are classified as having a low to moderate shrink-swell 
potential depending on soil depth, and erosion hazard is slight to moderate. 

1575 38•h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 28 

Initial Study 
July 30, 20 l 2 



-359-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Impact Analysis. Soils with potential shrink-swell conditions could result in 
structural damage if not properly designed. The required geotechnical report will 
set forth site preparation and foundation requirements that will be address onsite 
soil constraints determined through soil borings and testing . Thus, impacts 
related to soils constraints are considered less-than-significant. 

The onsite project soils are classified as having a slight to moderate erosion 
hazard. Project development will include excavation and grading, although the 
project site is relatively flat and located within a developed urban area. 
Approximately 1,485 cubic yards of material will be excavated, which will require 
submittal of a grading plan with erosion control measures in accordance with City 
regulations . The project site is not located adjacent to existing water bodies. 
With implementation of required erosion control measures as part of the required 
grading plan, the potential for offsite erosion and inadvertent transport of soils 
into the municipal storm drain system is considered less-than-significant. 
Although mitigation measures are not required, the following Condition of 
Approval is recommended. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Implement erosion control 
measures, including, but not limited to: conduct grading prior to the rainy 
season if possible; protect disturbed areas during the rainy season; 
implement other Best Management Practices (BMPs) during construction 
to protect water quality; and immediately revegetate disturbed areas. 

(h) Soil Suitability for Septic Systems. The site is currently served by sewer as is the 
balance of the City, therefore there are no impacts associated with new septic 
systems. 

7. Greenhouse Gas Emissions. 

(a) Greenhouse Gas Emissions. Climate change refers to any significant change in 
measures of climate, such as average temperature, precipitation, or wind patterns 
over a period of time. Climate change may result from natural factors, natural 
processes, and human activities that change the composition of the atmosphere and 
alter the surface and features of the land. Significant changes in global climate 
patterns have recently been associated with global warming, an average increase in 
the temperature of the atmosphere near the Earth's surface, attributed to 
accumulation of greenhouse house gas (GHG) emissions in the atmosphere. 
Greenhouse gases trap heat in the atmosphere, which in turn heats the surface of 
the Earth. Some GHGs occur naturally and are emitted to the atmosphere through 
natural processes, while others are created and emitted solely through human 
activities (SOURCE V.9d). 

Climate change models predict changes in temperature, precipitation patterns, water 
availability, and rising sea levels, and these altered conditions can have impacts on 
natural and human systems in California (SOURCE V.9c). Changes in temperature, 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 29 

In itial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-360-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

precipitation , and sea levels can affect California's public health, habitats, ocean and 
coastal resources , water supplies, agriculture, forestry, and energy use (Ibid.) , as 
well as result in increased droughts and flooding . Potential global warming impacts 
in California may include, but are not limited to, loss in snow pack, sea level rise, 
more extreme heat days per year, more high ozone days, more large forest fires , 
and more drought years. Secondary effects are likely to include a global rise in sea 
level , impacts to agriculture, changes in disease vectors, and changes in habitat and 
biodiversity (SOURCE V.6) . 

The most common GHG that results from human activity is carbon dioxide, followed 
by methane and nitrous oxide (SOURCE V.9d). The primary contributors to GHG 
emissions in California (as of 2008) are transportation (about 37%), electric power 
production (24%), industry (20%), agriculture and forestry (6%), and other sources, 
including commercial and residential uses (13%). Approximately 81% of California 's 
emissions are carbon dioxide produced from fossil fuel combustion (SOURCE V.9a) . 

The State of California passed the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (AB 32), 
which seeks to reduce GHG emissions generated by California . The Governor's 
Executive Order S-3-05 and AB 32 (Health & Safety Code, § 38501 et seq .) both 
seek to achieve 1990 emissions levels by the year 2020. Executive Order S-3-05 
further requires that California's GHG emissions be 80 percent below 1990 levels by 
the year 2050. AB 32 defines GHGs to include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous 
oxide, hydrocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulfur hexafluoride. 

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) is the lead agency for implementing 
AB32.ln accordance with provisions of AB 32, CARB has completed a statewide 
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Inventory that provides estimates of the amount of GHGs 
emitted to, and removed from, the atmosphere by human activities within California. 
Based on review of this inventory, in December 2007 CARB approved a 2020 
emissions limit of 427 C02 equivalent million metric tons (MMT C02e)3

, which is 
equivalent to the 1990 emissions level. In accordance with requirements of AB32, a 
Scoping Plan was released in October 2008 and adopted by CARB in December 
2008. Key elements for reducing the state's greenhouse emissions to 1990 levels by 
2020 include: 

Expanding and strengthening existing energy efficiency programs as well as 
building and appliance standards; 

Achieving a statewide renewables energy mix of 33 percent; 

Developing a California cap-and-trade program that links with other Western 
Climate Initiative partner programs to create a regional market system; 

3 The C02 equivalent emissions are commonly expressed as "million metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent 
(MMTC02E)". The carbon dioxide equivalent for a gas is derived by multiplying the tons of the gas by the 
associated Global Warming Potential (GWP). 

157 5 381h Avenue 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 30 
Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-361-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Establishing targets for transportation-related greenhouse gas emissions for 
regions throughout California, and pursuing policies and incentives to 
achieve those targets; 

Adopting and implementing measures pursuant to existing State laws and 
policies, including California's clean car standards, goods movement 
measures, and the Low Carbon fuel Standard; and 

Creating targeted fees, including a public goods charge on water use, fees 
on high global warming potential gases, and a fee to fund the administrative 
costs of the State's long-term commitment to AB 32 implementation (SOURCE 

Y.9b). 

The Scoping Plan identifies 18 emissions reduction measures that address cap-and
trade programs, vehicle gas standards, energy efficiency, low carbon fuel standards, 
renewable energy, regional transportation-related greenhouse gas targets, vehicle 
efficiency measures, goods movement, solar roofs program, industrial emissions, 
high speed rail, green building strategy, recycling, sustainable forests, water and air 
(SOURCE Y.9b). 

Senate Bill 375, signed in 2008, aims to reduce greenhouse gas em1ss1ons by 
discouraging urban sprawl and reducing vehicle miles traveled. Among other things, 
SB 375 requires regional transportation plans to include a "sustainable community 
strategy" (SCS) to meet greenhouse gas reduction targets set by the California Air 
Resources Board. AMBAG is currently developing such a plan in cooperation with 
local jurisdictions. To encourage smart growth development, SB 375 also provides 
streamlined review under CEQA for certain projects consistent with the SCS: transit 
priority projects (projects comprising at least 50 percent residential use, a residential 
density of at least 20 units per net acre and located within one half mile of a regional 
transit corridor) and residential or mixed use projects with a residential component 
requiring at least 75 percent of the total square footage. 

Senate Bill 375 established a basis for identifying regional reduction targets related 
to transportation and land use. It is one of the CARB's Scoping Plan strategies to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the transportation sector, and the Scoping 
Plan estimates a reduction of statewide GHG emissions by 5 million metric tons 
(SOURCE Y.9b), approximately 3% of the total statewide GHG emissions reduction 
identified in the strategies outlined in the Scoping Plan. In order to achieve these 
reductions, SB 375 requires metropolitan transportation plans to include a 
"Sustainable Communities Strategy'' (SCS) to meet GHG reduction targets for 
vehicle travel. In September of 2010, the CARS adopted regional per capita 
greenhouse gas targets for each of California's eighteen metropolitan planning 
regions as required under SB 375. The Monterey Bay area's specific mandate is to 
reduce per capita greenhouse gas emissions from cars and light trucks to 2005 
levels by 2020 and to reduce per capita levels to 5% below 2005 levels by 2035. 
This results in a regional per capita GHG emissions target of 14.1 pounds per day 
per capita for 2020 and 13.4 pounds per day per capita for 2035. 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 31 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-362-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

The City of Capitola is in the process of updating its General Plan, which will include 
preparation of a Climate Action Plan. The Association of Monterey Bay Area 
Governments (AMBAG) completed GHG emissions inventories for all member 
jurisdictions, including the City of Capitola. The City of Capitola inventory identifies 
citywide GHG emissions as well as emissions produced solely from City government 
operations occurring in the year 2005. In 2005, approximately 76 ,020 metric tons of 
C02 were emitted within the community of Capitola (SOURCE v.2c). 

1575 38th Avenue 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project will result in the construction of 23 
senior housing units. The project site currently is developed with a materials 
salvage yard that will be demolished. The project will result in an increase in 
GHG emissions, primarily due to project-related traffic, energy use, and 
construction-related traffic and energy use. 

The project is estimated to result in a net increase of GHG emissions of 
approximately 296 metric tons C02e annually due to project operation (i.e., 
traffic, energy use, etc.), and approximately 772 metric tons due to 
construction (SOURCE V.6). To date, no state agency has adopted significance 
criteria for GHG emissions. In June 2010, the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (BAAQMD) in the San Francisco Bay area revised and 
adopted its CEQA Guidelines, which include thresholds of significance for 
greenhouse gas emissions. The BAAQMD was the first regional air district to 
adopt numeric thresholds for greenhouse gas emissions from residential and 
commercial projects . The guidelines identified 1, 100 MT C02e/yr or 4.6 
MT/year per service population (residents/employees) as a numeric 
emissions level below which a project's contribution to global climate change 
would be less than "cumulatively considerable" (SOURCE V.9f). 

The project site is located within the jurisdiction of the Monterey Bay Unified 
Air Pollution Control District (MBUAPCD), which to date, has not adopted 
significance criteria or thresholds. However, in June 2011, the MBUAPCD 
initiated a process to develop GHG emission thresholds for project and plan 
level impact analyses. At that time, District staff recommended a threshold of 
4.6 MT/year per service population (residents/employees) for land use 
projects, which is similar to the threshold adopted by the BAAQMD. This 
approach is based on the total emissions estimated for the land use sector 
for the state of California divided by the state's projected service population. 
This reflects the total number of jobs and residents provided by a project, 
such that the project would ensure consistency with the goals of AB 32 (i.e., 
1990 GHG emissions levels by 2020) (Ibid .). GHG thresholds are under 
review by the MBUAPCD, but have not yet been adopted 

Although, neither the city of Capitola nor the MBUAPCD has adopted GHG 
emission significance thresholds, the project's estimated GHG emissions 
(about 296 MT/year C02e) are below significance thresholds proposed in the 
San Francisco Bay area (1, 100 MT/yr). While this threshold is adopted for 
the San Francisco Bay area, the area is adjacent to the MBUAPCD region, 
and it does support the conclusion that the project-level emissions are less 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 32 
Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-363-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

than significant and less than cumulatively considerable. The estimated 
increase in residential population resulting from the project would represent 
8.5 MT/year. This is below the AMBAG target of 14.1 MT/year. (See 
discussion below under section 13 regarding estimated project population.) 

The project's estimated GHG emissions are below targets adopted by 
AMBAG and significance thresholds adopted by the BAAQMD. The GHG 
emissions calculated by the project would be partially offset by emissions 
related to the existing onsite use. It is also expected that GHG emissions 
resulting from the proposed project would be partially offset by the 
incorporation of energy and water conserving features and "green" building 
designs that would be required under State building regulations. The 
applicant has indicated that the project will be a "LEED" certified 
development. Furthermore, the project site is within walking distance to 
commercial and shopping facilities, and it is located within an area served by 
transit, bicycle and pedestrian facilities. Bus stops are located near the site 
on Capitola Road and 381

h Avenue within walking distance to the project site. 
The project represents infill development with a density of approximately 22 
units per acre. The proposed residential use and proximity to a transit 
corridor are consistent with SB375 priority projects. Therefore, greenhouse 
gas emissions resulting from development of the project is considered a less
than-significant impact, and the project's incremental effect is less-than
cumulatively considerable. 

(bl Conflict with Applicable Plans. The project would not conflict with implementation 
of state plans adopted for the purpose of reducing greenhouse gas emissions. The 
City of Capitola is in the process of updating its General Plan and preparing a 
Climate Action Plan to address citywide greenhouse emissions, but a plan has not 
been completed or adopted. 

8. Hazards. 

(a,c-dl Hazardous Materials/Wastes. The proposed project does not involve the 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials or wastes and would not result in 
creation of a public health hazard. The project consists of a 23-unit senior housing 
project. As such, the proposed use will not result in creation of risks associated with 
hazardous material use, exposure to health hazards, or creation of a health hazard. 

(bl Hazardous Materials Release. The project site is currently used as a commercial 
salvage yard that sells used windows, doors, cabinets, appliances, and tiles and 
other building components. Several older structures are present on the site. The 
existing onsite buildings will be demolished. It is not known whether existing 
buildings may contain asbestos or lead-based paint. Any demolition of buildings 
containing asbestos would be required to comply with the Monterey Bay Unified Air 
Pollution Control District's Rule 306 that requires reporting and investigation of 
certain buildings with asbestos as established under federal law. The National 
Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPS) as set forth in the 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 33 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-364-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Code of Federal Regulations-40CFR61--is designed to prevent "visible emissions" 
of asbestos when buildings are renovated or demolished. Under federal law, a 
building must be inspected for asbestos prior to demolition or renovation, and federal 
and state agencies must be notified prior to demolition. According to the State Air 
Resources Control board , removal and disposal of asbestos procedures and 
controls must be specified in the notification form. 

Impact Analysis. Construction workers may be exposed to asbestos during 
demolition of existing buildings if found. However, demolition would need to 
comply with local and federal standards and permit requirements if asbestos is 
found . Therefore, this is considered a less-than-significant impact. Although 
mitigation measures are not required , the following Conditions of Approval are 
recommended. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: All demolition activities to be 
undertaken according to MBUAPCD Rule 306 requirements and OSHA 
standards to protect workers from asbestos and lead based paint, if 
found within buildings to be demolished. Specific measures include air 
monitoring during demolition/construction activities, which include existing 
buildings. 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Any building materials 
classified as hazardous materials will be disposed of in conformance with 
Federal, State, and local laws. 

(e-fl Airport Safety. The project site is not located near a public airport or private 
airstrip. 

(g) Emergency Response. The site location and scale have no impact on emergency 
response or emergency evacuation. 

9. Hydrology. 

(a-bl Water Quality Standards and Groundwater. The project is located on a 
developed site within a developed urban area and will not affect groundwater 
recharge. 

(c-el Drainage. The City of Capitola maintains its street drainage systems and relies 
on the County to provide major storm drain services through the Santa Cruz County 
Flood Control & Water Conservation District Zone 5. The infrastructure associated 
with flood protection and stormwater drainage includes underground systems; above 
ground drainage ditches and water courses; pump stations, catch basins and 
outfalls. Storm drainage from most of the 41 st Avenue area flows to a Santa Cruz 
County flood control drainage basin near 38th Avenue/Brommer Street, and then 
flows into Moran Lake, north and west of Capitola (SOURCE v.2d). Capitola prepared a 
Draft Stormwater Management Plan in 2008 that contains policies and measures to 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 34 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-365-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

implement best management practices related to its drainage infrastructure, 
including outfall inspection and cleaning , annual storm drain cleaning in the fall, and 
zero discharge sidewalk cleaning (Ibid.). 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project will result in an increase of impervious 
surfacing , although the site currently contains impervious surfacing due to the 
presence of buildings and sheds. The proposed project would result in 
approximately 26,600 square feet of impervious surfacing , including replacement 
of approximately 50% of the existing impervious surfacing on the site (SOURCE 

V.7). Runoff flows from the site will increase from 0.37 cubic feet per second (cfs) 
to 1.18 cfs for a 10-yuear storm event and from 0.48 cfs to 1.56 cfs for a 25-year 
storm event (Ibid.). The project will not alter existing drainage patterns. All site 
runoff from roof and hardscape areas will be routed to an underground detention 
system , consisting of a chamber that will provide detention storage (Ibid .). 
Detained runoff will be released at pre-development rates to an offsite storm 
drain system that ultimately discharges to the County-maintained detention basin 
located at the southeast corner of the Brommer and 39th Avenue intersection. 
Thus, project runoff and drainage is considered a less-than-significant impact. 
Drainage improvements will be required to be designed in accordance with City 
standards and Public Works requirements. 

(fl Water Quality. Within urbanized areas such as the City of Capitola, pollutants 
frequently associated with storm water include sediment, nutrients, oil and grease, 
heavy metals, and litter. The primary sources of storm water pollution in urban 
areas include automobiles, parking lots , landscape maintenance, construction, illegal 
connections to the storm water system, accidental spills and illegal dumping. 

Urban runoff and other "non-point source" discharges are regulated by the 1972 
Federal Clean Water Act (CWA), through the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit program that has been implemented in two 
phases through the California Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB). 
Phase I regulations, effective since 1990, require NPDES permits for storm water 
discharges for certain specific industrial facilities and construction activities, and for 
municipalities with a population size greater than 100,000. Phase II regulations 
expand the NPDES program to include all municipalities with urbanized areas and 
municipalities with a population size greater than 10,000 and a population density 
greater than 1 ,000 persons per square mile. Phase II regulations also expand the 
NPDES program to include construction sites of one to five acres. 

Cities and districts maintaining stormwater systems must obtain coverage under a 
NPDES stormwater permit and implement stormwater pollution prevention plans or 
stormwater management programs (both using best management practices) that 
effectively reduce or prevent the discharge of pollutants into receiving waters. For 
most jurisdictions, the best management practices have resulted in higher 
operations and maintenance costs for their stormwater systems. The City of Capitola 
is working on a joint effort with other jurisdictions to develop guidelines to implement 

1575 38'h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 35 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-366-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

the state's requirement for storm water retention on new construction sites (SOURCE 

V.2d) . 

Impact Analysis. Project runoff would not result in significant water quality 
degradation as the proposed parking area will be an enclosed parking garage as 
part of the first floor, which would limit urban pollutants from vehicles from 
entering storm drainage facilities . Additionally, the project stormwater 
management plan calls for use of Best Management Practices (BMPs) to treat 
runoff prior to discharge into the underground detention basin, which may consist 
of treating runoff through vegetated areas or by utilizing a mechanical treatment 
unit (SOURCE V.7) . Thus, no impacts to water quality are anticipated as a result of 
project stormwater runoff. 

Project excavation and grading could result in potential off-site transport of 
sediments into the municipal storm drain system. An erosion control plan has not 
yet been prepared. However, as discussed in subsection 6(e,g) above, project 
grading is regulated by the City, which requires submittal of a grading plan with 
erosion contro l measures. Implementation of erosion control measures would 
prevent sediments from inadvertently entering storm drains. 

10. Land Use and Planning. The project is located within a developed area of the 
city of Capitola, and is located on a site that is currently developed. The proposed 
demolition of the existing salvage yard and development of the proposed senior 
housing project would not divide an established community. There are no known 
Habitat Conservation or Natural Community Conservation Plans that would be 
applicable to the site . 

(b-cl Consistency with Local Policies/ Plans. The project site is designated for 
commercial uses in the City's General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. The CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zone district allows multiple residential with the 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. However, the project includes a proposed 
rezoning to a PD (Planned Development) district. As indicated in the City's current 
Housing Element (SOURCE V.lb), development standards in the PD zone are flexible, 
tailored to the constraints of the site and needs of the development. The Housing 
Element identifies the PD zone as a way to allow site-specific density increases. 
Additionally, the project site is identified as a housing opportunity site in the Housing 
Element. The project does not conflict with any policies or regulations adopted for 
the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental impact. 

11. Mineral Resources. The General Plan determined that no known mineral 
resources were located within the General Plan Area which would be of value to the 
region or state, and the site is already developed with a residential use. 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 36 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-367-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

12. Noise. 

(a-bl Noise Exposure. The project site is not located near an airport or private airstrip . 
However, the site is located within a commercial area that is affected by traffic noise, 
primarily along Capitola Road and 41 st Avenue. According to information developed 
as part of the City's General Plan update, the project site is located with an area that 
could experience very high noise intensity levels, although specific ambient noise 
levels are not identified (SOURCE V.2c). 

The City General Plan identifies land use compatibility standards for noise levels. 
For multi-family residential uses, normally acceptable exterior noise levels 60-65 
decibels and conditionally acceptable levels are identified as 60-70 decibels. These 
standards indicated that new development in a conditionally acceptable noise range 
should be undertaken only after a detailed analysis of noise reduction requirements 
is made. Interior noise levels are limited to 45 decibels pursuant to state regulations. 

Impact Analysis. The proposal consists of construction of 23 senior housing units. 
Project interior and outdoor areas may be exposed to noise levels that exceed 
City standards due to traffic noise along 381

h Avenue and nearby Capitola Road. 
This is considered a potentially significant impact. 

The City of Capitola General Plan sets forth noise and land use compatibility 
standards. Noise levels of 60 to 70 CNEL are considered conditionally 
acceptable for multi-family residential uses, and may need additional noise 
insulation or attenuation in building designs. City and State standards require 
interior noise levels of 45 decibels (dB) or less. Closed windows, building 
materials and design features, such as insulation and noise-attenuating 
windows, can reduce interior noise levels. Preparation of an acoustical study as 
recommended in the City's General Plan (Policy 8) with Implementation of 
recommendations in the study will reduce the impact to a less-than-significant 
level. 

MITIGATION MEASURE 1: Require preparation of an acoustical study with 
building permit submittal and require building plans to incorporate any 
recommended building or window design measures, if needed to achieve 
required indoor noise levels. 

Monitoring: Include measure as Condition of Project Approval. Require 
applicant to submit acoustical study to Planning Department staff prior to 
construction for approval. City Planning and Building staff are responsible 
for reviewing building plans to ensure recommended measures are 
incorporated into the building design. 

(cl Permanent Noise Increases. The immediate project vicinity is characterized by 
commercial uses, except for residential uses to the west. The proposed residential 
uses would not result in significant increases in ambient noise levels, especially with 
regards to existing commercial business activity and traffic. A swimming pool is 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 37 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-368-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

proposed on the third floor along the 381
h Avenue frontage, and would be located 

away from existing residences. There is no planned exterior mechanical equipment 
that would generate increased sound levels or noise. 

(dl Temporary Noise. There will be a temporary increase in existing noise levels 
during demolition, grading and construction. Adjacent residential uses to the west 
are considered sensitive receptors. Anticipated equipment includes, but is not limited 
to equipment that would be used for excavation, grading, and building construction, as 
well as trucks. 

Impact Analysis. Construction activities could cause temporary annoyance and 
activity interference at adjacent residences. Construction-related noise levels 
would vary throughout the day, depending on the type of equipment in use at any 
one time. Conventional construction activities are expected to generate noise 
levels in the range of 75 to 85 decibels at a distance of 50 feet. Noise levels 
would decrease with distance from the site. Noise levels associated with 
construction will vary throughout the construction period and throughout any given 
day, depending on the type of equipment in use. Noise levels associated with use 
of heavy equipment would be intermittent throughout a given day. Because 
construction-related impacts are temporary and noise levels are variable, 
construction-related noise impacts are considered less-than-significant. Although 
mitigation measures are not required, Best Management Practices are 
recommended as a Condition of Approval to be included in the project 
construction specifications. 

1575 381h Avenue 

RECOMMENDED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Require implementation of the 
following measures during construction: 

Prohibit construction on weekends and limit construction to 
weekdays between 8 AM and 5 PM. 

Require proper maintenance of construction equipment. 

Require all stockpiling and vehicle staging areas and stationary 
noise-generating construction equipment to be located as far as 
possible from nearby residences as practicable. 

As part of construction specifications, require all equipment to be 
kept in good repair and fitted with superior quality mufflers. All 
equipment shall be properly maintained to assure that no 
additional noise, due to worn or improperly maintained parts, 
would be generated . 

Require the contractor to assure that mobile noise-generating 
equipment and machinery are shut off when not in use. 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 38 
Init ial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-369-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

13. Population and Housing. 

(al Population Growth. The city of Capitola had 5,537 existing dwelling units as of 
January 1, 2012 with a total population of 9,981 residents. 4 The proposed project 
will result in construction of 23 senior housing units. The resulting population 
increases is estimated at approximately 35 new residents assuming one person per 
studio unit and up to two persons per one- and two-bedroom units. The City's overall 
average household size is 2.124 residents per dwelling unit. The City's population 
would total 10,016 residents with the proposed project, which would not AMBAG's 
population forecast of 10,222 residents by the year 2015. Thus, the population 
expected with the proposed project is within population growth projections for the 
City, and the project would not result in a substantial increase in population growth. 

(b-cl Removal of Housing /Displacement of People. The project site currently is in 
commercial use, and the project will not result in removal of existing housing or 
displacement of people. 

14. Public Services. . 

(a-bl Fire and Police Protection Services. The proposed project will be served by 
existing services and utilities. The project will have no measurable effect on existing 
public services in that the incremental increase in demand will not require expansion 
of any services to serve the project. Construction of new fire or police facilities to 
serve the project would not be warranted. New development will be required to install 
automatic fire sprinklers and alarms in accordance with City requirements and comply 
with other Fire Department recommendations regarding access. Thus, the proposed 
project would not result in significant impacts to fire and police protection services. 

(cl Schools. The proposed project would result in construction of 23 senior housing 
rental units. As a senior housing project, there would be no increase in study 
enrollments or impacts to existing school facilities . 

(dl Parks. See discussion below under subsection 15 - Recreation. 

1 5. Recreation. . 

The proposed project's net increase of 23 senior residential units and the associated 
population of 35 estimated residents will result in an incremental increased demand 
for recreational facilities, but is not expected to result in a significant increased use 
to existing parks and facilities to the extent that a substantial physical deterioration 
would occur. The project does provide onsite swimming pool and spa. 

4 
Per California Department of Finance, "E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the 

State, 2011 and 2012" (May 2012. Online at: 
http://www.dof.ca.gov/research /demographic/reports /estimates/e-5/2011 -20 /view.php. 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 39 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-370-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

16. Transportation/Traffic. 

(a-b.fl Traffic and Circulation. The project site is located on 381
h Avenue, just south of 

Capitola Road and west of 41 51 Avenue. 381
h Avenue is identified as a collector street 

in the City's existing General Plan, but is identified as a "minor" arterial in the 
background reports prepared for the General Plan Update that is in progress 
(SOURCE V.2b) . The Capitola Road/381

h Avenue intersection is signalized. There are 
no congestion management programs in effect in Capitola or county of Santa Cruz. 
The proposed project would not conflict with adopted policies or plans supporting 
alternative transportation. 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project is estimated to result in an increase in daily 
traffic, but would result in reduced trips during peak hours. Thus, increased 
traffic as a result of the project is considered a less-than-significant impact. The 
project would also provide adequate parking for the proposed use type . 

The proposed project is estimated to result in a net increase of 39 daily weekday 
trips based on trip generation rates for senior housing and warehouse uses 
published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (SOURCE v.s). Traffic from 
the existing salvage yard was deducted from the total trips generated by the 
proposed senior housing project. The proposed project is estimated to result in a 
slight decrease in AM and PM peak trips compared to the existing use. The 
addition of approximately 40 project trips to study intersections throughout the 
day would not have a noticeable effect. Thus, the project's traffic would result in 
a less-than-significant impact, and no mitigation measures are required . 

The project would provide a total of 35 on-site parking spaces to accommodate 
23 residential units, employees. and quests. According to the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE), a nationally recognized authority and developer 
of transportation and parking standards, senior citizen housing requires 1.4 
parking spaces per residential unit. The ITE parking standard accounts for the 
demand created by senior housing complexes , including residents , employees, 
and quests. The proposed project exceeds this standard by providing 1.5 
spaces per unit. Accordingly, the project would not result in a significant direct 
impact to parking. Because the project would provide adequate on-site parking , 
no indirect environmental impacts would occur as a result of a parking shortage. 

(d-el Access. Site access for the proposed project is planned via one inbound 
driveway and one outbound driveway located along 38th Avenue. Due to the site 
location, the proposed driveways are planned to be offset from the two existing 
driveways serving the existing retail center located across the project site on 38th 
Avenue . The project design would not result in increased hazards or inadequate 
emergency access. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 40 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-371-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

17. Utilities and Service Systems. The proposed project will be served by existing 
utilities and will have no measurable effect on existing sewer, water, or storm 
drainage utilities in that the incremental increased demand will not require expansion 
of any of those services or construction of new facilities to serve the project. 

(a-b, el Wastewater Collection and Treatment. Sanitary sewer service for the City of 
Capitola is provided under contract through the Santa Cruz County Sanitation 
District, which provides sewage collection and disposal services to the Live Oak, 
Capitola, Soquel, and Aptos areas. The City of Capitola is not responsible for nor 
has the authority to maintain the sanitary sewers. The District's customers generate 
approximately 5-6 million gallons a day (mgd) of wastewater that flows to the Lode 
Street treatment facility and is then pumped to the City of Santa Cruz wastewater 
treatment plant at Neary Lagoon (SOURCE v.2d). 

Wastewater treatment is provided by the City's wastewater treatment plant that has 
an average dry weather flow capacity of 17 million gallons per day (mgd) and 
currently operates at approximately 62 percent of its capacity with a remaining 
capacity of approximately 10.5 mgd. As part of the total capacity, the Santa Cruz 
County Sanitation District has treatment capacity rights of 8 million gallons per day. 
The Sanitation District contributes 5.5 mgd with a remaining capacity of 2.5 mgd 
(SOURCE v.3b). The treatment plant has adequate capacity to serve the project, which 
is estimated to generate approximately 0.001 mgd of wastewater based on a 
conservative estimate that 90 percent of the estimated project water use would 
result in wastewater generation. 

(b,dl Water Supply. The project site is located within the service area of the City of 
Santa Cruz Water Department. The City of Santa Cruz Water Department serves 
approximately 22,000 connections in an approximate 20 square mile area that 
includes lands within existing City limits, a portion of UCSC, a portion of Live Oak in 
the unincorporated area of Santa Cruz County, a small part of the City of Capitola 
and coastal agricultural lands outside City limits. 

In December 2011 , the Santa Cruz City Council adopted the 2010 Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP) in accordance with State law, which evaluates water 
supply and demand within the City's service area over the next 20 years. 
Additionally, the City of Santa Cruz updated its General Plan, which was adopted by 
the City Council in June 2012. The City of Santa Cruz General Plan 2030 EIR was 
certified at the same time. The EIR provides a comprehensive analysis of impacts of 
water demand within the City's service area. Both the UWMP and General Plan EIR 
assess future water demand within the City's water service area that is located 
outside Santa Cruz city limits based on population growth projections developed by 
the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG). The following section 
summarizes background information contained in these documents, which are 
incorporated by reference as indicated in section 111.B of this Initial Study. A 
summary of existing conditions is presented; the full water supply review and 
analysis is provided on pages 4.5-1 to 4.5-44 of the Draft EIR volume and pages 3-
2 to 3-19 of the Final EIR volume.) 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 41 

Initial Study 
July 30, 20 l 2 



-372-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Water Supplies. The City's water system is comprised of four main sources of 
supply: North Coast sources; San Lorenzo River diversions; Loch Lomond 
Reservoir; and Live Oak wells . On average, about 84 percent of the City's annual 
water supply needs are met by surface diversions from the coastal streams and San 
Lorenzo River, while approximately 12 percent is supplied by Loch Lomond 
Reservoir and four percent of the supply is derived from the Live Oak Well system 
(SOURCE v.3d). Major facilities include two water treatment plants, several pump 
stations and 16 distribution reservoirs storing almost 15 million gallons of treated 
water. There are also about 300 miles of water pipelines throughout the service area 
(Ibid.) . 

Water production has fluctuated over the past ten years; annual production has 
ranged from a high of nearly 4,500 MGY in 2000 to a low of approximately 3,200 
MGY in 2009 (SOURCE V.3d). Average water production between 1985 and 2010 was 
approximately 3,900 MGY, while average water production between 2006 and 2010 
averaged approximately 3,500 MGY (Ibid.). 

The 2010 UWMP estimates future water supplies in the year 2030 as 4, 160 MGY, 
depending on the outcome of negotiations between the City and regulatory agencies 
regarding releases for fish habitat. Continued access to the same amount of North 
Coast supply sources will depend on the outcome of a Section 10 "incidental take" 
permit application and accompanying Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) that are 
being prepared by the City pursuant to the federal Endangered Species Act for City 
activities designed to prevent take of a listed federal species. The permit and plan 
must be approved by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and NOAA National Marine 
Fisheries Service (NMFS). The City entered into the HCP process in 2001, and over 
the past 6 years , the City has coordinated and met with U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service and NMFS on HCP-related issues and has conducted a number of studies. 
A draft HCP has not yet been completed, but the City has prepared and submitted a 
Draft Conservation Strategy that identifies minimum in-stream flows at City 
diversions to minimize the effect of diversions on habitat conditions for steelhead 
and coho salmon. 

The water supply estimates in the 2010 UWMP were developed using the City's 
water supply operations model and incorporates the best available information about 
future operations beginning in 2015 under a yet to be approved Habitat 
Conservation Plan (HCP). The final outcome is not known as the City of Santa Cruz 
is currently negotiations with the federal agencies on flow requirements. 

Water Demand. The adopted 201 O UWMP estimates a water demand of between 
4,046 and 4,537 MGY in the year 2030 within the entire water service area. This is 
based on two scenarios; the higher demand reflects water use trends experienced 
between 1999 and 2004, while the lower demand reflects more recent water use 
trends experienced in 2007-08. The 2010 UWMP indicates that the lower demand 
scenario is more reasonable given recent trends and state mandates for water 
conservation (SOURCE V.3d). 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 42 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-373-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

In 2009, the state of California enacted SB?, which sets a goal of reducing urban per 
capita water use by 20% by December 31, 2020. Under the law, each urban retail 
water supplier must include a base daily water use, a 2020 urban water use target 
and an interim (2015) water use target in its UWMP. The baseline water use value 
for California as a whole is 192 gallons per capita per day (gpcd); the value for the 
Central Coast Region, which encompasses the area from Santa Cruz to Santa 
Barbara, is 154 gpcd (SOURCE V.3d). Over the last 10-year period, per capita water 
use within the City of Santa Cruz water service area has declined from about 126 
gpcd in 2001 to 93 gpcd in 2010 (SOURCE v.3d). The City's 10-year baseline (ending 
2010), determined in accordance with the state's technical methodologies, is 113 
gpcd. In accordance with state methodologies, the UWMP includes a 2020 target of 
110 gpcd, and the City would be in compliance with state law if it maintains its per 
capita demand at or below this level. 

Water Supply Reliability. The primary water reliability issue currently facing the City 
of Santa Cruz is the lack of adequate water supply during droughts due to the wide 
range in the yield of surface water sources from year to year and limited storage 
capacity. Updated modeling conducted for the 2010 UWMP found that the worst
year peak season shortage could range between 23 and 37% and between 42 and 
51 % with additional flow releases for fish habitat. Historically, one dry or critically dry 
year has not created a water shortage due to sufficient storage in Loch Lomond 
Reservoir. Based on past experience, however, a shortage is likely to occur when 
the central coast region experiences two or more dry or critically dry years in a row 
(SOURCE V.3d) . The total water supply estimated to be available to the City in single 
dry years (i.e., 1994) is 3,900 MG (Ibid.). However, during an extreme two-year 
drought similar to the 1976-77 event, the estimated water supply available to the City 
in the second year of that event is 2,800 MG with a resulting deficit of approximately 
1,200 MG (Ibid.). The peak season is between April and October since this is the 
period that would be most affected by a supply shortage due to peak water demand. 

The City faces a series of ongoing challenges that potentially could lead to some 
loss of existing supply in the future, although it is uncertain at this time to what 
extent and which supplies might be affected. These considerations include: potential 
flow releases associated with the HCP as described above, the outcome of water 
rights petitions, groundwater availability and climate change issues. These 
considerations are described in section 4.5 of the City of Santa Cruz General Plan 
2030 Draft EIR as updated by the Final EIR document. 

The City of Santa Cruz has been actively considering possible new water supplies 
for nearly 20 years. In 2005, the City adopted an Integrated Water Plan (IWP), which 
identifies a water management strategy. The purpose of the IWP is to help the City 
reduce drought year water shortages and provide a reliable supply that meets long
term needs while ensuring protection of public health and safety. The adopted IWP 
water management strategy consists of the following three major components: 

Water conservation programs. 

Customer use curtailment (water use cutback) in times of shortage. 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 43 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-374-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Supplemental water supply for drought protection provided by a 2.5 million
gallon-per-day (mgd) desalination plant with potential for expansion up to 4.5 
mgd in increments of one mgd. 

The City is actively implementing water conservation programs. Additionally, the 
City and Soquel Creek Water District are pursuing regulatory approvals for a 
permanent, 2.5 mgd (with potential for expansion to 4.5 mgd) desalination plant. The 
facility would provide a backup water supply to the City in times of drought and 
would provide water to the District at other times to reduce its reliance on well water 
and avert the threat of seawater intrusion in local groundwater aquifers . 

A one year of testing at a pilot desalination plant has been completed, and 
environmental review is underway for a permanent facility, which is expected to be 
constructed and in operation by the year 2016, pending completion of project-level 
environmental review and regulatory permit approvals, e.g., approval of a coastal 
development permit from the California Coastal Commission. The design and 
environmental review phases are currently underway. There is some uncertainty 
related to the approval and timing of the permanent desalination plant construction 
and operation. The likelihood of construction of a permanent plant is currently 
uncertain as design plans have not been completed, and it cannot be predicted at this 
time whether the Coastal Commission and other agencies would issue the necessary 
approvals. 

Impact Analysis. The proposed project is estimated to result in a net increase 
in water demand of approximately 0.53 MGY based on water use rates 
developed by the City Water Department for the residential uses, 
landscaping and swimming pools as summarized on Table 1. This estimate 
deducts estimated existing water demand at the site based on City of Santa 
Cruz rates. Additionally, the proposed project includes a restaurant-dining 
facility for residents only. Thus, project water use may be a slightly higher, 
i.e. 0.6 MGY. Discussions with staff of the City Water Department indicate 
that the estimate project water demand is consistent with water use at a 
nearby 25-unit senior housing project. 

5 
Other potential permits, approvals and / or consultations for a permanent desalination plant and 

supporting infrastructure (i.e., intake facility and distribution pipeline) may be required from various agencies, 

including, but not limited to U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, State Lands Commission, and California Department of 

Health Services. 

1575 38th Avenue 

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 44 

Initial Study 

July 30, 201 2 



-375-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Table 1: Estimated Project Water Demand 

Water Use 

Type of Use Size Water Demand Rate (Million Gallons 
Per Year) 

Multi-Family Residential 23 units 70 gpd I room 0.60 
Units 

Landscaping 2,000 sq. ft. 0.02 x sq. ft. =billing units 0.03 
(100 cD x 100 x 7.48 

gallons 

Swimming Pool 480 sq. ft Area x 4 x 7.48 gallons 0.02 

Total Project Water Use: 0.65 

Existing Consumption 10,000 sq. ft. 12 gallons/sf/yr 0.12 

Salvage Materials Yard 

Net Water Use 0.53 

The estimated project water demand is within the 20-year estimated water 
demand for areas outside Santa Cruz city limits. The 2010 UWMP predicts 
that water supplies will be adequate in normal years to serve estimated 
growth within the City of Santa Cruz water service area. Therefore, 
increased water demand under normal conditions is a less-than-significant 
project impact. 

During periods of drought, water customers would be subject to water 
curtailment as enacted by the City. The minimal increased water demand 
associated with the proposed project would not cause any noticeable effects 
on the level of curtailment that would be required of all water customers in a 
single dry year scenario. The proposed project's increased demand is 
considered minimal and would not have significant effects on the levels of 
curtailment that would be required throughout the service area. As indicated 
above, the City of Santa Cruz in partnership with the Soquel Creek Water 
District is pursuing development of a desalination facility that would serve the 
City during periods of drought. 

(cl Storm Drainage Facilities. See discussion above under subsection 9 (c-e) 
regarding drainage. 

(fl Solid Waste Disposal. Since 2007, the City of Capitola has a franchise agreement 
with Green Waste Recovery (GWR) for the collection of refuse, recycling, and yard 
waste . Solid waste collected in Capitola is transferred to the Monterey Peninsula 
Class Ill Landfill located in the City of Marina, which is operated by the Monterey 

1575 381h Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 45 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-376-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Regional Waste Management District. It is a regional disposal facility that serves an 
853 square mile area with a population of approximately 170,000. This landfill covers 
475 acres and is comprised of both unlined and lined disposal areas. Waste types 
accepted and permitted at this facility include: agricultural, construction/demolition, 
sludge (biosolids), and mixed municipal. The landfill has a remaining waste capacity 
of approximately 40 million tons (7 4 million cubic yards) and has an anticipated life 
capacity of 100 years (SOURCE v2.d). Thus, there is adequate existing capacity to 
serve the proposed project. 

18. Mandatory Findings of Significance. 

(a) Quality of the Environment. The proposed project would have no effect on 
biological or cultural resources and would not result in elimination of important 
examples of major period of California history or prehistory. The project would not 
degrade the quality of the environmental or otherwise affect fish and wildlife habitat. 
No significant impacts were identified related to cultural historical resources. 

(bl Cumulative Impacts. There are no cumulative projects pending in the city of 
Capitola, except for the opening of a Target store at the Capitola Mall to replace a 
former department store that closed within the last few years. The proposed project 
would contribute to cumulative water supply and global climate change impacts as 
discussed below. There are no other known significant cumulative impacts to which 
the project would contribute. 

Water Supply. The proposed project will contribute to cumulative water demand under 
normal and under drought conditions in which there are existing water shortages. 
Cumulative development and growth within the City's water service area could result 
in a cumulative increase in water demand of approximately 520 MGY by the year 
2030 (SOURCE V.3b), which includes projected population growth outside city limits but 
within the City's water service area. This cumulative water demand estimate is 
based on population projections for areas outside city of Santa Cruz city limits, but 
does not include any additional growth that may be anticipated in the City of Capitola 
General Plan , which is being updated. 

The City of Santa Cruz adopted 2010 UWMP indicates that there would be adequate 
supplies during a normal year to serve cumulative development within the service 
area based on expected water demand trends and usage. However, as indicated 
above in subsection 17(b-d), existing supplies may be reduced in the future with 
implementation of a Habitat Conservation Plan and resolution of petitions before the 
State Water Resources Control Board, although whether or not this may occur is 
uncertain at this time, and if so, to what extent and which supplies might be affected 
also are not known. If water demand in the City's water service area is higher than 
what was experienced in the last five years (instead of more recent lower water 
demand levels), cumulative development could result in a significant cumulative 
impact on water supply during normal years (SOURCE V3.c). 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 46 

Initial Study 
July 30, 2012 



-377-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

Additionally, cumulative water demand would also increase during drought periods in 
which City supplies cannot meet water demand under existing conditions. The 2010 
UWMP estimates an annual shortfall of approximately 1,200 MGY in 2030 during a 
multiple-year drought. Thus, cumulative development and growth would result in a 
significant cumulative water impact as it results in additional demand in a system 
that does not currently have adequate water supplies during a drought condition. 

As previously indicated in section 17 above, the City has been actively considering 
possible new water supplies for nearly 20 years, and its adopted Integrated Water 
Plan (IWP) identifies potential approaches to drought-year water supply options. The 
adopted IWP water management strategy includes three components: water 
conservation, water use curtailment during droughts, and a supplemental 
desalination water supply. The City is actively implementing water conservation 
programs. The City currently imposes a "System Development Charge" on all new 
connections based on meter size that is used to fund conservation programs and 
partially offset the desalination plant's costs. 

The certified IWP EIR evaluates impacts of the construction of a desalination facility 
and associated pipelines on a programmatic level, which are summarized in the City 
of Santa Cruz General Plan 2030 EIR. Construction could have physical 
environmental effects, and the IWP EIR identified potentially significant impacts that 
could be mitigated to a less-than-significant level, except for temporary construction 
noise. The EIR also includes further review of population projections and City/County 
land use planning documents prior to any expansion of a plant in ensure that 
development of an additional water supply is consistent with planned growth 
projections (SOURCE V.3c). 

The City has completed a one-year operation of the pilot desalination plant, and 
design and environmental review for a permanent facility are currently underway. A 
permanent desalination plant is expected to be constructed and in operation by the 
year 2016, pending completion of project-level environmental review and acquisition 
of necessary regulatory approvals (e.g., from the California Coastal Commission). 
The desalination facility would provide a supplemental water supply during periods of 
drought and could be expanded at a future time to provide additional supply after 
additional environmental review and permitting . The City acknowledges some 
uncertainty related to the approval of and timing for construction of the permanent 
desalination facility as the project is subject to completion of environmental review and 
permit approvals, including a coastal permit from the California Coastal Commission. 

The City's adopted IWP and 2010 UWMP identified seawater desalination as the 
only feasible alternative for a backup supply of drinking water during a drought. 
Recycled wastewater was determined to be potentially feasible for landscape 
irrigation, but is not the City's preferred water supply strategy, although the City's 
General Plan 2030 policy remains open to pursuing this option (SOURCE V.3d) . 

1575 38'h Avenue 

Cumulative Impact Analysis. Cumulative development and growth would 
result in a significant cumulative water impact as it results in additional 
future demand in a system that does not have adequate existing or long-

Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 47 
Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-378-

Item #: 9.C. Revision.pdf

term water supplies during drought conditions and may not have 
adequate future supplies in normal years . The project's incremental 
contribution to this situation would be less than one hundredth of one 
percent of the total cumulative demand. 

The project will be required to include water conserving fixtures and 
landscaping in accordance with building code and City requirements. In 
addition, the project will pay the required "System Development Charge," 
which is used in part to implement conservation and desalination plant 
costs planned under the IWP. Under drought conditions, the project, like 
other City customers, would be required to curtail water use by varying 
amounts, depending on the severity of the drought. The minor increase in 
project water demand would not substantially exacerbate water supply 
reliability during a drought or in the future due to cumulative growth 
because, as explained above (in section 17[b,d]), and would not be 
expected to result in any noticeable increase in the curtailment in 
customer use that would be implemented during drought conditions. 
Thus, the incremental effects . of the proposed project would not be 
cumulatively considerable. 

Additionally, the City's adopted Integrated Water Plan includes a 
supplemental future supply of 2.5 MG/year from the proposed, but not yet 
approved or constructed desalination plant. The facility would provide a 
supplemental water supply during periods of drought and could be 
expanded in the future to provide additional water to accommodate 
growth planned within the City's water service area. As indicated above 
(in section 17[b,d]), the City is in the process of completing design plans 
and preparing an EIR for the project. The City also regularly monitors 
water demand and water supply options via preparation of annual water 
demand reports to the City Council and five-year updates of the UWMP, 
which includes a 20-year planning horizon for water supply management. 

Global Climate Change. See discussion above under subsection 7 above regarding 
global climate change. 

(cl Substantial Adverse Effects on Human Beings. No environmental effects have been 
identified that would have direct or indirect adverse effects on human beings, except 
for potential exposure to noise, which can be mitigated to a less-than-significant 
level. 

1575 38th Avenue 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing Page 48 

Initial Study 
July 30, 201 2 



-379-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dear Council, 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL 

Danna [danna2001@yahoo.com] 
Friday, June 21, 2013 5:45 PM 
City Council 
RE: Villas Capitola 

AGE~ 
Item 8.8. 

JUN 21 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

I would like to express my approval of the beautiful retirement community Mr Thomas is presenting to you. 
I think a retirement building of this caliber in the area would be beneficial to the area as well as Capitola 
proper. Having known Mr Thomas for 30+ years I am familiar with the quality and care he puts into his 
projects and look forward to establishing myself in this retirement community. 

Thank you , Danna Olson 

1 



-380-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

>ITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 
Item 8.B. 

Kathy Ordonez [ordonez.kathy132@gmail.com] 
Friday, June 21, 2013 7:16 PM 
City Council 
Villa capitola 

I urge you to approve this long overdue project. JUN 212013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 
Sincerely, 
Kathy Ordonez 

Sent from my iPad 

1 



-381-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN __ ___ _ 

james scotto [circlejs1@sbcglobal.net] 
Sunday, June 23, 2013 6:59 PM 

Item 8-8 _ 

City Council; planningcommission@ci.capitola.ca.u 
[?? Probable Spam] Letter to the Council 

To Whom it may concern; 

JUN 2 3 2013 
ClTY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

My name is James Scotto and I am 70 years old, live in Redwood City CA and writing this email because a 
friend had told me about 'a potential retirement structure being built in Capitola' which I checked out with the 
couple that is developing the project. I think their idea sounds great and definitely a good fit for someone like 
me. 

Being in Capitola it's a great location, it's small not a big project so fits with the community. It will allow myself 
(a senior) to be more independent with easy walking access to stores, entertainment, doctors etc .. Great 
opportunity for that part of the neighborhood. 

My understanding is there is a struggle for Mr. and Mrs. Thomas to get the project off the ground so thought it 
would be good idea to let the planning commission know what potential tenants might think. 

Thank you, 

James Scotto 

1809 Anamore St 

Redwood City, CA 94062 

1 



-382-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
. . _.JITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-·13 

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Kathy Ordonez [kathy@ccmmortgage.com} 
Sunday, June 23, 2013 3:29 PM 
City Council; PLANNING COMMISSION 
Villa Capitola 

Council Members/Commissioners: 

I am writing in support of the above project. 

Item 8.8. 

JUN 2 3 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

There is a huge need for senior housing in Capitola and Villa Capitola would be a welcome addition to the city. Located 
ideally near a shopping center and on 38th Avenue, an area in need of revitalization, this beautifully styled building would 
be great for seniors and also a benefit to the local businesses in the area. 

I hope that the seniors in Capitola and surrounding areas can be assured of your support for this vital project. 

Sincerely, 
Kathy Nino 

1 



-383-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dear City Council, 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN....,,, ,.,-L-, 

nancy dilley [ndilley@gmail.com] 
Sunday, June 23, 2013 7:23 PM 
City Council; PLANNING COMMISSION 
Note to the City Planning Committee 

Item 8.8. 

RE: Maureen and Steve Thomas potential Retirement development in Capitola 

JUN 2 3 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

My name is Nancy Dilley and When Maureen and Steve told me about their plans for developing their property into a 
retirement community I thought that's PERFECT for me as I'll be looking for a location once I retire next 4 or 5 years. I've 
been following along with their progress and feel there might be a need to express my thoughts on how much of a need 
there is for something like this. 

• Senior housing that is within walking distance of stores, personal services, doctor offices. Entertainment nearby. 

• I really believe in the idea of keeping the building of new structures within high density areas as I abhor the idea of 
tearing apart.open space to build YET another building. 

• Beautiful structure, it will definitely 'bring up the nearby neighborhood'. 

• Also the size, it's not gigantic, its intimate and homey size. Won't be an eye sore within the neighborhood. 

• It's perfect for senior's especially my age with it's location and fully independent style of living. 

I hope the project is approved and they can proceed. Please contact me if you'd like to talk further. 

Thank you, 

Nancy Dilley 

124 Vera Ave 

Redwood City, CA 94061 

Nancy Dilley 
650-363-1406 

1 



-384-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

/"\uaJITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

. jam es scotto [ circlejs 1@sbcglobal.net] 
Sunday, June 23, 2013 7:00 PM 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
Letter to the Council 

Item 8.B . 

To Whom it may concern; 

JUN 2 3 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

My name is James Scotto and I am 70 years old, live in Redwood City CA and writing this email because a 
friend had told me about 'a potential retirement structure being built in Capitola' which I checked out with the 
couple that is developing the project. I think their idea sounds great and definitely a good fit for someone like 
me. 

Being in Capitola it's a great location, it's small not a big project so fits with the community. It will allow myself 
(a senior) to be more independent with easy walking access to stores, entertainment, doctors etc .. Great 
opportunity for that part of the neighborhood. 

My understanding is there is a struggle for Mr. and Mrs. Thomas to get the project off the ground so thought it 
would be good idea to let the planning commission know what potential tenants might think. 

Thank you, 

James Scotto 

1809 Anamore St 

Redwood City, CA 94062 

1 



-385-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN .... ,,..., .... 

Item 8.8. 
Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Bill Haley [wsh13@me.com] 
Friday, June 21, 2013 7:31 PM 
City Council · 

Subject: Fwd: Seniors 

Sent from my iPad 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Bill Haley <wshl3@me.com> 
Date: June 21, 2013 6:16:04 PM PDT 

JUN .2 3 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 
. CITYCLERK 

To: "citycouncil(a),council.ci.capitola.ca.us" <citycouncil@council.ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: Seniors 

Sent from my iPad·. Looking over some recent votes it's seems clear that some council members 
are against seniors having housing in Capitola. Let's vote yes for the very big Marriott ,that 
looms over all the houses right next to it , but don't allow Villa Capitola to move forward ,which 
has one house behind it . Latest stall is parking for workers, REALLY , Lets see how many 
employes does GAIL'S have ? And they share a parking lot with others. Call it what you will ,a 
no vote is a no to seniors. When's the next election. We will be watching, WSH 

1 



-386-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf DITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA6-27-13 
Item 8.B. 

Sneddon, Su 

From: Patricia Rogers [patricia.rogers.math@gmail.com] 
Sunday, June 23, 2013 2:10 PM Sent: 

To: City Council JUN 2 3 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

Cc: PLANNING COMMISSION 
Subject: Active Senior Residence in Capitola 

Dear Capitola Council Members and Planning Commission members, 

I am writing to you today to ask for your support and approval of an active senior living 
residence in Capitola. This is exactly they type of facility I see myself living in upon retiring: 
close to the beach and medical facilities, excellent year-round climate and a safe community. 
All of this and allowing me to remain active as I enjoy my retirement! 

While I drive now, I realize this will not always be possible, so I will eventually look for a 
facility that has proximity to public transportation or one that is within walking distance to 
needed services. This proposed facility is just that! In fact, it is a beautiful facility, one 
that will help begin the revitalization of 38th Avenue. 

When my parents became unable to stay in their own home, due to failing vision and illnesses, 
. I were dismayed at having them stay in a large, sterile, impersonal.facility. This beautiful 
~building will be an attractive alternative for so many seniors in our area, making it a wise 
i decision for Capitola and the surrounding communities,. 

I encourage you to openly consider the proposed senior facility in Capitola that will provide 
for many of our senior population. · 

Thank you for your time, 

t Patricia Rogers 
! 
[ 

1 



-387-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN _____ _ 

Patty Vagts [pattyvagts@yahoo.com] 
Sunday, June 23, 2013 4:57 PM 
City Council; PLANNING COMMISSION 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

Item 8-8. 

JUN 2 3 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

My healthy ambulatory nearly 90 year old mother needs housing exactly like the Villa Capitola Senior 
Housing project proposed by Steve Thomas and Maureen Romac. Currently there is no senior 
housing in Capitola that I am aware of. This development will be high density, small and personal and 
ideally located, which is what Capitola could really use. 
The community would benefit, Le. businesses and services in town, while saving open space and the 
environment. 
The proposed architecture would enhance the neighborhood and provide needed ·housing within 

walking distance of stores, salons, and other services active seniors need. 
My Mom has been amazingly healthy and independent, yet will soon need the support and 

surroundings Villa Capitola would provide. The Senior population is growing rapidly and we will need 
more housing for this age group. · 
This specific facility is an excellent start for our elderly populatron. 

Sincerely, 
Hale and Patty Vagts 

1 



-388-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
.. -.JITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

Item 8.8. 

Vf LLA ~APlTOLA 

Hello Mr. Ow. In response to your letter I must say I can appreciate the journey you and 
your family have experienced .King's Plaza shopping center is a great example of hard work 
and determination. I was born in San Francisco to a rather humble Italian family, my wife 
Maureen Romac and I have lived in Aptos for 20 years. Maureen is a teacher in Gilroy.I have 
operated Capitola Freight and salvage for the last 9 years. Maureen myself and business 
partner John Schraub purchased the property 11 years ago. We have always been neighbor 
friendly and operated in a manner that is harmonious with our surroundings. This site was 
chosen because of its location. The opportunity for active seniors to live dose to services 
that your center provides is a key to its success. We began our feasibility study 1 year before 
discussing it with the City of Capitola. We have been working on design now for almost 2 
years Part of our success will actually be what your concern is, activity from our neighbor at 
I<ing's Plaza. Mitigation of any exterior noise will accomplished in 3 ways 

1) Increased setbacks from 381
h avenue including a 9ft sidewalk a 24ft landscape strip to 

the face of our building with including non fruiting olive trees. This will position 
Villa Capitola 84ft from the rear of your center and 170ft from the rear of Orchard 
Supply Hardware .2) We have designed our building in a "stepped fashion" that 
positions our residences even further back from adjoining properties and the 
roadway.3) Any residences that may be close to "noise" will have mitigating 
strncture, windows and appropriate landscaping already conditioned by the city. 

Mr. Ow I can assure you that any resident at Villa Capitola will be aware of your concern 
and it will be part of our CC&Rs they sign upon leasing. Many seniors who are interested in 
living at Villa Capitola look forward to the atmosphere and watching the world go by. This 
again is the reason for choosing this location, it's perfect. In the last 2 years we have reduced 
our overall size from 4 sto1y 67 units to 3 story and 23 residences primarily studio and 1 
bedroom units. \Y/e have 35 private non contiguous parking stalls. We have completed a 
parking/ traffic study that concludes we have ample parking and low measurable impact on 
traffic. We have reached out to our neighbors and welcome their input on any additional 
landscaping ideas they may have. Mr. Ow once again I ask for your support on our project 
and look forward to working with you in the future. 

Sincerely, Steve Thomas 

JUN 24 2013 
· CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 



-389-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Hello, 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGENL,,,'"' ,_, 
Item 8.B. 

msawyer2729@yahoo.com 
Monday, June 24, 2013 11 :04 AM 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

JUN 2 4 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

My name is Mark Sawyer and I am the President and CEO of MAS Financing. I am writing to offer my support 
for the Villa Capitola Senior Housing project. I have a 75 year old mother that I would like to have 
near me for the remainder of her life. The City of Capitola is a place that she would love to re-locate 
to. The Villa Capitola Senior Housing project would be ideal for her, since it would meet all of her 
and my family's needs. It would allow my mother receive the care in an environment that is 
conducive to relaxation versus stress, as well as to shop locally which is one of her favorite 
pastimes. I also would like to one-day retire in the Capitola area and would love to have the perfect 
senior living community for me as well. 

I have 

Feel free to contact me at anytime if you would like additional feeclback or have additional inquiry. 

Thanks in advance for your time and support. 

Mark Sawyer 
President/CEO 
MAS Financing 

408-449-7736 

1 



-390-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
___ .DITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

6125113 

Item 8.8. 

Tatyana Teeuwisse [tatyana@teeuwisse.info] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 2:58 PM 
City Council 
38th Ave rezoning appeal 

Dear Mayor and Council Members, 

JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 
· CITYCLERK 

It has come to our attention that the owners and developers of 1575 38th Avenue would have Council believe 
that the surrounding neighbors are in support of their proposed rezoning and building plans. 

We wish to make it abundantly clear that we are OPPOSED to a rezoning to PD which--according to the Plan 
denied twice by the Planning Commission--would entail unfavorable changes to current mass, scale, and 
setback recommendations for this CN zoned lot. We are concerned a~out privacy, shading, noise, traffic, 
parking, and incongruency with the surrounding neighborhood. With respect, please consider this message from 
Planning Meeting 616113 Chair Mick Routh: "The zoning ordinance is a covenant .with the public guaranteeing 
that their property will be safe guarded from incompatible uses or building design not reflecting the zoning 
requirements. Allowing the formation of a PD District and proposed development that does not adhere to the 
CN zoning standards amounts to spot zoning and denies the public those safe guards inherent in the zoning 
ordinance." 

An appropriately zoned building offering senior housing would be welcome in our neighborhood. The plan 
being appealed before you this week is not. 

Signed, 

1. Theresa Stolaroff 1550 Bulb Ave 
2. Jerry Stolaroff 1550 Bulb Ave 
3. Savanah Stolaroff 1550 Bulb Ave 
4. Tony Ainsworth 1535 Bulb Ave 
5. Rebecca Russell 1484 Bulb Ave 
6. Toni Schwab 1482 Bulb Ave 
7. Mike Schwab 1482 Bulb Ave 
8. Lisa Lindeman 1525 Bulb Ave 
9. Ron Goad 1560 Bulb Ave 
10. Angelo Raffaelli 1540 Bulb Ave 
11. Pauline Raffaelli 1540 Bulb Ave 
12. Anita Rafaelli 1540 Bulb Ave 
13. Ray West 1520 Bulb Ave 
14. Kimberly Frey 1530 Bulb Ave 
15. Don Mosegard 1530 Bulb Ave 
16. Bart Teeuwisse 1595 3gth Ave 
17. Tatyanna Teeuwisse 1595 381

h Ave 
18. Sharon Barnes 1574 Bulb Ave 
19. Scott Barnes 1574 Bulb Ave 
20. Greg Avila 1515 Bulb Ave 
21. Emil Diego 1470 Bulb Ave 

1 



-391-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGENLJr. u-£. 1 - 1.., 

Tracy Soares [4soaresrus@sbcglobal.net] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 4:37 PM 

Item 8.8 .. 

City Council 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing JUN 2 5 .2013 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
Dear City Council Members: CITY CLERK 

I'm writing you today in hopes that this new senior housing will be approved. I am the 
daughter-in-law of an elderly man. My mother-in-law passed several years ago, and 
recently we started looking for a place like Villa Capitola for my father-in-law. THERE 
ARE NONE! He is very active and social, but driving and maintaining a home, will be 
getting difficult before long. A place like Villa Capitola will be perfect for people like my 
father-in-law and other seniors. The area is perfect for active seniors, with so many 
stores within walking distance. The structure of this development will certainly add to 
the beautification of this area. I would love to have my father-in-law be able to move 
into such a perfect home; not feel institutionalized like so many of the other homes out 
there. Our seniors need to know that just because they are retired they can still be a 
functional part of society. Remember, someday you or your loved one may need a 
place to live out the "Golden Years", wouldn't it be nice to have a place like "Villa 
Capitola" to call home. 

Sincerely, Mrs. Soares 

1 



-392-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

ru ... .JITIONAL MATERIAL 

terijohnson@juno.com 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 9:57 PM 
City Council 
[?? Probable Spam] Senior Housing 

To Whom It May Concern: 

AGENDA 6-27-13 
Item 8.B. 

JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

I am writing to underscore the need for affordable senior living in beautiful Capitola. My husband and I are still 
working, but planning our retirement in five years. As 3 7 year residents of the Central Coast, we believe that 
Capitola is just the place! Unfortunately, there are few choices there. 

A small high-density senior community would be just perfect to support our active lifestyle. A place within 
walking distance of stores, restaurants, and inevitable doctor visits in such a beautiful place would meet our 
needs in a wonderful way. We would love to move to Capitola! 

The fastest growing age group in the United States is cun-ently the elderly. This new generation of elders is 
living healthy right to the end. Setting ourselves up for future success is what we are doing by asking that you 
approve the project being put forward by Steve Thomas and Maureen Romac. 

Thank you for your consideration! 

Sincerely, 
Teresa Johnson 

Virgin Mobile® 
Official Site: Great Phones, Free Shipping & Plans Starting at $35/mo 
virginmobileusa.com 

1 



-393-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN ..... , ':•.rL- I - I..., 

Item 8.B. 
Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Tewolde Berhane [tbbadua@gmail.com] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 9:15 AM 
City Council 
planningcommision@ci.capitola.ca.us 
[?? Probable Spam] Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

My name is Tewolde B. Berhane. I have lived in Sonora, CA since I came to the United States as a foreign 
exchange student when I was 15 years old. I went to college, got my education and I am now 63 and ready to 
slow down and take life a little easier. 

I have always loved the City of Capitola and spent many Summers visiting the beaches, eating out at good 
restaurants and enjoying the beauty of the surroundings. 

It has been my ultimate goal to, somehow be able to move and live down here. What a perfect situation, where 
you have a place to live and don't have to worry about transportation around town (everything is within walking 
distant) or travel elsewhere, because you know all is safe in this exclusive, gated senior housing. 

It is my wish that the City Council of Capitola has the vision to approve this· project in its entirety. 

Tewolde B. Berhane' 
Addis Construction Co. 
T- 209.743.1205 
F - 209.532-5129 
tbbadua@gmail.com 
www.addisconstructioncompany.com 

1 



-394-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
1-\u.JITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

From: Terri Ortiz 

Terri Ortiz [Terri.Ortiz@gusd.k12.ca.us] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 1 :42 PM 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
FW: New Senior Living Residence 

Sent: Tue 6/25/2013 1:39 PM 
To: citycouncil@ci.capitola.ca.us 
Subject: New Senior Living Residence 

To whom it may concern: 

Item 8.8. 

JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

I live and work in Gilroy. My home and my job are within one mile of a senior active living residence, Village Green. It 
was much needed in our community and has been a great success. Many of our teachers have parents in this residence 
and have very positives things to say. And I feel Capitola would benefit from the same type of senior residence. 

Village Green is near shopping and also has a shuttle service. The have a swimming pool and several activities for 
Seniors and their families. It is the kind of place I could see my Mother in or even myself. · 
They held a Senior Ball for the first time a couple of years ago. One of our teachers said her .Mother cried because she 
said if her husband were alive he would love it. She and her Mother talked about the Senior Ball for weeks. Her Mother 
looks forward to the Senior Ball every year. 

Many of our student in our middle school volunteer at Village Green. Now a days many of our young people do not have 
close relationships with grandparents. Our students have enjoyed volunteering at Village Green. One student said, "I 
didn't know old people knew good jokes!" Seniors bring a lot to the community. 

For the first time I'm not afraid to get old. They seem to have a pretty good time. Please consider what a Senior Living 
Residence would do for your community, families and seniors. 

Sincerely, 

Terri Ortiz 
Office CoordinatOr 
Solorsano Middle School 
Direct (408) 337-3000 
(408) 848-4121 
Fax (408) 848-4154 

1 



-395-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dear City Council, 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN ... ,,,,., '"' 

spicer@cruzio.com 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 1 :24 PM 
City Council 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

Item 8.8. 

JUN 2 5 2013 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CITY CLERK 

I have been following with great interest the senior housing development project on 38th Avenue in Capitola. 

I have lived up the street in Pleasure Point since 1988 and can't think of a better place to grow old. However, I've noticed 
there is no housing for 
active seniors in Capitola. This project is perfect for seniors who are 
independent and want to continue to live vibrant, active lives. 

I'm not that many years away from having to move to senior housing. I can see myself living at Villa Capitola mainly 
because of its location. It is near everything I would ever need plus I could easily walk to wherever I need to go. 

I have had aunts and uncles who have lived in those high-rise, hotel-type facilities and, quite frankly, that's not for me. 
Much too impersonal. I want to keep the small town feeling yet have all the services I need at hand. 

I urge you to give a unanimous "YES" vote on Villa Capitola Senior Housing! 

Thank you. 

Joan Spicer 
701 41 st Avenue 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
(831) 464-768 

1 



-396-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

. __ .JITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

Ray Chapman [rayjchapman@gmail.com] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 8: 19 AM 
PLANNING COMMISSION; City Council 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

Item 8.8. 

JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

What a great place for good senior living! 
Located near everything a resident could ask for is in line with the local government's desire to encourage 
denser housing in urban areas. 
This road really needs a face lift and Villa Capitola is a helpful boost in that direction. 

Best Regards 
Ray Chapman 

1 



-397-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGENu/"'\ v-£.1-1v 

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Ray Chapman [rayjchapman@gmail.com] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 8:12 AM 
City Council; PLANNING COMMISSION 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

Item 8.8. 

JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

Having a mother who is nearing 90, I would welcome a facility that wold provide safe housing. 
The fact that the residents can also utilize a pool and exercise room is also a plus. 
Active seniors would be able to walk to the theater, shopping mall and various restaurants. 

This type of residence would enhance the feeling of community. 
I support this project. 

Signed, 
Kathy Vagts 

1 



-398-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf DITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

I m [layne4m@gmail.com] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 10:40 AM 
City Council; PLANNING COMMISSION 
38th Ave "Villa Capitola" Senior living 

Dear City Council and Planning, 

Item 8.B. 

JUN 2 5 2G13 
C\TY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

I am a local resident with the experience of caring for my aged parents and dealing with local senior housing. 
My parents have passed on now but the experience of having to relocate them from their beloved cool coastal 
environment to an inland corporate behemoth of senior care is still fresh for me. 

Unfortunately, there was no room at the inn for my parents other than the disturbing local residential care 
facilities and the huge Dominican Oaks facility which had a waiting list. They had always been 

private quiet people and the idea of huge dining rooms and buildings with multiple wings ramping up the hill 
was frightening for them. A local, well designed, and small facility for a personal living experience is what the 
local area needs to encourage. 

The location and Mediterranean design proposed for Villa Capitola would seem ideal. Close to shopping, 
entertainment, and transportation the Villa would be an dramatic improvement of the 38th Ave that currently 
exists. It is not too large and provides for it's own parking. Perhaps it would encourage more well designed 
development and pull the area up into what Capitola wants to see rather than what is left from years of mixed 
use leavings. 

Please consider the needs of the senior population to stay in their familiar area. You too may have experience 
with parents or other loved ones, knowing how important familiar and personal surroundings are. We will all be 
there sooner or later. Let's make sure good options exist for all of us. 

Thank you for listening to a concerned citizen. 

Layne McNaughton 

1 



-399-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN...," v-'",- ,.., 

Item 8.8. 
Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Mick Routh [qwakwak@gmail.com] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 9:04 AM 
City Council 
Mick Routh 
38th Ave Senior Housing Application 

Reseeding just to make certain all of you have seen this. 

6/8/2013 

Mayor and Council members, 

·JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

At the Thursday June 6, 2013 meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission the Commission voted 3-2 to deny the staff 
recommendation for approval of the 38th Ave senior housing application. 

The following concerns were raised.The Commission requested that these concerns be addressed by the Council if and 
when the Planning Commission decision is appealed to your body. 

1. The mass and scale of the project is too large for the site. 

2. Parking is inadequate. When 6-8 employees plus a shuttle bus are utilizing on-site parking, there is not enough parking 
for the tenants. In addition, and related, there is no condition restricting the age of tenants. The Commission supported 
setting a minimum age limit of 65 years. The Commission believed setting an age limit at less than age 65 will result in 
additional parking impacts as most couples less than age 65 are both working and own two vehicles. Even with the 
condition of age 65, Commissioners felt the number of parking spaces would still not be adequate.The Commission also 
supported a condition requiring tenants to park on-site. No overflow parking to be allowed in the Kings Plaza center. 

3. The Commission was concerned that without a condition requiring tenants to be a minimum age, if the project C.id not 
meet occupancy projections of seniors, it may revert to renting to any age tenants, compounding the potential parking 
problems. Capitola Villas was cited as an example. 

4. The project does not rise to the threshold of exceptionality to allow the required findings to be made to establish a PD 
District of less than 4 acres. It was stated that the zoning ordinance is a covenant with the public guaranteeing that their 
property will be safe guarded from incompatible uses or building design not reflecting the zoning requirements. Allowing 
the formation of a PD District and proposed development that does not adhere to the CN zoning standards amounts to 
spot zoning and denies the public those safe guards inherent in the zoning ordinance. 

5. The Commission wants the redwood trees on the storage facility property protected by having an arborist on-site when 
the construction takes place on the south side of the property adjacent to the redwood trees. There was particular concern 
about the. area where the proposed project has a zero lot line set back, which may result in root system destruction and 
excessive trimming. It was also discussed that an arborist report should be required for that area prior to construction. 

6. The landscape plans and renderings do not agree. A large palm tree shown in the renderings is not included in the 
landscape plans. 

7. The Commission requested that if the application is approved, the applicant return to the Commission with a lighting 
and drainage plan. 

8. Require language in the tenant lease/rental agreement that the tenant acknowledges that adjacent commercial uses 
may generate noise during deliveries and garbage pick up. 

There were several other minor concerns that may or may not be reflected in the minutes but are available thru viewing of 
the recording of the meeting. 

Mick Routh 
Capitola Planning Commission Chair 

1 



-400-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

. . _.JITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

Karen Tobin [karent222@hotmail.com] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 10:58 AM 
City Council; PLANNING COMMISSION 

Item 8.8. 

[?? Probable Spam] Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

To Whom it May Concern: 

JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

Just wanted to express my positive opinion on the new plan for active senior housing in Capitola. This project 
would provide an excellent living environment for seniors that are still able to do their own errands and 
shopping and at the same time, it would boost local retail sales, bringing more revenue to Capitola. 

This would be the perfect type of home and location that I would love when I have the need to downsize and 
want to limit my driving as a senior. 

Please approve this project - the need for senior housing is very high and continuing to grow in many areas. 

Karen Tobin 
Real Estate Broker 
CA DRE #01387577 

650 743-7636 Direct 
650 879-0485 Home Office 

www. Karen To bin.net 

1 



-401-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN~,,..., ..... 

Jan Katsuda [jankatsuda@yahoo.com] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 5:43 PM 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

Item 8.B. 

JUNJS--2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 
As a resident of Capitola, I would like to express my support of the Villa Capitola Senior Housing project. The design of 
this project would greatly enhance the 38th Avenue corridor. At 23 units I don't believe traffic will be an issue. Tha 
proximity to every type of shopping negates the need to use a car on a daily basis. The city needs more senior housing 
and there couldn't be a more perfect site. 

Jan Katsuda 
1126 Sutherland Ln 
Capitola, Ca 95010 

1 



-402-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

To whom it may concern, 

___ DITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

AB. Bossak [bbossak@yahoo.com] 
Tuesday, June 25, 2013 2:15 PM 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
Senior Living Center on 38th Ave 

Item 8.B. 

JUN 2 5 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

We have been aware of the proposed construction of a senior living center on 38th ave, and we are very 
concerned as to why such a needed project has been rejected so many times. This project will really improve the 
area visually as well as financially for the city. Where it stands right now, it really looks like an eyesore. Why 
would the city reject such an idea, which would be privately funded and bring nothing but positive attributes to 
this area of the city. We hope that the city can come to a condusion and promote business like this in Capitola, 
and not stand against it because of small formalities. 
Sincerely, 
Andre & Barbara Bossak, MF A 
Capitola home owners for 30 years. 

1 



-403-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
ADDITIONAL MATERIAJ:iE~~~·.'"' ~· 

JUN 2 5 2013 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

To the Capitola City Council and Planning Commission, 

June 17, 2013 

I am writing this letter to share my disappointment that the Planning Commission did not vote in favor 

of the senior housing project on 33th Avenue. I am 84 years old and have been living at Dominican Oaks 

for 5 years and have known Steve and Maureen for years. I have encouraged and supported them since 

the beginning of this idea. I have been patiently waiting to be one of their first residents. I would rather 

live in a smaller complex and be able to walk to do my errands. I no longer drive by my own choice (and 

no one would probably want me to!). I am not so old that I don't enjoy shopping and eating out in public 

with everyone else. I hope that you will see the need for more senior housing in the middle of town and 

allow them to build it. 

RespectfullYyours, 



-404-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf. __ .JITIONAL MATERIAL 

Ju.¥l.£/ 22, 2013 

AGENDA 6-27-13 
Item 8.B. · 

I CCA111wvl:t"~011; b-eJuilf ofth-0 pvopmeCi ~ v~ 
VillcvCocpu~ I cuw85 yeetr¥cildt~~b€/~ 
for cvvet""vv~~ I do-not-wcuit-t"o-~e-up my h&me,, 

b-ut' u wt"oo- mucJv wor'fv now ~I CiAnt by myJtilf. I «tli 
d.Ywe-~I n.eed;t"o-g-et-t"o-ccppo£ntwieni:¥~fhe; 

g-yocery ft"or& Whe¥Vt:hht"LAne1~I wo-uUipve{evt"o-LiNe-~ 

CV h&me,, ~ vaicv Cccpudlcv. I COtAJ.d; wcUlv "to- my 
et;ppoint:nwd¥· ~}hopp~by my1tilf, I co-ulcL-wcdlvt"o-fhe,, 

mov~ ~fhe,, book.1itor& I hcwe- alway¥ bee,n; cv 

hil<,e,v/wcilkev ~ wo-uUi oo ciOlbt"o-wcdlvt"o-the,,, beach: My 
chililveAtV ~ g-yCfAltdchildrevv LWe-~ Cccpuolcv ~Apt"01r .\-& 

I co-ulcL- et4o-v0rtt"themt ~ not" hcwe-t"o-:put: themt ou:t" by 

it-ay~ overVU1fht; fhe, Loca:t"wvv w perfect; for Wtet ~ 
ev~I n.eed;w~by. Ihope-yOtNwaLt"~my 

~¥~ ~ tAtl.1;o-~at""'w-rvwhe¥VyOtN~ 

whether or not" t"o- bulldt U: 

lhan1v y01» for YOU¥ t"LA'Jlte) 

A mellcv I. 'Ro-m.ao 



-405-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEr~ ..... ,, v-,, - ,.., 

From, 
Sam Roy M.RA., M.A.CCC-SLP 
Cell: 408-329-3272 

To, 
The City Council Members & Planning Commission 
Capitola, California 

Item 8.8. 

RECEIVED 

JUN 2 5 2013 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Re: Letter of Support: Senior Housing Project proposed by Steve Thomas and Maureen Romac 

Respected Members of the City Council & the Planning Commission, 

It ts with confidence and great hope that I write this letter in support qfthe Senior Housing Project 
proposed by my dear colleagues and friends Maureen Romac and Steve Thomas 

I have known Maureen and Steve for over 2 years. Maureen and 1 have worked together in the 

Student Services department at Gilroy Unified School District. Maureen and Steve are honest, law 
. abiding, outstanding citizens and I appeal, on their behalf, to you to approve their proposal for the 
reasons delineated below: 

1) The city of Capitola and Santa Cruz County have shown an increase in the median age 
population, which now stands at 41.9 years. In addition, Capitola has also seen an increase in 
the percentage of population over 65 years which stands atl5.5% (2010 DS Census). With these 
hard statistics planning for senior housing becomes a logical step 

2) The development of senior housing complex that caters to their needs would alleviate the 
pressures on already overburdened and overstretched government medical and social agencies. 
Hy developing an assisted living complex such as this, the services could be more concentrated 

and best evidence based practices could be provided at a one stop shop. 
3) The development of this senior housing complex would assure these Senior Citizens a safe and 

secure environment. 
4) The location of this facility is ideal for the residents to undertake strolls to the nearby markets 

and entertainment centers, which would prove to be a boost to the local economy. 

5) Finally, Steve Thomas and Maureen Roma:c have already undertaken every recommendation 
made by your August body, remodeling the plans and chai:ts as directed, and made this facility 

into a personal. abode of care and rest forthe Senior Citizens, who deserve their well-earned 

retirement. 

As stated earlier, it is my earnest plea that you would approve this Project without any further delay. 

If.you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me on 408-329-3272. Thanking you in 

anticipation. 



-406-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

To whom it may concern 

)ITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

kerry wessberg [cowgirlkerry@gmail.com] 
Wednesday, June 26, 2013 9:30 AM 
City Council 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
38th Ave Villa Capitola Support 

Item 8.B. 

JUN 96 2013 
C\TY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

I am a local resident and work in Capitola. I have one parent left and she is in a retirement home locally. It is 
very large and very expensive. It is hard for older people to adjust to such a large community. They tend to go 
down hill when moving into a large impersonal facility. 

The Capitola community needs to make available to it's older residents safe, personal, and comfortable places 
which are close to stores and transportation as most will be unable to drive. The location of Villa Capitola at 
38th and Capitola Ave is a very good location for housing such as this. Let's beautify the area with a modem 
building in classic design which functionally supports the older residents. 

Sincerely, 

Kerry Wessberg 

1 



-407-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Council Members, 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN 

stella De Genova [stellanova@comcast.net] 
Wednesday, June 26, 2013 11 :30 AM 
City Council 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Item 8.8. 

[??Probable Spam] Proposed·Senior Housing in Capitola 

JUN 28 20f3' 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

We have become aware of a Senior Housing Development that has been proposed on the site of the current Capitola 
Freight and Salvage property. · 
My husband and I are both senior citizens and consider this development a vital addition to the Capitola area. Not only 
will the Mediterranean Architecture enhance the whole neighborhood but also it will supply the vital need for more Active 
Senior Housing. The proximity to shopping, medical and Holistic services and transportation will allow for more 
independent living. 
In conclusion we hope you revise and allow the Senior Housing project to move forward. 
Respectfully, 

Stella and Dave De Genova 

1 



-408-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf
,.......,.JITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

Jonatkn Wi«-r 
Willi.un P. Par.L:in 
Ry .... D. Moron.er 
Nioole G. Di Camillo 

Item 8.8. 

WITTWER & PARKIN, LLP 
147 SOUTH RIVER STREET, SUITE 221 

SANTA CRUZ, CAIJFORNIA 95060 
TELEPHONE. (83'1) 429-4055 

FACSIM.1LE. (831) 429...4067 
E-MAIL offioe@~oom 

June 26, 2013 

VIA EMAIL AND U.S. MAIL 

Capitola City Council 
City Hall Council Chambers 
420 Capitola Ave., Capitola, CA 95010 
Email: citycouncil@ci.capitola.ca.us 

OF COUNSEL 
Gary A. P•llon · 

Re: Appeal of Planning Commission Denial of Application # 13-061 for "Villa 
Capitola" Unassisted Senior Housing Project at 1575 38th Aven~e 

Dear City Councilmembers: 

This office represents Concerned Citizens Against 38th A venue Rezoning, an 
organization consisting ofresidents near the proposed "Villa Capitola" project ("Project") at 
1575 3gth Avenue. The City Planning Commission has twice recommended denial of the Project 
and ancillary land use approvals (on September 6, 2012 and most recently on June 6, 2013). The 
Project does not meet the criteria for a rezoning to a Planned Development ("PD") district. 
Moreover, the City has failed to make adequate findings to designate .the Project site to a PD 
zoning district. The Project also fails to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act, 
Public Resources Code § 21000 et seq. (CEQA) because it does not adequately address parking. 

1. The Project Site Fails to Meet the Conditions for Rezoning to a PD Zoning District 
and the City has Failed to Make Findings Justifying such a Rezoning 

a. Adequate Findings Have Not Been Made to Justify Rezoning of a Parcel to a PD 
District that is Less than 20% of the Size of the Standard 4-ar;:re Parcel Required 

Capitola Municipal Code § l 7.39.020(A) states that "[n]o PD district shall include less 
than four acres of contiguous land unless the planning commission, or the city council on appeal 
from the planning commission, finds that property ofless than four acres is suitable as a PD 
district by virtue of its unigue historical character, topography, land use or landscaping features" 
(emphasis added). The City's Resolution approving the rezoning of a 0. 72 acre parcel (only 18% 
of the usual 4 acre minimum) provides only a conclusory assertion that the parcel is "suitable as 
a PD district by virtue of its unique land use and because the project would provide a desirable 
living environment for seniors." No further evidence, explanation or justification in the · 
Resolution or Staff Report to the Council for allowing such a small parcel to be rezoned to a PD . 
District is provided, rendering this finding entirely inadequate. See, e.g., Topanga Ass 'n. for a 



-409-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Capitola City Council 
Re: 1575 38th Avenue 
June 26, 2013 
Page2 

Scenic Community v. County of Los Angeles (1974) 11 Cal.3d 506, 514 ("[T]he findings must 
support the decision and the evidence must support the findings."). Moreover, nothing about the 
land use on the site is "unique." 

b. Adequate Findings to Allow Exceptions to Zoning Standards Under Municipal 
Code§ 17.39. 020 Have Not Been Made 

Capitola Municipal Code§ 17.39.020(C) states that standards for "area, coverage, 
density, yard requirements, parking and screening ... shall be governed by the standards of 
the ... zoning district(s) most similar in nature and function to the proposed PD district use(s)," 
which the Planning Commission had determined is Neighborhood Commercial (CN), the current 
zoning on the parcel. The code states that "[e]xceptions to these standards maybe granted ... upon 
a finding that such exceptions encourage a desirable living environment and are warranted in 
terms of the total proposed development or unit thereof." The City has proposed numerous 
exceptions to CN zoning standards in regards to setbacks, building height and parking 
requirements, none of which are adequately justified in its findings. 

The City's Resolution states that "deviations to setbacks and height will not have 
undesirable effects which outweigh the benefits of twenty three (23) senior housing units ... " and 
further makes a conclusory "finding" that the project "would provide a desirable living 
environment for seniors." (Resolution, at 2). The City has therefore: (1) failed to address the 
actual finding required to be addressed regarding how the proposed exceptions are "warranted in 

·terms of the total proposed development"; and, (2) failed to justify a finding of how the 
exceptions "encourage a desirable living environment" for anyone, let alone only seniors 
residing in the proposed Project. Capitola Municipal Code§ 17.39.020(C). 

Furthermore, the Staff Report states that the proposed Project is most similar to a 
multiple-family residential use. Thus, the closest applicable standard for parking requirements 
would mandate 2.5 spaces per unit, totaling fifty-eight (58) spaces for the 23 proposed dwelling 
units (Staff Report at 4; Capitola Municipal Code§ 17.51.130(B)). However, only 35 parking 
spaces - only 60% of the required spaces - are proposed in the Project description. As with all of 
the other exceptions to the CN zoning proposed for this PD rezoning, the City has failed to 
adequately justify the reduction in parking spaces, making its findings for a PD district rezoning 
inadequate. See, e.g., Topanga, supra, 11 Cal.3d at 516 ("Among other functions, a findings 
requirement serves to conduce the administrative body to draw legally relevant sub-conclusions 
supportive of its ultimate decision; the intended effect is to facilitate orderly analysis and 
minimize the likelihood that the agency will randomly leap from evidence to conclusions.") 



-410-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Capitola City Council 
Re: 1575 38th Avenue 
June 26, 2013 
Page3 

2. The Project Fails to Comply with CEQA Because it Does not Adequately Address 
Parking or Aesthetics •. 

For this Project, the City has prepared a Mitigated Negative Declaration rather than an 
Environmental hnpact Report (EIR), to assess the Project's potential impacts on the environment 
and surrounding community. However, CEQA is designed to favor the preparation of an EIR 
because it is the best way to evaluate and document potential environmental impacts of projects. 
Specifically, preparation of an EIR rather than a negative declaration is required if there is 
"substantial evidence" in the whole record of proceedings that supports a "fair argument" that a 
project ''may" have a significant impact on the environment. See, Pub. Res. Code §§ 21082.2(a), 
21100, 21151; CEQA Guidelines § 15064(f)(l); No Oil, Inc. v. City of Los Angeles (1974) 13 
Cal.3d 68, 7 5; Communities for a Better Environment v. California Resources Agency (2002) 
103 Cal.App.4th 98, 111-112. "May'' in this context means a reasonable possibility. See, League 
of Protection v. City of Oakland (1997) (City of Oakland) 52 Cal.App.4th 896, 904-905; 
Sundstrom v. County of Mendocino (1988) 202 Cal.App.3d 296, 309. 

Courts have repeatedly affinned that the fair argument standard is a "low threshold test." 
The Pocket Protectors v. City of Sacramento (2004) 124 Cal.App.4th 903, 928. Evidence 
supporting a fair argument of any single potentially significant environmental impact triggers 
preparation of an Effi. regardless of whether the record contains contrary evidence in support of 
an agency's decision. See, City of Oakland, supra, 52 Cal.App.4th 896; Sundstrom, supra, 202 
Cal.App.3d at 310. Indeed, an EIR is the preferred vehicle for reviewing environmental impacts 
of a proposed project. 

One major purpose of an EIR is to inform other governmental agencies, and the 
public generally, of the environmental impact of a proposed project and to 
demonstrate to an apprehensive public that the agency has, in fact analyzed and 
considered the ecological implications ofits action [in approving a project]. 

No Oil Inc., supra, 13 Cal.3d at 86. 

With certain limited exceptions (not applicable here], a public ·agency must 
prepare an EIR whenever substantial evidence supports a fair argument that a 
proposed project will have a significant effect on the environment. Significant 
effect on the environment means a substantial, or potentially substantial adverse 
change in the environment. 

Laurel Heights Improvement Association v. Regents of the University of California (1993) 6 
Cal.4th 1112, 1123-1126. 



-411-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Capitola City Council 
Re: 1575 38th Avenue 
June 26, 2013 
Page4 

The California Supreme Court has "repeatedly recognized that the EIR is the 'heart of 
CEQA.' [Citations.]" Id. at 1123. As the court observed some three decades ago, "since the 
preparation of an EIR is the key to environmental protection under CEQA, accomplishment of 
the high objectives of that act requires the preparation of an EIR whenever it can be fairly argued 
on the basis of substantial evidence that the project may have significant environmental impact." 
No Oil, Inc., supra, 13 Cal.3d at 75. fudeed, all doubt should be resolved in favor of preparing 
an EIR particularly in close cases. Santa Teresa Citizen Action Group v. City of San Jose (2003) 
114 Cal.App.4th 689, 703; City of Oakland, supra, 52 Cal.App.4th at 905. 

Whether the administrative record contains "substantial evidence" in support of a "fair 
Argument" sufficient to trigger a mandatory EIR is a question oflaw;not a question of fact. City 
of Oakland, supra, 52 Cal.App.4th at 905; Architectural Heritage Association v. County of 
Monterey (2004) 122 Cal.App.4th 1095, 1122. Therefore under the fair argument standard, 
"deference to the agency's determination is not appropriate and its decision not to require an EIR 
can be upheld only when there is no credible evidence to the contrary." Sierra Club v. County of 
Sonoma (1992) 6 Cal App 4th 1307, 1318. See also, Stanislaus Audubon Society, Inc. v. County 
of Stanislaus (1995) 33 Cal.App.4th 144; Quail Botanical Gardens, supra at 1597 (rejecting an 
approval of a negative declaration prepared for a golf course holding that "[a ]pplication of [the 
fair argument] standard is a question oflaw and deference to the agency's determination is not 
appropriate.") 

Testimony of area residents can qualify as substantial evidence in support of a fair 
argument when based on personal observations relevant to a potential impact. See, City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea v. Board of Supervisors (1986) 183 Cal.App.3d 229, 246 :fu. 8; Oro Fino 
Gold Mining Corp. v. County of El Dorado (1990) 225 Cal.App.3d 872,882; Citizens Assoc. for 
Sensible Development of Bishop Area v. County of Inyo (1985) 172 Cal.App.3d 151, 173 (lay 
testimony as to traffic conditions); Quail Botanical Gardens, supra at 1604-1605; Arviv 
Enterprises v. South Valley Planning Commission (2000) 101 Cal.App.4th 1333 (personal 
observations of neighbors regarding slope, dust, erosion, and access problems supported EIR). 

Here, the Mitigated Negative Declaration is entirely inadequat~ with respect to parking 
and circulation impacts. The City makes the bald assertion that because the project is a "senior 
complex, it is anticipated the parking demand will be less than a standard market rate apartment 
complex." (Staff Report at 4). However, nothing in the Parking Analysis prepared by RBF 
Consulting supports this contention. Moreover, as raised by the Planning Commission Chair, 
there is currently no minimum age restriction for residence at the "Villa Capitola," further calling 
into question whether the other "senior residences" parking estimates used in the RBF Parking 
Analysis are applicable to this Project. Seniors can be as young as 55 in many residential 
complexes. This demographic drives just as much as other commuters and drivers. In fact, 



-412-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Capitola City Council 
Re: 1575 38th Avenue 
June 26, 2013 
Page5 

retirees in the demographic actually drive in and out of the complex J:.Q.ore often since they are 
not at an office or job site during weekdays. 

The reduction in parking sought by the PD rezoning also raises potential environmental 
impact issues that are not addressed at all in the Initial Study for the Project. Failure to address 
the proposed reduced parking and attendant parking, traffic, is a failure to proceed in a manner 
required by law. A fair argument has been made that an EIR is required. 

Finally, this Project will include a building that will be by far the tallest structure in the 
area. It is out of scale and character for the site and the neighborhood. This drastic special 
treatment for one landowner, to the detriment of the surrounding area, is an environmental 
impact that must be examined in an EIR.. The Mitigated Negative Declaration does absolutely 
nothing to address these aesthetic impacts. 

Thank you for your consideration of these comments. 

yyours, 
R & PARKIN, LLP 

I 

William P. Parkin 

cc: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager (via email only) 
Richard Grunow, Community Development Director (via email only) 



-413-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dear City Council: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN 

Nolan Bushnell [nbushnell@me.com] 
Wednesday, June 26, 2013 11: 13 PM 
City Council 
Villa Capitola senoir retirement housing 

Item 8.B. 

JUN S 7 2Ut3· 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

I encourage you to approve the above-referenced project. With a shortage of senior housing, this beautifully designed, 
well thought out facility will provide much needed living space for seniors. This relatively small facility will enhance the 
38th St neighborhood, and its residents will be a boon to the local businesses. 

It is really a win win for the community. 

Best, 
Nolan Bushnell 

1 



-414-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf )ITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Linda Wilshusen [l-j-w@pacbell.net] 
Thursday, June 27, 201311:05 AM 
City Council 
Agenda Item 88 re 23-Unit Senior Housing 

Dear Members of the City Council -

Item 8.8. 

I strongly support the staff recommendation to approve this proposal for senior housing on 38th Ave. As a Live Oak resident, I frequently 
shop in Capitola and often use 38th Avenue to access our regional shopping centers in that area. 

The location of this modest senior housing community, directly adjacent to a variety of shopping & services, makes a lot of sense. People 
will truly have an option to walk; this will be great for them & it will also enhance Capitola's image as a more pedestrian-friendly town. The 
Planning Commission's denial was dumbfounding. Nevertheless, the recent changes to the proposal make the project even better. 

This is a good fit for Capitola & much needed housing in our community. 

Thank you very much for your consideration. 

- Linda Wilshusen 

1 

JUN t 7 'l.1l\l 
err< Of CAP\TOLA 

C\TYCLERK 



-415-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEND 

Karen Ow [karenow1@hotmail.com] 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 2:06 PM 

Item 8.B. 

To: City Council; Stephanie @ Home; Storey, Sam; Bottorff, Ed; Norton, Dennis; DeWitt, Kym; 
Termini, Mike 

Subject: Proposed Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional use Permit, and Design Permit for 
1575 38th Avenue, Application #13-061 

Attachments: Letter supporting Villa Capitola.pdf 

Dear Capitola City Council Members, 
I have attached a letter (a hard copy will be sent in the mail today) from my father and uncles in support of the 
Proposed Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for 1575 38th Avenue 
(Application #13-061) for your review. Your consideration of my family's position on this matter prior to this 
evening's June 27, 2013 City Council meeting and inclusion of the letter's content in the public record is much 
appreciated. On behalf of the Ow Family, thank you for your great efforts and service provided to the 
community at large! 

Sincerely, 

Karen Ow 
King's Plaza Shopping Center 
1601 41st Avenue, Suite 202 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831)475-9042 office 
(831)475-2186 fax 
karenowl@hotmail.com 

1 

JUN 17 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 



-416-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

June 27, 2013 

Capitola City Council 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 
95010 

King's Plaza Shopping Center 
160141't Avenue, Suite 202 

Capitola, CA, 95010 
831-475-9042. Fax: 831-475-2186 

Re: Senior Housing Project, 1575 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA. 

Dear Capitola City Council 

We have met with the owners of 1575 Capitola Avenue and worked out our concerns in a written 
agreement that basically states that they accept King's Plaza Shopping Center as an operating shopping 
center, with its loading and garbage pickup areas on 3gth Avenue. 

in our conversations with Steve Thomas, we found out that he and his family have operated a business 
. there for the past 10 years and are well aware of what goes on at 38in Avenue with King's Plaza and 
tenants. He further stated that it was the goods and services that King's Plaza provided, that made their 
property a more valuable senior citizen housing site. We also took a good look at the business plan and 
building drawings. 

We now give our ful! support to the senior housing project. Maybe members of our family will live there 
some day. 

David Ow Terry Ow 



-417-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN[ 

Jim Machado [deluxecab101@gmail.com] 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 2:49 PM 
City Council 
Senior Complex 38th. Ave. 

Item 8.B. 

Dear Mayor and Council Members, 
As a resident of Capitola I support the retirement complex proposed for 38th ave. As a second thought it would 
be nice to see that part of 3 8th ave. repaved as it is in deplorable condition. 
Thank You, 
Jim Machado 

1 

JUN ,7 2013 
C\TY OF CAPITOLA 

C\TY CLERK 



-418-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

)ITIONAL MATERIAL AGENDA 6-27-13 

Holly Forcier [holly4seer@yahoo.com] 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 3:10 PM 
City Council 
Villa Capitola Senior 

Item 8.8. 

I am writing to encourage you to approve this development. Seniors need the high quality housing close to 
shopping that this development would provide. 

Thank You 

- Holly Forcier 
(831) 687-93 77 

1 

JUN 2'7 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 



-419-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdfADDITIONAL MATERIAL AGEN 
Item 8.8. 

JUN 17 2013 
Mayor Harlan and City Counci I Members, CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 
My name is Maureen Romac and I am the property owner of 1575 38th Avenue. Iam 

sending this email in order to bring everyone up to date before tonight's meeting. I 

will briefly review the progression of this senior residential project. 

In May 2011 the first submission was brought to the Planning Commission. The 

building consisted of 4 stories, 67 units and a height of 46 feet average for a total 

area of over 98,000 square feet. The direction from the City Council was to reduce 

the mass, scale_ and height. It went from 4 stories to 3 stories, 67 units to 57 

units. The total area was reduced by over 23,000 square feet. Any positives 

5 months later in October 2011 the project was presented to the City Council. 

Recommendations made at that time were to get: 

• a traffic and parking study done 

• a comprehensive environmental impact study done 

• to increase articulation on the building by adding 2nd and 3rd story balconies 

• to create a rooftop garden area 

• to add a skylight to illuminate interior common areas 

• to further reduce mass, scale and height 

All these recommendations were done. The parking and traffic study was 

completed and found that with 23 units there was adequate parking and low 

measurable impact on traffic. The City of Capitola prepared a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration determining that the project will not have a significant effect on the 

environment and that adoption of this declaration was appropriate. The California 

Environmental Quality Act (C.E.Q.A.) review process was completed and found low 

measurable impact in all areas. A roof top garden area and the skylight was added 

as recommended. The number of units was reduced from 57 to ·23. Setbacks were 

increased on all four sides. Height reduced by 3 more feet. Total area decreased 

another 14 ,000 square feet. 

11 months later we presented to the Planning Commission again. The planning staff 

recommended approval of the project and adoption of the Mitigated Negative 

Declaration. The Architectural and Site Review endorses the project. ALL the 



-420-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

required studies and reports were completed and resulted in positive findings. On 

September 6, 2012 the Planning Commission rejects the City Planning Staff 

recommendations and all submitted data declaring: 

• inconsistency with existing neighborhood 

• insufficient landscaping 

• insufficient setbacks on south side and eastside 

• privacy issues with balconies facing 2 residences on west ·side 

In response to these new concerns the two 44 foot towers facing the Bulb Avenue 

resident were eliminated and the balconies in back were removed. Landscaping was 

was increased to 7,000 square feet which is 23% of the site. Total area was once 

again reduced by 2,375 square feet and height reduced by another 3 feet. 

At this same time we began the appeal to City Council as we were directed by 

staff. On the day before we were scheduled to present before the City Counci I, we 

were notified that according to a little known ordinance, we could not appeal and 

the Planning Commission decision was final. After the ordinance was reviewed by 

the city attorney and found to be in error it was amended by the Planning 

Commission and City Council. This process took another 4 months. The amended 

ordinance allowing the City Council final approval on all planned developments went 

into effect last month. 

We were then sent back to the Planning Commission to present the latest revisions. 

On June 6th the Planning Commission denied the application for senior housing in a 

3-2 vote. At that meeting the Planning Commission added another list of 12 

conditions and concerns in case it was appealed to the City Council. The following is 

the list from the Planning Commission and how we are addressing the issues. 

1. Require language in the lease alerting tenants to potential noise from 

commercial uses. 

Agree to put in CC&R for tenants and signed letter from Ow family that this 

issue is resolved to their satisfaction. 

2. Age restriction of 65 and older 

Agree to put in CC&R but does not apply to employees. 

3. Final lighting plan must be approved by the Planning Commission. 



-421-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Agree. 

4. Submission of a drainage plan. 

Agree, not an issue. 

5. Landscaping plan must be approved by the Planning Commission. 

Agree and offered to get neighbor input. 

6. Establish a specific decibel level for rooftop equipment at a set number of 

feet from the building. 

In agreement, not an issue. 

7. Require the hiring on an arborist to confirm that current setbacks do not 

endanger existing redwood trees bordering the property and to be present 

during construction to assure that steps are taken to protect the trees. 

Already hired NATURE FIRST TREE CARE on 5738Soquel Drive in Sequel. 

8. Construct a lighted crosswalk to King's Plaza. 

In agreement. 

9. Confirm that the needs of seven staff, a shuttle van, visitor parking and 

possible assisted living workers have been considered in parking needs. 

Report by RBF Consulting concludes that "based on guidelines for senior 

housing land use as set forth by City of live Oak, City of Santa Cruz, City of 

Seaside and ITE, the proposed project is planned to provide adequate 

number of parking spaces'~ 

10. Prohibit parking in nearby business lots. 

Agree to add to CC&Rs. 

11. Ask the city attorney to review how to enforce parking restrictions or 

conditions 

1 assume this is directed to the City Council (and not the applicant). 

12. Require the applicant to work with adjoining property owners on the wall 

height. 

We have already proposed this previously and are in agreement. 

The issue of parking is interesting because everyone has their own opinion about 

how much parking is necessary. Since opinions vary we rely on current studies by 

experts in the field to give us a standard. That is why it was suggested that we use 

RBF, a national consulting firm used by Capitola and other municipalities, for this 

very purpose. In their expert opinion, 35 parking spaces are adequate for a 23 unit 



-422-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

senior living complex. This debate about parking encouraged me to look at parking 

for Gayle's Bakery, Pacific Trading Company, Unique Gifts, Petite Provence, and 

Many Hands Gallery. There are a total of 61 spaces for these 5 businesses to 

share. 3 of the spaces are handicap and 3 are yellow zone parking. The building 

capacity for Gayle's is 60 persons maximum in the main building (with seating for 

60 and standing room for many more) and 50 maximum on the patio (with seating 

for 62). There could be over 100 customers at Gayle's alone at any given meal time. 

As Mrs. Ortiz shared at the Planning Commission meeting she has over 140 

employees on duty at a time. It makes me wonder where do they all park? Some 

employees could ride bikes to work but I did not see a single bike o"r a bike rack. 

Some must park in the lot next door which has 15 parking spaces, 4 of which are 

blocked with dumpsters. Some employees must park on the neighboring streets. 

Some employees could take public transit, carpool or walk. With a proposed staff 

of 8-10 for Villa Capitola this would work. For employees AND customers I cannot 

see that 61 spaces is adequate parking even with a 1 hour limit. This directly 

relates to the concerns 9, 10, and 11 from the Planning Commission listed above. 

I would also like to comment on the concern voiced by Commissioner Routh 

regarding the planned development requirement of 4 acres or more. I believe there 

are currently 17 designated planned developments in Capitola, 12 of which are 

under 4 acres. There are exceptions for under 4 acres and we feel that the use of 

the land for needed senior housing meets that exception. It would be helpful to 

know the exceptions used by the other 12. I also believe there are no land plots 

left in Capitola that are over 4 acres. This is another reason why we need to start 

embracing some density in certain areas so that we preserve more open space. 

180 signatures have been collected to date with over 20 from Bulb Avenue 

residents. Copies of these petitions are in your packet. We have an additional 60 

signatures in support of this development. We have many additional supporters who 

would like to speak tonight but in the interest of time we suggested that they 

email instead. You have probably received these emails already. 

At this point it has been a little over 2 years since our first submission, and having 

survived countless revisions, studies completed, reports written, presentations 

given and a whole lot of money spent, we are back to ask approval of a project that 



-423-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

will benefit our growing senior population and our local businesses. Villa Capitola will 

be an asset to the community and the first of many improvemen'ts in the 

revitalization plan for this area. 

Respectfully yours, 

Maureen A. Romac 



-424-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Nancy Huyck [nancy@huyckarchitects.com] 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 3:31 PM 
City Council 
Villa Capitola Senior Housing 

Hello City Council Members, 

I have walked the site of the proposed Senior Housing several times and only see one residential rear neighbor window 
facing the property. Yes the north chiropractic office has windows facing the property but I don't feel that this should be a 
deal breaker. 

As far as the parking is concerned, Steve Thomas has hired traffic consultants and you should be listening to them 
instead of your own gut feeling. What is the purpose of hiring traffic engineers if you don't want to listen to them? 

Thanks for your consideration, 

Nancy Huyck 

JUN 2·7 2013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

1 



-425-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

Sneddon, Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Grunow, Rich 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 4:23 PM 
Barisone, John; 'Adair Paterno'; Goldstein, Jamie 
Uharriet, Danielle; Sneddon, Su 
FW: Application 13-061 

Importance: High 

FYI. Not sure if this should be included in the materials distributed to CC or not .... 

From: Charlene Atack [mailto:atack@atackpenrose.com] 
Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2013 3:41 PM 
To: Grunow, Rich 
Subject: Application 13-061 
Importance: High JUN J7 2013 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CITY CLERK 

I am sorry I do not have a legal formal response to the Wittwer & Parkin letter having received the letter so late 
but the following evidence supports that the PD is an appropriate zoning for the senior project. 

Land use relating to reductions in variations from zoning supporting PD. - The occupants will come here to be 
part of a family of similar ages and interests. They will have arranged transportation for off-site activities by our 
in house shuttle service. The location is well served by public transportation which is vital to seniors. The 
project will provide live in gardener and cook which they might not have in another setting therefore avoiding 
traffic, noise and congestion. The seniors will be active but there is no need for backyards as there might be for 
young families or teenagers. There in live in security so less burden and issues on the public services. The min 
age is not 55 as asserted by Mr. Parkin but 65 as required per the CC&RS and individuals at that age are 
usually transitioning to less driving of individual cars. There is a restriction on parking for occupants as they 
will not exceed the min per the conditions of approval of 1 space per each unit. . The PD allows a high quality 
service to seniors at an affordable price. In addition, the CC&Rs have an incentive program to encourage car 
pool, by bicycle public transit and shuttle for its employees . 

In addition please note. 
1). Parking; The study from RBF states 35 parking spaces is more than adequate based on similar senior 
housing projects from Santa Cruz to Monterey. The study used municipal codes pertaining to like uses. The 
count was from 8 in Santa Cruz County to 24 in Seaside Ca. In addition the CC&Rs will allow for our 
residents to be minimum of 65 years of age or older. To further mitigate the parking issues 4 of the units 
will be occupied by employees in addition to the "live In" employees there will have 6 part-time 
employees, they will be encouraged by incentives to take transit, carpool or bicycle to work. The 
employees will have multitasking positions. The residents will be restricted to 1 parking space per unit, 
also required by the CC&Rs. 
2) PD district- In addition to the foregoing - this development qualifies as exception to 4 acre minimum by 
the nature of use, "active senior unassisted living" and its uniqueness to the community. According to over 
200 signed petitions and many emails to the city in favor of this project, it does create a desirable living 
condition. 
3) CEQA guidelines have been met and surpassed, 

1 



-426-

Item #: 9.D. Communication.pdf

4) Testimony of area residents: There is a critical need for this project as shown by the petition and public 
support for the underserved but deserving seniors who want to be near the area they grew up in or near 
their families. 
5) Building mass/scale: Contrary to the assertion that Villa Capitola will be by far the 11tallest building" in 
the area this is not. Just 2 blocks to the south is Marriott Hotel at 56ft high and 3 times the density. The 
11for rent" storage building next door to Villa Capitola is only 8ft lower and occupies a higher building to lot 
ratio than Villa Capitola. We have made numerous changes based upon the comments from the Planning 
Commission and neighbors. These changes include the reducing of the building mass by articulating the 
plane of the design, by increasing set- backs and adding additional landscaping. 

Thank you for your consideration. I greatly appreciate your attention to these matter. 

From: steve themas [mailto:everdrex@yahoo.com] 

2 



-427-

Item #: 9.E. Communication.pdf

Sneddon; Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL 

Jennifer Shaw Ushaw9501 O@icloud.com] 
Wednesday, June 26, 2013 2:51 PM 
City Council 
[?? Probable Spam] Car-free events 

Great idea! We would SO enjoy this. (We live in Brookvale terrace) 

Only why pick a date so close to art and wine? 

Jennifer Shaw 
jshaw9501 O@qmail.com 
831-588-7 409 

1 

AGENI 
Item 8.C. 

JUN 26 Z013 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK· 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-428-


	AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCECouncil Members Dennis Norton, Sam Storey, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini and Mayor Stephanie Harlan
	2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	3. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	6. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	7. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the May 30, 2013, and the June 6, 2013, Special Budget Sessions.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	B. Approval of City Check Register Reports dated May 17, 2013; May 24, 2013; May 31, 2013; June 7, 2013; and June 14, 2013. 
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]
	[Attach 3.pdf]
	[Attach 4.pdf]
	[Attach 5.pdf]

	C. Consider approving a consultant services agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $142,295 to prepare an Environmental Impact Report for the proposed Monarch Cove Hotel Project funded through a developer deposit.
	[Staff Report.pdf]

	D. Consider denying liability claim of David Curry in the amount of $49.52 and forward to the City’s liability insurance carrier.
	[Staff Report.pdf]

	E. Consider approving an Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement establishing the Santa Cruz County Library Financing Authority.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	F. Consider an Ordinance adding Chapter 10.38 of the Capitola Municipal Code specifying parking meter rates and zones [2nd Reading].
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	G. Consider an agreement with New World Software Systems for Payroll/Human Resources software.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]


	8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Consider a Resolution to Levy the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area (CVWBIA) Assessments for Fiscal Year 2013/2014.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	B. Appeal of the Planning Commission denial of a Planned Development Rezoning, Conditional Use Permit, and Design Permit for a three-story, 23-unit residential senior housing project located at 1575 38th Avenue.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]
	[Attach 3.pdf]
	[Attach 4.pdf]
	[Attach 5.pdf]
	[Attach 6.pdf]
	[Attach 7.pdf]
	[Attach 8.pdf]
	[Attach 9.pdf]
	[Attach 10.pdf]

	C. Report on opportunities for experimental closing the Esplanade.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	D. Presentation providing an update on the new City of Capitola website.
	[Staff Report.pdf]


	9. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. 7.C.
	[Communication.pdf]

	B. 7.E.
	[Communication.pdf]

	C. 8.B.
	[Revision.pdf]

	D. 8.B.
	[Communication.pdf]

	E. 8.C.
	[Communication.pdf]


	10. ADJOURNMENT


